
Stella et Arlhur

De leur union naissent cinq enfants: Lucien, Ie 1er avril 1946; Aline, Ie 23
novembre 1947; Fernand, Ie 8 septembre 1952; Madeleine, Ie 6 juin 1956; Nicole,
Ie 21 septembre 1960.

Des leur mariage, Ie couple s'installe au bout de la 11e concession de Four­
nier et quelques annees plus tard, achete la ferme d'Alfred Charbonneau, dans la
meme concession.

En 1981, Arthur et Lauria prennent leur retraite et retournent aCurran, leur
village natal.

La Famille Arthur et Stella Lalonde

"Il Ya des gens qui, que! que soit leur age, ne perdent jamais leur beaute; eUe
ne fait que passer de leur visage aleur coeur." ,.

C'est en souvenir de nos parents, grands- ,
parents et arriere-grands-parents, Arthur et
Stella Lalonde, que nous contribuons a une
partie des donnees genealogiques et histori­
ques de la paroisse St-Bernard de Fournier.

Avec respec[ et tendresse, nous rap­
pelons leur courage remarquable, leur bonte,
leur amour de la vie. lis ont vecu tout en gar­
dant leur foi chretienne, malgre les difficultes
rencontrees sur la route de leur vie. Parmi les
plus doux souvenirs evoques pendant leur
retraite furent les annees vecues a I'ombre du
clocher paroissial, au coeur meme du petit vil­
lage de Fournier.

C'est en fevrier 1934 qu'Arthur et Stella
sont arrives aFournier.

Arthur est ne a Curran Ie 19 octobre
1901, fils d'Oletime Lalonde et de Cordelia
Groulx, Ie onzieme d'une famille de quatorze
enfants. Stella est nee Ie 6 octobre 1903, fille d'Octave Beaulieu et d'Exila Miron.
(La famille nombreuse de Stella etaiL proprietaire d'un magasin general a
Plantagenet Station.) Arthur et Stella se sont epouses aCurran Ie 21 avril 1924.

Arthur est un descendant de Jean de Lalonde, dit l'Esperance, qui avait
debarque a la Baie d'Urfe (Quebec) en 1665. Ce dernier avait sept ftls qui, a leur
tour, fonderent de nombreuses families. On retrouve des descendants Lalonde un
peu parlout au Canada. (Les Lalonde se sont rencontres en 1987 pour des
retrouvailles et la benediction d'un monument ala memoire de Jean de Lalonde.)

Apres leur mariage, Arthur et Stella ont vecu aCurran jusqu'au moment ou
iJs sont devcnus proprietaires d'une ferme a I'entree du village de Fournier, en
1934. Au fiJ des ans, Arthur a aussi cultive Ie houblon que l'on vendait aux dis-
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tilleries de biere. Son fils, Yvon, l'aidait dans ces entreprises. Devenu ensuite
commer~t d'animaux, Arthur a vendu sa ferme aYvon. II acheta alors la grande
rnaison au centre du village de Fournier OU il a vecu plusieurs annees.

En plus de son commerce d'animaux, Arthur a rempli d'aulres fonctions, lel­
les que concierge de I'Ecole St-Bernard, organisateur du Parti liberal et marguil­
lier de la paroisse.

Malgre une sante fragile, Stella prit une part active a la gestion de Ja ferme,
puis eUe appuya son epoux au commerce. Sereine et chaJeureuse, elle adorait les
enfants et se plaisait agater et a aimer ses enfants, ses petits-enfants et ceux du
village. Qui ne se souvient de son accueil chaleureux? Pendant plusieurs annees,
elle s'est occupee du Salon funeraire Lamarre et Fils, instaUe dans un apparte­
ment de leur maison. Compatissante et douce, elle apportait un soutien aux famil­
Ies eprouvees.

Arthur et Stella ant vecu aFournier jusqu'en juillct 1976, alors qu'ils se sont
retires au Centre d'accueil Roger-Seguin, aClarence Creek.

En avril 1982, Arthur et Stella ani celebre leur 58e anniversaire de mariage,
lars d'une fete intime.

Apres une longue maladie, Arthur est deceM Ie 3 janvier 1986, aI'age de 84
ans, et Stella, Ie 19 novembre 1988, a['age de 85 ans.

Le souvenir de leur foi et de leur courage nous permel d'esperer qu'ils sont
maintenant dans [a veritable patrie qu'ils ont reve de rejoindre.

De l'union d'Arthur et de Stella Lalonde sonl nes trois fIls: Yvon, Ie 24
fevrier 1925, Raymond, le 18 fevrier 1930, et Sylvio, deccde aI'age de 4 aDS.

La famille d'Arthur et de Stella Lalonde compte aujourd'hui aDze descen­
dants vivants, soit un fils, Raymond, trois petits-fils, Michel, Jean-Pierre et
Richard, trois petites-tilles, Suzanne, Denise eL Jocelyne, trois arriere-petits-fils,
Andre, Jean-Daniel eL Pierre-Luc, et deux arriere-petites-filles, Julie et Gabrielle

50· a'nniversalre de mariage
Raymonde, Raymond, Stella, Arthur, Yvon, Lucille
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La Famille Yvon et Lucille Lalonde

Yvon, ftls d'Arthur Lalonde et de Stella Beaulieu, esl ne aCurran. En ]944,
il epouse Lucille Desforges, fille de Raoul Desforges et de Valerie Chenier de
Fournier.

Durant sa jeunesse, Yvon travaille a la ferme familiale a Fournier el en
devient acquereur en 1944. Plus lard, il exerce Ie metier de boulanger; c'est alors
qu'il s'installe dans Ie village de Fournier. II distribue pains et gateaux dans les
magasins, les maisons, tout en parcourant les nombreux rangs de la municipalite
et des villages environnants.

Yvon et LuciUe quittent Ie village de Fournier en 1960 pour s'etablir a Ot-
tawa, alors qu'Yvon lravaille pendant plusieurs annees chez Rilchie Feed.

Apres une breve maladie, Yvon decede Ie 5 aout 1986, al'age de 60 ans.
Yvon et Lucille ont trois enfants:
Jean-Pierre (Yvonne Laniel) -- Andre et Julie
Richard (Denyse Robert) -- Robert
Jocelyne (Bernard Brady).
Lucille habite presentement la Residence St-Fran~ois,aCasselman.

La Famille Raymond et Raymonde Lalonde

q:j

Raymond (Pierre-Luc), Jean·Daniel,
Raymondc (Gabrielle)

Raymond, ne aCurran Ie 18 fewier 1930, est Ie fils d'Arthur Lalonde ct de
Stella Beaulieu. II arrive a Fournier lorsque ses parents deviennent proprielaires
d'une ferme al'entree du village de Fournier. II poursuit ses etudes elemenlaires a
Fournier, secondaires a Plantagenet et collegiales a Embrun. Apres quelques
annees d'etudes commerciales a Ottawa, it devient acheteur d'animaux pour
Modern Packers de MOntreal. <~1'f!~'~~',J1 t , 'I

En 1952, Raymond epouse f ' 1

Raymonde Lalonde, fille de Fer- ,
nand Lalonde et de Berthe &,'fj~'*,,;:,i~,1':""''''

Lalonde de Plantagenet.
Apres leur mariage,

Raymond et Raymonde
demeurenl a Fournier pendant
14 ans, dans un appartement de
la residence d'Arthur et de Stel­
la Lalonde. En 1966, ils con­
struisent la maison qu'ils
habitent presentement a St­
Isidore. De 1970 a 1975, ils sont
proprietaires de ]'Hotel Union
de Plantagenet.

En 1977, Raymond accepte
Un poste a la Caisse populaire
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de Fournier. Apres une formation re~ue de la Federation des Caisses populaires
de l'Ootario, il devient directeur de cette Caisse, poste qu'jl occupe depuis. Tres
attache au village oil il a passe sa jeuoesse, Raymond cherche toujours a con­
tribuer au progres de Fournier et au bien-etre de ses citoyens.

Raymonde enseigne depuis plusieurs aonees comme suppleante dans Ies
ecoles. Elle at au fit des ans, ete enseignaote a temps plein, mere et .epouse au
foyer, animatrice de Nouveau Depart. Son amour pour les enfanls la meoe
loujours, cependanl, a accepter des postes au sein des ecoles oil elle oeuvre. La
peinture aI'huile et la lecture soot ses passe-temps favoris.

Raymond et Raymonde ont trois eofants:
Michel, epoux de Chantal Seguin, detient une mai'trise en administration de

l'Universite d'Ottawa. II occupe un poste a la Defense nationale, aOUawa. 1\ vit a
Orleans avec son epouse, Chantal. IIs ont une fiUe, Gabrielle, nee Ie 30 aout 1990.

Suzanne, epouse de Michel Lalande, detient une maitrise en relations in­
dustrielles de l'Universite de Montreal. Elle habite Kirkland avec son cpoux,
Michel. IIs ont deux fils: Jean-Daniel, ne Ie 9 mars 1987, et Pierre-Luc, ne Ie 2 juin
1990.

Denyse detient un certificat en techniques d'education specialisee. Elle oc­
cupe un poste d'educatrice aMiriam Home, aLaval. Elle habite Vaudreuil.

CeUe nouvelle generation a su conserver les qualiles de ses ancetres: amour
du lravail bien accompli et fierte de sa langue et de sa foi.

Ire rangee: Raymond (Jean-Daniel), Raymonde. 2< rangee: Michel Lalande,
Suzanne, Michel, Chantal, Denise, Jocelyn Piette
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La FamiIle Auguste et Marie·Louise (nee Martin) Lalonde

Auguste, ne Ie 22 mai 1881 dans la T- concession de Fournier, cst Ie fils de
Joseph Lalonde ct de Marie Levac. Le 3 juin 1901, il epouse Marie-Louise Mar­
tin, fiUe d'Olivier Martin et d'Ozeline Charbonneau de Fournier.

De leur union naissent:
Albert (Blanche St-Denis), decedes; Henri (Ida St-Denis), decedes; Emile

(Aldea Leduc), decedes; Olivier (Marie Rose Leduc), decedee, (Juliette Lamar­
ehe, en seeondes noces), decede; Romeo (Jeanne Rieher), decedes; Laurette
(Hormidas Denis), deeede; Laurenza (Leopold Lamarche), decede; Blanche
(Olivier Longtin); Dieudonne (Emerentienne Lamoureux); Aline (Real Gagne),
decedee; Herve (Pauline Belisle), decede.

Apres leur mariage, Auguste et Marie-Louise exploitent une [erme dans la
Se eoneession (anciennement chez Rheal Poirier). Vers 1943, ils vendent la fcrme
aleur fJ.ls Henri et demenagent aSt-Isidore, pres de la Banque Nouvelle-Ecosse.

Marie-Louise decede aSt-Isidore Ie 4 mars 1945, aI'age de 62 ans et 11 mois.
Le 24 juin 1946, Auguste epouse en secondes noces Laurence Menard

(veuve d'Isidore Baxter) etle couple demeure dans Ie village de St-Isidore.
Auguste decede Ie 18 aout 1961.
Auguste et Marie-Louise sont inhumes it St-Isidore.

\.
% ' MI

Ice rangee: Blanche, Aline, Emerenlienne (Gaelan). 2· rangee: Marie-Louise,
AJdea, S. Alice Leduc, Emile, Auguste, Herve - 1944
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La Farnille Dieudonne et Ernerentienne (nee Lamoureux) Lalonde

Dieudonne est Ie fils d'Auguste Lalonde et de Marie-Louise Martin de Four­
nier et Emerentienne, la fille d'Emile Lamoureux et d'Euphrasie Leduc de St­
Isidore. Dieudonne et Emerentienne s'epousent aSt-Isidore Ie 22 ao11t 1943.

De leur union naissent deux enfants:
Gaetan, Ie 13 juillet 1944 (Claire Marleau) -- Marc et Chantal
Gisele, le 27 mai 1946.
Apres leur mariage, Dieudonne et Emerentienne demeurent quelques

annees avec les parents de Dieudonne sur la ferme, dans la 8e concession. Pen­
dant quelques annees, Dieudonne est boucher a Fournier (presentement chez
Vincent Lalonde). lis demenagent ensuite aPest du village (chez Ann Kerr), alors
que Dieudonne est camionneur (bois de pulpe).

Quelques annees plus tard, la fa mille Lalonde s'installe ii Cornwall OU ils
resident presentement.

La Farnille Delphis et Anna (nee Langlois) Lalonde

Delph.is est descendant de Jean de Lalonde ditl'Esperance. Son pere,
Emerie Lalonde, fils de Jean-Baptiste, epouse Glephire Clement a Alfred Ie 24
fevrier 1873. Ce derruer est decede aAlfred Ie 16 mars 1914, 1.1 Page de 68 ans.

Anna est la m1e de Clement Langlois et d'Irene Labrosse d'Alfred.
Delphis et Anna

s'epousent a Alfred Ie 6 juin
1898. Ils donnent naissance a
neuf enfants:

Arthur (Delia Marleau),
Fournier

(Angele Bourgon,
en secondes noces)

Edgar (Alma Andrews),
Fournier

(AmeJie Denis, en
secondes noces)

Glephire (Willie Dore),
Ottawa -- Murielle

Beatrice (Vernon Surch),
Fournier

Marie-Laure (Alfred
Sloan), Fournier

Lionel, deced6 it 2 mois
Lucien (Alice Gillis), Ot­

tawa

Anna, Lucille Lalonde, Delphis - 1935
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Edmond (Yvonne Couture), Fournier
Bruno (Rita Sloan), Fournier.
Apres leur mariage, Delphis el Anna s'etablissent sur une ferme dans la n e

concession d'Alfred (oil demeure presentement Therese Demers). lis seron! cui·
tivateurs toute leur vie. Vers 1915, ils demenagent sur une ferme (lotI, concession
13, Plantagenet-Sud) a un mille au nord du village de Fournier, en face de chez
Stephen Surch. Bruno est Ie seul de leurs enfants ne aFournier.

Anna est decedee en 1939, a I'age de 62 ans, et Delphis, en 1946, a l'age de
72 ans. lis sont inhumes aFournier.

The Family of Bruno Lalonde and Rita Sloan

Bruno is the son of Delphis Lalonde and Anna Langlois and Rita, the
daughter of George Sloan and Charlotte Andrews.

Bruno and Rita were married on October 22, 1945. They lived on the family
farm with Bruno's brother, Edmond, until 1960. Bruno and Rita bought their own
farm on the Horse Creek in 1954 and, in 1960, sold it to Pierre St-Onge and
returned to the home farm. In 1978, they sold the farm and moved closer to lown,
into the former home of George and Charlotte Sloan.

Bruno and Rita had six children: Stella, Bernard, Lilianne, Gerald, Elaine
and Marcel.

First row: Marc, Charlene. Seeond row: GeoI:ge, Lilianne, Stella, Elaine, Lynn, And~. Third row:
Bernard, Rita, Johanne, Catherine, Marcel. Four1h rOw. Bruno, Gerald, Noel - 1985
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Stella married Andr~ Boisvenue. They have two children: Johanne, living in
Hull, and Marc, at home in Orleans.

Bernard is living in Fournier with his mother.
Lilianne married George Wilson. They reside in Orleans. They have one

daughter, Charlene.
Gerald married Catherine Merkley. They are from Casselman. They have

three sons: Daniel, Michael, Patrick.
Elaine married Noel Corriveau. They reside in Orleans. They have no

children.
Marcel married Lynn Menard. They live in Casselman. They have one son,

Robert, born in 1990.

The Family of Edgar Lalonde

Edgar, son of Delphis Lalonde and Anna Langlois, married Alma, daughter
of Alfred Andrews and Josette Lalonde, on November 14, 1927.

Edgar and Alma lived on the home farm. They had three children: Alfred,
died an infant, Vincent and Lucille.

Vincent attended elementary school in Fournier and high school in
Plantagenet. From 1949 to 1952, he worked for the Canadian National Bank in
Fournier. He was later transferred to branches in Hull, Ottawa, Montreal, Sud­
bury, Sturgeon Falls, Ville-Marie, and Norme[al (Abitibi). When he retired in
1974, he moved in with his parents. Vincent likes gardening and cross-country
skiing.

Lucille married Marcel Lalande from Alfred. They live in Ottawa. Lucille
and Marcel have two children: Luc and Lynn.

Alma died in 1941.
In August 1946, Edgard married Amelie Denis, daughter of Charles Denis

and Azilda Lalonde. They frrst resided in the Lefebvre house. After the death of
Azilda, Edgar and Amelie lived with her father in th~ small house near the bridge.
Edgar was a barber, working out, and for Gaspard St-Amour. They then moved to
Ottawa, where Edgar worked for Campeau Construction. In 1969, they returned
to Fournier and in 1970, moved into the house that Vincent had bought from
Laurent Martin (where Vincent currently resides). Edgar lived there until his
death in 1981.

Am~lie was born in the 8th concession of Caledonia. She also lived for a
while with her parents in the secondary farm dwelling which they rented from
George Sloan (now Rita Lalonde's house).

Amelie was a seamstress. She worked in Montreal and Cornwall. She also
had a hat store in Maxville. Amelie now resides at Villa Lapalme in St-Isidore.

Le 26 aout 1946, Edgar epouse en secondes noces AmcWe Denis, fiUe de
Charles Denis et d'Azilda Lalonde de Fournier.
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Amelie est couturiere et tres habile dans la confection de chapeaux. Elk
deploie aussi un grand talent pour la peinture.

Arnelie reside presentement a Villa Lapalme, a St-Isidore. Elle entretient
toujours son gout pour la peinlure et continue aexercer son art.

La Famille Edmond et Yvonne (Couture) Lalonde

Edmond el Francine

Edmond est decede Ie 8
mai 1957 et inhume a Fournier.
Yvonne demeure toujours a
Fournier. Elle aime beaucoup la
lecture et la marche, ainsi que
recevoir et visiter les siens.

Edmond est Ie fils de Delphis Lalonde et
d'Anne Langlois de Fournier. Le 5 octobre 1948,
il epouse Yvonne Couture, fille de Louis Couture
et de Pbilomene Poirier de Fournier.

Edmond eL Yvonne ont une fiUe, Francine
(Ie 25 fevrier 1953), mariee en premieres noces it
Reynald Lalonde, decede Ie 1er novembre 1979,
(Jacynthe) e( en secondes noces it Marcel
Lalonde (Claudine).

Apres leur mariage, Edmond et Yvonne
demeuren( sur la ferme paternelle, sur Ie chemin
d'A1fred, jusqu'en 1960. lis viennent a10rs
demeurer au village, en face de l'eglise.

Jacinthe, Francine, Yvonne, Marcel (Claudine) -1984
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Delia et Arthur

La Famille Arthur et Delia Lalonde

Arthur est Ie fils de Delphis Lalonde et d'Anna Langlois. En juin 1921, il
epouse Delia Marleau, fille d'Aza Marleau et de
Donalda Parisien de Sl-Isidore.

De leur union naissent cinq enfants:
Cecile (Lionel Bercier), St-Isidore -- Gil­

les, Ginette, Clairette, Michel, Marcel, decede
accidentellement Ie 14 fevrier 1974, al'age de 16
ans, et Louise

Alice (Isa"ie Nicholas, en premieres
noces), Casselman -- Jean-Marc et Claude

(Oscar Berlinguette, en secondes
noces), Rigaud -- Gaetan et les jumelles, Helene
et Madeleine

Roger (Rita Gratton), Hawkesbury -­
Denise, Denis, Gisele, Rheal, Johanne et Lyne

Hector (Lucy Sloan), decedes, Fournier -­
Paul, Lorraine, Leo, decede Ie 25 mars 1982, a
l'age de 30 ans, Raymond et Alma.

Rejeanne (Bruno Couture), St-Isidore -­
Luc, Serge, Jean-Yves, Suzanne, Sylvain et
Andre.

Apres leur mariage, Arthur
et Delia demeurent sur une
ferme dans la Grand-Iigne. Vers
1950, ils prennent leur retraite ct
s'installent aSt-Isidore.

Delia decede Ie 27 octobre
1965. En juin 1967, Arthur
epouse Angelina Bourgon de St­
Isidore. II decede Ie 4 mai 1984.

Arthur et Delia sont
inhumes aSt-Isidore.

tre rangce: Angelina, Arthur. 2e rangee: Rejeanne,
Heclor. Alice, Roger. Cecile
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La Famille Roger et Rita (nee Gratton) Lalonde

Roger est Ie ftls d'Arthur Lalonde et de Delia Marleau de Fournier. Le 31
aoGt 1950, il epouse Rita Gratton, fiUe de Donat Gratton et d'Imelda Leduc d'­
Alfred.

De leur union naissent six enfants:
Denise (Bruce Gilliland), Osgoode -- 2 enfants. Denise a ete la premiere

coiffeuse pour hommes dans Prescott et Russell. Elle a remplace Laurent Martin
aFournier.

Denis (Carole Lanois), Embrun -- 3 enfants
Rheal (Marline Gillett), Hawkesbury -- 2 enfants
Gisele (Normand Bernier), Amherstburg (Ontario) -- 2 enfants
Lyne (Marcel Duperron), decede, Hawkesbury
Johanne (Thomas Soucy), Hawkesbury -- un enfant.
Des leur mariage, Roger et Rita s'installent sur la ferme palernelle. En plus

du travail de la ferme, Roger fail beaucoup de lravaiJ a forfait pour Ics cul­
tivateurs. Rita s'occupe de Ia maison, aide a la grange et fait les courses. Elk a ete
membre du Cercle des Fermieres de Fournier pendant de nombreuses annel:S.

En 1980, Roger et Rita vendent la ferme a Louis Claude et demenagcnt a
Hawkesbury ou Roger conduit des autobus scoJaires pendant 10 ans et Rita, pen­
dant 8 ans.

Roger g~re maintenanl un petit commerce de velos.

Ire rangee: Rita, Roger. 2e rangee: Johanne, Lyne, Rheal, Gisele, Denis, Denise
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Denise Lalonde a ete la
premiere coiffeuse pour hommes
dans Prescott et Russell. Edgar
Lalonde, son grand-onele, alors
resident de Fournier, a e(e son
premier client.

Edgar et Denise ·1970

The Family of Hector Lalonde and Lucy Sloan

Hector, son of Arthur Lalonde and Delia Marleau, was born and raised on a
farm about two-and-a-half miles north of Fournier, on the road to Alfred. Hector
went to work in Val d'Or (Quebec) and stayed at his Aunt Glephire's place.

Lucy also went north and stayed with her brother, Alfred, and his wife,
Marie, also an aunt of Hector.

Hector and Lucy were
married on June 7, 1948 and
worked for Ovide Lalonde,
on a farm in Vankleek Hili.
Two years later, they moved
to a small farm along the rail­
road track, between Alfred
and Plantagenet. From there
they moved to Ottawa, where
Hector worked at Forbes
Garage where he learned his
trade as a mechanic. In 1955,
they moved to St. Pascal;
Hector worked for the.
United Counties in
Plantagenet. He also did cus- Paul, Alma, Lucy, Hector, Lorraine, R.<lymond - 1988

tom work for the farmers,
filling silos in the fall and ploughing in the spring. In 1964, they moved to Fournier
and bought Harold McCulloch's garage. They later sold the garage and moved
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50C anniversaire de mariage
Mary Anne el Ellie

about one mile west of Fournier, on the Ridge Road. Hector continued doing cus­
tom work and later acquired a backhoe and truck.

Hector died December 19, 1989, at the age of 62. Lucy died suddenly on
August 25, 1990, at the age of 61.

Hector and Lucy had five children: Paul, Lorraine, Leo, Raymond and Alma.
Paul still lives in Fournier, keeping the family place. He enjoys life, making

use of his talents as a mechanic and machine operator.
Lorraine married Yves Demers. They have two children: Jennifer and Fran­

cis. They rcside in Brownsburg, Quebec.
Leo passed away suddenly in 1982, at the age of30.
Raymond married Helene Desjardins. They have two boys: Marc and Luc.

They live in Plantagenet.
Alma married Ronald Beriault. They have recently bought a home on Skye

Road, north of Dunvegan. Their five girls are: Nancy, Tanya, Jessica, Tamie and
Malissa.

La FamilJe Rlie et Mary Anne (nee Nicholas) Lalonde

Elie est Ie fus de Jean-Noel Lalonde et de Lucie Desloges de St-Isidore et
Mary Anne, la fiUe de Joseph Nicholas et de Mary Jane Parker de Fournier. Elie
et Mary Anne s'epousent a Four­
nier Ie 4 fevrier 1908.

lis donnent naissance a neuf
enfants:

Cecile (Theodore Lalonde),
Montreal -- 3 enfants

Adei (Juliette Meilleur, en
premieres noces), decedec,
Lachine

(Victoire Veillette, en
secondes noces) -- 2 enfants

Jeanne (Uo Lemire),
decedee, Lachine -- 3 enfants

Yvettc, decedee a8 jours
Desneiges, decedee atrois ans
Hector, celibataire, Lachine
Raymond (Desneiges

Groulx), Ville La Salle .- 8 enfanls
Orner (Rollande Brunet),

Lachine -- 2 enfants
Rita (Claude COle), Aylmer -­

4 enfants.
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Apres leur mariage, Elie et Mary Anne s'etablissent sur une ferme. lis seront
cultivateurs la majeure partie de leur vie, principalement a St-Amour et a St­
Isidore.

En 1935, iJs achetent la maison d'Emilina Seguin (presentement chez Vin­
eent Lalonde). Elie y demenage la boucherie d'Eugene Clement et exercera le
metier de boucher pendant 5 ou 6 ans. Us se retiren! ensuite aVanier et plus tard,
aLachine.

Elie et Mary Anne ont joui d'une belle retraite et d'une longue vie conjugale.
Mary Anne est decedee en 1961, arage de 79 ans, et Elie, en 1981, aI'age de 100
ans el 6 mois. I1s sont inhumes aLachine.

La Famille Evrard et Elmire (nee Bourdon) Lalonde

Evrard, ne aSt-Polycarpe Ie 23 seplembrc 1872, est Ie fils de Moi"se Lalonde
et d'Odile Pharand. Elmire, nee a SI-Philippe de Laprairie Ie 6 avril 1869, est la
fille de Georges Bourdon et de Sophie Hebert. Evrard et Elmire s'epousenl a
Fournier Ie 9 janvier 1894.

lis donnent naissance aneuf enfants:
Clephyre (Wilfrid Couture), decedes, Fournier -- un enfant, mort a la nais­

sance; Clara (Eugene Monette), decedes, Fournier -- 5 enfants; John, celibataire,
decede, Cornwall; Georges, celibataire, decede, Cornwall; Albert (Eva
Durocher), decedes, Cornwall -- 5 enfants; Pitre (Berthe Dore), decedes,
Alexandria -- 2 enfants; Corona, decedee a I'age de neuf mois; Ida (Andrew
Balasy), decede, Massena (N.Y.); Hortense (John Bissonnette en premieres
noccs), decede, Alfred, (Joseph Bissonnette en secondes noces), decede, Massena
(N.Y.)

Apres leur mariage, Evrard ct Elmire s'installent sur une ferme dans Ia
Boundary, chemin de frontiere entre Caledonia et Plantagenet-Sud. lis scront cul­
livateurs loute leur vie. I1s se retireront plus lard au village de Fournier (ou
demeure presentement Vincent Lalonde et ensuite, chez Rita Brunet).

Evrard est decede Ie 1cr aout 1929, a ['age de 57 ans, et Elmirc, Ie 18
novembre 1951, al'age de 83 ans. lis sont inhumes aFournier.

La Famille Georges E. et Aurore (Bissonnette) Lalonde

Georges E., fils d'EmiJien Lalonde et d'Agnes Lalande, naquil aSt-Bernar­
din Ie 9 mars 1894. 11 passa son enfancc dans Ie petit coin, pres de St-Bernardin,
qu'on appelait jadis St-Amour. II epousa Aurore Bissonnette aFournier Ie 15 mai
1928. Aurore, nee Ie 19 mars 1906, etait la tille de Jean-Baptiste Bissonnette et de
Justine Therrien.

De cette union naquirent onze enfants dont six vivants:
Raymond est marie aIrene Fortin. Ils ont cinq enfants: Louise, Sylvie, Paul,

decede, Georges et Denis.
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Gaslon est marie a Beatrice Couture. lis complent quatre gar<;ons: Gerry,
Gilles, Marc et Bobby.

Eliane est rnariee a Jean-Claude Lapensee. Dix enfants sont nes de cette
union: Danielle, Pierre-Yves, Michel, Sylvie, decedee, Elaine, Christian, Jean-Syl­
vain, Marc, Louis el Julie.

Gracia est mariee a Franc Kristof. Le couple a deux enfants: Frederic et
Philippe,

Monique est mariee a Aurald Bellefeuille, Cette union compte quatre en­
fants: Ginette, Lise, Alain et Eric.

Pauline est mariee a Marcel St-Jean. I1s ant quatre enfants: Lynne, Susie,
Josee et Guy.

La famille Georges E. Lalonde est aussi fierc de ses 31 arriere-petits-enfanls.
Au debut de son mariage, Georges etait proprietaire d'une fromagerie sur Ie

Ridge, voisin d'Ernest Bradley. II exploita cette industrie durant vingt ans. Par la
suite, il fit Ie commerce du bois durant de nombreuses annees avec son fils Gas­
ton, Georges adorait les chevaux. Maintes fois, on Ie vit participer aux courses
avec SOD cheval, Kentueky Dean,

Aurore Clait one femme digne et courageuse, d'une bonte peu commune.
Elle aimait beaucoup les gens et la musique, Son plus grand plaisir etait de jouer
une petite gigue sur son violon lars d'une soin~e. Elle fut dcs plus fiere et heureuse
de voir son petit-fils, Bobby, devenir Lres connu dans la rnusique western, grace a
son orchestre, au debut appele The Four Sons et aujourd'hui The Bobby Lalonde
Band.

Georges et Aurore ant vecu les douze dernieres annees de leur vie a
PlantagencL. Georges est decedt Ie 28 octobre 1981, aI'age de 87 ans, et Aurore,
Ie 29 mai 1983, al'i1ge de 77 ans. Ils sont inhumes aFournier,

'g

Georges e( Aurore
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La FamiUe Gaston et Beatrice (nee Couture) Lalonde

Gaston est Ie fils de Georges Lalonde et d'Aurore Bissonnette. Le 4 juin
1951, il epouse Beatrice Couture, fiUe de Laurent Couture et de Rosa Campeau
de Fournier.

lis donnent naissance aquatre gan;ons:
Gerry (Denise Paquette - decedee ac­

cidentellement a I'age de 29 ans) -- Julie.
Gerry travaille aAir Canada depuis 19 ans. II
est presentement surveillant a la billetterie.
Gerry est aussi courtier immobilier. II
demeure aLachute.

Gilles (Francine Laniel) -- Stephanie et
Patrick. Gilles obtient son baccalaureat es
arts, avec concentration en fran~ais, et son
baccalaureat en education de l'Universite d'­
Ottawa, et son certifieat de directeur d'ecole
de l'Universite Laurentienne de Sudbury. En
1972, il debute sa carriere d'enseignant a
l'elementaire a St-Isidore (de 1972 a 1981).
En 1981, il est nomme directeur adjoint a
I'Ecole St-Victor d'Alfred. Depuis 1983, il est

Gaston et Beatrice

! directeur adjoint a l'Eeole St-Jean,
a Embron. Francine est aide-en­
seignante a l'Ecole St-Paul, a Cas­
selman, depuis six ans.

Marc (Cathy Ryan) -- Jamie,
Jeffrey, Jason, Jennifer. Marc est
en refrigeration, ason propre com­
pte.

Bobby (Joy Young) -- Adam,
Brandon, Kelita.

De 1951 a 1959, Gaston est
camionneur a son propre compte.
11 travail Ie a la municipalite de
Plantagenet-Sud depuis 1959: de

Bobby, Gilles, Geny, Marc -1970
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Bobby

1959 a1964, comme camionneur, de 1964 a1975, comme operateur de niveleuse,
et depuis 1975, comme prepose ala surintendance des chemins.

Beatrice, maltresse de maison, encourage ses fils a developper leurs talents
de musieiens. Bobby commence ajouer du violon vers I'age de 8 ans. On forme
plus tard Ie groupe The Four Sons. Le groupe ne tarde pas a etre un des plus
populaires de la region. Beatrice sera leur manager durant 10 ans. En 1978, Ie
groupe se disperse, faute de circonslances.

Gaston et Beatrice habitent toujours Fournier. propri6te qu'ils ont achetee
en 1959.

Gaston et Beatrice sont des amateurs de musique country-western et de car­
tes, surtout Ie Bridge. Ils aiment aussi visiter et recevoir leurs amis. Us sont tres
fiers de leur famille.

The Family of Bobby Lalonde and joy Young

Bobby is the son of Gaston Lalonde and Beatrice Couture of Fournier and
Joy, the daughter of Thomas Young and Ailsa McNeil of Hammond. Bobby and
Joy were married October 5, 1984.

They have three children: Adam, Brandon and Kel.ita.
Joy graduated from Plantagenet High School. She then pursued her studies

at the Ottawa Civic Hospital School of Nursing, where she graduated as a
Registered Nursing Assistant. She later spent five years at the Ottawa Civic
Hospital and five years at the Ottawa General Hospital.

Bobby, one of Canada's most versatile and likable performers, continues to
open new doors with his talents.

Winner of the North American
Junior Fiddling Championship in
1974, Bobby was named Canada's
Instrumentalist of the Year in 1984,
1986, 1987, and in 1990, Canadian
All Star Band Fiddler.

In 1981, he was invited by
Prime Minister P,E. Trudeau to per­
form for seven world leaders
(Eeonomic Summit) including:
Ronald Reagan, Margaret Thatcher
and Franc;ois Mitterand.

In 1990-1991, he was music
director for a host of nationally syn­
dicated shows for CBC, crv and
Much Music Networks.

Bobby has also chalked up im­
pressive credits for his songwriting
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and his own recording career. He has written most ofthe material on his recent al­
bums and operates his own recording studio in Fournier.

Bobby and Joy have been residing in Fournier since 1985.

Joy, Adam (Kelila), Brandon, Bobby - 1990

La Famille Hyacinthe el Ozeline LaJonde

Hyacinthe est Ie fils de Fabien Lalonde et d'Odile Lalonde et Ozeline, la fiUe
de Benjamin Lalonde e[ d'EJize Veronneau de Fournier. Hyacinthe et Ozeline
s'epousent 11 Fournier Ie 16 janvier 1893.

Its donnent naissance ahuit enfants:
Donalda (Alderic Groulx), Plantagenet -- Edmond, Philippe, Wilfrid, Alice,

Rhea, Laurent, Lucienne, Lucien
William (Irma Martin), Fournier -- Cecile, Marguerite, Jean, Therese
Malvina (Pierre Robichon), Pembroke -- Janet, Reina, Antoinette, Parnel,

Solange, Jeannine, Aurele, Therese, Andre
Olivier (Aurore Duval), Plantagenet _. Marie-Paule, Germain, Jeannine,

Marie-Reine, Fernand, Jeanne d'Arc
Albert (Marguerite Brunet), Rockland -- Gerard, Roger, Jean-Claude,

Robert, Raymonde, Fernande
lsrael, celibataire, St-Isidore
Napoleon (Eva Lalonde) (Marie-Claire Charlebois) (Berthe Cadieux), Cur-

ran
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Clement (Patricia Langevin), Rigaud -- Simonne, Andre, Marcel, GiUes,
Nicole, Jean-Paul

Arthur (LaureHe Brunet), Chapleau -- Maurice, Gisele, Madeleine, Ger­
mam.

Hyacinthe et Ozeline ont ele cultivaleurs loule leur vie. lIs sont dcmeures
nombre d'annees dans la n e concession d'Alfred.

Hyacinlhe esl decede en 1932 el Ozeline, en 1948. ]]s sont inhumes aFour­
mer.

La FamiIIe William et Irma (Martin) Lalonde

William, fils d'Hyacintbe Lalonde et
d'Ozeline Lalonde, est ne aAlfred Ie 26 sep­
tembre 1895. ]rma, fille de Joseph Martin et
de Regina Groulx, esl nee a Fournier Ie 19
octobre 1904. WiUiam et Irma s'epousent a
Fournier Ie 28 aVTi11930,

De leur union naissent quatre enfants:
Cecile (Leo Parker), Cornwall; Marguerite
(Roch Greffe), Hawkesbury; Jean (Rachel
Leger), Fournier; Therese (Maurice Seguin),
Cornwall.

Apres leur mariage, Ie couple Lalonde
vient s'etablir a Fournier, au bout de Ja n e

concession. Quelques annees plus lard, ils
deviennent proprietaires de la fermc de
Leon Lalonde, au coin de la n C concession.

En 1959, Jean et Rachel achetent la
ferme paternelle.

Irma est decedee Ie 18 avril 1954 el Wil­
liam, Ie 19 aoOt 1970, lis sont inhumes aFournier.

Theresc, Jean, Margucrite, C..ecile

Irma et William
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La Famille Jean et Rachel Lalonde

Le premier ancetre canadien Lalonde, Jean de Lalonde dit l'Esperance, est
un soldat du Regiment de Carignan. II est Ie fils de Philippe Lalonde et de Jeanne
Duval de Notre-Dame du Havre, diocese de Rouen, Norrnandie, France. II
epouse Marie Barban, tiUe d'Alexand.re Barban er de Marie Le Noble de Saint­
Remy de Dieppe, egalement de Normandie.

L'origine du nom Lalonde est bien normand. Une foret, un chateau, un vil­
lage et plusieurs hameaux en Normandie portent Ie nom de La Londe. II est prob­
able que l'ancetre Jean venait d'un de ces viUages ou de la foret de La Londe.

Jean, fils de William
Lalonde et d'Irma Martin,
est ne et a toujours demeure
dans la U e concession de
Fournier. Rachel est la tiUe
de Wilfrid Leger et
d'Helene Lanthier de St­
Isidore. Ses grands-parents
paternels, Paul Leger et
Malvina Brisebois, ainsi que
ses grands-parents mater­
nels, Xavier Lanthier et
Auxilia Besner, etaient des
pionniers de la paroisse de
Fournier. Jean et Rachel
s'epousent Ie 27 aoOt 1955.

lis donnent naissance a '
trois fules: Jean el Rachel (Lydia)

Lise, mariee Ie 1er juil-
let 1979 a Andre Brasseur, menuisier. Lise est enseignante depuis 1976. Elle a
enseigne aCurran, aWendover el enseigne presenlement aPlantagenet. Andre et
Lise sonl les proprielaires, depuis Ie 1er janvier 1989, de la ferme Lalonde et les
parents de Pierre-Andre, ne Ie 25 juillet 1982, et d'Anne-Marie, nee Ie 17 juillet
1987.

Nicole, mariee Ie 22 mai 1976 a Rejean Bourgeois, rourier el menuisier.
Nicole a ete secretaire chez differents concessionnaires de machines agricoles
depuis la fin de ses etudes secondaires. Rejean et Nicole ont trois enfants:

Martin, ne Ie 24 avril 1979; Francis, ne Ie 9 janvier 1982; Annie, nee Ie 1er jan­
vier 1984 (premier bebe de l'annee aI'Hopital Montfort).

Denise, mariee Ie 4 septembre 1982 a Paul Richardson, enseignant. Denise
enseigne (de 1981 a 1989) a Stittsville el a Orleans. Elle esl maintenanl
bibliothecaire aOrleans Wood Elementary School. Leur fus Jean-Michel est ne Ie
28 fevrier 1989 et leur fiUe Lydia, Ie 21 janvier 1992.
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Apres leur mariage, Jean et Rachel s'installent sur la [erme paternelle et en
deviennent proprietaires en avril 1959. Apres y avoir apporte maintes
ameliorations, ils la vendent aLise et Andre Brasseur Ie 1er janvier 1989.

Depuis 1971, Jean conduit l'autobus scolaire de Victor McKinley et n'oublie
jamais d'arreter au restaurant en revenant. II esl aussi membre fondateur du Club
Oplimiste de Curran.

Rachel aime la couture, Ie tricot, Ie jardinage et la visite de ses petils-enfants.

lre rangee: Paul (Jean-Michel), Andre (Anne-Marie), Jean (Annie), Rejean.
2" rangee: Denise. Lise, Pierre-Andre, Francis, Marlin, Nicole

La Famille Jean-Louis et Delima (nee Galipeau) Lalonde

Jean-Louis eslle fils de Pierre Lalonde el d'Emma Lalonde de 5t-Bernardin
el Delima, la fiJle d'Esdras Galipeau et d'Amanda L'Ecuyer de Fournier. Jean­
Louis et Delima s'epousenl aFournier Ie 24 avril 1933.

De leur union sonI nes cinq enfants: Real (1934), epoux dc Claudette
Lamoureux; Aimc (1937), epoux d'Estelle Cayer, decedes; Gilbert (194D) , decede
a Ja naissance; Denise (1941), epouse de Maurice Ranger; Jean-Pierre (1945),
cpoux de Denise Villeneuve.

Jean-Louis el Delima demeurent trois ans it 5t-Bernardin. Le 27 aout 1936,
ils achetenl la ferme de Georges Galipeau, d'une superficie de 100 acres, Ie lot 10
dans la 16e concession. A leur arrivee acelte ferme, ils ont 2 chevaux, 4 vaches, 2
porcs et quelques poules. lis cultivent des palates, des fraises, des framboises, du
malS sucre et exploilent une sucrerie. Avec Ie temps, ils augmententleur troupeau.
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Jean-Louis a ete conseiller a la municipalite de Plantagenet-Sud pendant
quinze 11 vingt ans. Il est decede Ie 7 novembre 1966, a!'age de 55 ans.

En 1967, Delima vend la ferme ason ftls Jean-Pierre et s'installe au village de
St-Isidore.

Delima est decedee Ie 10 mai 1984, a l'iige de 71 ans. Son fLls Aime est
decede Ie 26 avril 1980, a l'age de 42 ans, et son epouse Estelle, Ie 5 aoOt 1985, a
l'age de 42 ans.

Jean-Lows et Delima reposent au cimetiere paroissial de Fournier.

\

Ire rangee: Aime, Jean-Pierre, Real. 2e rangee: Jean-Louis, Denise, Delima

La Famille Jean·Pierre et Denise (nee Villeneuve) Lalonde

Jean-Pierre, fils de Jean-Louis Lalonde et de Delima Galipeau, est ne et a
6te baptise aFournier. Le 28 mai 1966 , il epouse Denise Villeneuve, fille d'Hilaire
Villeneuve et d'Annette Lortie de St-Isidore.

Jean-Pierre achete la ferme de Bernard Wathier, un 50 acres, ferme voisine
de eelle de son pere. Suite au deees de celui-ci, Jean-Pierre et Denise achetent, en
avril 1967, la ferme paternelle, un 100 acres, avec un troupeau de 40 vaehes
laitieres. En 1975, ils se construisent une nouvelle maison sur la ferme. Ils vendent
les vaches en 1978, pour se lancer dans la production porcine. Ils constrwsent une
porcherie d'une capacite de 2 000 pores. Le 10 deeembre 1981, un violent incen­
die detruit la porcherie et tous les pores. Maintenant, ils continuent acultiver leur
terrain et produisent du mais et du grain.

Jean-Pierre et Denise ant trois enfants: Yvan, Ie 24 fevrier, 1967; Joel, Ie 4
mai 1970; Sophie, Ie 14 mai 1973.
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La Farnille Leon et Celina (nee Montpetit) Lalonde

Leon (1861), fils d'Israel Lalonde et de Catherine Montpetit epouse Celina
Montpetit (1858) de Ste-Marthe.

Leon et Celina donnent naissance a ODze enfants: Elise (Fran«ois·Xavier
Denis); Merida (Delima Campeau); Ovila (Maria Lepage); Eugene (Melina
Beaudry); Dosithee (Berthe Prefontaine); Domina (Eva Cadieux); Marie-Louise
(Olivier Martin); Martha (Raoul Tessier); Rosalba (Wilfrid Chretien); Dolores
(decedee a17 ans); Albina (Soeur Marie-Marthe-de-Jesus, SS. de Ste-Anne).

Martha est la seule survivante.
Apres leur mariage, Leon et Celina, accompagnes d'Israel et de Catherine,

viennent s\~tablir dans la H C concession de Fournier (aujourd'hui chez Jean
Lalonde). lIs commencent avec 50 acres de terrain. Us elevent des vaches, des
cochons et des poules. lis cultivent du ble qu'ils font moudre aPlantagenet, farine
dont ils se servent pour faire leur pain. A cette epoque, il n'y a pas de fromagerie.
lis font du beurre qu'ils vendent aCasselman.

En 1934, Leon et Celina se retirent au village de Fournier.
Celina est decedee en 1950 et Leon, en 1952. lis reposent au cirneliere de

Fournier.

Celina ct Uon -vcrs 1930

La Farnille Nephtalie et Albina (nee Bissonnette) Lalonde

Nephtalie (1870) est Ie fils d'Amedee Lalonde et de Sophie Tourangeau. Le
27 novembre 1893, il epollse Albina Bissonnette (1870), fiUe d'Olivier Bissonnette
et de Rosalie Derouin de Plantagenct.
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De leur union naissent six enfants:
Eva (1888-1901)
Victor (1889-1927) (Eva Couture)
Henri (1901-1961) (Lucia Rainville)
Edmond (1902-1985) (Irene Fisher)
Albert (1903-1934), mort accidentelle-

menL
Apres leur mariage, Nephtalic et Albina

s'installent sur une ferme A I'est de Fournier
(anciennement chez Dean Kelly). lis y seront
cultivateurs jusqu'en 1928, alors que leur fils
Henri se marie et prend la releve. lis se
retuent alors au village.

Nephtalie est decede en 1947, et Albina,
en 1%1. lis sont inhumes aFournier.

Nephlalie et Albina

La Famille Henri et Lucia (nee Rainville) Lalonde

Henri (1901) est Ie fils de Nephtalie Lalonde et d'Albina Bissonnette de
Fournier. Le 27 novembre 1928, il cpouse Lucia Rainville (1907), fiUe de Louis
Rainville et d'Azilda Leger de St-Isidore.

Lucia et Henri
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Henri et Lucia ont cinq en­
fants:

Marie-Jeanne - 1929 (Jac­
ques Comtois), Montreal
Suzanne, Andree, Anne, Joanne,
Denis

Hubert 1931 (Marie
Keough), Ottawa -- Yvon, Louise,
Robert, Deborah Anne

Raymond - 1936 (Sergine
Joly), Hawkesbury -- Lucie

Huguette - 1938 (Roland
Sevigny), Mascouche -- Chantal,
Josee

Marcel - 1941 (Elaine Ben­
son), Long Sault -- Lyne.

Apres leur mariage, Henri et
Lucia cultivent la ferme paternelle



pour quelques annees. Ils montent ensuite au village OU Henri sera vendeur de
machines agricoles pour International Harvester. Il exploitera aussi un moulin It
cereales. Vers 1940, il construit un garage qui passera plus tard ason ftls Hubert.

Lucia est decedee en 1955, It rage de 47 ans, et Henri, en 1%1, It I'age de 60
ans. IIs sont inhumes It Fournier.

Hubert, Hugue[(e. Marcel, Marie-Jeanne, Raymond

La Famille Odilon et Eugenie Lalonde

Odilon, ne aSt-Isidore Ie 9 mars 1901, est Ie fils de Theophile et de Geor­
giana Lalonde. Eugenie Beriault, nee It Fournie. Ie 28 mai 1906, est la fiUe de
Telesphore Beriault et de Donalda Levac. (Alors qu'Eugerue n'est agee que de 3
ans, son pere decede. Son onele et Ilr" '""""I"'" '1' . -r

, ~' ~
sa tante, Emerie et Georgiana ~.1 ~'.

Levac, I'elevent.) Odilon et I

Eugenie s'epousent a St-B{;rnar­
din Ie 28 octobre 1924.

De leur union naissent:
Marie-Ange, decedee a 22

mOts
Jean-Rheal (Rollande Du­

val), Vankleek Hill, decedes ac­
cidentellement (Jean-Rheal, It
l'age de 35 ans, et Rollande, a
l'age de 30 ans) et inhumes aSt­
Bernardin Marie-Reine,
Ginette, Diane, Ivan, Jean-Claude

Georgette (Rhea! Lapensee),
St-Bernardin -- Estelle, Gilles,
Robert, Donald, decede a l'age de

20 ans, Diane soc anniversaire de mariage
Gisele, Odilon, Roger, Eugenie, Georgette



Roger (Jacqueline Carriere), Vankleek Hill-- Jean-Yves, decede a l'age de
13 ans, Richard, Pierre, Nicole, Michel, Sylvain

Gisele (Samuel Cadieux), Dalkeith, decedee aI'age de 47 ans.
Apres leur mariage, Odilon el Eugenie demeurenl sur une ferme dans la

Grand-ligne d'Alfred el aCurran. Us achetent ensuile une ferme au bout de la Se
concession de St-Bernardin. En 1962, ils vendent la ferme et achetent Ie res­
taurant au Coin Parker. En 1969, ils prennent leur retraile et s'installent au village
de Fournier.

Eugenie decede Ie 3 mars 1976.
Apres Ie deces d'Eugenie, OdiJon demeure 2 ans chez sa fille Georgette. En

1978, il epouse en secondes noces Madeleine Giroux. II est decede Ie 5 novembre
1991.

Odilon el Eugenie sont inhumes aSt-Bernardin.

La Famille Oliva et Clara (nee Boudreault) Lalonde

Notre ancetre Jean Lalonde est nc. en Normandie et a immigre en Nouvelle­
Franee en 1665. II faisait partie du Regiment de Carignan qui comptait 1200 hom­
mes en parlance du port de La Rochelle.

Leon Lalonde (1827 - 1924) et Octavie Seguin (1841-1919), grands-parents
d'Oliva, etaient cultivateurs aCurran. Leur fils Oletime (1864-1946), pere d'Oliva,
et Cordelia Groulx (1866-1961) ont eu seize enfants. (Oletime etait cultivaleur et
commeryanl de betail. II devait faire marcher ses betes jusqu'au port de Treadwell
pour chargement sur bateau, en direction du marche de Montreal.)

Pour des raisons pratiques d'entraide, Ie pere d'Oliva a juge bon d'installer
ses cinq fils, Uo, Donat, Jean-Baptiste, Arthur et Oliva, I'un pres de l'autre, sur
les bords de la riviere Nation.

Oliva (1886-1971) et Clara (1889-1972) se sont maries a Curran Ie 24
novembre 1908. Clara etait la Jille d'Antoine Boudreault et de Delima Prevost.

Oliva a defriche sa ferme et construit une grange, une etable et leur grande
maison en 1919. Malheureusement, Ie feu a ravage leur belle demeure en 1927. lis
ont achete la ferme voisine, ce qui leur a permis, en plus d'un agrandissement de
terrain, de vivre confortablement sur Ie Ridge, a I'ecart des inondations
printanieres de la riviere Nation.

Oliva fut a l'origine de l'etablissement de la premiere ecole separee de Ja
region de Riceville, construite en 1930 aux frais des contribuables francophones.
II a ete marguillier de la paroisse durant plusieurs annees et a siege au sein du
conseil municipal de Plantagenet-Sud pendant vingt et une annees consecutives.
Clara, qui avait Ie don de la parole et savait bien eerire, a su inspirer chez ses en­
fants Ie gout de l'effort et de I'etude, ce qui contribue a1a reussite dans la vie.

Oliva et Clara ont vecu pour feter non seulement leurs noces d'or en 1955,
mais aussi leur 60e anniversaire de mariage. De leur union sont nes huit enfants
dont sept garyons et une [tile.
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lre rangelO: Gerard, Oliva, Clara, Laurette. 2e rangee: Lucien,
Ovide, Laurent, Remi, Aubert, Dorima - 1966

Dorima (Antoinette Godin) -- 6 enfants
Dorima a obtenu son baccalaureat en sciences agricoJes de I'Universite de

Guelph. A sa retraite, it occupait Ie poste d'agronome a Huntingdon (Quebec).
Dorima et Antoinette habitent Ottawa.

Aubert (1911-1969) (Eva Lalonde (1908-1954» -- 4 enfants survivants
En 1960, Aubert se marie en secondes noces a Jeanne Prevost-Lavigne

(1906-1973). En 1933, il occupe une ferme dans la lQe concession de Curran et
devient distributeur de machines agricoles Cockshutt. Aubert a initie Ies travaux a
forfait chez Ies ferrniers. Proprietaire d'une ferme aWales aI'epoque du projet de
Ia Voie maritime du Saint-Laurent, il a dil se reiocaJiser aChute-a-Blondeau.

Laurent (Marguerite Beaulieu (1912-1987» -- 3 filles
Laurent se marie en secondes noces a Flora Nesbitt. Laurent a etudie a

l'UniversiLe de Guelph. Durant sa carriere, il a occupe Ie poste de gerant de la
Cooperative de Brockville pendant 30 annees consecutives. lis demeurent a
Brockville.

Remi (1916-1988) (Madeleine Chevalier) -- 6 Giles
Remi a oeuvre dans Ie domaine de I'education durant sa vie entiere: a

J'elementaire, au secondaire et aux etudes superieures. Apres son Ecole Normale
a l'Universite d'Ottawa, Rerni enseigna aSte-Rose et aTreadwell. II quitta alors
temporairement son enseignement pour poursuivre ses etudes it l'Universite d'­
Ottawa (baccalaureat es arts, baccalaureat en sciences, malt rise en education). II
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enseigna ensuite au niveau secondaire, aWinchester et aEastview. En 1951, il ac­
cepta de remplir les fonctions de directeur fondateur de l'Ecole secondaire St­
Laurent, a Cornwall. Remi deviendra plus tard professeur a I'Ecole Normale,
dans la ville de Quebec, et deux ans plus tard, coordonnateur a l'Institut maritime
du Quebec, jusqu'a sa retraite en 1980.

Ovide (1918-1975) (Lina Vallee) -- 3 fils
Ovide etait cultivateur aVankleek Hill.
Lucien (1943-1979) (Yvette Binet) -- 7 enfants
Lucien se marie en secondes noces a Lorraine Gratton en 1980. Apres sa

retraile de l'aviation canadienne, il a ele direcleur du Journal, quotidien aOttawa,
et par la suite, courtier en immeubles commerciaux. II demeure aOttawa.

Laurette (1923-1992). Laurette a oeuvre comme administratrice a l'Ecole
secondaire Saint-Laurent, a Cornwall, et ensuite au cabinet du Ministre du
Secretariat d'Etat, a Ottawa, ou. die habitait.

Gerard - (Maureen Shane) -- 7 enfants dont 5 survivants
Gerard ct Maureen ont ete parmi les premiers eleveurs canadiens aimporter

du betail Charolais directement de France, pays d'origine de cette race d'animaux.
Gerard a ete elu president national de l'Association canadienne des eleveurs
Charolais en 1963. lis habitent la ferme paternelle, pres de Riceville.

La Famille Gerard B. Lalonde et Maureen R. Shane

Gerard et Maureen s'epousent Ie 5 septembre 1953 en l'eglise Our Lady of
Divine Love, aPendleton.

De leur union sont nes six enfants:

lr" rangee: Geraro (Paul), Janet, Marcel, Maureen (Michael). 2e rangee: Marc,
julie, Dianne, Denyse, Maurice
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Marcel (Janet Williams), tous deux diplomes de l'Universite de Guelph en
agronomie (baccaJaureat en sciences agricoIes) ainsi qu'en medecine vererinaire
(D.V.M.). Les docteurs Marcel et Janet sont proprietaires d'une clinique
veterinaire moderne aAlexandria. Ils ont deux fils: Michael et Paul.

Neil (1957-1972), noye Ie 12 juillet 1972.
Denyse (Maurice St-Denis), courtier d'assurances, a I'cmploi d'une

entreprise locale. Maurice est presentement employe a la Cooperative avicole de
Sl-lsidore Itee.

Dianne, jumeUe de Denyse, diplomee du College Algonquin en Design
interieur et Architecture, oeuvre dans ce domaine, a l'Universite d'Ottawa.

Julie, diplomee de l'Universite d'Oltawa en Administration des Affaires (B.
Adm,), est presentement al'emploi de son Alma Maler.

Marc, diplome de l'Universite de Montreal en Architecture paysagiste
(B.L.A.), est a l'emploi d'une entreprise d'arch1lectes paysagisles, Ii Ottawa.

Neil, Marcel, Maureen, Gerard, Andre Briand (purchaser), Doug Cowan. This yearling heifer was
sold al a breed auction in Ottawa in 1966, bringing the highest price -- $6,500.

Des leur mariage, Gerard et Maureen s'etablissent sur la ferme palernelle,
pres de Riceville.

A la suite de quelques annees comme agriculteurs traditionnels, Gerard et
Maureen se lancent dans I'elevage de bovins Charolais. Cette race, originaire de
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France, et tres peu connue en Amerique du Nord, prendra une place d'honneur a
la ferme Lalonde et au Canada. Parla suite, Gerard et Maureen importeront des
bovins Charolais directement de France pendant cinq annees consecutives. Leur
elevage deviendra line source importante pour les eleveurs canadiens et
americains. Apres avoir siege pendant dome aonees au sein du bureau de direc­
tion de l'Association canadienne charolaise, Gerard sera !Slu president national de
cette association en 1963. Ce poste l'invitera afaire de nombreux voyages atravers
Ie continent, ainsi qu'en France, et ce, pendant que Maureen veillera a la famille,
au troupeau, ala ferme, aux employes, etc.

En mai 1985, ayant subi une intervention chirurgicale au coeur (quatre
pontages), Gerard se doit de reduue ses activites physiques a la ferme. Apres
quelques mois de repos et de reflexion, il decide, avec Maureen, de transformer
leur ferme et d'en reduire les operations. C'est a ce momenl que Ie ministre dc 1'­
Agriculture de l'epoque, M. John Wise, offrait aGerard un poste de directeur au
sein du bureau d'examen de I'endettement agricole, organisme nouvellement cree.
(Ce nouveau conseil d'administration en Ontario comprend dix membres dont
Gerard est Ie sew francophone.) Ce travail de mediateur Ie transporte a travers la
province. En acceptant cette nomination pour line periode de cinq ans, Gerard af­
firmait qU'il etait heureux d'avoir I'occasion de remetlre ala c1asse agricole ce que
ceUe-ci avait fait pour lui et sa famille durant sa vie.

Genyand Maureen rounding up their herd of Charolais cattle

La FamiUe Philippe et Angeline Lalonde

Philippe, fils d'Alfred Lalonde et de Marie-Louise Prevost, est Ie cinquieme
enfant d'une famiUe de dix-sept. En 1943, il epouse Angeline Laniel, fiUe de Char­
les Laniel et d'Evelina Poulin de Lefaivre.

lis ont donne naissance atrois enfants:
Guy (Lise Bonneville), Boucherville -- Chantal et Annie
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Lise (Gaston Perron), St-Pascal -- Michel et Marie-Josee
Jacques, deceM accidentellement en 1977.

Jacques

Lisc, Philippe, Angeline, Guy

Philippe et Angeline sont toujours demeures sur une ferme, Ie long de la
riviere Nation, dans la 12e coneession. lis sont maintenant retraites et habitent une
nouvelle demeure pres du Pont Seguin.

Fait etrange, il ne resle qu'un seul descendant d'Alfred Lalonde pour
prendre la releve. D'ailleurs, c'est ainsi qu'on designe Benoit, petit-fils de Rene
Lalonde, frere de Philippe. C'esl a Benoit que revient I'honneur de perpetuer Ie
Clan Lalonde, deja si nombreux.

La Famille Rejean et Rachelle Lalonde

Rejean est Ie fils de Calixte Lalonde et d'Amanda Landry de St-Isidore. Le
25 septcmbre 1965, il epouse Rachel Marier, fille de Theophile Marier et de Clara
Beriault de Riceville. I1s sont les parents
de Christian, ne Ie 17 deeembre 1976.

Apres leur mariage, Rejean ct
Rachelle dcmeurent a Riceville. En 1970,
ils demenagent aCurran et treize ans plus
tard, se construisent pres du village. ",

Depuis 1970, Rejcan travaille a la
municipalite de Plantagenet-Nord.
Rachelle a travaille 18 ans dans la cou­
ture, aAlfred; maintenant, dIe coud a la
matson.

Rejean, Rachel1e, Christian
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Ire rangee: Aline, Rhea. 2" rangee: Sylvie,
Sylvain, Huguette, Denis

La Famille Rheo et Aline (nee Marier) Lalonde

Rhea (1934) est Ie fils de Calixte Lalonde et d'Amanda Landry de St-Isidore.
Le 20 septembre 1958, il epouse Aline Marier, ftIle de Theophile Marier et de
Clara Beriault de Riceville.

Rhea et Aline donnent naissance it cinq enfants, dont une fille decedee a la
naissance:

Huguette, Denis, Sylvain, Sylvie (Steven Boyd).
Rheo et Aline

demeurent al'ouest du village
de Riceville.

Apres avoir travaille
pendant 14 ans a la
Cooperative avicole de St-
Isidore Itee, Rhea est
presentement camionneur
chez Uon Delorme, a Cur­
ran. Aline et Huguette travail­
lent aussi chez Leon Delorme,
comme trieuses de pommes
de terre. Denis travaille chez
Gilles Lamoureux et Sylvain
et Sylvie, chez Riceville
Enterprise (H. G. Worley).

Aline, Huguette et Sylvie
sont membres du Cercle des
Fermieres de Fournier. Elles
font beaucoup d'artisanat.

La Famille Rheal et Lucienne (nee Gratton) Lalonde

Rheal, fils de Napoleon Lalonde et de Bertha Gauthier de St-Isidore, epouse
Lucienne Gratton, fiUe de Donat Gratton et d'lmelda Leduc d'Alfred, Ie 23 oc­
lobre 1954.

lIs donnent naissance asept enfants: Suzanne, Ie 14 juin 1955, decedee Ie 25
mai 1989; Michel, Ie 29 octobre 1956 (Claudette Crevier) -- Jimmy; Roger, Ie 3
mai 1960 (Johatule Lefebvre); Normand, Ie 23 avril 1962 -- Fran~ois; Ghislain, Ie
25 fevrier 1964 (Sylvie Lalonde); Pierre, Ie 27 fevrier 1967; Chantal, Ie 22 juin 1970
-- Jessica.

Rheal et Lucienne demeurent un an a St-Isidore apres leur mariage. lis
demenagent ensuite aCornwall OU Rheal exercera Ie metier de plombier pendant
quinze ans. lis s'elablissent ensuite a Fournier oil Rheal opere son propre com-
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merce de plomberie. Ils y demeureront une vingtaine d'annees. Le 2 mars 1989, ils
se retirent aHawkesbury oil ils resident presentement.

Rheal est membre des Chevaliers de Colomb et Lucienne, des FiJles d'­
Isabelle. Lucienne a ete tres active au sein du Cercle des Fermieres de Fournier
pendant vingt-quatre ans et presidente du Cerc1e pendant plusieurs annees. Eile a
aussi suivi beaucoup de cours de bricolage offerls aFournier.

Rheal est decede Ie 11 avril 1991 el inhume aAlfred.

Ire rangee: Pierre, Suzanne, Chantal. 2e rangce: Roger, Michel,
Lucienne, Rheal, Gllislain, Nom1and - 1987

The Family of Telesphore Lalonde and Hannah CuU

Telesphore Lalonde married Hannah, the third child of George and Hannah
Cutt. They lived in the area and raised their family of four:

George (Emma Lecuyer) -- WWiam Henry, Robert, Frank, Telesphore, Lily,
Steven, Isaac, Arthur and Sara, Riceville

Sarah (Mike Bradley), no children (they raised Ella McHugh), Lemieux
Lilis (Boyd MacCauley), nO children, Lemieux
Mina.

The Family of George Lalonde and Emma Lecuyer

George Lalonde (1892), SOn of Telesphore Lalonde and Hannah CUll, mar­
ried Emma Lecuyer (1905).

They raised a family of eighc William Henry, Robert, Frank, Telesphore,
Lily (Andrew Derouchie), Steven (Colleen Powers), Isaac, Arthur and Sara.
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George worked for farmers in and
around Riceville. Emma helped out, work­
ing for many of their wives.

George and Emma are buried In

Franklin's Corners Cemetery.
Robert died in 1989 and Frank, in

1990. They are also buried in Franklin's
Corners Cemetery.

Bill Henry still lives at home, east of
the village of Riceville.

George and Emma -1925

The Family of Wilbert and Dolores (nee Brunet) Lalonde

Wilbert and Dolores came from
Cornwall in 1960. They have two
children, Linda and Dennis.

After working for Valley Farms,
Wilbert worked for Wray Scott (1962­
1967) and Victor Larocque (1967­
1968). They then moved to Alfred,
where Wilbert worked for Louis
Souligny for One year, then for
Canadian Turf and later, in Ottawa.

Wilbert and Dolores have been
residing on Cone. 11, Alfred
Township, since 1972.

Linda, Dolores, Wilbert, Dennis ·1960

The Family of J. Napoleon and Victoria (Sabourin) Lapointe

Napoleon and Victoria Lapointe lived in South Plantagenet, in the village of
Fournier. Knowledge of their ancestral background is limited; however, it is
known that Napoleon Lapointe's ancestors came from Normandy, France, via
Quebec City, and went to Valleyfield, Quebec, where Napoleon Lapointe was
born in 1869. The family later moved to St. Isidore. Victoria Sabourin's ancestors
came from Northern France (Brittany) to St. Eugene, Ontario. She was born in
East Hawkesbury in 1869. The family later moved to Hull, Quebec. Following the
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Vicloria and Napoleon

TIle Lapointe home -- Fournier

Hull fire of 1880, when their store and home were destroyed, they opened a new
store on Wellington St., HuU, and moved shortly after to St. Isidore.

Napoleon Lapointe met Victoria
Sabourin in St. Isidore and they married in
1889. They operated a general store in Sl.
Isidore till around 1892, then moved their
family to Fournier where they remained
until 1928. They then moved to Ottawa.

Their family consisted of two boys
born in St. Isidore, and eight girls and one
boy born in Fournier. A niece was adopted
as a baby in 1910.

The Lapointes met the needs of the
area residents by running a welt-stocked
and well-organized general store, assisted
by an exceIJent clerk, Delbert Scott.

In addition, Napoleon, being inter­
ested in the welfare of the area, was elected
to the municipal council of South
Plantagcnet where he was reeve for 21 years. He also served as warden for the
United Counties of Prescott and Russell several times. This required a lot of time:
attending meetings at Riceville, L'Orignal and Toronto; working with his own
local council and other governing bodies to improve roads, drainage, septic sys­
tems, build bridges, etc.

Napoleon and Victoria always had time to help their neighbours and take
part in local good works in the interest of their community, even while raising and
educating a large family. All spoke English and French fluently. Under their
direction, all learned to become well-organized in performing their daily duties.

The parents assigned duties to
their children on a rotational basis,
thus each member of the family
received the equivalent of an excellent
household science course. Their duties
included the care of a large garden, a
cow, a beautiful team of horses with
the usual carriages for summer driving
and a red cariole for winter, followed
later by a car.

They built a large, well-equipped
15-room brick house with upper and
lower balconies. It was located on a lot
just west of St. Bernard's church, south
side of the main street. (It has since
been destroyed by lire).
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Their family consisted of:
Alban (1890-1964) graduated from Rigaud and was later ordained a priest at

St. Bernard's in 1916.
Aubert (1891) was a natural salesperson. He had a store in Lemieux. He

married Juliette Campeau in 1920, then moved to Detroit where both are buried.
Laurenza (1893) married Dr. AA Belanger. On Dr. Belanger's death, the

Lapointes helped raise their three children until Laurenza married D.o. Lavigne.
Two of the children have died; Beatrice (Mrs. Plouffe) lives in Montreal.

Corona (1895) was an elementary schoolteacher. She married W. Coupal in
1920. Both are buried in Ottawa.

Laurette (1897-1970) graduated as a pharmacist and had an active career as
a member of the Order of Les Soeurs de 1a Charite d'Ottawa.

Albertine (1899-1987) graduated from the University of Ottawa Nursing
School. She served as a nurse and night supervisor at the Ottawa General Hospital
for 28 years.

Berthe (1901) was an elementary schoolteacher. She married Antonio
Michaud, a pharmacist, and raised six children. She is now a resident at St.
Vincent's Hospital, Ottawa.

Irene (1903) graduated as a nurse from the University of Ottawa. She mar­
ried George Sauve. Both are deceased.

Germaine (1905) graduated from the University of Ottawa Nursing School.
She married Harold Muir, a schoolteacher. Harold joined the RCAP and, on dis­
charge, returned to teaching till retirement. They had four children: Ronnie (an
engineer), Catherine, Marie and Jackie. All three girls are nurses. Harold died
Sept. 22, 1991. Germaine lives in Onawa.

Simone (1907) married J.APierre Denis in 1928. Pierre was a schoolleacher.
They had six children. Pierre is buried in Fournier. Simone is in a retirement home
in Montreal.

Marthe (1910-1942) was adopted at birth when her mother died, in 1911. In
1927, she went to live with her father and family in Sask. She married Paul Cham­
pagne in 1930. She died and was buried in Alberta in 1942, leaving two small
children.

Bruno (1912-1986) graduated in administration. He married Antoinelle
Rougier of Onawa. His sons live in Montreal.

Napoleon died in 1940 and Victoria, in 1949. Both are buried in the family
plot, in Fournier. Buried with them are Alban, Laurenza, and her two husbands,
Laurette, Albertine and Bruno.

The descendants of this family have received excellent training in many ctif­
ferent professions. While performing their duties, they follow in their
grandparents' footsteps, maintaining their language, culture and customs. At the
same time, they work, live with and help people of other languages, cultures and
customs to be tolerant and understanding of one another.
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Simone, In~ne, Alberline. Berlhe, Corona, Laurenza, Victoria

The Family ofViateur Larocque

The proud lot of Larocques originated in France, settling in Lower Canada
before spreading throughout the area. Solomon, born in St. Marthe, and his wife
raised six children: Octavie, Marie-Louise, Edmond, David, Felix and Andre.

Andre was the youngest. His first wife died giving birth. His second wife, Ida
Deguire, was the widow of Baptiste Sauve and had four children: William,
Therese, Alfred and Emile.

While working in Montreal as a bricklayer, Andre farmed near Alexandria.
Andre and Ida had six children, four boys and two
girls: Viateur, Henri, Antoinette, Jeanne, Jean-Paul
and Gerald.

Joseph Viateur, the eldest of Andre's family,
started working for neighbours at an early age.
Later, he moved to Ottawa and was employed by
Clark Dairy. When war was declared, Vialeur en­
listed and spent the next five years serving his
country abroad.

After the war, Viateur lived in Cornwall, work­
ing at the paper mill. He also went into wholesale >

and home delivery of fruits and vegetables.
In 1958, Viateur moved to Riceville, Lot 15,

Conc. 12. This was quite an undertaking. Although
the house was wen constructed it needed consider­
able renovations. The barns and outbuildings were in
worse condition, with shingle roofs covered with Vialeur
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moss and caving in. He should have rebuilt new, but like many other beginners,
fmances dictated otherwise.

The frrst three years were very difficult. He continued selling potatoes and
vegetables door to door, making frequent trips to Montreal to supply his clients in
Cornwall and the Ottawa region, as far away as Renfrew and Arnprior.

Things improved with time and a lot of hard work. Viateur had dairy cattle.
He also had a good and fairly large hog enterprise. Due to health problems, he
gave up farming in 1989.

Viateur had eight children: Gerald, Marguerite, Roger, Lise, Jeannine, Mar­
cel and Claude. Robert died at the age of seven, several years ago.

Viateur still lives on his farm. We can still see him travelling some of the
roads with supplies.

La Famille Napoleon et Maria (nee Bissonnette) Latreille

Napoleon Latreille est ne a St-Polycarpe en 1865. II arrive a Fournier en
1868, al'age de 3 ans, avec ses parents, Jean-Baptiste Latreille et Rose Normand.
Jean-Baptiste et Rose e1(:venl leur nombreuse famille dans la maison qu'ils con­
struisent a leur arrivee, pour ensuite la passer a leur fLls Napoleon qui eleve, ason
tour, sa famille avec son epouse Maria Bissonnette. De cette union naissent six en­
fants: Edmond, Adele, Roeh, Wilfrid, Simon et Therese.

Napoleon cultive la ferme paternelle pendant plusieurs annees. II devient en­
suite sacristain a I'eglise St­
Bernard de Fournier pen­
dant 10 ans, pour enfin
revenir sur la ferme et y
demeurer, avec son fils
Roch, jusqu'a sa mort en
1953. La vieille maison
paternelle existe toujours,
la ou habitent Roeh et Des­
neiges qui ont, a leur tour, I

eleve la troisieme
generation de Latreille. Napoleon et Maria

La Famille Roch et Desneiges Latreille

Roch, fils de Napoleon Latreille et de Maria Bissonnette, est ne aFournier
Ie 26 avril 1910. En 1938, it epouse Desneiges Lalande, fille d'Auguste Lalande et
de Marie-Louise Nicholas.

De leur union sont nes douze enfants:
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Jean-Guy (Sylvianne Dieaire) .- Stephane, France, Luc; Raymond (Carmen
Barnabe) -- Roxanne, Pierre; Michel (Helene Beland) -- Nicholas, Hugo; Fran­
cine (Richard Ladouceur), deeede; Paul (Micheline Carriere) -- Kasha, Mario;
Lucie (Andre Simard); Sylvie (Jean-Pierre Proulx) -- Marie-Eve, Celina; Darnel;
Rodrigue, deeede 11 I'age de 13 ans; Remi, decede a l'age de 2 semaines; Jacques,
deeede 11 l'agc de 10 mois; Celine, deeedee a I'age de 7 ans.

50C anniversaire de manage
1re rnngee: Daniel, Frnncine, Desneiges, Sylvie, Lucie. 2c rangee: Paul,

Raymond, Roch, Michel, Jean·Guy

Roch est cultivateur pendant quelques annees, alors qu'iI fait surtout la cul­
ture du houblon et dcs pommes de terre. II vend ensuite la ferme et travaille au
magasin general J. E. St·Amour pendant 11 ans, ensuite a Ottawa, comme
fonctionnaire dans Ie departemenl de la maintenance, jusqu'a sa retraite en 1973.
Sa famille est toujours demeuree dans la maison paternelle.

Roch et Desneiges ont su s'impliquer dans diverses activites communautaires
et paroissiales. Roch a ete maitre chantre, membre de la chorale paroissiale pen­
dant de nombreuses annees et president fondateur du Club de I'Age d'Or de
Fournier. Desneiges a ele membre des Dames de Ste-Anne et de I'A.PJ. Elle fait
partie de la chorale paroissiale et est presidente du Club de I'Age d'Or de Four­
nier depuis une dizaine d'annees.
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Roch et Desneiges jouissent d'une assez bonne sante. Ils sont toujours tres
actifs: jardinage, entretien de leur propriete, renovations de la maison, etc. lis ai­
ment bien recevoir et visiter leurs enfants, parents et amis.

Roch et Desneiges ont eu Ie bonheur de cel6brer leur SOe anniversaire de
mariage en 1988.

La Famille Gilles et Ghisline Latreille

Gilles est Ie fJJs d'Edmond Latreille et de Clara Leblanc de Fournier. Le 24
septembre 1966, il epouse Ghisline Charland, rLlle de Marcel Charland et de
Marie-Marthe Bertrand de St-Hubert.

De leur union naissent:
Joanne, Ie 3 septembre 1967 (Jocelyn Besner); Julie, Ie 15 novembre 1972;

Ghyslain, Ie 28 janvier 1977.
Apres leur mariage, Gilles achete une route de pain qu'il vendra ensuite a

Laurent Maisonneuve. Dcux ans plus tard, la famille demenage aVanier. Apres y
etre demeures deux ans, et trois ans aPointe-Gatineau, ils reviennent aFournier.

Gilles est maintenant vendeur chez Laplante Chevrolet Oldsmobile Hee, a
Casselman. La peche est son sport prefere. Ghisline conduit un autobus scolaire.
Elle aime beaucoup Ie crochet et Ie bricolage.

La Famille Armand et Simone (nee Rose) Lavigne

Armand, ne aLes Cedres, est Ie fils de Joseph Lavigne et d'Ad6line Lalonde.
Simone est la fille de Laurent Rose et de Delia Dumas de St-Isidore. Armand et
Simone s'6pousent Ie 29 aout
1933.

De leur union naissenl:
Riette (Gaston Des­

sureault), Trois Rivieres -- 4
enfants

Carmen (Raymond Per­
rier), Ottawa -- 2 enfants

Odette (Terry Birrell),
Toronto -- 2 enfants

Yvon, Ottawa
Suzanne (Gaby Lacroix),

Quebec -- un enfant.
Ils ant aussi 14 arriere­

petits-enfants.

SOC anniversaire de manage
Carmen, Suzanne, Armand, Yvon, Simone, Rielle, Odette

538



Apres leur mariage, Ie couple demeure aSt-Isidore OU Armand, mecanicien,
travaille pour Donat Marleau. Le 12 mars 1950, la famille demenage it Fournier
(chez Celisier Campeau) et Armand tient garage ou. se trouve aujourd'hui Ie
bureau de poste. Le 1er avril 1958, ils demenagent aPlantagenet ou. i1s demeurent
toujours, Armand, aPinecrest depuis deux ans, et Simone, aVilla St-Paul.

La Famille Leon et Lucie (nee Daoust) Lavigne

Vers 1870, Leon Tessier dit Lavigne el son epouse, Lucie Daoust, quittent
lie Perrot pour venir s'installer dans la paroisse de Fournier, sur Ie Ridge, a un
mille aI'est du village.

Leur famiUe compte onze enfants, dont 4 filles et 7 gan:,:ons:
Lucie (----- Leger), Wisconsin; Amanda (Honore Latreille), St-Isidore;

Marie, celibataire, Fournier; Rose, celibataire, Fournier; Napoleon (Tessier)
(Josephine Cadieux), Fournier; Drummond (CElina Marlin), Hammond; Joseph
(Elizabeth Landrigan), Fournier et SL-Bernardin; Boniface (Esther Keough),
Fournier; Amedee (Cleophee Lalonde), Fournier; Ludger (Lucie Marleau),
Montreal; Mauriee (Mina Paquette), Cornwall.

Beaucoup de leurs descendants s'installeront dans la region. lis acheteront et
exploiteront eventuellement plus de 1 000 acres de terre dans Ies environs de
Fournier, Curran et Hammond.

Leon est decede en 1904 et Lucie, vers 1919. lis sont inhumes aFournier.

La Famille Amedee et Cteophee (nee Lalonde) Lavigne

Amedee est Ie fLls de Leon Tessier dit Lavigne et de Lucie Daoust eL
Cleophee, la fille de Fabien Lalonde et d'Odile Lalonde. Amedee et Cleophee
s'epousenl aFournier Ie 7 novembre 1892.

Apres leur mariage, ils s'elablissent sur une ferme dans la Boundary, chemin
de frontiere entre Plantagenet-Sud et Caledonia, al'angle de la 7e concession de
Caledonia. (Ce lopin de terre faisait partie de la terre paternelle.)

Amedee et Cleophee seront cultivateurs toute leur vie.
En plus de voir a la culture de leur petite ferme et a I'elevage des animaux,

Amedee est journalier chez les eultivateurs avoisinants. II partage aussi les travaux
au verger de la terre paternelie ou I'on troliVC pommes, pommettcs, cenelles,
fames, glands, noix variees, groseilles, elc.

Amedee et Cleophee onl donne naissance asept enfants: Georges (Frances
Bradley); Elzear; Eva (Oscar Levac); Emma; Orner (Agnes Rockeray); Wilfrid
(Delia Rockeray); Lionel (Yvonne Chartrand), (Virginie Rockeray, en secondes
noces).

Ch~ophee est de-cedee en 1930 et Amedee, en 1952. lis sont inhumes a
Fournier.
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La Famille Boniface et Esther (nee Keough) Lavigne

Boniface (1866-1955) est Ie fLls de Leon Tessier dit Lavigne et de Lucie
Daoust et Esther (1863-1955), la tiUe de John Keough et de Mary Ann Gibbons.
Boniface (Bonnie) et Esther s'epousent aFournier Ie 9 janvier 1891.

Apres leur mariage, ils
s'etablissent sur une ferme dans la 'f
concession de Caledonia. IIs y seront
cultivateurs toute leur vie.

Boniface et Esther ont eu cinq en­
fants:

Lucie (1893-1983), enseignante,
marice a Olivier Bourdon de Lemieux.
lis ont ete cultivateurs pendant 44 ans a
Lemieux. De leur union sont nes deux
enfants: Laurier, enseignant, marie 11
Alicia Cote de Cochrane, Ont. lis ont
deux enfants: Monique, d'Ottawa, et
Robert, de Timmins, Ont. Lucie est
mariee aRoger Lafleche de Casselman.
lis demeurent a Casselman. lis Ont
qualre enfants: Suzanne, Denise, Jean­
Noel et Laurier.

Adolpllls (1896-1980), marie a
Agnes McCormick de Monkland, Ont. Bonirace el Esther

Wilfrid (1895-1945), ceHbataire
Bernard (1899-1982), marie a Frances Baker, d'Alexandria, Ont. II a

demeure longlemps sur la ferme de son pere.
Alma (1905-1991),

mariee a Arthur Lortie •
de St-Bernardin. IIs ont
quatre enfants: Rita,
Marguerite, Cecile et
Bernard. Alma a epouse
en secondes noces
Lionel Boileau de
Vanier,Ont.

Lionel, Alma, Lucie Lavigne-Bourdon,
Adolphis, Bernard - 1968
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La Famille Joseph et Elisabeth (nee Landrigan) Lavigne

Joseph et Elisabelh

Joseph est Ie fils de Leon Tessier dit Lavigne et de Lucie
Elisabeth, la fille de Daniel Landrigan et de Marguerite Terry.
Elisabeth s'epousent aFournier Ie 12 fevrier 1884.

lis donnent naissance ahuit enfanrs:
Ellen (Henry McCulloch),

Fournier; Daniel (Cecilia Sloan),
Fournier; Louis, celibataire, Mile­
stone (Saskatchewan); Marguerite
(Isidore Deschamps), decede,
(Peter Diemert, en secondes
noces), Pangman (Saskatchewan);
Florence (Joseph O. Racine), St­
Isidore eL Casselman; Laurent (Lea
Levac), Ste-Anne-de-PrescoLL -­
Rene, Armand, Ronald, Alban; Ida
(Arcade Campeau), Montreal;
Marc (Jeanne Hayes), Sl-Bernar­
din, Vankleek Hill.

Joseph er Elisaberh s'installent
sur une ferme dans la 6c concession
de Caledonia (ou demeurent
presentement leurs petits-enfanLs,
Raymond cL Rita Racine). lIs y'
seront cultivateurs toute leur vie.

Elisabeth est d6cedee en 1941
eL Joseph, en 1958. I1s sonr inhumes
aSt-Bernardin.

The Family of Daniel Lavigne and Cecilia Sloan

Daoust et
Joseph et

Daniel, son of Joseph Lavigne and Elizabeth Landrigan, was born in 1885
and Cecilia, daughter of Edward Sloan and Catherine Terry, in 1883. Daniel and
Cecilia were married in Fournier on June 28,1909.

They had six children:
Alfred (Laurette St-Onge)
Lawrence
Philip (Edna O'Reilly)
Marguerite (Rolland Picard)
Helena, deceased at the age of 4 years
Gregory.
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Cecilia and Dan .. Fenaghvale Post Office· 1923

After living in the village of Fournier and vicinity for several years Daniel and
Cecilia bought Frank Downing's farm (known then as Fenaghvale Post Office), 5
miles east of Fournier.

Firsr row: Marguerite, Cecilia, Laurette. Second row: Rolland,
Daniel, Alfred, Lawrence, Grego!),. 1955
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Pascal, Yollande, Marcel

Daniel and Ceeilia were farmers all their lives and one of the main hop
growers in the area from 1930 to 1945. Cecilia kept tIte Fenaghvale Post Office for
three or four years, until it
finally closed and moved to
Sandown Post Office.

Cecilia died in 1973,
at the age of 90 years, and
Daniel died in 1975, at the
age of 89 years. They are
buried in Fournier.

The Lavigne home farm - 1944

La Famille Yollande Laviolette

Native de Lefaivre, Yollande est issue de la famille d'Amedee Brisebois et
d'Evelina Yelle. EIJe a deux fils: Marcel fils et Paseal.

Les Laviolette resident aFournier depuis 1971. Ils exploitent une entreprise
avicole et un poste de mirage d'oeufs.

Marcel fils entreprend sa deuxieme annee comme employe a Ja Cooperative
d'Embrun. Pascal re~oit, en
juin, son diplome d'etudes
secondaires de l'Ecole
secondaire de Plantagenet et
prevoit se specialiser dans la
reparation de moteurs.

En plus de s'occuper
de sa famille et de la gestion
de I'entreprise familiale,
YoUande trouve Ie temps de
s'impliquer dans differentes
activites, differents mouve­
ments: elle est cursilliste,
membre de la chorale
paroissiale depuis 3 ans et,
depuis 4 ans, collabore a
Autre Chance, maison de
rehabilitation (drogues et al­
cool) pour Prescott et Rus­
sell.
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Ferme avieole Lavioletle

La FamiHe Robert et Pierrette Leclair

Robert est Ie fils de Telesphore Leclair et de Rose-Anna Chartrand d'­
Alfred. Le 16 septembre 1961, it cpouse Pierrette Leduc, fille de Louis-Joseph
Leduc et de Lucille Lalonde de St-Isidore.

Apres leur mariage, Robert et Pierrette demeurent Sur Ja ferme paternelle a
Alfred. En 1967, ils vendent la ferme et demeurent a Ottawa pendant 7 ans. En
1974, ils viennent s'ctablir aFournier.

Robert travaille a la municipalite de Plantagenet-Sud et Pierrette s'occupe
de la garde d'enfants pour la Societe de I'Aide aI'Enfance.

Robert et Pierrette sont les parents de deux enfants: Josee et Stephane.
Josee s'est mariee a Pierre Peladeau de PIle Pcrrot Ie 7 juillet 1990; Slcphane
demeure chez ses parents.

Les Families Leduc

Pierre, maitre chaudronnier, est Ie fils de Pierre Leduc et d'Anne Martin de
la paroisse St-Laurent de Rouen, en France. Le 28 juin 1700, il epouse Catherine
Fortin en I'eglise Saints-Anges de Lachine. Leur descendant, Jean-Baptiste,
s'etablira a Fournier environ 200 ans plus tard.

La Famille Jean-Baptiste et Caroline (nee Denis) Leduc

Jean-Baptiste (1835) est Ie fLls d'Amable Leduc et de Victoire Ranger. Le 6
mai 1862, il cpouse Caroline Denis dit Veronneau en I'eglise St-Dominique, aLes
Cedres.
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lis s'etablissent it Saint-Lazare ou naissent leurs dix enfants:
Robertine (William Lalonde); Adelaide (Paul Therrien); Adelard (Amanda

Boileau); Georgianna (Aldege Moncion); Amable (Georgianna Bourdon); Hor­
midas (Josephine Martin); Osias (Eva Martin); Desneiges (Joseph Boileau); Isa:ie
(Anna Bourdon); Rose-Emma (Alexandre Tessier).

En 1887, Jean.Baptiste, suivant I'exemple de son beau-frere, Pierre Denis
(Julienne Levac), pionnier de Fournier, s'etablit aI'extremite est de la n e conces­
sion, sur Ia riviere Nation. Les Leduc y demeureront pour trois generations.

Sept des dix enfanls de Jean-Baptiste et de Caroline se marieront aFournier.
Pour se rendre aFournier, on traverse sur un chaland situe it la hauteur de la

terre des Chenier. Deux des fils de Jean-Baptiste, Hormidas et Osias, auront
interet a traverser la riviere puisqu'ils marieront deux des fIlIes de Ludger Martin,
Josephine et Eva, qui habitaientla rive sud de la riviere Nation.

La Famille Amable et Georgianna (nee Bourdon) Leduc

Vers 1900, Amable, marie it Georgianna Bourdon, prend la releve sur la
ferme paterneUe.

De leur union naissent:
Arthur (Blanche Bissonnette)
Anna (Alfred Martin)
Osias (Cecile Cadieux)
Oliva (Aldena Leger)
Aldea (Emile Lalonde)
Emma (Lucien Navarre)
Rose (Maurice Leger)
Lucienne (Henri Galipeau)
Lucien (Yvette Patenaude)
Alice, religieuse.

Amable, S. Alice, Georgianna

La Famille Oliva et Aldena (nee Leger) Leduc

Oliva est ne Ie 10 mars 1905. A la fin de ses etudes au College Bourget, it
Rigaud, il prend la reJeve sur la ferme paternelle. Le 23 mai 1938, iI epouse AI­
dena Leger, fIUe de Wenceslas Leger et de Seraphine Carriere.

De leur union naissent deux fiUes:
Carmen (Fernand Gaumond), Cornwall
Denise (Gilles Ouellet), Trois-Pistoles.
lis sont aussi les grands-parents de cinq petits-enfants.
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L'annee de la grosse inondation, ils per­
dent beaucoup d'animaux. Quelques annees
plus tard, leurs bMiments brfilent. Grace a
leur grande foi en Dieu, les Leduc acceptent
ces epreuves.

A I'automne 1943, ils vendent la ferme a
Georges Charbonneau (Julienne Denis) et
demenagent aCornwall OU Oliva se trouve un
bon poste qu'il occupera pendant 25 ans.

Oliva a fini ses jours chez sa fille aTrois­
Pistoles. II est decedt Ie 28 avril 1984 a
l'hOpital de Riviere-du-Loup. Les [unerailles
ont eu lieu a Cornwall et I'inhumation aFour­
nier. II ttait age de 79 ans.

Chez Oliva Leduc, Ie long de la riviere Nation - 1942

Carmen, Denise, Oliva, Aldena

Aldena demeure
Loujours chez sa fille, a
Trois-Pistoles.

Aujourd'hui, les
Leduc sont disperses au
Canada, du Cap Breton au
Yukon, aux Etats-Unis,
jusqu'en Californie, et aux
Bahamas.

La Famille Leonard et Jeanne-Anne Lefebvre

Leonard, ftIs d'Honorius
Lefebvre et de Larella Sloan,
est ne aLemieux.

Le 25 septembre 1945, il
epouse Jeanne-Anne Pitre,
fille de Martin Pitre et de
Josephine Leblanc de
Beauharnois.

De leur union naissent:
Claire, Ie 12 novembre

1946, decedee a2 mois
Jean, Ie 27 juin 1948

(Nicole Simard) -- Daniel,
Josee et Alain

Honorius, Leonard, Jeanne-Anne,
Marlin
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Laurent, Ie 5 mai 1953 (Huguette Lajeunesse) -- Tania
Therese, Ie 22 juin 1954 (Raymond Charette) -- Martin
Lyne, Ie 28 novembre 1957 (Pierre Lefai)
Richard, Ie 17 janvier 1959
Ginette, Ie 26 juin 1961 (Paul Landry) -- Genevieve
Johanne, Ie 2 mars 1963 (Roger Lalonde)
Miehel, Ie 22 mars 1964.

Ire rangec: Leonard. Johanne, Jeanne-Anne. 2e rangee: Ginelte, Lyne, Therese. 3e rangee: Michel,
Laurent, Jean, Richard - 1987

Apres leur mariage, Leonard et Jeanne-Anne habitent la ferme paternelle
pendant 2 ans et demi. lis passent ensuite 4 ans aBeauharnois, avant de revenir a
la ferme paternelle oil ils demeurent presentemenl.

Leonard et Jeanne-Anne aiment beaueoup reeevoir leurs enfants, parents et
amis et jouer aux cartes.

The Family of Bernard and Marie-Judith (nee Bourbonnais)
Lemieux

Bernard Lemieux (April 25,1802) was the son of Joseph-Marie Lemieux and
Helene Elisabeth Lavoie. They lived at Cap St. Ignace. Bernard had two brothers
and one sister: Grise, Gascon and Reine.
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At the age of 12, Bernard left home and went to St. Polycarpe where he
worked for Fr. M. Cholette. There he received his education. He worked for Sgt.
Beausejour and became a farmer, having his own leased land. (He fought in the
rebellion of 1837.)

On Feb. 6, 1927, he married Marie-Judith Bourbonnais (1805). They had
thirtcen children:

Louis Samuel (Lueie Houle) -- 11 children: 4 boys, 7 girls. Of these,
Theodose married Exerine Richard, Upherine married Michael Edmund Molloy
and Clara married James Benson.

Hermine, a sister
Emerance, a sister in the Order of the Saered Heart
Joseph (1833-1833)
Louis B. (Johanna Landrigan) -- Bernard, Louis, Wilfred, Mark, Ellen,

Mildred, Joseph, Walter, John
Philomene, a sister in the Order of the Sacred Heart
Delima worked at St. Charles Hospice. She inherited the family home.
Emilie, a sister in the Order of Le Bon Pasteur
Joseph M. (first marriage· CIoe Fairfield) (second marriage - ----- Labrosse)

-- Gilbert was one of their sixteen clllldren.
Eza'ide (Fabien Landriault) -- Alfred, Alphonse, Malvina, Marie-Louise,

Caroline, Emma, Ida
Theophraste (Sara Fairfield) -- John, Florence, Bernard, Dora, Cloe, Geor-

ges, Donald, Phelanese, Emerance, Philias
Pamela (1849-1851)
Cezarie (----- Fairfield) .. Mamie, Georgina, Bernadette.
In 1855, Bernard came to Fournier. He erected a sawmill and a grist mill on

the Paxton Creek, just south of the bridge, on the main street. These mills were
the beginning of the village of Fournier.

Bernard was regarded as an engineer. He repaired his own machinery. Each
spring, when the mills sustained ice and water damage, he would do the repairs
himself, which cost approximately $1,500 each spring. He sold lumber which was
shipped to England. It was he who built the first wooden bridge over the South
Nation River; this bridge was the first to remain in place and resist the ice in
spring.

In 1855, there were 29 Catholic families in Fournier. Bernard, along with his
friend, John Paxton, was among those responsible for having Catholic services
held in Fournier.

Bernard died on June 25, 1878, and Marie-Judith, May 25, 1897. They are
buried in Fournier.
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La Famille Louis-Samuel et Lucie Lemieux

Louis-Samuel, fils de Bernard Lemieux et Marie-Judith Bourbonnais, et ne
Ie 20 juin 1828 aSt-Polycarpe. Le 21 aout 1832, it epouse Lucie HouIe de I'IIe Per­
roL

Louis-Samuel et Lucie elevent leurs onze enfants (4 fils, 7 fLIles) aFournier.
Louis-Samuel travaille dans Ie bois avec son pere.
La famille demenagera plus tard a Ottawa OU Louis-Samuel travaillera a la

construction.
Louis-Samuel et Lucie sont decedes a Ottawa, Lucie en 1909 et Louis­

Samuel, Ie 5 fevrier 1920. lis sont inhumes aCurran.

La Famille Theodose et Exerine Lemieux

Theodose, fils de Louis-Samuel Lemieux et de Lucie Houle, est ne a Four­
nier Ie 23 novembre 1855. II epouse Exerine Richard Ie 7 janvier 1890.

Theodose et Exerine quittent Fournier avec leurs deux enfants pour s'etablir
aCurran OU ils seront cultivateurs. lis donneront naissance a lreize autres enfants
(5 fils, 10 fdles).

Thcodose est decede Ie 25 aout 1937 aCurran ou iI est inhume.

Edmond Lemieux - Ida Laframboise

Edmond, ne Ie 1er fevrier 1891, est Ie
fils dc Theodose Lemieux et de Lucie
Houle. II a epouse Ida Laframboise Ie 6
janvier 1913. Ils onl eu douze enfanls (6 fil­
les,6 gar<;ons). Jean-Paul, fils d'Edmond et
d'Ida, et arriere-petit-fils de Bernard, est
ne Ie 29 juin 1915. Ida est decedee Ie 8 juin
1968 et Edmond, Ie 5 novembre 1980, IIs
sont inhumes aOttawa.

Victor Lemieux - Catberine Surcb

Victor, son of Theodose Lemieux and
Lucie Houle, married Catherine Surch
(1872), daughter of Stephen SUTch and
Jane MacGregor in 1892. Catherine died in
1894 during childbirlh.

Catherine and Victor
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Quatre generations de Lemieux
Louis-Samuel, Edmond, Theodose, Jean-Paul

The Family of Joseph M. Lemieux

Joseph M., ninth child of Bernard Lemieux and Marie-Judith Bourbonnais,
was born January 1, 1843 in Sl. Polycarpe. He married Cloe Fairfield. They had
sixteen children. One of their children was Gilberl. Joseph later married a Miss
Labrosse.

In 1875, Joseph M. erected new mills, north of the main street, north of the
church. These mills were steam operated instead of water powered. Repairing an­
nual iee and water damage to the mills was costly. These new mills burned nine
years later.

The Family of Gilbert Lemieux and Za'ide Ouellette

Gilbert, son of Joseph M. Lemieux, married Zalde Ouellette on sept 21,
1891.

Gilbert and Zalde had six children:
Lorina (Ronald MacGregor); Raymond; Eva, single; Roy (---- Levac); Her­

man, single; Irene, single.
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Gilbert took over the sawmills from his father and operated them until 1938.
He also worked at the Pendleton Airport for a few years as a boiler operator.

Gilbert, Zai"de, Eva, Herman and Irene are buried in Fournier.

Zai'de's sister, Esther, donated the church organ to St. Bernard's Parish. Es­
ther was married to Hugh McKinley, son of James H. McKinley (1852) and Mar­
garet O'Byrne (1858-1942). Esther and Hugh had no children. They are buried in
Curran.

The Family of Algoma Leroux and Margaret Surch

Algoma was the son of Moi'se Leroux and Marie Anne Bourdon from
Plantagenet and Margarct, the daughter of Stephen Surch and Margaret Mc­
Crank from Fournier.

Algoma and Margaret (Mamie) were marricd in Fournier November 5, 1930.
They had one son, Grcgory. Algoma and Mamie lived for a while on a farm west
of Vankleck Hill. Algoma died in 1946. Margaret and Gregory moved to the vil­
lage and lived with Margaret's parents until their death.

Margaret (Mamie)
was a seamstress, taught
piano, and was the church
organist from approximate­
ly 1945 to 1956. She died in
1986.

Gregory completed
his elementary school in
Fournier and his secondary
school in Plantagenet. He
worked at the National
Bank from 1948 until 1957,
spent six years at
Wakefield, Quebec, then
moved to Sturgcon Falls in
1955. Gregory then spent
eight years working at Field
Lumber and four years at a
dairy. Since 1967, he has
been employed at a GM
dealership in Sturgeon
Falls.

Gregory and Margaret (Mamie)
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La Famille Maurice et Jeannine Leroux

Maurice est Ie fils d'Eugene Leroux el de Jeanne Bissonnette de Hawkes­
bury. Le 13 juin 1953, il unit sa destinee 1'1 Jeannine Sarault, fIJJe de Laurent
Sarault et d'Alice Duval de Fournier.

Maurice et Jeannine ont eu six enfants:
Jacques, Ie 2 septembre 1953 (Suzanne Wood) -- Jonathan, Genevieve, Jes-

sIca
Jocelyne, Ie 14 septembre 1955 (Ernie Giroux) -- Danny, Lisa
Lyne, Ie 6 mill 1956 (----- Paquette) -- Rock, Annie
Danie, Ie 10 avril 1958, decedee accidentellement aFournier Ie 14 avril 1963
Richard, Ie 2 mars 1961 (Lucie Fournier) -- Melanie
Normand, Ie 25 fevrier 1962 (Joanne Patenaude).

Maurice (Richard), Jeannine (Normand), Lyne, Jocelyne, Jacques

Apres leur mariage, Maurice et Jeannine resident aHawkesbury, pour en­
suite venir demerner aFournier en 1955, alors qu'ils Iouenl Ie restaurant d'Andre
Wathier. Maurice fait aussi du rembourrage avec Hubert Couture. Puisqu'il est
decoratern de metier, la famille doit Ie suivre la ou if y a du travail: St-Janvier,
CornwaU, BeUeviUe, Toronto et Ottawa.

Maurice et Jeannine gereront ensuite une entreprise de decoration
interieure et de rembourrage aOttawa.

Maurice est decede Ie 16 a06t 1986.
Jeannine demeure presentement AOttawa.
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La Famille Alain et Nancy Levac

Alain est Ie fils de Gilles Levac et de
Claudette Gravel de St-Bernardin. Le 13
aoOt 1988, il epouse Nancy Berniquez, ftlle
de Ronald Berniquez et de Therese Des­
biens de Fournier.

Alain et Nancy ont complete leurs
etudes secondaires aVankleek Hill. Alain a
ensuite suivi un cours de deux ans en tech­
nologie agricole au College de technologie
agricole et alimentaire d'Alfred. Nancy a
travaille chez Metro, a St-Isidore et a
Vankleek Hill, de 1983 a1988.

Alain, Nancy et leurs deux enfants,
Katherine (nee Ie 11 juillet 1989) et Jean­
Philippe (ne Ie 14 novembre 1990),
demeurent dans la 8c concession, ancienne
propriete d'Ernesl Martin. Alain travaille
avec son pere a la ferme familiaJe tandis
que Nancy est reine du foyer. Tous deux at­
ment Ies sports; Alain pratique Ie golf, Ie
hockey et les quilles et Nancy fait partie
d'une equipe de balle.

Alain (Kathcrine) eL

Nancy (Jean-Philippe)

La FamiIle Arthur et Alice Levac

Arthur est Ie fils d'Emerie-Xavier Levac et d'Adelina Menard de Fournier.
Le 14 juillet 1931, il epouse Alice Ranger, fille de Napoleon Ranger et d'Alice
Farrell de Ste-Anne-de-Prescott.

De leur union naissent cinq enfants:
Rejean (Gertrude Vallee) -- Jacynthe, Celine, Sylvain, Michelle, Isabelle et

BenOit
Marie-Jeanne (Jean-Paul Charlebois) -. Normand, Jean-Pierre et Lise
Evangeline (Alcide Thellaod) -- Jasmine, Jocelyn et Alain
Marguerite (Marcel Desforges) -- Guy, Gilles, Daniel, Louise et Andre
Lise (Rene Bedard) -- Catherine. (Tous les enfants sont nes a la maison; les

quatre premiers, aSSisleS du docteur Falardeau et la derniere, du docteur Mac­
Intosh de Riceville.)

Arthur est ne et a toujours demeure dans la 8e concession de Fournier. II
etait cultivateur sur Ie lot 19. II a aussi ete marguillier et conseiller scolaire.
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Alice, nee dans la "f concession de Ste-Anne
de Prescott, a fait ses etudes aux couvents de St­
Eugene et de Vankleek Hill. Elle sera enseignante.
ElJe enseignera trois ans dans la "f concession de St­
Bernardin. C'est en allant a l'eglise qu'Alice ren­
contre son futur mario Arthur la courtise alors qu'elle
pensionne chez Gaspar Lalonde. En ee temps-la, Jes
frequentations se faisaient en voiture, done certains
gar~ons etaient tres chanceux quand leur amie ne
demeurait pas trop loin.

Arthur et Alice ont dO travailler fort au debut:
la maison etait vieille; il n'y avait ni electricite ni eau
courante. C'est en 1945 qu'ils ont construit la maison
qu'habite aujourd'hui leur petit-fils, Sylvain. Plus
tard, ils ache-teront deux autres fermes voisines.

Arthur est decede Ie 17 novembre 1979. Alice
demeure a ['Escale, a St-Isidore, depuis Ie 1er juin
1989. Arthur el Alice

45C anniversaire de manage
Alice et Arthur

Marguerite, Evangeline, Rejean, Marie-Jeanne, Lise

La Famille Rejean et Gertrude Le"Vac

Rejean est Ie fils d'Arthur Levac et d'Alice Ranger de St-Bernardin. Le 26
juiUet 1958, il epouse Gertrude Vallee, fille d'Hilaire Vallee et de Laura Deslisle
de Dunvegan.

lIs donnent naissance asix enfants:
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Jaeynthe, (Pierre Bourgon), St-Isidore. Jaeynlhe est enseignante.
Sylvain, (Sylvia Smitts), Fournier -- Jeremie. Sylvain est cultivateur.
Celine, (Lue Seguin), Ottawa -- Philippe et Andree. Celine est infirmiere.
Michelle. Michelle est eomptable.
Isabelle, (Reynald Berniquez), St-Isidore. Isabelle est travailleuse sociale.
BenOIt. Benoit complete ses etudes elementaires aSt-Isidore.

1'" rangee: Gertrude (Benoit), Michelle, Isabelle, Rejean.
2" rangee: Jacynthe, Sylvain, Celine

Des leur mariage, Rejean et Gertrude s'etablissent sur une ferme dans la 8e

concession, situee en faee de eelle de son pere. Rejean travaiJJe conjoinlement
avec son pere jusqu'en 1969, alors qu'i1 achete la terre paternelle. En 1974, il
achete la ferme de Jean-Paul Wathier. Avec les annees, on apporte beaueoup
d'ameliorations aux fermes.

Rejean participe aux activites paroissiales; il est marguillier pendant
plusieurs annees.

Gertrude enseigne jusqu'en 1967. Depuis novembre 1968, el1e est greffier­
tresori~re du canton de Caledonia.

Rejean est decede Ie 8 septembre 1989 et repose au cimetiere de Fournier.
Gertrude continue agerer la ferme avec ses deux fils.
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La Famille Sylvain et Sylvia (Smits) Levac

Sylvain Arthur est Ie fils de feu
Rejean Levac et de Gertrude Vallee.

Sylvain fait ses etudes elementaires
a Fournier, secondaires a Vankleek Hill
et postsecondaires au College d'­
Agriculture de Kemptville. II gradue en
1981 et epaule son pere a la ferme
familia Ie, ferme laitiere. II achete une
partie de la ferme en 1988.

Le 6 octobre 1989, Sylvain epouse
Sylvia Smits, fille de John Smits et de
Dora Smulders de Sarsfield. Ils ont un
fils, Jeremie.

Sylvia a poursuivi ses etudes secon­
daires a Kairine Wilson. Elle a ensuite
travaille neuf ans chez Gloucester
Hydro.

Sylvain et Sylvia exploitent la ferme
paternelle de trois generations.

Sylvia et Sylvain

Ferme Sylvano - 1991
Trois g~n~rationsde eultivateurs Levac: Arthur, R~jean, Sylvain
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La Famille Edouard et Eugenie (nee Lalonde) Levac

Edouard Levac et son epouse, Eugenie Lalonde, tous deux nes en 1849, sonL
des pionniers de la paroisse de Fournier. De leur union naissent six enfants:

Ovila (Corinne Poirier),
.; .

Fournier
Emery (Georgianna Duval),

SL-Bernardin
Georges (Josephine Leger),

Fournier
Osias (Eliza Sauve), Fournier
Donalda (Telesphore Be­

riault)
(Arthur Beriault,

en secondes noces), Lemieux,
Fournier

Amanda (Eugene Beriault),
Lemieux.

Edouard est jou rnalier.
Edouard et Eugenie pas­

seronL la derniere partie de leur
vie dans la 8e coneession (entre
anciennement chez Ovila Cholette
et Ovila Levac).

Edouard est decede en 1929
et Eugenie, en 1933. lIs sont
inhumes aFournier.

"Eoouard et Eugenie

La Famille Georges et Josephine (nee Leger) Levac

Georges (1878) est Ie fils d'Edouard Levac et d'Eugenie Lalonde. Le 7 oc­
lobre 1910, il epouse Josephine Leger (1881), fille de Clement Leger et de
Julienne Langlois de Fournier.

De leur union naissent:
Henri (Alice LegaulL, en premieres noces),(Clemence Lalonde, en secondes

ooces)
Yvonne (Henri Goulet, en premieres noces), (Mauriee Legue, en secondes

noces)
Helene (Albert Beriault, en premieres noces), (Richard Besner, en secondes

noces).
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Georges et Josephine sont toujours demeures dans la 8e concession.
Josephine est decedee en 1941 el Georges, en 1945.

lis sont inhumes aFournier.

La Farnille Osias et Eliza (nee Sauve) Levac

Osias est Ie flls d'Edouard Levac el d'Eugenie Lalonde el Eliza, la fitle de
Magloire Sauve et d'Odile Marleau de Fournier. Osias et Eliza s'epousent aFour­
nier Ie 18 septembre 1905.

Us donnent naissance acinq enfants:
Orner (Laura Cadieux), Fournier
Napoleon (Anne Marie Landry), Fournier
Eva (Valerie Paquette), St-Bernardin
Emile (Yvette Cadieux), Fournier
Aldea (Jean Picard), Ottawa.
Osias et Eliza seront cultivateurs toute leur vie,

Osias et Eliza
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Apres leur mariage, Osias et Eliza s'instaUent sur une ferme aSt-Isidore, en­
suite aCasselman. En 1917, ils reviennent dans la 8e concession, sur Ie lot 17. Vers
1922, ils demenagent dans la 'f concession (presentement chez Remi Levac). Ils
se retireront au village de Fournier en 1937 (ou demeure presentement chez
Napoleon Levac).

Osias est decede en 1956, a ]'age de 72 ans, et Eliza, en 1958, a l'age de 76
ans. IIs sont inhumes aFournier.

La Famille Emile et Yvette (nee Cadieux) Levac

Emile, fils d'Osias Levac et d'Eliza Sauve de St-Bernardin, est ne aCassel­
man Ie 23 janvier 1916. Le 23 janvier 1940, it epouse Yvette Cadieux, fille de
Mederic Cadieux et de Rose-Anna Daoust de St-Bernardin.

lis donnent naissance adix enfants:
Rose-Anna (Fernand Simard), Alfred -- 4 en-

fants
Adele (Clayton Levoy), Braeside -- 4 enfants
Marie-Rose (Yvon Tessier), Ottawa -- 2 enfants
Ovila (Darquise Bourgon), Alfred -- un enfant
Madeleine (Cyril Camp), Lucerne -- 2 enfants
Rolland (Lise Chatelain), Ottawa -- 2 enfants
Yvon (Angelique Morasty), Prince George.

(Colornbie-Britannique) -- 3 enfants
Elize (Michel Gravel), Vanier -- 2 enfants
Remi (Christiane De Bellefeuille), Fournier -- 2

enfants
Germaine (Franc;.ois Barrette), Templeton -- 2 \

enfants.
Apres leur mariage, Emile et Yvette s'installent ~'

dans la 7e concession, sur la ferme au Orner Levac
aUait demeurer par la suite. L'annee suivante, ils
s'etablissent sur la ferme d'Osias ou ils ele.veront leur i

famille. Emile e[ Yvette

Emile decede Ie 4 novembre 1984.
Yvette vend la ferme ason fIls Remi en 1985.
Au mariage de Remi et de Christiane, Yvette Quine la ferme apres y avoir

passe 46 ans. Ene demeure presentement chez son fils Ovila et sa ftlle Julie, a
Alfred.

Yvette jouit d'une assez bonne sante. Elle fait partie du Club de I'Age d'Or
d'Alfred. EUe aime jouer au Bingo, aux cartes et voyager.
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La Famille Remi et Christiane Levac

Remi est Ie fils cadet
d'EmiJe Levac et d'Yvette
Cadieux. Apres avoir complete
ses etudes secondaires a Haw­
kesbury, il prend possession de la
terre paternelle au printemps
1985. A chaque annee, il y ap­
porte des ameliorations. Le 12
septembre 1987, il epouse Chris­
tiane De Bellefeuille. Christiane
est la deuxieme fille de Lionel De
Bellefeuille et de Denise Leroux
de Sle-Marthe (P. G.). Elle est
diplomee en geslion alimentaire
du campus de la Cite-des-Jeunes,
a Vaudreuil. Remi et Christiane
ont deux enfants: Audrey-Anne,
nee Ie 7 septembre 1988, et
Didier, ne Ie 29 octobre 1991.

La Famille Napoleon et Anne Marie (nee Landry) Levac

Napoleon est Ie fils d'Osias Levac et d'Eliza Sauve et Anne Marie, la fiUe de
Joseph Landry et de Marie Anne Cote.

Napoleon est cullivateur.

NapOleOn - 1940

Lorsque Osias se retire au village de Fournier en 1937, Napoleon lui succede
ala ferme paternelle, avec son Frere Emile. En 1947, il acquien une des fermes de
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son pere, Ie Jot 17 dans Ja ge concession. 11 dernenage alors au village rnais con­
tinue acultiver sa ferme pendant quelques annees. En 1984, ilia vend ason neveu,
Albert Levac.

Napoleon dernonlre une grande habilete dans la sculpture, lalen[ qu'il ex­
ploi[e surlout J'hiver.

Napoleon et Anne Marie sonl a la relraite depuis 1965. Ils jouissenl d'une
bonne sante. Us sont toujours lres aclifs. lis aiment beaucoup jardiner et voyager.
lis sont membres du Club de l'Age d'Or de St-Bernardin et profilent des voyages
que Ie Club organise.

La Famille Orner et Laura (nee Cadieux) Levac

Orner est Je file; alnc~ d'Osias
Levac et d'Eliza Sauve el Laura. la
fiUe de Mederic Cadieux el de Rose­
Anna Daoust de St-Bernardin. Orner
el Laura s'epousent aSl-Bcrnardin Ie
8 fevrier 1941.

lis donnent naissance a six en­
fants:

Louise (Rolland Dubeau),
decede, (Rene Gratton, en secondes
noces), Fournier

Rita (Lucien Duva!), Vankleek
Hill

Irene (Gilles Denomme),
Montreal

Uon (Alice Woodstock), Cur-
ran

Alberl (Nicole Ranger),
Monkland

NoeUa (Adrien Langevin),
Coteau-Station.

Orner et Laura se sont e[ablis
sur une ferme dans la 7c concession
au ils ont cleve leur famille.

Orner demeure presenlement a
Vankleek Hill, chez sa fiUe Rita.

Laura et 001er
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La Famille Louise Levac

Louise, fille d'Omer Levac et de Laura Cadieux, est nee dans la 7e conces­
sion de Caledonia. EUe epouse Rolland Dubeau Ie 22 decembre 1961. Le couple
s'etablit aFournier.

De leur union naissent quatre enfants:
Colombe (Sylvain Surprenant) -- Cedrix
Jocelyne (Marc Gagne) -- Yannick
Suzanne (Bruno Fortier)
Robert (Joanne Saumier).
Rolland decede accidenteUement Ie 29 aoGt 1970.
Le 7 decembre 1974, Louise epouse Rene Gratton. De cette union naissent

deux enfants: Eric et Melanie.
Louise, Eric et Melanie demeurent aFournier depuis juillet 1989.

.; . .
1" rang~e: Melanie, Eric. 2< rangee: Louise, Rene. 3e rdngeC: 8runo (Yannick), Joanne,

Roberl, Colombe, Sylvain, Jocelyne, Marc, Suzanne - 1988

La Famille Eugene et Lorette Levac

Eugene est Ie fils d'Alfred Levac et de Leonie Charlebois. Le 25 aoGt 1931, il
epouse, en l'eglise de St-Bernardin, Lorette Brabant, fille d'Euciide Brabant et de
Rosanna Lortie.

De leur union naissent:
Yolande (Ie 16 fevrier 1933) (Marcel Gadouas), Fournier -- Joanne, Yves,

Jocelyn
Vincent (Ie 15 fevrier 1935) (Lilianne Methot), St-Bernardin -- Chantal,

Lyne, Nathalie
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Gaston (Ie 23 avril 1936) (Marie-Claire Leroux), Fournier .- Marie-Marthe,
Guy, Mireille, Martin

Yvon (Ie 16 aout 1937) (Denise Seguin), St-Isidore -- JodIe, Mylene
Jacques (Ie 10 janvier 1939) (Monic Girard), Quebec
Lorraine (Ie 12 janvier 1940) (Hubert Leroux), St-Isidore -- Pierre
Gilles (Ie 5 mars 1942) (Claudette Gravel), St-Bernardin -- Alain, Stephane,

Eric
Remi, (Ie 8 decembre 1943) (Malvina Roberge), Plantagenet -- Sylvie, Pierre,

Marc-Andre
Pauline (Ie 6 fevrier 1947) (Benoit Ranger), Orleans -- Sebastien, Isabelle
Gaby (Ie 24 fevrier 1950) (Jean-Guy Lalonde), Sl-Isidore -- Dominic,

Caroline
Jean-Marc (Ie 25 avril 1952) (Jocelyne Charrene), St-Isidore -- Etienne,

Christian.

1'" rangee: Lorraine, Eugene, Lorelte, Gaby. 2< rangee: Pauline, Yolande. 3" rangee: Jean-Marc,
Gaston, Gilles, Jacques, Yvon, Remi, Vincent

Le 1er septembre 1931, Eugene et Lorette s'etablissent sur une ferme dans la
lle concession de Fournier et y demeureront presque huit ans. Cinq de leurs en­
fants naltront et seront baptises aFournier. Apres avoir vecu I'experience de deux
inondations, ils decident de vendre la fer me et de retourner vivre dans la 8e con-
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cession de CaJedonia. (Eugene et Lorette avaient deja six enfants quand on a eu
l'electricite dans la concession.)

Comme dit Eugene: "On a eu une grosse famille, on a beaucoup travaille,
mais on n'a jamais eu de gros problemes."

En 1965, ils vendent ]a ferme aleur fils Gilles et se conslruisent aSt-Isidore,
rue Champlain. Eugene conlinuera tout de meme a travailler avec son fils pendant
treize ans.

Eugene et Lorette sont toujours actifs. lis font du jardinage, de perits
voyages, jouent aux cartes, visitent et re~oivenl enfants, parents et amis.

Notons que cette famille comple six generations de Levac baptises a Four-
nier:

Fran~ois-Xavier (Helene Charlebois)
Alfred (Leonie Charlebois)
Eugene (Lorette Brabant)
Yolande (Marcel Gadouas)
Yves Gadouas (Martine Gauthier)
Marc-Antoine Gadouas.

La Famille Gaston et Marie-Claire Levac

Gaston, fils d'Eugene Levac el de Lorette Brabant, nalt aFournier Ie 23 avril
1936 et y est baptise Ie lendemain.ll demeure aFournier jusqu'en mars 1939, pour
ensuite demenager dans la 8e concession. II complete ses ge ellOe annees a Four­
nier. II gradue de l'Ecole d'AgriculLure d'Oka en 1952, pour ensuite retourncr aJa
ferme familiale jusqu'en 1956.

Le 29 mai 1956, Gaston epouse Marie-Claire Leroux en l'eglise de St-Ber­
nardin. Le 12 jUin 1956, its s'etablissent sur leur ferme actuelle, achetee a
Raymond Wathier quelques annees auparavant.

Gaston est actif dans plusieurs organisations agricoles, principalement celles
de l'industrie laitiere. II est secretaire des producteurs laitiers de 1966 a 1988 el
actuellement directeur a [a Regie du lail de l'Onlario pour un terme de 4 ans (de
1988 a 1992). En 1966, Gaston re~oi[ Ie certificat du Merite agricole McNish
Award decerne a un cultivateur exemplaire dans l'Est de l'Onrario. En 1980, il
re~oit Ie certificat du Merite agricole decerne par l'Association de l'amelioration
des sols et recoltes du comte de Prescott pour sa contribution apportee au monde
agricole et a la cornmunaute en general. En 1988, Gaston re<;oit Ie certificat du
Merite du centenaire du rninistere de I'Agriculture et de I'Alimentation de 1'­
Ontario pour sa contribution au monde agricole.

Gaston est aussi acrif au niveau municipal et paroissiaJ: conseiller (de 1962 a
1967), secretaire-tresorier de I'ecole nO 13 de Caledonia pendant huit ans,
membre du comite des finances de ]a paroisse de Fournier, president du meme
comite et membre de la choraJe paroissiale.
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lee Iangce: Mireille, Gaston (fhomas), Marie-Claire (Alexandre),
Marie-Marthe (Rebecca-Anne). 2e rangce: Genevieve, Mallhieu.

3e rangce: Donald, Marlin, Guy, Daniel

Marie-Claire, fille d'Esdras LerollX et de Marie-Anne Lalonde, nait a St­
Bernardin Ie 12 juin 1933. Elle frequente l'ecole elementaire de la 'f concession et
demeure a St-Bernardin jusqu'a son mariage.

Marie-Claire aime faire de I'artisanat. Elle suit plusieurs cours afm de se
perfectionner dans la couture, Ie crochet, Ie tricot et Ie tissage. Elle est chef de
groupe 4-H (economic dornestique) pour 20 projets (de 1977 it 1987).

Elle cst active au sein du comite des Fermieres de Fournier; presidente
depuis 1986 ct directrice du comite provincial depuis 1989. Marie-Claire est aussi
membre de la chorale paroissiale de Fournier depuis plusieurs armees.

Une bonne alimentation est primordiale pour Marie-Claire. Elle va done, en
1989, chercher de nouvelles connaissances dans ce domaine au College de tech­
nologie agricole et alimentaire d'Alfred.

Marie-Claire et Gaston donnent naissance adeux enfants:
Marie-Marthe (Ie 28 f6vrier 1957). Marie-Marthe a frequente Jes ecoles

elementaires de la 8e concession et du village de Fournier et a complete ses etudcs
secondaires it Vankleek Hill. Le 23 deccmbre 1977, elle a epouse Daniel Jalbert.
Maric-Marthe et Daniel sont les parents de quatre enfants:

Genevieve (Ie 3 mars 1981); Matthieu (Ie 6 octobre 1983); Rebecca-Anne (Ie
4 janvier 1988); Alexandre (Ie 2 decernbre 1990).

Guy (Ie 18 fevricr 1960), celibataire. Guy a frequente les ecoles elementaires
de Fournier et de St-lsidore et a fait ses etudes secondaires It Vankleek Hill. II a
gradue de I'Ecole d'Agriculture de Kemptville en 1980. II est presentement ac­
tionnaire de la compagnie de la Ferme Mirella inc.
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Mireille (Ie 11 mai 1965), fiUe adoptive. Mireille a complete ses etudes
elementaires aSt-Isidore et secondaires a Vankleek Hill. Le 12 aout 1989, eUe a
epouse Donald Berry. lis ont un ftls, Thomas (Ie 18 novembre 1990).

Martin (Ie 26 janvier 1971), fI.1s adoptif, celibataire. Martin a fait ses etudes
elementaires aSt-Isidore et secondaires it Vankleek Hill.

Ferme Mirella inc,

La Famille Gaetan et Colombe (Desforges) Levac

Colombe est la fille d'Eugene Besner et d'Ida Beaudry de St-Isidore.
Le 3 septembre 1956, elle epouse Rejean Desforges, fI.1s d'Ovila Desforges et

d'Helene Lalonde de Fournier.
Apres leur mariage, Rejean et Colombe demeurent au village de Fournier,

l'ancienne maison Lapointe. De leur
union naissent cinq enfants:

Serge, Ie 16 juin 1957, decede
Nicole, Ie 31 juillet 1958 (Claude

Pregent) -- Josee et Luc
Ginette, Ie 29 aout 1960 (Roger

Bonneville) -- Erika
Marc, Ie 3 mal 1963 (Lyne

Lapensee)
Pierre, Ie 30 septembre 1964 (Jac­

queline Bourdeau) -- Benoit et Mathieu.
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Rejean est cuItivaleur el [ravaille avec son pere. En 1960, Rejean et Colombe
achetent la ferme paternelle et se construisent une maison. Rtjean et son flls
Serge decedent accidenlellement Ie 7 juillet 1965. Quelques annees plus tard,
Colombe vend la ferme, mais demeure a Fournier.

Le 9 novembre 1985, Colombe epouse Gaetan Levac, ftIs de Donat Levac et
de Clauda Legault de St-Bernardin. Gaetan travaille chez Surge Equipment, a
Alfred; Colombe conduit un auLobus scolaire depuis 1970. lis resident a Fournier.

Pierre, Nicole, Colombe, Gaetan, Ginetle, Marc

La Famille Napoleon et Adele (nee Lalonde) Levac

Le premier and~tre canadien Levac, Martin De Levac, etait militaire et
originaire de la paroisse SI-Nicholas de la ville de Bapaume, en Artois (France).

Napoleon est Ie fils de Joseph Levac et d'Alphonsine St-Amour. Le 21 juin
1909, il epouse Adele Lalonde, fille de Joachim Lalonde et d'Emilie Lauzon de
Fournier.

De leur union naissent seize enfants:
Alice (1910) (Adrien Besner), deeedes, Fournier -- 7 enfants
Lionel (1911) (Emerentienne Laviolette), Alfred -- 4 enfants
Orner (1913) (Marie-Ange Bougie), decede, Fournier -- 9 enfanls
Lucien (1914), decede a la naissance
Laurette (1915) (Georges Poirier), decedes, Lefaivre -- 6 enfants
Rolland (1916), decede ala naissance
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Charles (1917) (Annette Brabant), Hawkesbury -- 5 enfants
Rene (1918) (Lucille Bourdon), d6cede, Vankleek Hill-- 7 enfants
Simone (1920) (Joseph Faubert), decedee, St-Isidore -- 6 enfants
Armand (1922) (Yvette DioUe), decedee, Hawkesbury -- 2 enfants

(Simone Arcand, en secondes noces) -- 2 enfants
Beatrice (1923) (Aldeo Lamoureux), Ottawa -- 7 enfants
Florence (1925) (Fernand Lalonde), Ottawa -- 5 enfants
Berthe (1926), celibataire, L'Orignal
Jeannette (1927) (Rolland Lalonde), Brantford -- 2 enfants
Rita (1928) (Claude Filion), decedee, Alexandria -- 3 enfants
Marguerite (1935), decedee al'age de 3 ans.
Apres leur mariage, Napoleon et Adele s'etablissent dans la ge concession,

sur un terrain qu'iIs defrichent. lis vendront plus tard la ferme a Charles et se
retireront aSt-Isidore.

Adele, en plus d'etre mere de famille a temps plein, a toujours seconde son
mari aux travaux de la fer me. Elle est decedee Ie 2S mars 1965, a l'age de 73 ans,
et Napoleon, Ie 2 f6vrier 1968, a I'age de 83 ans. lis sont inhumes aFournier.

Ire rangee: Charles, Omer, Lionel, Napoleon, Adele, Alice, Laurette. 2" rangee: Armand, Simone.
Beatrice, Florence, Jeannette, Rita, Rene
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La Famille Charles et Annette (nee Brabant) Levac

Charles est Ie fils de Napoleon Levac et d'Adele Lalonde de Fournier et An­
nette, la fille d'Alpha Brabant et d'lda Malboeuf de St-Bernardin. L'abbe
Belanger benit leur mariage aFournier Ie 13 juin 1942.

Charles et Annette donnent naissance acinq enfanls:
Neil (Ie 9 juillet 1943) (Francine Couturc), L'Orignal-- Hans
Nicole (Ie 13 decembre 1945) (Maurice Rousseau), Hawkesbury -- Lucie
Michel (Ie 26 mars 1947) (Sally

Batston), Ottawa -- Danielle el
Jerome

Louise (Ie 10 JUID 1948)
(Robert Pharand), Toronto -- Mar­
tin, Michel et Catherine

Odette (Ie 30 mars 1950)
(Michel James), Ottawa -- Andrew
el Carolyne.

Charles et Annette s'installent
sur l'ancienne ferme d'Auguste
Gauthier jusqu'en 1950, alors qu'ils
prennent la reI eve sur la ferme
paternelle. En 1974, ils vendent la
ferme et demenagem aHawkesbury Annelle el Charles

ou ils demeurent presentement.

La Farnille Orner et Marie-Ange (nee Bougie) Levac

En 1936, Orner, fils de Napoleon Levac el u'Adele Lalonde, acheta la ferme
de Charles Denis situee dans la 8e concession. En 1937, il epousait Marie-Ange
Bougie, fille de Napoleon Bougie et d'Albina Besner de St-Bernardin. De ce
manage sont issus dix enfanls: Marie-Claire, Claude, Rachel, Martial, Ghislaine,
Gisele, Diane, Micheline, Yvan, G6rald, d6ced6 peu apres la naissance.

En 1952, Orner et Marie-Ange d6ciderent d'agrandir leur ferme en faisant
I'acquisition de 50 arpents de terrain, propri6t6 de Georges Walhier situce a
proximite de leur ferme.

Orner affectionnait particulierement Ics chevaux. II passait baucoup de
temps a frotter les harnais car iJ ctait tres orgueilleux de ses chevaux. Au prio­
temps, il aimait taquiner Ie brochet dans les cours d'eau des environs.

Marie-Ange Ie secondait dans tous les travaux, aussi bien a la ferme qu'aux
champs. Excellente cuisiniere, die ctait aussi une couturiere habile. Elle habillait
toute sa famille, jusqu'a confeclionner les complets des gan;ons.

En 1973, ils vendirent la ferme et s'ctablirenl a Vaokleek Hill. lis se rap­
pochaient aiasi de leurs freres et soeurs, ainsi que de la ville de Hawkesbury, lieu
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privil~gi~ de magasinage pour Marie-Ange qui s'est toujours av~re une consom­
matrice avertie.

Orner est decede, Ie 10 decembre 1981, a l'age de 68 ans. II est inhume a
Fournier.

En 1986, Marie-Ange quilte Vankleek Hill pour prendre logis it Le Havre, a
Casselman, ou eUe mene une vie sociale active en compagnie des residents et des
rnembres du Club de I'Age d'Or.

40e annivers~ire de rnariage
Ire rangee: Marlial, Rachel, Marie-Ange, Orner, Marie-Claire, Claude. 2" rangee: Diane,

Gisele, Yvan, Micheline, Gisele

La Famille Henri et Laurette (nee Lamarche) Longtin

Henri est ne Ii St-Isidore Ie 7 janvier 1917. II est Ie fils de Joseph Longtin et
de Lucia Pilon. Son grand-pere, Alexis Longtin, etait un des pionniers de St­
Isidore. Le 1er oetobre 1940, it epouse Laurette Lamarche, fiUe de Zotique
Lamarche et d'Elisabeth Sauve de St-Isidore. Le jeune couple s'installe sur une
ferrne aDunvegan pour quelques annees. lis arrivent dans [a paroisse de Fournier
en ocLobre 1946, sur une terre acheLee aWilfrid Cardinal (un 100 acres de ter­
rain), Ie lot 9 dans la 16e concession.

En plus des animaux et des travaux des champs, les Longtin cultivent, pen­
dant plusieurs annees, des patates et de grands champs de fraises. Avec les
annees, la ferme s'agrandit et Henri se lance dans la produetion des oeufs. Avec
I'aide de son fils Conrad, il balil, en 1964, son premier poulailler de 5 000 pon­
deuses. Un deuxieme, de 8 000 pondeuses, suivra quelques aonees plus tard. Ils
vendent leurs animaux en 1967.

Au printemps 1973, Henri et Laurette envisagenl leur retraite. Ils se con­
struisent aSt-Isidore. lis vendent alors une partie de leur ferme a Conrad en sep­
tembre de la meme annee.

Leur famille compte cinq enfants, dix-sept petils-enfants et cinq arriere­
petits-enfants.
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Conrad (Gislaine St-Onge), Fournier -. Daniel, Mireille, Jocelyn
Huguette (Frank Weber), St-Isidore -- Mariette, Susanne, Frank fils, Paul,

Helene, Ronnie
Carmen (Constant Gauthier), Plantagenet -- Slephane, Gina
Francine (Fran~ois Neveu), Casselman -- Jacinthe, Jean-Fran<;ois, Joseph,

Josianne
Jean-Paul (Diane Lalonde), Orleans _0 Tina, Genevieve.

SOC anniversaire de mariage
lrc rangee: Henri, Laurette,. 2c rangee: Frank, Huguette, Carmen, Constant,

Gislaine, Conrad. 3° rangee: Jean-Paul, Diane, Francine, Fran~ojs

La Famille Conrad et Gislaine (nee St-Onge) Longtin

Conrad est ne aDunvegan Je 11 aout 1942 et a ete baptise aSt-Isidore. II est
Ie fils d'Henri Longtin et de Laurette Lamarche. II arrive dans la paroisse de
Fournier a l'age de 4 ans avec ses parents qui ont achete la terre de Wilfrid Car­
dinal (Ie lot 9 dans la 16e concession) en octobre 1946. (ll se souvient que cet
automne-Ia, pOur aider 11 passer l'hiver, ses parents ont ramasse plusieurs poches
de petites patates, laissees sur les champs par les anciens proprietaires.)

571



Conrad - ebeniste -1978

1rc rangee: Gislaine (Veronique),
Jessica, Conrad. 2< rangee: Jocelyn,

Mireille, Lynn, Daniel

Conrad est tres habile de ses mains.
II cullive ses talents de mensuisier et

1 d'eb6niste a un tres jeune age. (II fera
, i lui-meme les renovations a leur maison

et presque tous leurs meubles.) II
travaille corrune ouvrier et menuisier
quelques annees. En 1967, il batit son
premier poulailler de 6 000 pondeuses
sur un lot que son pere lui donne.

En juin 1968, Conrad epouse Gis­
lame 5t-Dnge, fiUe de Raoul 5t-Dnge et
d'Antonine Lalonde de Fournier. Con­
rad et Gislaine s'mstallent dans une
petite maison voisine, IOUl~e de Jean­
Pierre Lalonde. L'annee suivante, Con­
rad batil un deuxieme poulailler de 6 000
pondeuses. Gislaine s'occupe de la
comptabilite el de lever les oeufs. Con­
rad travaille comme ouvrier el menuisier
quelques annees encore.

En 1973, il achete Ia terre de son
pere qui se retire au village de 5t-Isidore.

Avec les annees, l'entreprise familiaJe grandit et s'ameliore, pour devenir une
belle ferme avicole et cereaJiere.

Leur famille compte trois enfanls: Daniel (1970) (Lynn Brunet) -- Jessica et
Veronique. Daniel est chauffeur de camion.

Mireille (1971). Mireille est etudiante a la Cite
collegiale, aOttawa.

Jocelyn (1977). Jocelyn frequente l'Ecole secondaire
de Plantagenet.

Daniel - 1976
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La ferme avicole el cerealiere des Longlin -1987

La Famille Arthur et Alma (nee Lavigne) Lortie

Arthur etait Ie fils d'Isa'ie Lortie et de Josephine Levac de St-Bernardin et
Alma, la fille de Boniface Lavigne et d'Esther Keough de Fournier. Arthur et
Alma se sont epouses aFournier Ie 18 janvier 1927.

Us ont eu quatre enfants: Rita (Julius BerLothy); Marguerite (Roger St-Ger­
main); Cecile; Bernard (Suzanne Malelte).

Arthur (ne Ie 23 oelobre 1897) est decede Ie 23 novembre 1964 et Alma (nee
Ie 11 fevrier 19(5), Ie 26 mars 1991.1Is sont inhumes aSt-Bernardin.

La Famille Louis et Cecile Lortie

Louis est Ie fils de Charles
Lortie et d'Huguette Brasseur d'­
Ottawa. Le 25 jui.1let 1987, il
epouse Cecile Maisonneuve, fille
de Laurent Maisonneuve et
d'Helenda Brisson de Fournier.
Ils ont une fiUe, Jessica, nee Ie 14
novembre 1990.

Louis et Cecile demeurent a
Fournier depuis leur mariage. En
1988, ils construisentla maison de
leur reve. Louis est mecanicien. 11
travaille chez Labelle Motor
Sales, a Casselman. Cecile

Cecile (Jessica) el Louis
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travaille a la mun.icipalite de Plantagenet-Sud comme adjointe a la greffier­
tresoriere. Leurs sports preferes sont Ie camping et la peche.

The Family of James MacGregor and Catherine McNabb

In 1808, James MacGregor, his wife, Catherine McNabb, and three children,
Edward, Margaret and Duncan, left their home in Bal Quider, Scotland, for a new
one in Glengarry. During the boat trip they became acquainted with another
group and landed at York (now Toronto). James obtained 400 acres in what is
now the Yonge Street area of Toronto.

Edward, the older son, served in the Battle of Lundy's Lane (War of 1812­
1814). He suffered respiratory problems and died shortly afterwards. Margaret
married Ajutant Fraser, a brother of Colonel Fraser, and remained in the area.

" ilL
- - j

James (James MacGregor, his son, Duncan, and years later, his grandson, James,
provided ferry se(Vice across llle Nation River.)
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In 1823, James, Catherine and son, Duncan, born in Scotland in 1800, came
to PJantagenet Township, Prescott County, and settled on Lots 5 and 6, Cone. 12.
Their first bit of cleared land and log buildings were on the south bank of the Na­
tion River, west side of the present County Road (land now owned by Marcel
Gadouas). This was many years before spring flooding took place. The river
provided easy transportation for their fust boats (hollowed-out logs) and also an
important transportation route for the area. A barge towed by a stearn tug offered
both passenger and freight service on the river for the people of Lemieux,
Pendleton, Riceville, Fournier and others, a 25-mile stretch beginning at High
Falls (Casselman) and ending at the Pitch Off (Plantagenet Springs).

James MacGregor, his son, Duncan, and years later, his grandson, James,
provided ferry service across the Nation River for the early settlers who followed a
mere trail through the bush, and then for later generations. At that time, the
township council operated ferry service with a ferry man living in a summer shack
on the north bank of the river. A steel bridge (Lapointe Bridge) was built around
1917 and was replaced in 1969 by the present structure (Henry Seguin Bridge).

James was an old man by this time and in failing health. Unable to do heavy
work, he spent much of his time fishing. In this way, he was providing food for the
table. It was in 1846, while fishing in front of his home, that James may have suf­
fered a seizure, for he fell overboard and drowned. It was ironic that the river
which had been such a part of James' everyday living should also claim his life.
Burial places of James and Catherine are unknown.

The Family of Duncan MacGregor and Catherine Fraser

In 1826, Dunean (1800-1884), youngest son of James and Catherine, married
Catherine (1803-1873), daughter of Simon Fraser (no family connection to Simon
Fraser, the explorer). Catherine's family belonged to St. Raphael's parish and
lived along the Glen Roy Road, west of the present Highway 34 and south of
Green Valley.

Duncan and Catherine had [our sons and six daughters. These fIrst Mac­
Gregors born in Canada are of the third generation:

Jane (1827) (Stephen Surch Sf.) -- Catherine; Julia (1828) (fIrst marriage ­
John Boyle) -- Mary, (second marriage - Hugh O'Connor) -- 3 children; Catherine
(1831) (Alexander McDonnell) -- Ronald and Julia; Edward (1833) (Louisa Dcs­
laurier) -- no children; Ann (1834) (William McKay) -- Margaret and Mary; Mar­
garet (1835) (Duncan McMaster); Simon (1838) (Margaret Gordon) .- 11
children; James (1839) (Isabel Kennedy) -- 6 children; Mary (1843) (Hugh Ryan) ­
- Ellen, Catherine, Alfred, Jane, Ann, Lewis, and Urban; Duncan (1845) (Ellen
Kelly) -- no children, (Margaret Gregg - second marriage) -- eight children.

Duncan Sr. became a prominent man in the township. He was a councillor
for several years, became reeve and sat on county council. He was also named a
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Captain of Militia (this, according to C. Thomas, History of Prescott County,
1896). Duncan died in 1884, and Catherine in 1873. Both are buried in Fournier.

Edward, oldest son of Duncan Sr., married Louisa Deslaurier in 1869. They
had no children. Edward was a lumberman for many years in the Parry Sound
area. He inherited 100 acres, the west half of Lot 6, Cone. 12, from his father. In
1882, he sold the same to Joseph Seguin (later owned by Timothy Seguin and the
Georges Labreche family).

The Family of Simon MacGregor and Margaret Gordon

Simon, (1838-1913), the second son of Duncan and Catherine, married Mar­
garet Gordon (1846-1902) in 1867 and settled on the east half of Lot 9, Cone. 11,
South Plantagenel (now owned by Gregory Ryan). They had eight sons and three
daughters; Ranald (1868), Ann (1869), Allan (1871), Fred (1874), Duncan (1875),
Simon (1877), Riehard (1879), Margaret (1881), Mary Jane (1883), Francis (1887),
Gordon (1890). Simon and Margaret are buried in Fournier.

Simon Margaret

Ranald married Larina Lemieux. They have descendants in Saskatchewan.
Ann married Adolphus Maranda in 1870. He was a carpenter. They had

eight children. They were buried in Fournier; Adolphus, in 1944, and Ann, in
1949.

Allan (Margaret Hobner) worked and died in Chicago.
Fred married Lena S1. Louis. He is buried with his younger brother, Gordon.
Duncan married Amelia Paquette. They worked at Mount Iron, Duluth,

Minn., U.S., where they are buried.
Simon was married to Mary Brennan. He worked at Mount Iron.
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Richard (Dick) married Maude McDonald. He is buried with his other
brothers, Fred and Gordon.

Margaret married Ambrose Burke in 1912. They had five children: Veronica,
Venita, Jean, Brian and Gordon. They lived in Otlawa and are buried there.

Mary Jane married Hugh Darragh in 1917. They lived in Saskatchewan.
Their children are: Francis and Geraldine. Mary Jane died in 1927 and Hugh
brought her body back for burial in Fournier. Her son, Francis, was a flying in­
structor in WWIl. He was assigned to the investigation when a Tiger Moth plane
from the Pendleton airport struck a hydro wire spanning the Nation River and
crashed into the water, drowning both men on board. It was quite a coincidence
that he, from Saskatchewan, should be assigned to investigate an accident which
took place in front of his mother's birthplace. Francis was also kiUed in a plane
crash after the war was over.

Francis was ordained to the priesthood in the Basiliea, Ottawa, August 3,
1913, and said his first Mass in St. Bernard's Parish, Fournier, on August 4, 1913.
Among his duties were serving as parish priest at Farrelton, Quebec, where he
died in 1969. He is buried in the parish cemetery.

Gordon, the youngest, took over the farm. In 1919, he married Mary Shane,
daughter of Alexander Shane of Lemieux, and sister of Robert and Edna. In
February 1920, Mary became another victim of the dreaded flu which followed
WWI and claimed the lives of a number of pregnant women. She was buried in
Lemieux. Gordon continued farming alone until 1936, when he sold out to Alfred
Ryan and went to work in Val d'Or, Quebee. His retirement years were spent at
Seskinika Lake, on the outskirts of Kirkland Lake, where his two brothers were
living. Gordon is buried there with Fred (Lena St. Louis) and Diek (Maude Mc­
Donald).

The Family of Duncan MacGregor

Duncan MacGregor (1845-1921) married Ellen KeUy (1846-1872). They had
no children. Duncan Jr., who was the youngest of his family, then married Mar­
garet Gregg. They had eight children: Thomas, Edgar, Lawrence, Roy, Alexander,
Ellen, Stanley and Ann.

Duncan inherited the east half of Lot 5 from his father, Duncan Sr. Some
years later, the house burned, other buildings were demolished, but Duncan
retained the land until 1919.

In the early 1890's, Duncan started a hotel in Fournier. He began with the
Edward Sloan-Catherine Atkins retirement house, onto the west of which he built
a bar and dining room area with a second storey above. This hotel continued in
operation until 1917, when Ontario brought in the prohibition law. (Arthur and
Stella Lalonde had this property for some years and at the request of the pe~ple,
allowed the bar-dining area to be used as a funeral parlour in the 1960's and early
1970's.)
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Duncan then moved to Alexandria. In 1919, the river property was sold to
the Beaulieu family, later to Menard and, in 1946, to Gadouas.

Duncan died in 1921 and is buried in Fournier. His son, Lawrence (Nellie
Maranda), lived in Hawkesbury. Lawrence's sons, Edgar and Walter, are still
there. Roy died in Toronto; Ellen, Stanley and Ann retired in Onawa after spend­
ing their working years in Winnipeg. Ann (1893) celebrated her 98th birthday in a
nursing home in Ottawa in January 1991. In a telephone conversation, she stated
that she hoped to reach 100 years of age. She is the last fourth-generation Mac­
Gregor living.

The Family of James MacGregor and Isabel Kennedy

James (1839-1908), a third-generation MacGregor and third son of Duncan,
erected buildings and settled on the east side of the road, Lot 5, which his
grandfather, James, had acquired in 1823. He married Isabel Kennedy (1840­
1930) froIll the Metcalfe area. Their family consisted of Duncan (1877), Mary
(Minnie) (1879), John (1881), Margaret (1883), Charles (1884) and Josephine
(1888).

Added to the task of cultivating and still clearing lan~ James and his family
had the responsibility of ferry service. It was on a warm June evening, 1908, about
ten o'clock, when James, about to cross the river for passengers, dropped dead on
the ferry (his pipe still in his mouth). His wife, Isabel, lived to be 90 years old. She
died in 1930.

Minnie, the oldest daughter, married John V. Ryan, grandson of Michael
Ryan of Curran, in 1905. They lived on Cone. 10, south of Curran (now owned by
Germain Chretien). There were 10 children: Howard, died young, Annie, Eileen,
Loretta, Joise, Ada, Muriel, Florence, Dorothy and Vivian. Minnie (1971) and
John V. (1940) were buried in St. Luke's, Curran.

Margaret married Herman Shane, Pendleton, son of Martin Shane and Mary
McAllister, in 1917. Her children were: Isabel (Shane), Edgar, Kathleen (Ben­
son) and Dorcas (Gunning). Margaret (1973) and Herman (1948) were buried in
Our Lady of Divine Love Cemetery.

Josephine (Josee) married Emmett Shane, son of Alexander Shane,
Lemieux, in 1918. They lived in the Chesterville area. Their children were: Char­
les, Hubert, Leonard and Donald. Josee died in 1978, and Emmett in 1968. They
are buried in St. Mary's Cemetery, Chesterville.

Duncan, James' oldest son, was a fourth-generation MacGregor. He was a
medical doctor; he served as such in WWI. He married Florence McKay in
Halifax in 1915. There were no children. He practised medicine in Ottawa and
Barry's Bay. As a result of a cut finger received during surgery, he developed
blood poisoning and died in 1935. Duncan was buried in the family plot in Four­
nier at the age of 58 years.
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Charles (Charlie) (1884-1971) was married in 1910 to Elsie Muir, daughter of
John Muir and Catherine Bradley of Riceville. They lived on the 13th concession,
west of Riceville, across the road from the Albert James Wilson farm. Their
children were: James, Helen, Alfred, Kathleen and Charles Jr. In 1919, Charlie's
family moved to a farm on the western outskirts of Martintown. Their son, Alfred,
was killed in WWII. Charlie and Elsie are buried in the cemetery at Williamstown.
James is a resident at the Maxvil1e Manor; he supplied much information and
photographs for the MacGregor family.

The Family of John MacGregor and Ida Shane

John (1881-1961), with his
mother Isabel, took over the farm
after James' death. He married
Ida (1886-1936), daughter of
John Shane and Anastasia
Fitzgerald of Pendleton, in 1911.
Their ehildren were: Aeneas
(Louise Legault), Glen Roy,
bachelor, now a resident at the
Maxville Manor, Annabel (Henry
Seguin), and Ernest Dean
(Laurencia Gorley).

The original house burned
in 1925, one month before Ernest
Dean was born, and replaced
with the present structure
(Ernest Dean's home). Ida died
at 50 years of age; John died at
the age of 80 years. They are
buried in the family plot in Four­
mer.

John and Ida

The Family of Ernest Dean MacGregor and Laul'encia Gorley

Ernest Dean (1925) worked the family farm, the west half of Lot 5, Cone. 12.
John, Ida and Ernest Dean lived together until John and Ida died.
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Ernest Dean and Laurencia Gorley
were married in 1953. They had three
daughters:

Joanne (Serge Barbarie) .- Su~phane

and Josee, Lefaivre
Ida (Gilles Boisseau) .- Jill and

Andree, Navan
Shirley (Claude Bellavance), Bour·

get.
Laurencia died in 1978.
Ernest Dcan has recently retired

from the Municipality of South
Plantagenet Roads Department.

Dean and Huguetle reside in the
family home beside the Seguin Bridge.

Laurencia and Ernest Dean

Serge, Joanne, Gilles, Ida, Shirley, Huguetle Lalonde, Ernest Dean,
Annabel Seguin, Lynne Seguin - 1982
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The original MacGregor house, built around 1875. It burned in 1925 and was replaced by the eurrent
house, now owned by Ernesl Dean MacGregor.

The Family of Aeneas MacGregor and Louise Legault

Louise and Aeneas

Aeneas (1912-1990), sou of John and Ida,
grew up just southeast of the Lapointe Bridge,
on his father's farm.

Louise was born in Orleans and became a
; schoolteacher. Her parents moved to Val d'Or
. in 1936. Once settled there, her mother took in

boarders to help supplement the family iucome.
Louise's brother worked in the gold mines and
met Aeneas (Red) MacGregor. Red was look­

.. ing for a place to live while he also worked in
the mines. Red ended up at the Legault home
as a boarder first, but soon to be sou-in-Iaw.

Aeneas and Louise were married in 1941.
Aeneas spent some time in the Armed Forces.
They farmed for twelve years, then sold the
farm to Lambert and Helen Ryan. At this
point, they moved into Claude Ryan's house

. (uow Cloutier's) for one year.
Aeneas went to Elliot Lake while Louise

remained in Riceville with Jean and Allan. The
family soon moved up north. After Jean and
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Allan finished their schooling, they moved to the Ottawa area to work.
Some time after retirement, Aeneas and Louise sold their home up north

and moved back to Fournier. Aeneas died July 1, 1990. Louise has since sold her
house in Fournier and is now living with Jean and her new twins, Catherine and
Alexander, born January 1991. They will move to their new home in July. Allan
and Frances and family, Jessica and Shane, live just across the river, in Quebec.

The MacIntosh Family

The MacIntosh family came from the Loch Tay area, near Kellin, Scotland,
John MacIntosh and Margaret Sinclair were married in Seotland and came to
Canada around 1800 with some of their children.

Donald, born in 1802 in Canada, one of John and Margaret's children, mar­
ried Christy McDermid, daughter of Duncan and Jane, in April 1830. They settled
on Concession 15 of Kenyon. They had a family of eight:

Mary, Peter, Duncan, Jane, Catherine, Janet, Christy Ann and John Donald.
John Donald remained on the farm with his parents. He married Mary Ann,

daughter of Donald and Margaret (McGregor) Ferguson of Dunvegan, in 1881.
They had six children: Daniel Carlyle, John Hampden, Christina Margaret,

Marion Elizabeth, one died as an infant and another died at two years of age.

The Family of John Hampden and Annie Louise MacIntosh

Dr. John Hampden, son of John D. MacIntosh and Mary Ann Ferguson, was
born in Domin..ionville in 1884.

Following his studies and graduation from Toronto's Varsity University in
1910, Dr. MacIntosh started his medical career in Apple Hill, then set up his first
practice in Riceville.

Dr. MacIntosh lived in the hotel in the village. He married Annie Louise
Wilson. They built a house across from the cheese factory and following a trip to
Niagara Falls, settled in. Dr. MacIntosh set up his office there.

Two children came from this marriage: Jean Eleanor and John Wilson. Jean
Eleanor (1918) graduated from Queen's and taught school. She married Ray Wil­
son of Kenmore, a farmer. They had two children: Bill and John. Jean died in
1984. John Wilson (1924) married Olive Clemens, They had three children: Bruce,
Marilyn and Kevin.

Dr. Mac loved horses and he took great pride in his roadsters, but when cars
came along, he took equally to them. He even had a snowmobile (purchased from
Dugald Harkin).

Radio was a pleasure for John H. Macintosh (Dr. Mac, as he had become
known to so many), as it carried the sports news and best of all, hockey, which he
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loved so very much. On occasion, when John H. could find time, he would put on
his skates and play the game with the local boys. He was known to ftIl his car with
his son and his young friends and travel to see a mateh at different centres.

Dr. MacIntosh played a very active part in the community. He was president
of the South Plantagenet Agricultural Society for a number of years, a member of
the board of stewards of the United Church and a member of the local Masonic
Order.

In December 1942, while still in active practice, Dr. Mac suffered a stroke.
He remained in his home until his death on March 1st, 1947, in his sixty-third year.
His many dedicated hours of service as the area doctor will never be forgotten.

James, Maria, Annie Louise, John Hampden, Mary Ann, John Donald

The Family of John Wilson Macintosh and Olive Clemens

John Wilson, son of Dr. John Hampden Macintosh and Annie Louise Wil­
son, was born April 29, 1924. He attended Riceville Public School and MaxviIIe
High School.

John married Olive Clemens, daughter of David Clemens and Edith May
Sackville, in 1946. Olive was a schoolteacher. John served overseas. He kept the
general store in Riceville before selling it to Ernie and Viola Rowe. John and
Olive then moved 10 Williamsburg where he was employed by the St. Lawrence
Parks Commission. He was involved in the surveying and assessing of homes as the
Seaway progressed with the building of the hydro electric dam at Cornwall.

John and Olive are very active people in their community and enjoy retire­
ment. They have a family of three: Bruce, Marilyn (Adams) and Kevin.
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40th wedding anniversary
Bruce, Kevin, Olive, John, Marilyn

The MacLeods

In 1793, Captain Alexander MacLeod chartered a vessel to bring with him
from Glenelg, Scotland, about forty families (150 settlers) of MacLeods, Mc­
GiIJivrays, McCuaigs and McIntoshs.

They had an adventurous journey. They left Greenock, Scotland, early in
April 1793, arriving in Culreagh, Glenelg, where all the selliers were awaiting the
arrival of the sh.ip. With everyone embarked, and all of the baggage stowed away,
the ship set sail on her destined voyage.

As Great Britain was at war with France, Captain MacLeod armed his ship
with cannon and provided muskets for his able-bodied men. When they were four
days at sea, they sighted what was thought to be a French vessel, so their ship put
in pursuit of the stranger, who, after a long chase, was run down and, to the dis­
gust of the clan, proved to be a harmless Duteh merchantman.

The chase resulted in a delay across the waters, but also there had been
damage to the vessel and so they returned for repairs. With these completed, the
ship proceeded on her journey. When nearly half way across the Atlantic, they en­
countered a most tremendous storm which caused a very dangerous leak; the of­
ficers consulted and decided it best and safest that the sh.ip return for repairs
rather than risk perishing at sea, and so the settlers found themselves landed
again. Here they remained for almost a fortnight, waiting either their vessel be
repaired or another be made ready.

The Company was able to get a Brig ready and by the end of the fortnight all
embarked for a second time, ready to proceed with the intended voyage. They had
not been out to sea more than four days when a heavy squall of wind carried away
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the upper masts and sails. They were forced to put in to shore once again, this
time at Samlash, to have the damage repaired. Here they remained for three days.

All having been set right again, they made a third start. Nter a tedious
voyage of eighteen weeks, they arrived at Charlottetown, Sl. John's Island, now
called Prince Edward Island. They arrived during a severe snow storm and exces­
sively eold weather (they had a foot of ice on their deeks).

Though six months had passed since they had embarked, this adventurous
band was not to reach its destination for some time yet. The season was so far ad­
vaneed that they found it impossible to proceed up the Gulf and the St. Lawrence
River, so they spent the long winter months among their countrymen who were
settled in the little island province.

During the winter, Captain Alexander proceeded to the south side of the is­
land to engage passage to carry the seltlers onward early in the next spring. Early
in April of 1894, having secured tbe necessary schooners at St. Mary's Bay, the
emigrants made their way, through the large pieces of ice that filled the river, to
Montreal. From hence, they came up the river to Lancaster in bateaux, portaging
and carrying their effects on their backs, passing the rapids en route. Many of
these people settled around Lancaster. Some eighteen to twenty families remained
there for two years but, finding the land low and wet, they moved north to the 6th
and 7th concessions of Lochiel.

One of Captain Alexander's descendants, William, son of Dunean and Mary
MaeLeod, married twiee. He and his first wife, Rachel Cameron, had five sons
and four daughters: Alexander, Mary, Catherine, Duncan (these four oldest of
their children died of scarlet fever), Sarah, Alexander, Duncan, John Angus and
Margaret Rachel, mother of this young family, died. William later married Sarah
Cameron, Rachel's niece. William and Sarah had nine children, six sons and three
daughters: Dan, Thomas, Mary, Norman, Florence Ann, Roderick, Neil B., Mur­
die and Tena.

The family lived on Lot 11, Cone. 9, Township of Caledonia. They raised
their children while working very hard. William died in 1908, Raehel (unknown),
Sarah, at the age of 45.

The Family of John Angus MacLeod and Catherine Chisholm

John Angus was born July 18, 1869, in Dunvegan. He was the eighth child of
William and Rachel. John spent his early days on the farm, Lot 10, Cone. 9,
Caledonia.

He followed in the steps of some of his ancestors. He attended an Agricul­
ture School in Sherbrooke, Que., and learned the cheesemaking process.

John married Catherine (Katie), daughter of Donald Chi.",holm and Isabell
(nee Bella MacLeod). They settled into their home next to the creamery in Four-
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Catherine and Linlon - 1944

nier. He made cheese and butter for the farmers while she cared for their family
of five:

Rheta (William MacEwan) -. Florence, William, Mary and Peter, Maxville
William G. (Grace Campbell) -- Alma, Elba, Shirley, Ian, William and

Campbell, Maxville
Isobel (Frank Grindley) -- Mona and John, Calgary
Alma (Osie Villeneuve) -- Ronald, F. Barnie and Brian, Maxville. Alma was

a registered nurse; she graduated from the ftrst class of graduates from the Ottawa
Civic Hospital in 1924.

Linton (Irene MacDonald) -­
Keith, Sheila, Glenn and Phyllis,
Cornwall.

John made cheese in the factory
which he purchased from a Mr. White
in 1894. There were few patrons in the
early years, says Alma; however, the
factory prospered. At that lime,
farmers tried to produce the largest
amount of milk seasonally, from late i

spring when the roads became more
passable into the fall, letting most
cows go dry in the winter months.

Cheese was made each day in
season and butter on Saturdays. Most -,
of the butter was sold in two-pound
prints. The curing room of the factory had large shelves on which the finished
cheese was stored and periodically tested. Each one was covered with waxed
cheesecloth and placed in round wooden boxes for shipment to Montreal. A
horse-drawn wagon with a large high rack arrived regularly to deliver the cheese
to Alfred for shipments to Montreal.

The cheese plant was built of clapboard and was painted red. The factory
had a high wing in which ice was slored in sawdust. Men employed in the plant
were from the area and worked out of season, harvesting the ice from the Nation
River, as well as hauling wood from the area to flfe the furnace to operate the en­
gines.

In May 1908, there were three patrons, by July there were six; in early
November, fifty-five farmers were bringing milk to the factory.

The price of milk in 1908 ranged from $0.86 cwt in April to $1.16 in August
and $1.15 in November, The average pricc was $1.00. Cash sales for milk shipped
from May 25 to November 6 amounted to $14,330.67. The total amount of milk
shipped was 1,267,818Ibs.; 120,476 lbs. of cheese was made and $2,914.07 worth of
butter was sold.
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Cheese was taken to Alfred to be shipped by train to the cities. Two dolJars
was paid per trip, depending on the amount being moved.

In 1913, Mr. MacLeod sold the factory to Jules Seguin, who later sold it to
Jules Denis.

In 1918, the patrons of Fournier wanted their own union cheese factory.
Some of the cheesemakers were: James Sloan, William J. Sloan, Jerry Lemieux,
Dolphis Lavigne, Arthur Newberry, Jack Hugh Arnold, Albert McNabb and
Alban Denis.

The patron factory burned June 5,1945. With the help of aU the patrons, and
Mr, Fraser of Vankleek Hill being responsible for the new building, they had the
new factory open by the spring of 1946,

Records show there were 33 shareholders. The directors were Borden
Clemens and Vernon Surch. Each patron received $208.00.

Because of the closing of many smaller factories, the Fournier factory was
also forced to close its doors; it was sold in 1972. The farmers then had a choice of
three: they could haul the milk in eight-gallon cans in their own trucks to another
factory, have a milk can pick-up truck come to the farm, pick up the milk and
return later to deliver the empty canS,or install bulk refrigerated tanks and have
bulk milk trucks come to the farm for the milk pick-up.

The factory was later sold to the Township of South Plantagenet. It is now
used to house the Fire Station for the Volunteer Fire Department and "Ie Club de
l'Age d'Or".

While John MacLeod made cheese, he also found time to participate in
other activities. In 1908, he was president of the Riceville Fair. In his diary, we
learn the fair was held on September 28th that year, on a beautiful day; there was
a large crowd and it rained the next day. The fair had taken place east of the vil­
lage, on top of the hill, on the south side of the road.

In 1912, John Angus moved his family to Riceville. They lived in the front of
one of the Franklin homes (now owned by Marcel Gadouas) while the family
worlUng the farm lived at the back of the house. The children went to school in
Riceville that year.

Alma remembers quite well living in Fournier, her father making cheese, the
fire that destroyed part of the village in 1910. She remembers the move to
Franklin's Corners and the male teacher at the public school, even though she
cannot name him. In a disastrous fire in 1910, there were 22 buildings destroyed
on a Sunday afternoon. The rue was started at the Cadieux home (not the
storekeeper), by two young boys playing with matches. Isobel says there were two
doctors. Dr. Linton Johnson lived with his sister, Jessie. He later married and
moved to California. His brother, Loudon, lived with his wife and children,
Douglas and Wilma, at the western edge of the village (Alphonse Lalande's). Dr.
Charlebois and his family lived in a white house across from the two schools.
Isobel also recalls the two churches, Methodist and Catholic, and that Father
Beausoleil, the parish priest, knew each and every child in the village by name. She
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also recalls a railroad line being built in 1913, from Montreal to Ottawa. The work,
she states, had reached a point north of Franklin's Corners and Riceville when
construction was abandoned, due to WWI.

In 1913, John moved the family 10 Maxville, then, in 1916, to a farm at
Dominionville. In 1913 and 1914, John Angus was in charge of clearing an acre of
orchard and gardens along the Rideau River for a housing development. This
work ceased when WWI was declared. Many years later, the area became
Brentwood Place, east of Lansdowne Park. The children finished their education
and some moved on; olhers remained in that area.

John Angus died in July 1926, at the age of 56 years, and Katie, in 1958.

j

Isabel, Linlon, Rhela, Willie, Alma· 1961

The Family of Donald Rory MacPhee and Mary Anne Chisholm

Donald Rory MacPhee lived in Fournier. He married Mary Anne, second
daughter of Donald Chisholm and Isabell (Bella) MacLeod.

Donald and Mary Anne lived across the street from her older sister,
Catherine (Katie), and her husband, John Angus MacLeod. They had four
children: Florence, John, Isabel and Maylene.

Donald, Mary Anne and their family later moved out west.

The Family of Henry Mace and Maria Sproule

Henry Mace married Maria Sproule. They came to Canada during the
potato famine in Ireland. They first came to South Mountain, later settling at the
corner of the ninth concession of Caledonia (later Alcide St-Denis' farm).

Henry and Maria raised a family of four:
George Henry (Annie Maria Sproule) -- Dorothy, Isabel, Ethel, Evelyn,

Freda, Linda; Billy, died young of blood poisoning; Mary Jane (John James
Sproule) -- Beatrice, Wesley, Jimmy, June.

Henry and Maria are buried in Fenaghvale Cemetery.
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The Family of George Henry Mace and Annie Sproule

George Henry (1892) was the eldest child of Henry Mace and Maria
Sproule. He married Annie Sproule (1893), daughter of Jim Sproule and Rebecca
Johnson.

George and Annie lived in a log home just north of his parents' place,
moving later to Fournier village. They lived in the house beside Landriault's post
office. Some time later, they moved to the Sproule farm (now owned by Bruce
Pattington). George worked for Blaney Sproule.

Their next move was to Caledonia Flats where they bought a farm dose to
Dan Lavigne's. The old log home still stands. The new frame house was built in
1923.

George and Annie raised a family of six girls: Dorothy (Eldon Cutt), no
children; Isabel (Robert Hoives) -- Eric; Ethel (Elwood Cult), no children; Evelyn
(James Pitt), no children; Freda (Howard Howes) -- Leonard, Lois, Willa, Lyman,
Hunter, Normand; Linda (first marriage - Paul Ravary), (second marriage - Terry
Skelly) -- Anne.

George died July 11,1964, and Annie, Nov. 1, 1971.

La Famille Eugene el Gracia Maisonneuve

Eugene est ne aCurran Ie 10 avril 1924, sur la ferme paternelle dans la We
concession. Jl est Ie fils de Maxime Maisonneuve (1888-1960) et de Marie-Louise
Martin (1898-1969) et Ie petit-fLls de Thaddee Maisonneuve (1850-1924) et de
Regina Jerome et, du cott maternel, d'Antoine Martin et de Marie-Louise
Lalonde.

A rage de 22 ans,
Eugene s'installe sur une
ferme Ie long de la riviere
Nation, a Fournier. Le 28
aout 1948, il cpouse Gracia
Lalonde, fiUe de Jean-Bap­
tiste Lalonde (1897-1960) et
d'Agnes Clement (1893­
1944) de Curran.

De leur union naJS­
sent:

Albert (Jocelyne
Beaudin) -- Maxime, Ka­
rine, Sabrina

Paul (Fernande Jette)
-- Annie, Patrick, Judith,
Josee

Gracia et Eugene
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Denis (Georgette Chenier)
Yanne, Manon, Jean-Loup

Robert (Joanne Larocque)
Andree-Michele, Emmanuel

Louise.
Gracia est decedee Ie 3 mai 1986 et

inhumee aCurran.
En decembre 1987, Eugene

s'etablit a Bourget. Le 15 septernbre
1990, il epouse Rita Chartrand, fiUe de
Rene Chartrand et d'Yvelte Lalonde de
Curran. Eugene et Rita demeurent
toujours aBourget.

Louise, Denis, Paul, Albert

Eugene el Rita

Robert

La Famille Laurent et Helenda Maisonneuve

Laurent est ne Ie 22 juillet 1930 aPendleton. II est Ie ftls de Maxime Maison­
neuve et de Marie-Louise Martin. Le 30 mars 1959, il epouse Helenda Brisson,
rille de Rene Brisson et d'Aurore Millaire d'Embrun.

De leur union naissent:
Lucie (Ie 30 aofit 1959) (Michel Bourgon), St-Isidore -- Stephane et Melanie.

Lucie est commis au credit ala Banque de Nouvelle-Ecosse.
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Hubert (Ie 20 aofit 1958) (Claudette Roy), Ottawa -- Mathieu. Hubert est
responsable d'un edifice de 149 appartements.

Rene (Ie 2 oclobre 1961), Toledo (Ontario). Rene est livreur de pain.
Gilles (Ie 13 mars 1964) (Julie Chevrier), Casselman. Gilles est livreur de

pam.
Cecile (Ie 28 octobre 1966) (Louis Lortie),

Fournier -- Jessica. Cecile est adjointe ala greffier­
tresoriere de la municipalile de Plantagenet-Sud.

Pierre (Ie 30 avril 1968), Chute-a-Blondeau.
Pierre est livreur de pain.

Laurent prend la releve sur la ferme pater­
nelle a la retraite de son pere et continue a •
l'exploiter apres son mariage. C'est une ferme
laitiere ou I'on pratique aussi la culture de pommes l'

de terre. En 1968, il vend la ferme et aclJete la
route de pain de Gilles Latreille de Fournier.
Laurent vient done s'ajouter a la liste de nos
boulangers et livreurs de pain precedents: Josephat
Lalonde, vers 1915, Aime Leroux, Achille Provost, f

Armand Desforges, Yvon Lalonde, Aubert Ulurent

Gadouas et Gilles Latreille.
Rene, Gilles et Pierre suivent les traces de leur pere; tous trois sont livreurs

de pain: Rene, une route d'Ottawa a Perth et une autre dans les environs de
Smiths Falls; Gilles, une route dans un secteur d'Ottawa; et Pierre, une route dans
un secteur de Montreal. Plus tard, Pierre change de direction et recommence une
nouvelle route aHawkesbury et du cote du Quebec, de Grenville aBuckingham.

Laurent est aussi pompier
volontaire pour Plantagenet-Sud
pendant 22 ans.

Helenda, mariee en
premieres noces a Antoine
Lamarche, donne naissance a une
fille, Jeannine, Ie 4 juin 1949 (Jac­
ques Burelle), Ottawa -- Alain,
Marc, Martin. Jeannine travaille
au cadre aux services des
telephonistes de Bell Canada, a
Ottawa. Un an et demi apres leur
mariage, Antoine decede.
Helenda travaille pour la ville

1'" rangck cecile, HeJenda, Pierre, Ulurent, Gilles. 2e

rangee: Rene, Lucie, Hubert, Jeannine -197B
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d'Ottawa jusqu'a son mariage aLaurent.
En plus d'etre mere de famille, Helenda livre Ie pain pendant plusieurs

annees et conduit un autobus scolaire depuis 14 ans. Elle s'occupe de la Societe
du Cancer. L'horticulture est son passe-temps prefere.

La Famille Laurent et Madeleine Major

Laurent et Madeleine sont natifs de
St-Isidore. Laurent est Ie fils de Leo Major
et d'Aurore Beauchesne et Madeleine, la
ftlle de Lucien Gratton et de Laura Mayer.

Laurent et Madeleine s'epousent aSt­
Isidore Ie 10 juin 1972. lis donnent nais­
sance a trois enfants: Etienne, Mylene et
Kristine.

En janvier 1975, ils viennent s'installer
a Fournier. Laurent travaille a la
Cooperative avicole de St-Isidore ltee et
Madeleine est comptab1e a la Caisse
populaire Fournier Itee.

Victor el Alma

1re rangee: Kristine, Laurent, Mylene. 2e

rangee: Etienne, Madeleine

La Famille Victor et Alma Malbeuf

Victor est Ie sixieme enfant d'Esdras Malboeuf et d'Isabelia Menard de
Fournier.

Le 1er juillet 1940, il epouse Alma Demers de
Wendover, tiUe d'Edmond Demers et de Caroline
Leonard de Wendover.

De leur union naissent six enfants:
Gilles (Monique Bourgon), decede Ie 4 novembre

1989, a l'age de 47 ans -- Chantal et Joel
Diane (Gilles Lalonde) -- Sylvie et Stephane
Neil (Christine Seguin) -. Guy et Yves
Jean-Yves (Lise Lacomb~) -- Christian et Julie
Rosaire (Suzanne St-Jean) -- Virginie
Normand (Carole Ranger) -- Miguel et Katina.
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Apres leur mariage, Victor et Alma demeurent dans Ie petit Horse Creek
pendant sept ans, pour ensuite s'installer sur la ferme paternelle dans la 8e con­
cession de Caledonia. lis achetent, par la suite, une ferme non defrichee dans la ge

concession de Caledonia; avec l'aide de benevoles, on en fait un terrain cultivable.
Victor est commissaire de I'ecole de la 8e coneession pendant plusieurs

annees.
Victor est decede Ie 4 novembre 1969, al'age de 56 ans.
Apres Ie deces de Victor, Alma vend la ferme ason fils Neil et demenage a

St-Isidore. Elk demeure maintenant a l'Escale. Alma fait partie de plusieurs or­
ganisations. Elle aime voyager, jouer aux cartes, recevoir et visiter sa famille et ses
amis.

Ire (angee: Nonnand, Carole. 2' r:angee: Gilles, Diane,
Alma, Jean-Yves, Neil, Rosaire

La FamiUe Alfred Malboeuf

Jean-Baptiste, fils de Pierre Malboeuf dit Beausoleil et de Marguerite Ther­
rien, est ne aAngers, dans l'ancienne province d'Anjou (France). En 1680, il ar­
rive aCap-St-Ignace (Quebec) avec Ie bataiJlon franc de marine venu de France.

Alfred, ne en 1873, descendant de Jean-Baptiste, est Ie fils alne de Maurille
Malboeuf el de Marie Bissonnettte. Maurille et Marie ont sept enfants: Alfred,
Esdras, 'Emery, Joseph, Damas, Ferdinand et Alma (Onesime St-Denis).

Le 9 octobre 1899, il epouse Celina Duhamel d'Alfred.
De leur union naissent douze enfanls:
Ida (Alpha Brabant)
Yvonne (Hector Levac)
Berthe (Albert Granger)
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Alfred et celina

Laura (Emile Leroux)
Irene, s.p.
Laurette (MoIse Gadoury)
Flore (Theodore St-Onge)
Simone, decedee a12 ans
Hector (Aurore Lalonde)
Aure1e (Adeline Loiselle)
Rodolphe, celibalaire
Alban (Therese Bertrand).
Apres leur mariage, Ie couple

Malboeuf s'installe sur une ferme dans
la Se concession de St-Bernardin (chez
Gilles Levac), En 1927, la famille Mal­
boeuf vient s'etablir au bout de la lIe
concession de Fournier, Ie long de la
riviere Nation.

Celina decede Ie 26 mai 1917.
Le 9 avril 1915, Alfred epouse en

secondes noces Angelina (Anna)
Leclerc, mere de cinq enfants d'un
premier mariage: Frere Alfred
Leclerc, Jeanne (Orphir Chenier),
Clara, Sara et Lucien.

Angelina de-cede en 1926.
En 1926, Alfred epouse en troisieme noces Delia Brisebois (veuve d'Aime

Dumas). De leur union naissent Raymond (Yvette Levac) et Simonne, decedee en
bas age.

Apres Ie mariage d'Alban, Alfred et Del.ia demeurent avec Ie jeune couple.
Alfred decede en 1961. Apres Ie deces de son mari, Delia se retire a

Cornwall au elJe decede en 1975. Elle est inhumee aFournier.

La Famille Alban et Therese Malboeuf

Le 24 fevrier 1948, Alban Malboeuf epouse Therese Bertrand, fille de Victor
Bertrand et d'Adelina Pilon d'Alfred. (Nolons que Ie premier Bertrand est venu
au Canada en 1608, sur Ie meme bateau que Samuel de Champlain.)

Alban et Therese ant quatre enfants:
Irene (Rheal Lalonde, ordonne diacre a Alfred Ie 27 mai 1990), Alfred -­

Alain, Benoit el Julie.
Pierre (Jocelyne Gaur), Curran -- Karine, Josee el Marie-Pier
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Bertrand (Angeline Bourgon).
St-Isidore -- Francis et Burt

Danielle (Norman Bissell).
Rockland.

Alban et Rodolphe sont les fils
d'Alfred MaJboeuf et de Celina
Duhamel.

En 1974, suite a un accident de
travail. Rodolphe doit se faife am­
puter Ie bras droit. Les deux freres
decident alors de vendre la fefme a
ARDA, rna is gardenl la maison et six
acres de terrain.

Alban decede Ie 8 juin 1979.
Rodolphe et Therese vendent la

maison en mai 1987 et vont demeurer l
re

rangee: Bertrand, Alban, Therese, Danielle. 2
e

ala Residence Belle-Vie, aAlfred. rangee: Rheal, [rene, Pierre ·1965

Rodolphe meurt Ie 30 oetobre
1988.

Therese habite toujours la Residence Belle-Vie.

Rheal est ordonne diacre - 1990
Irene, Rheal, Mgr Marcel Gervais

La Famille Fernand et Fabienne (nee Gauthier) Malboeuf

Fernand est Ie fils d'Alderic Malboeuf et d'Eva Demers de Fournier. Le 11
septembre 1954. il epouse Fabienne Gauthier, fiUe de Gedeon Gauthier et de
Prudentienne Bissonnette d'Alfred.

IJs donnenl naissance aquatre enfants:
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i.':-, ".
1<0 rangee: Daniel1e, Fabienne, Yves.

2e rangee: Ginelle, Sylvain, Femand - 1970

Danielle (Gerald
Belisle), Wendover
Josee, Julie et Judith

Sylvain (Ginette Pa­
quette), Alfred -- Anne et
Steven. Sylvain est
camionneur.

Ginette, Aylmer.
Ginette est fonctionnaire
au gouvernement federal,
au ministere des Affaires
indiennes.

Yves (Ginette
Auprix), Alfred. Yves est
camionneur.

Fernand et Fabienne
cultivcnt leur ferme, Ie lot 3 de la lOe concession d'Alfred, pendant trente-trois
ans. lis y apporLent maintes ameliorations, pour la transformer en une enLreprise
laiLiere enviable. En 1988, ils vendent leur ferme aAlfons Bosch et se construisent
sur Ie lot 6, au coin nord-est de la 6e concession, chemin de comte 15.

Fabienne est maftresse de maison et Fernand est contracteur ason propre
compte.

La ferme de Femand el de Fabienne Malboeu( - 1975
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50· anniversaire de mariage
Theophile, C1ara,l'abbe HeClor Seguin, cure

La Famille Theophile et Clara Marier

Theophile est Ie fils de Telesphore Marier et d'Albertine Denis. Le 17 fevrier
1925, iI epouse, aMaxville, Clara Beriault, fille ct'Arthur Beriault et de Donalda
Levac.

De leur union nais­
sent:

Roma (Gertrude
Duval) -- 8 enfants

Lauriant (Estelle
Florent) -- 8 enfants

Aline (Rheo Lalonde)
-- 4 enfants

Marcel, decede
Germain (Ginette Pa­

quette) -- 5 enfants
Rachelle (Rejean

Lalonde) -- un enfant.
Apres leur mariage,

Theophile et Clara
s'installent a St-Bernardin.
Vers 1940, ils demenagent a
Riceville. En 1949, ils se
construisent une maison
qu'ils vendent en 1978, pour
aller vivre aPlantagenet.

Theophile est decede Ie 10 avril 1987, aI'age de 87 ans, el inhume it Fournier.
Clara demeure chez sa fille Rachelle, aCurran.

La Famille Roma et Gertrude Marier

Roma est Ie fils de Theophile Marier et de Clara Beriault de Riceville. Le 5
octobre 1948, il epouse Gertrude Duval, fille d'Aime Duval et de PhiJomene
Baron de VankJeek Hill.

De leur union naissent:
Gaetan (Ie 5 mars 1952) (Rita Deslauriers); Robert (Ie 25 juin 1954), decede

en 1980; Denise (Ie 27 juin 1956); Nieole (Ie 15 juin 1957); Daniel (Ie 31 juillet
1958); Johanne (Ie 18 juillet 1960), decedee a7 mois; Alain, (Ie 2 juin 1966); Noel
(Ie 19 decembre 1968); Jocelyn (Ie 13 septembre 1970).

Apres leur mariage, Roma et Gertrude demeurent aRiceville. En 1979, ils
demenagent dans la 8e concession de Caledonia.

Roma et Gertrude jouissent maintenant de leur retraite.
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Les Families Martin dit St-Jean

En provenance de St-Michel de Vaudreuil, dans ce qu'on appelait alors Ie
Bas-Canada, Olivier Martin, Elisabeth St-Amand et leurs enfants s'installent dans
la partie sud du canton d'Atfred vers 1860. Un frere, Fran<;ois-Xavier, et son
epouse, Justine Leduc, auront aussi dans la region de nombreux descendants qui
opteront pour Ie nom St-Jean. Ce dernier provient du surnom de l'ancetre Jean
Martin dit St-Jean qui, venu vers 1723 en Nouvelle-France comme soldat de la
compagnie de Senneville, est originaire de la commune de St-Jean de Montalem­
bert, arrondissement dc Niort dans I'eveche de Poitiers, au Poitou d'alors,
aujourd'hui Deux-Se.vres. Notre ancetre s'assure une nombreuse descendance lors
de ses deux mariages en 1723 et 1751. La deuxieme generation de notre lignee est
assuree en 1766 aLes Cedres, a Soulanges, par Joseph Martin et Marie-Josette
Lalonde. Nous descendons ensuite du premier mariage de Joseph Martin a
Angelique Veronneau dit Denis en 1792, a Soulanges. Les parents de nos
premiers arrives en terre onlarienne sont Joseph Martin et Marie-Madeleine
Wathier maries aVaudreuil en 1820.

Olivier et Elisabeth auront trois fils: Octave, Olivier et Ludger dont les des­
cendants se retrouvent dans leur village natal de Fournier et dans les cantons et
vi lIes avoisinantes. Ludger marie sa cousine germaine, Marie-Louise Menard, a
Fournier en 1879. Malgre Ie cousinage, on a releve les noms de seize enfants, non­
obstant la tradition orale familiale leur en attribuant dix-neuf! Quatre fils: Joseph,
Olivier, Alfred, Victor ainsi que sept filles, s'aUiant aux familIes pionnie.res de
Fournier, assurent, aleur tour, la survivance du patronyme Martin.

Alfred epouse Marie-Anne
Leduc (Anna) a Fournier Ie 30 jan­
vier 1917. Cinq gar<;ons et cinq filles
naissent de leur union qui aura dure
jusqu'a quatre mois avant leur 70e

anniversaire de mariage. Installee
sur les bords de la riviere Nation, la
famille aura souvent afaire face aux
crues effrayantes du printemps.

Vers 1943, la famille quitte la
terre paternelle pour Casselman, Anna Alfred

Cyrville, Limoges et Vanier. Malgre
I'eloignement, illui sera difficile d'oublier fa terre qui fut son berceau et Ie village
oilla parente accueillante reside encore.

Lors de leur deces, Alfred et Anna comptaient 65 descendants assurant la
descendanee. En 1990, reposent en Daniel, Stephane, Jonathan et Nicolas Martin
les espoirs d'une generation future de Martin essaimee dans la grande ville, mais
soucieuse de garder pour la posterite Ie souvenir du village et de leurs aneetres
laborieux dormant dans Ie paisible cimetiere de St-Bernard de Fournier.
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Alfred (ne Ie 25 decembre 1893) est decede Ie 14 septembre 1986 et Anna
(nee Ie 22 oclobre 1900), Ie 12 fevrier 1987. IIs sont inhumes a Notre-Dame de
Lourdes, aOttawa.

En mars 1990, J. E. Benoit MarLin, dernier-ne d'Alfred el d'Anna, accedait a
la presidence de la Federation des caisses populaires de l'Ontario. C'est avec
grande fierte qu'il se dit natif de Fournier et se veut digne de ses racines et de ses
valeurs lraditionnelles.

Suzanne Labelle-Martin

{e rangee: (ass is it I'avant) Olivier Martin, frere de Ludger, des enfants de la Camille (Viclor Martin,
deuxieme agauche). Ze rangee: Vilaline Desforges-Marlin, Dieudonnee (Dan) Bourdon (Elise

Bourdon), Octave Martin, frere de Ludger, Ludger Martin, Marie-Louise Menard-Marlin, Adeline
Uger-Martin, Delima Martin-Bourdon, Eva Marlin-Leduc, Josephine Martin-Leduc. 3e rangee:
Philias Denis, Clara Martin, Osias Leduc, Georges Bourdon, Joseph Bourdon, Dorilda Marlin,

Olivier Marlin, Joseph Brabant, Malvina Martin-Brabanl,
Honore Brabant, Mathilde Marlin-Brabant, Alfred Marlin

La Famille Olivier Martin

Olivier, GIs d'Olivier Martin et d'E,lisabeth St-Amand, est ne ales Cedres, en
1854. Le 8 fevrier 1875, il epouse Oz6line Charbonneau, filie de Joseph Charbon­
neau et d'EJisabeth Benson de Fournier.

lis ont cinq enfants:
Olivier (Lea Levac)
Ludger (Yvonne Raeine)
Louise (Auguste Lalonde)
Samuel (Victoria Lalonde, en premieres noces)
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Olivier· 1932

(Emma Lalonde, en secondes noces)
Ida (Georges Levac).
Olivier, un des pionniers de la paroisse,

defriche Ie lot ou demeureront trois
generations de cultivateurs Martin: Olivier,
Olivier fLls et Ernest.

Ozeline decede alors que les enfants sont
. encore jeunes. Quelques annees plus tard,
~~ Olivier se marie en secondes nOces a Victorine

Desforges qui lui donnera trois enfants:
Adrien, Clara, Frederic.

Au mariage d'Olivier fils, en 1907, Olivier
, et Victorine demenagent a Plaisance, sur une
autre ferme qu'ils exploiteront avec leur flis
Adrien. La ferme comprend une belle grande
sucrerie, source de revenu importante a la

~ ferme.
Olivier finit ses jours aMoose Creek, chez

son fils Samuel. II est decede en 1937 et inhume
aFournier.

La Famille Olivier et Lea (nee Levac) Martin

Olivier, fils d'Olivier Martin ct d'Ozeline Charbonneau, et Lea, [L11e d'­
Eucher Levac et de Justine Seguin, se marient it Fournier Ie 3 janvier 1907.

Des leur mariage, Olivier et Lea s'etablissent sur la ferme paternelle, dans Ja
ge concession. Ils donnent Wf
naissance a dix enfants,
dont trois morts en bas age:

Ida et Laura, jumelles
Ida (Lucien Bon-

neville), decede -- Rachel,
s.s.c.j., Normand, Maurice

Laura (Leon Gratton),
decede -- Huguette

Flore (Elie Lalande) -­
Therese, Bernise, Jean-Paul

Ernest (Jeanne Bour­
don) -- Andre, Lorio, Jean-
Guy, Therese, Gilles,
Gerald, Yvon lrerangee: Lucille, Laura, Ida. 2" rangee: Ernest, Flore,

S. Rachel Bonneville, Emma, Germaine -1984
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Germaine (Armand Denis), decede, (Germain Guibord, en secondes noces)
-- Martial, Gaetan, Donald, Rita, Vincent et trois enfants decedes en bas age

Emma (Ernest Seguin) -- R6jean, Neil, Reynald, Lise, Benoit, Monique, Jac­
ques

Lucille (Lionel Levac) -- Therese, Michel, Lucie, Pierre.
Lea decede Ie 30ctobrc 1921, a I'age de 35 ans et 11 fiois. Lucille, Ie bebe,

n'a que 11 mois. Olivier eleve sa famille avec I'aide des plus vieilles et de tante
Alexina.

Olivier et Alexina se marient Ie 24 juillet 1934.
En 1959, ils laissent la ferme et demenagenl au village de Fournier (oil

demeure presentement Germaine Denis).
AJexina est decedee Ie 4 fevrier 1959, a l'age de 84 ans, et Olivier, Ie 13 avril

1962, al'age de 85 ans. lis sont inhumes aFournier.

La Famille Ernest et Jeanne (nee Bourdon) Martin

Ernest est Ie quatrieme enfant d'Olivier Martin et de Lea Levac. En 1938, il
cpouse Jeanne Bourdon, fille de Joseph Bourdon et d'Emilia Pilon de 51-Isidore.

De leur union naissent sept enfan[s: Andre, Lorio, Jean-Guy, Therese, Gil­
les, Gerald et Yvon.

lre rangee: Therese, Ernest, Jeanne, Yvon. 2c rangee: Jean-Guy,
Andre, Lorio, Gilles, Gerald
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Des leur mariage, Ernest et Jeanne s'installent sur la ferme paternelJe dans
la 8e concession. En 1973, i1s vendent la ferme mais demeurent dans leur maison
jusqu'en 1982. lis resident presentement aSt-Isidore.

La Famille Joseph Martin

Joseph, ne a Fournier Ie 13 octobre 1880, est Ie fils de Ludger Martin et de
Marie-Louise Menard. Le
26 mars 1903, il epouse
Regina Groulx, tilJe de
Jean-Baptiste Groulx et de
Rose-Anna Lalonde.

lis donnent naissance
a trois enfants:

Irma (William
Lalonde), decedes

Regis (Winnie HoI·
mes), decedes

Onesime, dlibataire,
decede.

Apres leur mariage,
Joseph et Regina seront
cultivateurs a Fournier, an­
ciennement chez Roger
Lalonde.

Regina est decedee en
fevrier 1908 et inhumee a
Fournier.

Joseph epouse en
secondes noces Elise
Lalonde de Moose-Creek.

Joseph et Elise ont
cinq enfanls: Joseph (lnna) el Regina (Regis) - 1906

Alcide (Lucia Mar-
lin), decede

Laurette (Leo St-Denis)
Lucille (Clarence Laperle), decedes
Aline (Robert Bedard), decede
Rodolphe (Rollande Cayer), decedee.
Apres leur mariagc, Joseph et Elise demenagent a Moose Creek OU Joseph

travaillera ala voie ferree.
Joseph est d6cede a Moose Creek Ie 2 mai 1925 et Elise, a Cornwall, Ie 23

janvier 1955. lis sont inhumes aMoose Creek.
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La Famille Laurent et Aurore Martin

Un seul des fils d'Alfred et d'Anna
Martin, Laurent, tout d'abord cultivateur
et ensuite coiffeur pour hommes, demeure
aFournier oil sa "shop" devient vite Ie ren­
dez-vous du village. II se marie a Aurore
Chenier, aussi descendante de famille
pionniere.

Trois enfants nallront de cette union:
Bernard-BenOit, Ottawa
Michel-Florent, Brockville. Benoit et

Florent sont tous deux proprietaires de
salons d'esthetique; Benoit, a Ottawa, et
Florent, aBrockville.

Michelle. Michelle est technologue
en radiographie aOttawa.

Laurent est decede Ie 15 avril 1980, a
I'age de 61 ans, et Aurore, Ie 13 septembre
1989, a l'age de 66 ans. lis sont inhumes a
Fournier.

Aurore et Laurent - 1960

La Famille Rolland et Alice (nee Corriveau) Martin

Rolland, fils d'Albert
Martin et de Marie-Anne
Beriault, est ne a Fournier
Ie 22 avril 1942. (Marie­
Anne meurt alors que Rol­
land n'a que 4 ans. II est
eleve par ses grands-parents I;

maternels, Arthur et Donal- ·lt~

da Beriault.) Le 8 juillet
1961, il cpouse Alice Cor­
riveau de Moose Creek.

Rolland et Allice don- f '
• >. \1

nent nalssance d: ", .

Gaetane (Michel fi
Sanfa~on). Michel et,
Gaetane se sont maries a Ji4 ,

Fournier Ie 20 mai 1989. Ils E .
Lucie, Odeue, Alice, Rolland, Gai:lane
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Richard Sr. (Dick)
Kim, Gineltc, Richard Jr.

resident aMascouche avec leur fille, Catherine.
Lucie (Pierre Chretien). Pierre et Lucie se sont epouses a Mascouche Ie 22

octobre 1988. Ils demeurent presentement aFournier avec leurs fils, Marc-Andre
et Danny.

Odette (Alain Chretien). Alain et Odette se sont maries aFournier Ie 9 juil­
let 1983. Ils ont deux enfants: Melissa et Mathieu. Us resident aFournier.

Rolland et Alice demeurent aFournier depuis leur mariage.
Rolland a travaille a la fromagerie de St-Isidore pendant 14 ans, un metier

qu'il aimait beaucoup. II est presentement employe chez J. R. Menard ltee depuis
15 ans. Alice a passe ses 13 premieres annees de mariage au foyer, a elever ses
trois filles. EUe accepte ensuite un emploi aune residence pour personnes agees,
Ie Pinecrest, a Plantagenet (de 1974 a 1983). Depuis 1984, Alice travaille a la
Croix-Rouge, Comme auxiliaire familiale aux personnes agees.

The Family of Richard Sr. and Kim McConnell

The McConnell family came to Rieeville in September 1974, when Richard
Jr. was about a year old. While their house was being built east of the village and
south of the fairgrounds, they met many new people. Vi Ryan, their neighbour, of­

fered and helped with housing over the
winter. Dick (Richard Sr.) and Kim
moved into their home in May 1975.

Before coming to Riceville,
Richard and Kim lived in Ottawa, in
one of the first condominium apart­
ment buildings, the Horizon House.
They had immigrated to Canada from
Scotland in 1969. Dick was an aircraft
mechanic and Kim was a high school
teacher in Malaysia, Scotland and in
Canada before going into temporary
retirement to have a family.

The McConnells chose to live in
Riceville because they wanted to Icave
the city for the healthy country air
where their children could grow
without the pollution and other
hazards of city life.

Dick moved from Personal
Planes to Kenting Earth Science, an
aerial survey company which sent him
all over Canada and Africa. He later
worked for the Department of
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Transport, based at Uplands Airport.
Kim was happy to be at home with her children, Richard Jr. and then

Ginette, born after they had made the move to Riceville. In 1983, with both
children in school, she appned to Algonquin College for a secretarial accounting
course. One year later, after obtaining her certificate in word processing and ac­
counting, she found employment with the buying office of Giant Tiger stores.
After a three-year term, Kim left this employment for the Canadian Organziation
for Development through Education, a non-profit organization that believes in
education as the most effective way to help third-world countries. A year-and-a­
half later, she moved to Q-Tech Hybrid Systems, a computer programming com­
pany, to a job that she finds interesting because of her fascination with computers.

Richard and Ginette began their schooling at Plantagenet Pubnc School.
Ginette is currently attending Plantagenet High School, while Richard is pursuing
his postsecondary education at the University of Ottawa.

The McCulloch - McCullough Families

The McCulloughs immigrated to America along with the exodus of other
Irish families, leaving their homeland because of the potato famine in
Ireland.They first settled in Philadelphia and from lhere they spread west across
the plains, while others carne to Canada as Uniled Empire LoyaJists.They crossed
near Kingston and finally settled in Fournier.

The Family of John McCulloch and Elizabeth Lively

"Red John" was the son of Felix McCulloch and Mary Russentrom and
Elizabeth, the daughter of William Lively and Mary Cunningham. They were mar­
ried in Fournier on June 10, 1875.

They lived on the home farm, Lot 2, Conc. 14, Alfred Townsrnp. They also
bought a second farm in Fournier, which was called the hop farm, since it was
well-sui led for this crop.

John and Elizabeth had seven children:
John Henry, Alice, Jack, Janie, Charles, Elizabeth and Lawrence.
John Henry (1877-1924) married Mary El.1en Lavigne (1884-1947).
Alice married John McCusker. She taught school for 42 years in the area, in­

cluding the little rcd schoolhouse on the boundary, and at Plantagenet High
School. She helped her dad build the large brick house in Fournier in 1911. Two
years later, her father, John, died and she moved from Plantagenel to Fournier,
bringing her bees with her.

Jack moved to Poaking Falls, New York State, and married a Polish girl. He
was superintendent for the Power Company.
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Janie married H. Alfred Andrews. Their children were aU born in the house
below the church, near the bridge. They were part owners of the general store in
town with their brother-in-law, Dosithe Brunet, before moving to Cornwall.

Charles married Sadie McCrank from the English Selliement (Centre Field).
He went west to farm and to invest in real estate. He lost his fortune during the
dust bowl of 1929-1935. Charles was killed by lightning while in a boat.

Elizabeth married James LeU and lived north of Alfred, on what is now the
Leclair farm. They were the parents of Stella Harkin.

Lawrence married Mary MacDonald from Chute-a-Blondeau. He took over
the home farm and after the barns burned down in 1919, he sold it to his brother,
Henry. Lawrence then moved his family to Apple Hill.

First row: John, Alice, Lawrence, Elizabeth, Charles. Second row: Elizabeth, Jack,
John Henry, Janie - 1896 (piclure taken al the home raml, now owned by Leonard Ryan)

The Family of John Henry McCulloch and Mary Ellen Lavigne

John Henry was the son of John McCuUoch and Elizabeth Lively and Mary
Ellen, the daughter of Joseph Lavigne and Elizabeth Landrigan.

John Henry and Mary Ellen were married in Fournier on May 8, 1906. They
had five children: Leonard, Lewis, Alice, Harold and Mary Beatrice.
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Leonard married Ceeile St-Amour.
Lewis died at the age of eight months.
Alice becmne a nun. She joined the Order of the Sisters of St. Joseph.
Harold married Lucille Lalonde and later married Berthe Desforges (nee

Secours).
Beatrice completed

elementary school in Four­
nier and high school in
Plantagenet. In 1942, she
graduated as a registered
nurse from Hotel Dieu
Hospital in Cornwall. In
1943, she married James
Stewart. They lived on the I

Stewart family farm along the
Nation River, on the 10th
concession. Beatrice worked
at the Ottawa General
Hospital for approximately
34 years.

Beatrice and James had
seven children: Robert,
Leonard, Micheal, Murray,
Jimmy, Anne and Ada Marie. Alice, John Henry, Leonard, Beatrice,

Ellen, Harold - 1923

The Family of Harold and Berthe (nee Secours) McCulloch

Harold (September 22, 1910) lived with his parents, brother and sisters, in
the large white house in town until 1919, when his father, Henry, bought the other
farm from his brother, Lawrence, (where Leonard Ryan currently resides). In
1924, Henry died and Harold and Leonard operated the farm with their mother
until 1932, when they sold it to Carl Ryan and moved back to the hop farm in
town.

Harold married Lucille Lalonde in 1940 and in 1942 bought the brick house
next door which belonged to his aunt, Alice McCusker. He also bought the Mc­
Gillivray farm and worked it on the halves until he sold it to Ovila Desforges in
1955. In 1956, he bought Melbourne Cult's Garage and closed the business in
1960. It was used for storage until he sold it in 1967, at which time the building was
torn down to make way for the new post office. In 1958, Harold bought the Henri
Lalonde garage and sold it to Hector Lalonde in 1964.

Harold was the postmaster for 29 years. The post office was in his house
from 1946-1967. He retired in 1975. Harold was a veteran trapper and a member
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of Ontario Trappers Association. He was also a school bus driver, a bee keeper,
and a hop grower.

Harold and Lucille (1918-1972), daughter of Raphael Lalonde and Clerida
Chenier, had four children: Jack, Diane, Christine, Maureen.

Jack married Jean Gates. They have three children: Dennis, Robert and
Paul. They live in Oshawa.

Diane married Roy Wolfe. They have four children: Sylvia. Tina, Michael
and Michelle. They live in Dartmouth, Nova Scotia.

Christine is
single. She lives in Ot- ~
tawa. ~

Maureen mar­
ried Steven Ellison.
They live in New Jer­
sey.

In 1975. Harold
married Berthe Des- I

forges (nee Secours),
daughter of Dosithe
Secours and Isa'ide
Wathier.

Berthe had six
children from her
prevIous marriage:
Rolland (Audetle
Poirier), Madeleine
(Jean-Claude Char­
bonneau), Clairette
(Henri Arcand),
Diane (Gerald Bis­
sonnette), Lise (Marc
Cadieux) and Michel
(Francine Bernard).

Harry has en­
joyed his retirement,
caring for his home, gardening and trapping. In 1988. Harry and Berthe sold their
house in Fournier to his niece, Joanne, and moved inlo a modern bungalow in
Hawkesbury.

The Family of Leonard McCulloch and Cecile St-Amour

Leonard McCulloch (March 12, 1907-1959) was married to Cecile St-Amour,
daughter of Ernest St-Amour and Victoria Lariviere, on August 16. 1943.

608



Leonard and cecile -1943

Leonard and Cecile had twelve
children: Henry, Hubert, Vincent,
Ronald, Jean, Sandra, Charles, Brian,
Norman, Cathy, Joanne and Lorraine.

Henry (Jacqueline Wathier), Four­
nier -- Sean and Tara

Hubert, Kincardine
Vincent (Johanne Lefebvre). Vin­

cent and Johanne live on the James'
homestead, near Sandown.

Ronald (Angeline Wathier),
Nanaimo (B.e.) -- Jason, Ian and Math­
ew.

Jean (Jerry Shannon), Richmond
(B.e.)

Sandra (Joel Watt), Kingston
Charles, Oltawa
Brian (Louise Ouimet), Greeley -­

Lee Robert
Norman (Guylaine Grenier), Ot-

tawa
Cathy (Franc;ois Lalonde), Bourget
Joanne (Paul Donovan), Brockville
Lorraine, Fournier.
Leonard was a third-generation

hop grower and a dairy farmer in Four­
nier. He had an illustration station for

fj
First row: ,-rubert, Sandra, cecile, Joanne, Norman. Second row: Charles,

Lorraine, Ronald, Cathy, Brian, Vincent, .lean, Hen!)' -1990
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Agnes and Philip

the Ottawa-based Experimental Farm. He cultivated potatoes and strawberries
under an irrigation system. Cecile taught school in Curran and in Fournier from
1937 until 1943.

Cecile still resides in Fournier.

The Family of Philip McCullough and Agnes Picard

Philip (1868-1951), son of John and Catherine McCullough, married Agnes
Picard (1869-1943),
daughter of Henry Picard
and Victoria Delima
Lariviere, on November 8,
1887. They had svneen
children:

Catherine (W.J. Eckel)
(1888-1957); Mary Jane
(Victoria) (1889-1966); An­
nie Vivian (Neil Willette)
(1891-1969); John Henry
(Agnes McLaughlin) (Hen­
riette Denis) (Adele Cou­
sineau) (1892-1966); Willie
(Ida Baron) (1894-1977);
Florence (Flossie) (Wilfrid
Baron) (Franr;;ois-Xavier Pi­
lon) (1896-1968); Alfred (1898-1972); James Dennis (1899-1926); Margaret Fran­
cis (Charles Deschamps) (1901-1980); Alice Helena (Lena) (William Benson)
(1903-1945); Isabel Agnes (Antonio Pelazzi) (1904); Gertie (Earl Tough) (James
Kennedy) (1906); Mary Alberta (Berta) (Philip Rubin) (1906-1982); Hilda Ellen
(David Denis) (1909-1989); Eva Veronica (1912-1987); Mary Evangeline (Clifford
Vaughan) (1915-1983). (Only Gertrude and Isabel are still living.)

Alfred took over the family farm and lived there until his death on March 2,
1972. John Elvin, born on March 13, 1934, is the current owner of the family farm,
a cow-calf operation.

The Family of John Henry McCullough

John Henry (1892-1966), son of Philip and Agnes Picard, was first married Lo
Agnes MacLaughlin. She died in 1918. She was the mother ofJessie and Mammie,
both deceased.

John had no children with his second wife, Henrielte Denis, daughter of
Charles Denis and Azilda Lalonde.

John and his third wife, Adele Cousineau, had nine children:
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Eva, John, Rita, Clarence, Guy, Bernard, Donald, Helen, Shirley.
Eva (CWAF) (Archie MacEachern), Windsor
John, killed in 1941, while walking to Greenfield
Rita (Stan Klopman), Windsor
Clarence (RCASC), Cornwall
Guy (RCASC), died in 1971. He served for two years in Korea.
Bernard (RCAF), killed in 1966, while on duty in Labrador
Donald (RCASC), Brockville.
Helen (Glen Toss), Brockville.
Shirley (Gordon Laporte), lives in Windsor.

The Family of Willie McCullough and Ida Baron

1,

Claude Gravel, Reeve of Soulh Plantagenet, George

Willie (1894-1977), son of Philip and Agnes McCullough, married Ida
(Juliette) Baron (1900-1942), daughter of Claude Baron and Agnes Malette, on
January 31, 1921.

They had seven children:
George, single. George lived most of his life in Fournier, residing with his

parents and brothers on the family farm. He worked for local farmers. He resided
in Lancastcr for a few years. He was an apprentice plumber.

On October 15, 1962, at the age of 38, George, then a member of the Lan­
caster Volunteer Fire Department, was called to a fire. He made two trips into the
burning frame house and rescued one-year-old twins, Cheryl and Charlene Tail­
lon, and their three-year-old sister, Sharon, while assisting the father with a fourth
daughter. For his act of courage George was one of four Canadians honored by
the Carnegie Hero Fund Commission. He received a bronze medal and a reward

for his brave act. George now
resides at the Maxville Manor.

Kathleen (Gerard
Guerin), Hawkesbury

James, a mechanic, has
his own home just north of
Fournier.

Lawrence, single, lived in
Montreal.

Lloyd, single, resides in
Fournier. Lloyd bought the
former home of Robert Gates.
He worked several years for
Dibblee Construetion. He stiH
resides in Fournier, doing
some carpentry work.
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Herman (1940-1972) lived in Trois-Rivieres and worked for the Canadian In­
ternational Paper Company.

Philip worked for Dominion Bridge Company. He lives near Sherbrooke.

The Family ofAlexander McGillivray and Mary Ann Ryan

Alexander and Mary Ann farmed on the south bank of the Nation River, Lot
5, southeast quarter, Cone. 12, South Plantagenet (Marcel Desforges'), at the river
bank. (There was a foreed road along each river bank.)

Mary Ann's life was short. She died at 38 years of age, during the birth of her
son, William (1874), who was raised by his Aunt Kitty.

Alexander and Mary Ann's children were:
Malcolm, George, Mary Ann, Isabella and William (Willie). George (Alice

Bradley) was a machinery dealer in Maxville. Isabella married Herb Muir. Wil­
liam (Willie) married Maud Muir (both from the John Muir - Catherine Bradley
family).

The Family of William McGillivray and Maud Muir

William was the son of Alexander McGillivray and Mary Ann Ryan. He mar­
ried Maud Muir, daughter of John Muir and Catherine Bradley.

Willie and Maud farmed on the western outskirts of the village of Fournier
(Marcel Desforges' farm).

Their children were:
Alma (1901-1953), Marion (1902-1960), Murray (1908-1989).
Murray and Alma were schoolteachers. Murray taught at Plantagenet High

School during the 1930's. Alma taught in Fournier. She played a leading role in
the organization of Sunshine Women's Institute of Fournier.

Maud died in 1933 and Willie, in 1945.

The Family of William McGillivray and Catherine Ryan

William and Catherine (Kitty) (1833-1930) farmed on the north bank of the
Nation River, Lot 5, northeast quarter, Cone. 12, South Plantagenet (now owned
by Robert Vallee).

William and Catherine had two sons:
Alex (1873) and William (1877).
Alex, very small in stature, was famous for his teasing and tricks. The whole

community knew Alex and Catherine as Aunt Kitty and Little Alex.
William and Catherine have no descendants today. William died as a small

child and Alex died in 1934. Catherine died in 1930, at the age of 97 years.
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James A. and Elizabeth

The McKinley Clan

The MacKinlay (McKinley) clan and name is said to have originated in Len­
nox, an area just north of Glasgow, in Scotland. A famous Scottish MacKinlay
would be Charles MacKinlay of Leith, Scotland, distiller of MacKinlay's Whiskey.

Some of the MacKinlays went to Ireland in the 17th century to work on the
infamous plantations, a system of land distribution imposed by the British. The
government of the time took away land from the Irish and granted it to their
friends. (In Ireland the name was spelled McKinley.) They settled in Ulster in an
area just north of Belfast in County Antrim near the towns of Cushundun and
Cushundal, an area known as the Glens of Antrim.

Ballymoney, about 25 km west of Cushundun, is the birthplace of David Mc­
Kinley born about 1730. He was the father of William McKinley, the 25th presi­
dent of the United States.

In researching the family tree in the government archives, there are records
that show that James McKinley, the great-great-great-grandfather of Victor Mc­
Kinley of Fournier, was born near Cushundun, in County Antrim, Ulster Province,
about 1796. Sometime around 1820, there was a great emigration of the Ulster
Irish families who were driven from their land by high rents, high taxes and poor
crops. Many settled in the Ottawa Valley. Among these were James McKinley and
his wife, Mary McCauley. Ontario Land Record Archives of 25 April 1821 show
him as having been granted 1()() acres, the north half of Lot 13, Cone. 6,
Plantagenet Township.

The Assessment Roll of Plantagenet for the year 1830 shows Jas. McKinley
living on the north half of Lot 13, Cone. 6, and having 88 acres of land uncul­
tivated, 12 acres cul­
tivated, 1 horse, 2 oxen,
and 2 milk cows. The
record of 1842 shows
14 acres cultivated, 2
horses, 2 oxen and 2
cows. His taxes that
year amounted to 5
shillings and 10 pence.
This included 5 pence
for Amount of Assess­
ment for Provincial
Lunatic Asylum. (A
shiIling was once worth
about 25 cents.)

By the time the census of Canada was taken in 1871, there were several
families of McKinleys, including the family of James' son, John G. McKinley
(1832-1916) and Catherine Hamilton (1840-1942), daughter of Alex Hamilton
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(1820-1905) and Catherine Murray. Over the years, this branch of McKinleys mar­
ried members of other pioneer families in the district, including the Ryans, Mc­
Allisters, Vallees, Marions, Lalondes, Keoughs, Browns, Collins and many others.

Victor McKinley, married to Lorraine Poupart, formerly of Rockland, lives
on the family farm that once belonged to his father, Arthur, and mother, Sophie
Vallee. The farm formerly belonged to Arthur's father, James A. McKinley. Lo­
cated at the corner of the 12th concession, near the bridge over the Nation River,
this farm is where James and Elisabeth (Ryan) raised their family: Albert J. (1913­
1950); Arthur (1912-1975); Gertrude (McAllister), Plantagenet; and Ruby, Ot­
tawa.

Albert (Abbey) worked on his
parents' farm until his sudden death
in August 1950, at the age of 31 years.

Ruby worked as a receptionist at
"Ie Petit Seminaire" in Ottawa for 12
years, then as housekeeper for Father
Bernier in Sarsfield, and later at
Christ the King presbytery in Ottawa
for a few years. She then was
housekeeper for Father David
Corkery (now Monsignor Corkery) in
Fallowfield, until 1974. Ruby lives in
Ottawa.

Abbey, Catherine Hamillon, James A.

Ruby
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The Family of Arthur McKinley and Sophie Vallee

Arthur, son of James McKinley and Elizabeth Ryan, married Sophie Vallee,
daughter of Thomas Vallee and Evelina Montcalm of Fournier, on September 10,
1934.

They raised six boys and two
girls:

Lawrence (Margaret Wendell)
-- four children
Hubert Estelle Drouin)
-- three children
Marjorie (William Czuboka)
-- four children
Victor (Lorraine Poupart)
-- two children
Elaine (Pierre Faucher)
-- five children
Andrew (Judith Lavigne)
-- four children
Henry (Susan Cooper)
-- two children
Michael (Diane Goulet)
-- two children.
Arthur and Sophie lived with

his family for one year, then they
bought Cyril Denis' farm, along the
South Nation River, and farmed
there for 13 years. After selling this
farm they bought Allan Muldoon's
farm, also situated alongside the Anhur and Sophie

Nation River, and worked [his land
until their son, Victor, got married
in 1965. Arthur, Sophie and their
younger children then moved back
to the McKinley home farm which
ArtlJUr had previously purchased.
In 1967, Arthur bought Philippe
Lalonde's farm, also situated on the
banks of the South Nation River.

Arthur and Sophie were avid
Bridge players. Sophie was also a
wonderful seamstress, sewing
clothes for herself, her family and
her neighbours. She belonged to The McKinley home
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the Fournier senior citizens club and was a member of "Ie Cercle des Fermieres"
of Fournier.

After a short illness, Arthur died
in August 1975, leaving Sophie in the
new house they had built six years ear­
tier.

In 1986, after living alone for 11
years, Sophie moved to Villa St. Paul in
Plantagenet. This gave her the oppor­
tunity to socialize and make new ac­
quaintances. Sophie, 84 years old, still
enjoys very good health.

t-'
First row: Elaine, Sophie, Marjorie. Second row: Hubert, Henry,

Lawrence, Andrew, Victor, Michael

The Family of Victor McKinley and Lorraine Poupart

Victor, son of Arthur McKinley and Sophie Vallee, worked the family farm
with his father until he married Lorraine Poupart, daughter of Elie Poupart and
Cecile Bougie of Rockland, in October 1965.

Victor and Lorraine have two children: David (1968) and Jennifer (1969).
David graduated from Plantagenet High School and is now working in Ot­

tawa as a service advisor.
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Jennifer has a diploma as a dental assistant from Algonquin College and is
now studying sociology at Bishop's University in Lennoxville, Quebec. In 1988, she
was chosen Prescott County's Dairy Princess.

In 1968, Victor and Lorraine bought the farm and continued working with his
father. In 1976, they bought Amos McKinley's farm (Arthur's uncle) and in 1986,
his mother's farm. In 1989, they sold their dairy farm to Cornelius Bauer and
moved to the McKinley home farm where Victor grows cash crops.

Victor enjoys hunting, golfing and fishing; Lorraine's favourite hobbies are
sewing and crafts. Lorraine belongs to "Ie Cercle des Fermieres" of Fournier.
They enjoy travelling.

David. Lorraine. Jennifer, Victor

The Family of Peter McLaurin and Maria Rice

Peter McLaurin was born in Scotland in 1811. He came to Canada, to the
Breadalbane area of Glengarry County, settling there around 1837.

Peter moved to Kerry around 1845. He built a sawmill and a grist mill on the
Caledonia side of the Scotch River, near the new bridge, near the school on the
tenth. This area was known as Scotch River Mills, today Sl. Isidore. Prior to the
building of these mills, Plantagenet was the closest point offering these facilities.
At that time, residents were known to carry their grists on their backs to
Plantagenet or Williamstown in Glengarry, through swamps and woods, to have it
ground, and often would not begin the return trip until late into the night.

Around 1850, Peter realized he had erred in establishing his mills at Kerry.
The current in the river was not swift enough; therefore, he moved to Riceville.
This move would bring prosperity to the village and the area for the next futy
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years. On his arrival, he immediately began -damming the Scotch River and con­
structing a sawmill and a grist mill. He then opened the fIrst store. He operated
shingle, carding and fulling mills.

Peter McLaurin was a Justice of the Peace and a provincial land surveyor.
He owned 1,200 acres of land, including lots 5, 7 and 9, Cone. 13. He was the first
postmaster, occupying the position from Oct. 6, 1851, to July 31, 1890. He served
the community as reeve of the township for many years.

Peter married Maria Rice, daughter of Dr. Abner Rice. (Dr. Rice had come
as a United Empire Loyalist from the State of Vermont, somewhere near St.
Johnsbury, about the year 1776, to settle at St. Andrews, Quebec, where he had
developed an extensive medical practice. This is where Riceville gets its name.)
Peter and Maria had two daughters and a son: Maria (Percival Dunning), -- Peter
McLaurin Dunning; Susan (Dr. James Ferguson), Cumberland; John.

John graduated from McGill College and was admitted to the Bar of
Quebec, March 16, 1868. He later went to the U.S., only to return to Canada in
April 1874. He died Nov. 6, 1874, at the age of 28.

Maria died Sept. 1862, at the age of 49 years, and Peter, at the age of 86
years. They are buried in thc Riceville Baptist Cemetery.

The Family of Alexander McLean and Amelia Metcalfe

Alexander McLean was born in Inverness County, Ross-shire, Scotland, and
crossed the Atlantic in 1851, coming to settle in the Riceville area.

Prior to 1848, North and South Plantagenet existed as a single municipality at
the western extreme of Prescott County. In 1850, a municipal government was in­
augurated, which gave us counly councils, townships, lown and village councils to
which North Plantagenet elected Patrick Ryan and South Plantagenet elected
Peter McLaurin as their respective reeves.

In 1854, Alexander became the township clerk, a position which he held for
38 years. (At that time, only 84 names appeared on the assessment roll of South
Plantagenet. The only road was the Ridge Road from Vankleek Hill through
Riceville to High Falls, now Casselman, in Cambridge. The soil varied from sandy
loam to clay and gravel in various localities. Where the Nation River flows through
South Plantagenet, there was good agricultural land, espccially where it undulates
to give excellent drainage. The Scotch River traversing from the south had fair
water power and good agricultural land along its banks. Riceville was the
municipal seat of government. A thriving community, Riceville had a grist mill,
sawmill, shingle factory, carding mill, fulling mill and a sash and door mill.

Alexander, known as Alex, was also a mill owner. In 1867, when the South
Plantagenet Agricultural Society was formed, he served as secretary.

Alexander married Amelia Metcalfe (1831), the second youngest of Henry
and Mary (Copely) Metcalfe of Riceville. Their marriage was recorded in the
Christian Guardian Notices of 1851-1860 as follows: McLean, Alexander to
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Amelia Metcalfe, both of Riceville by Rev. D, N. Robinson, Nov. 27th, 1856 (issue
of Dec. 24, 1856). (It is likely that Alexander was a brother to Elizabeth (Eliza)
McLean who married Amelia's brother, David Metcalfe.) Alex and Amelia had
one son, W. McLean, that we know of.

Alexander died at his son's home one month before his 79th birthday. The
date of Amelia's death is unknown; it is not known where they are buried.

Amelia Alexander

The Family of Barrie McPhee and Mavis Clemens

The McPhee ancestors came from Glenelg in Argyleshire, Scotland, and set­
tled in the Kirk Hill area around 1790.

Randy, Mavis, Barrie, Robert
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Barrie is the son of Donald and Margery (Fraser) McPhee of West Hawkes­
bury. He purchased west half of Lot 22, Caledonia, land James Gates owned back
in 1832.

In 1969, Barrie married Mavis, daughter of Borden Clemens and Georgia
Ryan. They have worked this farm since then. At one time hops were grown here.
The McPhees replaced the buildings. A new house, along with a shed and later, a
barn were built, all by Rolland Dubeau of Fournier.

Barrie and Mavis have two sons: Robert (1970) and Randy (1973). Robert at­
tends Carleton University while Randy attends Vankleek Hill Collegiate Institute.

La Famille Lucien et Berthe (nee Laframboise) Meloche

Zenophile Meloche est ne aOrmstown, tout pres des frontieres americaines,
en 1872. Al'age de 15 ans, il vient s'etablir sur un lot pour colons, a5t-Albert. Ce
lot de 200 acres est completement boise. II doit donc travailler fort afin de Ie
rendre cultivable. A Page de 35 ans, il epouse Rosanna Montpetit (agee de 25
ans), fille d'Onesime Montpetit et de Felicite Poirier de 5t-Isidore. lis ont deux
fils; Theodore (1910) d'Ottawa, et Lucien, (Ie 23 octobre 1912).

i.e 18 aout 1934, Lucien epouse Berthe Laframboise. lis s'etablissent aCas­
selman ou ils demeurent pendant six ans. En 1941, ils s'installent dans la 11e con­
cession de Fournier.

Lucien et Berthe donnent naissance a huit enfants, tous vivants: Liliane,
Richard, Paul, Madeleine, Marcel, Nicole, Ghislaine et Andre. La famille compte
en plus 24 petits-enfants.

Lucien est dedde Ie 28 fevrier 1980, aOrleans, a I'age de 68 ans, et Berthe,
Ie 30 decembre 1986, al'age de 79 ans. IIs reposent aCasselman.

The Family of Henry Metcalfe and Mary Copely

Henry Metcalfe was born at Halton Gill, Yorkshire, England (February 22,
1779), the son of Christopher Metcalfe and Margaret Chapman. Mary Copely was
born in Royston (1789) and brought to the marriage her daughter, Ann (March
12,1815). Henry married Mary in Yorkshire England on August 5, 1816. Prescott
County was still a massive pinery when Henry and Mary, with three children, came
into the wilds of Upper Canada in 1823, to join their friend, Robert Cutl. Robert
had acted as a witness to their marriage.

Their voyage aCrOSs the Atlantic to Canada had been slow, and between
Quebec City and Montreal, almost fatal. It was on this stretch of the St. Lawrence
River that there was a great fire aboard ship which fareed all to leave the vessel.
Mary's last sight of the accident was that of her husband using one arm to cling to
the wreck and holding their son with the other. They were thankful afterwards to
be reunited safely ashore. As the Carillon Canal was not open for traffic until 1834
(when small vessels could go through to Kingston), all goods and supplies at the
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time of Henry and Mary's arrival were brought from Lachine by boat to Carillon
and then carted by teams of horses and oxen to Grenville and area. The Metcalfe
family then continued their journey via the Ottawa River to L'OrignaI. A govern­
ment official at L'Orignal gave 50 acres of land as a grant to each family. Henry
Metcalfe received the title to his home, Lot 7, Cone. 12. Henry, Mary and the
children travelled by trail through the Nation Valley (7 miles south of Plantagenet)
to start their life in Canada.

Here the struggle for existence began, in the heart of the woods. Two blazed
trails were the only area roads -- one south towards Cornwall and the St.
Lawrence and the other northwest from L'Orignal to Plantagenet.

Henry and Mary made their home here in the Scotch River Settlement,
which would later be known as Riceville. They raised their family of five: Ann,
Henry Jr. and Christopher; two more children were born to Henry and Mary in
Canada: Amelia (Emila) (1831) and David (June 6, 1835).

____of ?/tf7;z fui{h

----....t..J.7U~:~~~~.;::~::~1'or-!&""'-.1 of -;zI;{U Pariili

. 11l0'j!> (gTbj!;~nd

were married in chia. rfJ-4'UA C I? by t!kti?"t ., with Confent of
____________.__thU N'hf: ·Dayof

" -ti"§?tdl. in the Year One thoufand eight hundred and' ~... "

By:A)e ~~~&~<<4?
Thi, M~~ge was folernnized betweenua{~~ <f~

I
I' In""P,,',n~nf{~Lb~ ~;r;&rl&'ouC

No. 74. ~

Marriage certificate of Henry Melcalfe and Mary Copely

The Nation River served as an avenue for travel, and with canoes (hollowed­
out pine logs), the necessary travel for provisions was made to and from
Plantagenet, L'Orignal, etc.

A short time after settling in the woods, the Metcalfes purchased a cow (a
rare possession then). The night the final payment was made by Henry who had
travelled to L'Orignal for supplies, a terrible storm broke, taking the roof from
their shack and lightning killing the cow. Mary and the children sang hymns in
their roofless home.

Oak and pine timber, and maple sugar were the main products of the
plOneers.
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Sugar boiling was then a much longer process than today. The season lasted
about six weeks. The annual flood on the Nation River was unknown in those days.
(Modern drainage brought this about later.)

Henry Sr. died January 11, 1863, age 84 years, and Mary died August 1868,
age 79 years. They are buried in the Riceville Baptist Cemetery along wlth Ann,
their daughter, who had died October 9, 1838, at the age of 22 years.

The Family of Henry Metcalfe Jr. and Emma Frith

Henry Jr. (November 5, 1818), son of Henry Metcalfe Sr. and Mary Copely,
came to Canada with his parents in 1823. Emma Firth (September 21, 1827) was
the daughter of James Frith (a prominent Baptist who had corne from England).
Henry J r. and Emma were married at the Breadalbane Baptist Church on Novem­
ber 2,1844.

Henry and Emma received one half of his father's homestead, Lot 7, Cone.
12, where they farmed and raised their family of two: Samuel Arthur Wellington
and Emma (William McLean).

Henry Jr. died November 25,1884, at Riceville, and Emma died January 18,
1906. They are buried in the Riceville Baptist Church Cemetery.

The Family of Arthur Metcalfe and Eva Eaton

Samuel Arthur Welllngton (1859), son of Henry Metcalfe Jr. and Emma
Frith, married Eva Estella Eaton (1867).

He operated the homestead, until he moved to Ottawa in 1920.
Arthur was a very active man in the Baptist Church. He took a keen interest

in the organization of the Fourth Avenue Congregation and was held in the
highest regard by his fellow members.

Arthur and Eva had one son, Harold Henry.
Arthur died March 28,1832, and Eva, July 12, 1948. They are buried in the

Riceville Baptist Church Cemetery.

The Family of Christopher Metcalfe and Mary Campbell

Christopher (October 20,1820) was born in England. He was the second son
of Henry Sr. and Mary Copely. In 1851, he married Mary Campbell (January 12,
1824), daughter of Neil Campbell (1795-1862) (the first settler at Lochaber Bay,
Quebec) and Catherine MacCallum.

Christopher and Mary had the second half of the home farm (Lot 7, Cone.
12). Christopher farmed, speculated in real estate, kept a store at his dwelling,
served as auditor and treasurer of the township for 23 years and magistrate for ten
years.
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In 1889, he built a general store in the village.
Mary came to Riceville in the 1840's to teach school. The school was the log

house next to the Metcalfe farm, just in front of it. Mary was a staunch Baptist. It
was through her influence with Rev. Rainboth, a minister who preached in the
area, that the Baptist Church was founded.

Mary Chrisloper

Christopher and Mary had eight children:
James Christopher, died November 4,1862, age 9 years 8 months
Neil and David (twins), died October 5, year and age unknown
Archibald Henry (1857-1933) (Margaret Gardner) -- Stanley
Flora Amelia (1860-1888) (Rev. William McGregor). They had one son and

two daughters: John, died in 1885 of diphtheria, at the age of four years); Hazel B.
(1880-1913), died from a congenital heart defect; Flora Marion (Torrie) (1884­
1964). After their mother's death, Rev. McGregor sent the two girls to live with
their grandmother, Mary Campbell Metcalfe. Tonie married William Spry Man­
ley in 1921. They had two sons: William McGregor (1923) and Jack S. (1925).

Maggie, November 13, 1862, died at age 6 months
Margaret A. (Maggie) (1864-1894) married Hector McDonald. They had

two children: Fern and John. Fern married Everett McDonald. They had one son,
John, a chemical engineer. Fern died around 1960. Her brother, John, saw service
in WWI and returned having been wounded, shel1 shocked and gassed. He died
many years prior to Fern.

Eva (1868-1948) trained as a nurse. She was superintendent of the old
Children's Hospital on Rideau Street in Ottawa. Eva married James F. O'Hara,
and later, Alexander Gray McMiUan. Shc had no children. She was buried in the
Riceville Baptist Church Cemetery.

Christopher died at RiceviUe, October 9, 1898, age 78 years; Mary died
February 24, 1906, at her daughter Eva's home at Ste-Anne-de-Bellevue, Quebec.
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The Family ofArchibald Metcalfe and Margaret Gardner

Archibald Henry (April 30, 1862) was the son of Christopher Metcalfe and
Mary Campbell of Riceville. He married Margaret Ogilvie Gardner, daughter of
William Gardner and Isabella Wight of Grey's Creek Farm in Cornwall, on June
24,1886.

Archie and Maggie, as they were called,
took up residence in the apartment over the
general store he and his father had built.

Archie was the assistant postmaster and
clerk for Peter McLaurin for a few years. When
the post office was set up in the store, he became
the postmaster, a position he held from August
1890 until June 1895. He was also auditor for the
school board, a real estate broker and an active
member of the Royal Templar's Lodge, estab­
lished in Riceville in 1892. They moved to Ottawa
on May 3, 1897.

Maggie, a very stylish woman, was a fine
dressmaker and operated her own little business. Archibald (Mchic)

Archie and Maggie had only one son, Stan-
ley Gladstone Gardner Sr. (July 16, 1888). On September 27, 1922, he marrie
Helena Janet, daughter of Malcolm McNaughton of Huntingdon, Quebec. Stanle
Sr. was a kind Christian gentleman and practised law in Ottawa for 54 years, (as a
profession and not as a job), until his death on August 23, 1968.

Stanley and his wife had two children:
Stanley Gardner Jr. (June 15, 1924) and James Stuart (December 1,1929).

Stanley was a teacher/photographer. He married Laura Ann Hammond on June
22, 1963. They have three children: Derek Stanley (1966), Laura Janet (1968)
(Robert Paul Hogan), and Jennifer Ann (1969). James Stuart married Polly St.
Jean on October 11, 1965. James is now retired from the CBC. All live in Ot­
tawa/Nepean.

Archie and Maggie moved to Ottawa in 1897. Archie died December 18,
1933, and Maggie died September 22, 1941. They are buried in the Riceville Bap­
tist Church Cemetery.

The Family of David Metcalfe and Elizabeth McLean

David (June 6, 1835) was the youngest of Henry Metcal£e and Mary Copely
of Riceville. Elizabeth McLean (1833) came from Inverness, Scotland, as a young
girl, with her parents. They first settled in Lochiel Township and two years later
moved to the Riceville area. She saw her father and mother establish themselves
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after much privation in what was then the backwoods, and hew a home and farm
out of the country around the Nation River.

It was on April 3, 1856, that Eliza and David were married. Their silver an­
niversary gave place to a golden one and fmally a diamond one, but the culmina­
tion of them all was their seventieth wedding anniversary held in 1926 when family
and friends gathered for this rare event.

David was a farmer.
cheesemaker and a "Baptist
preacher". Eliza and David were a
highly respected and loved couple.
They lived a life of remarkable activity
under four British Sovereigns. They
lived to see sturdy pioneers go down
the Nation River in hollowed-out logs
for canoes, and airplanes fly over their
farm.

David and Elizabeth had nine
children, seven of whom survived
them:

Margaret Ann (1857-1941) (Wil-
liam T. Franklin) David and Eliza -1926

William Henry (1859-1945)
(Elizabeth Duggan) -- Vivian, Nellie, Rupert, Vernon Kenneth, Rowat David and
Christopher

John Christopher (1861-1868)
Mary (1864-1930) (Dr. W.AJ. Spottiswoode (1860-1908) -- Margaret, Ann,

and twin sons, Bill and Bob
Alexander (1866-1955) (Jane Scott) -- Mabel, Grace Dorothy and Bill

David, Eliza, Mary, Mary's daughter, standing
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Albert Robert (1867-1916), single, died of tuberculosis
Stella (1870-1961) (George ARyan) -- Vernon, Carl, Clifford, Murray, Edna

(Shaver) and Elizabeth (Beth Guay) (see the Ryans)
John (1872-1943), single, lived and farmed the family farm
Laura (1875-1945), single, lived with her parents and John.
Eliza died September 23, 1927, age 95 years, and David died June 6 of the

following year, age 93 years. They are buried in the Riceville Baptist Church
Cemetery with their ehildren, John Christopher, Mary, Albert Robert, John and
Laura.

The Family ofWilliam Henry Metcalfe and Elizabeth Duggan

William Henry (1859), son of David Metcalfe and Elizabeth McLean, was
manied in 1888 to Elizabeth Duggan (October 15, 1866) of Pendleton and
Lemieux.

William and Elizabeth farmed in the area until 1914. They later moved [0

Main Street, Maxville. They had a family of six:
Vivian and Nellie, died as infants
Rupert (1891-1974) (Edna M. Peresian) -- Ronald Harvey (Stella Doth), Ot­

tawa; Erma Jean (John Baird), Carp; and Gordon William (Jean Campbell), Max­
vil1e

First row: Vernon, Christopher.
Second row: Rupert, Rowat -1915
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Vernon Kenneth
(Sarah (Sadie) Mac­
Crimmon) -- Audrey and
Ralph

Rowat David (Flmel­
la Lowry) -- Joan and
Ronald

Christopher John
(------ Thieberge). They
adopted three children.

William and Elizabeth
spent their retirement in
Maxville. William died
April 8, 1940, and
Elizabeth, February 5,
1945. They are buried in
the Riceville Baptist
Church Cemetery.



The Family of Alexander Metcalfe and Jane Ann Scott

50lh wedding anniversary
Alexander (Alex) and Jane (len)

Alexander (1866), son of David
<;~V; ; Metcalfe and Elizabeth McLean,
!.~},/ married Jane Ann Scott (1872) in
. 1901. Jane Ann was thc daughter of

John Scott and Elizabeth Wilson,
Alex and Jen, as they were

known, had a family of four:
William Herbert (Bill) (1902)

(Evelina Brownell) -- Helen
Evelyn Grace (1904) married

Earl G. Wilson in 1936. They
. operated the store in Riceville and at
.d.. Franklin's Corners before moving to
r :' Bel1eville. After Earl's early death,

Grace was married to Charles Cedric
Proudman in 1964. Charles died in
1980. Grace currently resides in Ot­
tawa; she leads a very active retired
life.

Dorothy Mae 1906 (Ernest
Whiessiel) -- Shirley, Constance and
Laurie

Mabel Alberta (George Hick­
man) -- Alban and Margo.

Alexander died in 1955, and
Jane died in 1959. They are buried in
Franklin's Corners Cemetery,

Metealfe General Store, Franklin's Corners
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La Famille Joseph Methot et Denise Dandurand

Fils:
Hormidas, marie aEmma Levac
Joseph, marie aSophranie (Annie) Parker
Fille:
Rosina, mariee aAlexandre Duval

La Famille Hormidas Methot et Emma Levac

Fils:
Joseph (Ie 6 janvier 1892) (Melina Simard)
Hilaire (Ie 26 juillet 1896) (Victoria Guindon)
Emile (Ie 2 mai 1900), pretre cure
Isai"e (le 9 janvier 1905) (Marie Anne Piette)
Philippe (Ie 14 decembre 1907) (Annelte Besner)
Georges (Ie 5 avril 1911) (Pauline Laliberte)

Filles:
Emelia (le 20 juin 1893) (Arthur Ravary)
Emma (Ie 3 juin 1895) (Ovila Wathier)
Eugenie (Ie 20 juillet 1898) (Emile Charbonneau)
Yvonne (Ie 24 novembre 1902) (Alphonse Simard)

Les membres de ces deux families Methot onl tous ete baptises aFournier.

L'abbe Emile Melhot, jubi'le d'or sacerdolal-1976
Ire rangee: Marie Anne, Pauline, Melina, Emile, cure, Emma, Eugenie, ViclOria. 2' rangee: ]sa"ie,

Georges, Joseph, Bernadetle Levac, menagere du cure Methot, Philippe, Annelle, Yvonne, Alphonse.
(Emile Charbonneau, Hilaire, Arlhur, Emelia el Ovila etaienllous decedes

lorsque ceLIe photo a ete prise.)
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The Family of James Henry Molloy Jr. and Catherine Chesser

James Jr. (1788), son of James Mollow Sr. and Eleanor Stoots, was employed
as a clerk with the Commission Department during the war of 1812. He was
nominated as Captain, March 10, 1824. In August 1824, he married Catherine
Chesser, daughter of Alfred Chesser and Maria Georgen.

In 1825, they came to Plantagenet and took possession of Lot I, Conc. 10, a
SOO-acre parcel of land, and also Lots 1 and 3, Concession 14, in the Fournier
area.

James was a Justice of the Peace, Major of the Militia and Commissioner for
trial of small cases.

James and Catherine had three sons: James Henry (Anna Maria Bradley);
John Murphy; Michael Edmund (Upherine Lemieux).

James Henry Jr. died in Albany (New York) March 14, 1851.

The Family of James Henry Molloy and Anna Maria Bradley

James H., son of James Molloy and Catherine Chesser, completed his
schooling in Montreal and returned to the homestead. Shortly thereafter, he left,
to travel around the world. He then returned to Fournier, married Anna Maria
Bradley in February 1857 and setlled down to farming.

James H. was Justice of the Peace, Coroner for Prescott-Russell, Issuer and
Inspector of Tavern Licences for Prescott, Reeve of the Township of South
Plantagenet, Warden of the County. He ran for Parliament in 1886 and was nar­
rowly defeated. He owned 300 acres of farmland. He was thc first president of the
Riceville Agricultural Society.

James H. and Anna Maria had six children:
Arthur (Elizabeth (Eliza) Sloan), New York -- Gertrude Augusta, Catherine

Lucenda, Anna Maria, Mary Ethel, Eliza Pearl, James Hiram, Maria Gertrude;
Michael Edmund (Sarah (Sally) (Downing) Bradley) -- Sarah, James, Henry; John
Murphy (Mary Ann Chesser) -- Catherine, Margaret; Alice (S. Wright), a school­
teacher in Fournier -- Winnifred; Frances, remained on the horne farm on the Na­
tion River; Charlotte.

James H. died February 8,1896, at the age of 70 years, and Anna Maria died
February 16,1917, at thc age of 78 years. They are buried in Fournier.

The Family of Michael Edmund Molloy and Sarah (Sally) Bradley

Michael Edmund was the son of James H. Molloy and Anna Maria Bradley.
He remained on the family farm on the banks of the Nation River. He married
Sarah (Sally)(Downing) Bradley, widow of James Bradley, on February 23,1862.

They had two children: Sarah (Henry James); James Henry (Mary Day).
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The Family of Philip Molloy and Ida Kelly

Philip, son of Michael Edmund Molloy and Sarah (Sally) (Downing) Brad­
ley, married Ida Kelly.

Philip was a member of the militia. He took over the family farm. Hazel,
Ida's sister,lived with them.

Philip and Ida had one son, Frank. Frank lived on the farm and worked at
various types of work in the area. He spent the last few years caring for his mother
and aunt.

Philip died December 7, 1981, and Ida, in 1984. They are buried in Fournier.
The family home was taken over by Jean St-Amour.

La Famille Eugene et Clara (nee Lalonde) Monette

Eugene, ne aVankleek Hill Ie 4 avril 1896, est Ie fils de Pierre Monette et d'­
Anna Labrosse. Clara, nee Ie 12 juillet 1896, est [a fiJle d'Evrard Lalonde et d'­
Elmire Bourdon de Fournier. Eugene et Clara s'epousent a Fournier [e 21 juillet
1919.

Eugene el Clara relent leurs noees aeet hillel, alors Ja
proprielc d'Anna Labrosse Bourdon - 1941

Eugene et Clara donnent naissance acinq enfants:
Marguerite (Ambrose Moss), Toronto
Hortense (Roland Nolet), East Broughton (Quebec) -- 3 enfants
Rita, celibataire, Montreal
Cyprienne (Henri Fleury), Toronto -·7 enfants
Rolland, dlibataire, decede, Edmonton.
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Apres leur mariage, Eugene et Clara demeureront a differents endroits:
Clarence Creek, Maxville, Cornwall, Fournier. Eugene est journalier. lis
demenagent ensuite aSudbury OU Eugene travaillera pour une compagnie de bois,

Eugene meurt accidentellemenl aSudbury Ie 18 fevrier 1927, a J'age de 30
ans. II y est inhume.

En 1930, Clara se fait construire une maison aFournier (presentement chez
Napoleon Levac), propriete qu'elle vendra aOsias Levac en 1937. EUe continuera
cependant ahabiter Fournier,

Clara est decedee Ie 17 juin 1947, aI'age de 51 ans, et inhumee aFournier.

La Famille Isaie et Melina (nee Deschamps) Montpetit

Isai'e est Ie fils d'Onesime Montpetit et de Felicite Poirier et Melina, la flUe
de Celestin Deschamps et de Meletilde Seguin, Isai'e et Melina s'epousent aSt­
Isidore Ie 8 octobre 1906.

lis donnent naissance adeux enfants: Arthur (Laurette Lalande), Fournier;
Ernest, decede ala naissance.

Apres leur mariage, Isai'e et Mina exploitent la ferme paternelIe, dans la ge

concession de Caledonia, a St-Isidore (une partie du lot 22, voisin des Quen­
neville), En 1909, ils s'installent sur une ferme aFournier (Ia partie nord du lot 5
de la 14e concession de Plantagenet-Sud) jusque vers 1919.

En 1921, apres un sejour dans l'Ouest canadien, ils reviennenl a Fournier et
achetent la ferme voisine de leur ancienne ferme. lis y seront cultivateurs toute
leur vie.

ISaJe et Melina sont decedes sur leur ferme; Isai'e, en 1945, aI'age de 63 ans,
et Melina, en 1962, a1'age de 79 ans. I1s sont inhumes aFournier.

La Famille Arthur et Laurette (nee Lalande) Montpetit

Arthur est Ie fils d'IsaJe Montpetit et de Melina Deschamps et Laurette, la
fllle d'Auguste Lalande et de Marie-Louise Nicholas. Arthur el Laurette
s'epousent aFournier Ie 17 mai 1943. lIs donnent naissance asept enfants:

Marie-Rose (Roger Paquette), St-Isidore -- Lorraine, Stephane, Lyne
Alberte (Andre St-Denis), Fournier
Louise (Archie Maville), North Lancaster .- John, Glen
Herve, deeede ala naissance
Therese (Brian D:-,':idson), Orleans -- Stephanie, Julie
Bernard (Lucienne Duval), Fournier -- Josee, Eric. Bernard est proprietaire

de la partie sud de la ferme paternelle depuis 1981.
Jean-Yves (Jocelyne Boileau) decede, Fournier -- Jean-Fran~ois, Benoit.

Jean-Yves etait proprietaire de la partie nord de la ferme paternelle depuis 1981.
Arthur et Laurette cultivent la ferme paternelle, la demie sud du lot 5 de la

14e concession, et en deviennent proprietaires en 1949, lis y eleveront leur famille
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et seronl eultivateurs toute leur vie. lIs exploiteront aussi, pour quelques annees,
une houblonniere d'une dizaine d'aeres.

Laurette a ete une des premieres seeretaires du Cercle des Fermieres et
seeretaire des Enfants de Marie. Arthur a ete ehantre pendant nombre d'annees.

Arthur est deeede Ie 28 oetobre 1980, aI'age de 72 ans.
Laurette habite toujours la ferme, quoiqu'elle l'ait vendue ases deux fils en

1981. Elle aime reeevoir el visiter ses enfants et amis, ce qui contribue surement a
la garder jeune. Elle en est une des rares, en effet, qui, au lieu de vieillir, rajeunit.

Jean-Yves
25< anniversaire de mariage

Arthur el Laurelle

Ire rangee: Roger, Laurelle, Marie·Rose. 2" rangee: Andre, Albel1e. Louise,
Jocelyne, Therese, Lucienne, Bernard. 3< rangee: Archie, Brian
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The Family ofWilliam and Elizabeth Muir

William Muir (1811) came to Canada from Hamilton, on the Clyde River
near Glasgow, Scotland, in 1846. He lived in L'Orignal, working as a carpenter in
the employ of Sheriff Treadwell, for nine years. Following this, he spent a few
years in the village of Riceville, finally purchasing 100 acres, Lot 10, Cone. 14,
making a home here for his family.

According to the 1851-1852 census records, William was a farmer from Scot­
land, age 40 years. William and Elizabeth brought their family to Canada:
Elizabeth 18, Isabelle 16, Robert 14, William 12. Their other children were born in
Canada: Thomas 8, Mary 7, James 5, John (1851). Two other children, Janet and
Daniel, were born foJlowing the 1851-1852 census.

He and his wife, Elizabeth, age 32, had a one-storey log house. William
remained on his farm till his death in February 1876. His son, James, remained on
the homestead.

The Family of John Muir and Catherine Bradley

John (1851), son of William, was employed in the lumber business when he
was young. In 1873, he purchased 100 acres, Lot la, Cone. 13, which was partially
cleared. He married Catherine Bradley (1875). They cleared the rest of their land
and purchased another 95 acres. He
built a brick home and farm buildings.
In addition to farming and growing
hops, he was a school trustee.

They had five sons and five
daughters:

Herb (Isabella McGillivray)
Leonard (Catherine Ryan)
Alfred (Lorna)
William James (Helena Le-

faivre)
Maud (William McGillivray)
Elsie (Charles MacGregor)
Katie (Alex Connell)
Louella (William Foran)
Nellie, single
Harold, died in WWI.
John, a staunch Methodist, died

in 1918 and is buried in Franklin's
Corners Cemetery while his wife,
Catherine, who died Feb. 24, 1911, is
buried in Fournier. John and Ca'herine
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William J. and Helena

The Family of William James Muir and Helena Lefaivre

William James (1884), son of John Muir and Catherine Bradley, was born in
Riceville. In 1911, he married Helena Lefaivre (1884), daughter of Peter Lefaivre
and Catherine McCormick of Vankleek Hill. They raised seven children:

Eileen (Herbert Bradley), CornwaU -- Larry, Shirley
Guelda (Earl Conway), Chute-a-Blondeau -- Marilyn, Sandra, Sharon
Chester (Mona Whelan), Sudbury--

Catherine, Patricia. Chester died July 6,
1992, at the age of 75 years.

Phyllis (Melvin Terry), Fournier,
then Dalkeith -- Melvin (Willie)

John (Vivian Ryan), Riceville -­
Janice and Kathryn

BiUy (EUa McHugh), Riceville, then
Ottawa -- Donald, Leonard, Dennis

RusseU, died as an infant.
The couple worked very hard on

their farm. WiUiam J. was also secretary­
treasurer of the Glengarry Fire Ins. Co.
for twenty years and a member and
director of the Riceville Agricultural
Society. Helena died in January 1971 and
William J., in February 1972. They are
buried in St. Bernard's Parish Cemetery.

The Family ofWilliam Muir and Ellen Marguerite McHugh

William Peter and EUen Marguerite are known to most as Billy and Ella.
Billy, son of William James Muir and Helena Lefaivre of Riceville, was born
December B, 1923. He was the second youngest of the family. Billy attended
Riceville Public School and completed his grade 11 at Plantagenet High School.
During the war years, he stayed at home, helping his father on their farm, Lot 10,
Conc.B.

At the age of 22, Billy married Ella, daughter of Dennis and Elsie McHugh
of the parish of Lemieux. They soon took over the family farm where they lived,
sharing the home farm with his parents. Their three sons were born on the farm.

Billy and Ella remained on the farm for twenty years, selling it in 1968, and
moving to Ottawa. They later moved to Orleans where they made their home. Billy
worked on construction sites for the next four years. He then worked at the
Supreme Court of Canada, for Mr. Justice Judson, Mr. Justice Estey and Mr. Jus­
tice Sopinka, until retirement.
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In 1988, the mayor of Cumberland Township, Peter Clarke, presented Bill
with a Certificate of Appreciation in recognition of outstanding service and per­
sonal contribution to the quality of life in the Township of Cumberland.

Billy is a past member of the Knights of Columbus, Orleans, Divine Infant
7873, Third Degree.

Ella has always been a very busy person, maintaining their home and caring
for her husband and sons. She is a devoted grandmolher to six grandchildren and
her first great-granddaughter.

Billy and Ella's
children are:

Donald James (Do­
rothy Adams), Wendover, ­
- Carrie, Allen, Jennifer

Leonard Pcler (Ma­
rian Watson), St Pascal
Baylon -- Tammy Lee

Dennis Herbert (Su­
zanne Bedard), Ottawa -­
Michael, Patty Lynn and
great - granddaughter Sa­
rah Michelle.

Billy and Ella belong
to the seniors group in the
Fournier - Riceville - Pen­
dlelon area, along with
groups in the Orleans area
where they still reside.

Billy and Ella feel for­
tunate and proud to share
the love of their family and
friends in their retirement.

Donald, Dennis. Leonard, Ella, Billy - 1976

The Family of John Muir and Vivian Ryan

John was born in Riceville on September 21,1921. He is the son of William J.
Muir and Helena Lefaivre. Vivian Ryan was born in Curran June 2, 1923, to John
V. Ryan and Mary MacGregor. John and Vivian were married in 1946.
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Vivian, John, Janice, Kalhryn

In January 1947, the young couple moved to Cornwall where John was
employed by the Howard Smith Papermill, now Domtar. He remained in this
employ for two years, returning to Riceville in the spring. They purchased a small
farm from the Rowe family, Lot 10, Cone. 12, South Planlagenet. There they
worked hard, raised their daughters and found the time to enjoy themselves with
their many friends and neighbours. They remodelled their home, built a barn, and
in 1980, a new garage.

In 1958, John and Vivian had purchased an additional 25 acres of land from
Helen Emmel, just west of Riceville, on the south side of the road, land previously
owned by Helen's father, Jim Ryan. In 1970, they sold this place to Guy and Susan
Cloutier.

John and Vivian
farmed for 19 years until
their sale March 9, 1968. At
this time John started selling
farm machinery for
Fitzgerald Farm Machinery
in Plantagenet. He worked
there until he was ap­
proached by the New Hol­
land Company. It was at this
time that he opened a
dealership in Maxville.
From 1973, he and his
parlner, Elie Martin of
Moose Creek, operated the
business until 1981, when .
they sold this dealership to
Herb and Gertie Auer of
Montreal. The new owners
convinced John to stay on as
a salesperson, which he did.
John look his retirement in
1987.

Vivian, a very quiet'
person, was a faithful, help- t

ful mate for John while he
farmed and also while he worked in the business. She maintained their home and
provided a peaceful atmosphere to return home to after a hard day's work.

John and Vivian have two daughters: Janice (Terry Hill), Ottawa, and
Kathryn (Robert Brady), Ottawa.

John and Vivian are now enjoying retirement on their beautiful and peaceful
property, their home in Riceville.
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The Family of Leonard Muir and Catherine Ryan

" jl\

Harold, Evelyn, Catherine - circa 1909

Leonard, born January 12,1880, second son of John and Catherine (Bradley)
Muir, married Catherine Ryan (1874-1911), daughter of Hugh Ryan and Mary
MacGregor, in 1904.

They lived on Cone. 13, west of Riceville. They were a very neighbourly
couple, both musical. Catherine was a violinist, Leonard was a pianist. Their
children were: Harold, Evelyn and an adopted nephew, Leonard J. Bradley.

Harold (Nov. 15, 1905) ,
began his schooling at'
Bradley Creek School, then
Riceville Public School. He
then pursued his studies at
Plantagenet High School
and Ottawa University.
After teaching at Ottawa
University, Timmins,
Kirkland Lake and
Cornwall Collegiate, he
went to Morewood High
School as principal. The
guidance department at Ot­
tawa Technical School was
his next stop. In 1971, when
he retired, he was place­
ment officer with the Car­
leton and Ottawa Boards of
Education. Harold also
served in the R.C.A.F.
Harold was a councillor on
the South Plantagenet Township Council for a number of years.

On Aug. 15, 1932, Harold married Germaine Lapointe (1907), daughter of J.
Napoleon and Victoria Lapointe, formerly of Fournier. They raised a family of
four: Ronald, Catherine, Marie and Jacqueline. Ronald is an electrical engineer
and the three daughters are registered nurses, following in their mother's
footsteps.

Harold died Sept. 22,1991, at the age of 86 years. He is buried in Fournier.
Evelyn (Aug. 9, 1907). After completing her secondary education at

Plantagenet, she went to the Sacred Heart Convent in Vankleek Hill. She then
went to work as an accountant in Montreal and New York City. She married
Arsene Charlebois (1897-1957) in 1930 and in 1967, married William McGillis
(1893). She is currently living in Cornwall.
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Leonard

Leonard J. Bradley was born June 13, 1896. Leonard, a nephew to Leonard
and Catherine, was raised as their adoptive son. He served in WWI, then farmed
in Lemieux. He died December 2, 1973. He had never married.

Harold Bnd Gemlaine

Catherine died April 11, 1911, from complications resulting from pleurisy
and pneumonia, leaving Leonard with his young family. His music, work and his
assoeiation with his many friends helped him over a lonely period of sorrow. It was
at this time that he became interested in municipal affairs, as well as developing
his 200-aere farm. He practiced mixed farming and
cared for his excellent purebred Holstein herd.

Leonard's interest in music resulted in the forma- .
tion of an orehestra composed of Rev. Mr. Beach .~

(violinist), Dr. J. H. Macintosh of Riceville (mandolin),
Rev. Fr. Filiatrault of Lemieux, and himself, pianist.
Leonard later was the organist for Sl. Joseph's Church
in Lemieux.

In 1934, he married Ada DesLauriers of Vankleek
Hill. Ada died in 1938; she is buried in Fournier.

Although Leonard did not speak or understand
French, which he regretted, the ratepayers of South
Plantagenet elected him reeve in the 1930's, a position
he held for approximately 15 years. He was elected war­
den for the United Counties of Prescott-Russell twice
and was in the process of being brought forward as the
Liberal candidate in the provincial elections when he
suddenly suffered a stroke in 1945. This ended his politi­
cal career.

Leonard died in September 1952.
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La Famille Joseph et Mary Jane (nee Parker) Nicholas

Joseph est Ie fils de Cyprien Nicholas et de Sophie Langlois et Mary Jane, Ja
fiUe de Lewis Parker et de Marie Durocher de Fournier. Joseph ct Mary Jane
s'epousent aFournier Ie 10 janvier 188!.

lis donnent naissance asix enfants:
Mary Anne (Elie Lalonde), St-lsidore, Vanier, Lachine -- 9 enfants
Cyprien (Cecile Gauthier), St-Isidore, Fournier -- 13 enfants
Helene (Georges Seguin), Fournier -- 16 enfants
Marie-Louise (Auguste Lalande), Fournier -- 13 enfants
L. Philip (Clara Russyniak), Ponoka, Alberta
Alphonse (Florence Harris), Ponoka, Alberta.
Apres leur mariage, Joseph et Mary Jane s'elablissent aAlfred OU naitront

leurs trois premiers enfants. lis demenagent ensuite au village de Riceville ou
Joseph exercera Ie metier de forgeron.

Mary Jane decede Ie 3 decembre 1909, al'age de 50 ans.
Joseph se marie en secondes noces aune dame Foucher de Sl-Albert.
Joseph est dec6d6 Ie 18 decembre 1933, a['age de 79 ans.
Joseph et Mary Jane sont inhumes aFournier.

Joseph el Mary Jane
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Augusle el Marie-Louise ·1906

Elie el Mary Anne ·1908

Georges el Helene - 1902

Cyprien et Cecile - 1910



0\
.J>.

Marie-Louise, Helene, Mary Anne et Cyprien,
enfants de Joseph Nicholas el de Mary Jane Parker,

ant taus jaui d'une longue vie conjugale:

Auguste et Marie-Louise, 59 ans et 8 mois
Georges et Helene, 61 ans et un mois
Elie et Mary Anne, 53 ans er 5 mois

Cypricn et Cecile, 62 ans mains 2 jours

50· anniversaire de mariage
Elie el Mal)' Anne Lalonde - 1958

Auguste el Marie-Louise Lalande, Georges e! Helene seguin, Mal)' Anne el Elie Lalonde, Ie cure de la paroisse Sain!-Sacrement de Lachine, Clorilda Dufresne
(soeur d'Elie). Cecile el Cyprien Nicholas



La Famille Cyprien et Cecile (nee Gauthier) Nicholas

Cyprien, fils de Joseph Nicholas et de Mary Jane Parker, est ne Ie premier
decembre 1883 aAlfred. Cecile, fille d'Isa'ie Gauthier el de Marie Legros, est nee
a Fournier Ie 1er mars 1891. Cyprien et Cecile s'epousent a Fournier Ie 21 juin
1910.

De leur union naissent treize enfants:
Rene (Gertrude Dubois), St-Isidore -- 2 enfants
Irene (Hercule Doran), decedee Ie 18 decembre 1982, aI'age de 68 ans, Cas-

selman -- 5 enfants
Philippe, decede Ie 19 juillet 1935, aI'age de 20 ans
Jeanne (Uonide Faubert), Oltawa -- 5 enfanls
Gilberte, decedee al'age de 11 jours
Cyprienne, decedee aPage de 10 jours
Florence, deeedee Ie 22 septembre 1940, a['age de 21 ans, 11 mois et 25 jours
Blanche (Emilien FaUbert), Ottawa -- 5 enfants
Isale (Alice Lalonde), decede Ie 31 aout 1960, al'age de 36 ans -- 2 enfants
Leon (Marie-Jeanne Galipeau), Fournier -- 5 enfants
Albert (Calista Surch), Fournier -- 2 enfants
Jean-Guy (Therese Riopel), SI-Donat
Monique (Victor Bray), Hawkesbury -- 5 enfants.

50' anniversaire de manage
cecile et Cyprien

La famille Nicholas demenage aRiceville alors que Cyrpien a environ 2 ans
et demi. Son pere est forgeron (anciennement chez Ernie Rowe). Cyprien exer­
cera plus tard ce metier avec son pere.

Apres leur mariage, Cyprien et Cecile s'inslaJlenl sur une ferme dans la 15e

concession jusque vers 1924, alors qu'ils demenagent sur une ferme a l'entree
nord du village de St-Isidore, ferme de M. Theoret. En 1949, ils achetent la ferme
de M. Tracy (presentement chez Ernesl Poirier), ferme qu'ils cultiveront jusqu'en
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1958, alors qu'ils achetent la ferme d'Emmet Surch. IIs se retireront au village de
Fournier en 1967.

Cyprien et Cecile ont jow d'une longue vie conjugale. lis ont fete leur 60e an­
niversaire de mariage.

Ils ont toujours ete tres actifs. lis etaient de grands amateurs de cartes. lis
aimaient visiter et recevoir leur famille et leurs amis. Cecile aimait Ie tricot, la cou­
ture, Ie metier et Cyprien, bricoler et jardiner.

Cyprien est decede Ie 19 juin 1972, al'age de 88 ans, et Cecile, Ie 3 aout 1982,
aI'age de 92 ans.

lis sont inhumes aSt-Isidore.

La Famille Albert et Calista (nee Surch) Nicholas

Joseph Albert Nicholas est Ie fils de Cyprien Nicholas de Riceville et de
Ceeile Gauthier de St-Bernardin et Calista, la fiUe de Vernon Surch et de Beatrice
Lalonde de Fournier. Albert et Calista s'epousent a Fournier Ie 14 septembre
1957.

lis donnent naissancc adeux cnfants: Marcel et Richard.
Marcel est marie a Joanne Galipeau, fille de Gerard Galipeau et d'Aline

Castonguay de St-Isidore.
Marcel et Joanne ont complete leurs etudes secondaires aPlantagenet; Mar­

cel, en juin 1977, et Joanne, en juin 1980. Marcel travaille presentcment chez
Menard Truss Itee, aSt-Isidore, et Joanne, a la Caisse populaire de Fournier ltee.
lis resident aFournier, dans la maison qu'ils ont construite en 1990.

Marcel et Joanne sont les parents de Sophie, agee de 6 ans, et de Mathieu,
age de 3 ans.

Richard is married to Denise Roy, daughter of Peter Roy and Levina Guitar.
Richard and Denise both graduated from Plantagenet High Sehool in 1979.

Richard attended Kemptville Agricultural College for two years while Denise pur­
sued her studies at Carleton University where she graduated in 1981.

Denise is now a gymnastic coach and has her private gym club in Gloucester
while Riehard is employed by the Solicitor General Office in Ottawa.

Richard and Denise are the parents of Kirsten, 5 years of age. They reside in
Rockland.

Albert a ete cultivateur aFournier jusqu'a sa retraite en 1986.
Calista poursuit ses etudes secondaires a Vankleek Hill et obtient son brevet

d'enseignement de I'Ecole Normale de l'Universite d'OUawa en juin 1951. Elle
enseigne aHammond, de septembre 1951 ajuin 1953, et aSt-Bernardin, de sep­
tembre 1953 ajuin 1957.

Calista travaille a la municipalite de Plantagenet-Sud depuis 1971 et est gref­
fier-tresoriere depuis 1975.

Albert et Calista demeurent aFournier, dans la maison qu'ils ont construite
en 1985.

643



1re rangee: Kirsten, Sophie, Mathieu. 2e rangee: Denise, Richard, Calista,
Albert, Marcel, Joanne - 1991

La Famille Leon et Marie·Jeanne Nicholas

Cyprien et Cecile Nicholas et leurs enfanls quiltenl St-Isidore en 1939 pour
s'installer sur une ferme ii l'ouest du village de Fournier. lis y cultivent Ie houblon
·et ont une douzaine de vaches laitieres. Leon est alors age de 14 ans.

La famille plie bagage de nouveau en 1952 et s'elablit sur une ferme Jaitiere
au nord du village, chemin de comte 15. Quelques annees plus tard, un des fils,
Albert, se marie et prend alors possession de la ferme. Cyprien et Cecile se
retiren! au village de Fournier.

Leon aura travaille, enlre temps, a Ia recolte de grains en Saskatchewan,
dans un camp de bGcherons ii Val d'Or et dans les mines de Rouyn-Noranda. II
revient aFournier en 1948 pour acheter une ferme entre la 15e et la 16e conces­
sion, ferme que son pere avait acquise deux ans auparavant.

Leon vend son amo 250$ el avec quelques cents dollars en banque, Ie voila
parti. Comme cette ferme avait souvent change de proprietaire et avait ete
negligee, it a fallu beaucoup de lravail pour en ameliorer Ie sol et la rendre apte a
faire vivre une famille convenablement.

En 1950, Leon epouse Marie-Jeanne Galipeau, £ille de Louis et d'Olivine
Galipeau, egalement de Fournier. Cinq enfants naitront de cette union:

Denis (Anne Taber) -- Dominic, Gabrielle et Sasha
Suzanne (Mario Lajeunesse) .- Janelle
Mireille (Tobias Fisher) -- Alexandre Leon
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Brigitte (Jean Pigeon) -- Nicholas
Marie-France (Serge Meloche).
Les enfants grandissent et, tour a tour, quittent Ie nid familial. Apres trente­

huit ans, se sentant un peu vieillir, Leon et Marie-Jeanne vendent la ferme, chose
qui n'est pas facile. S'etant reserve un lapin de terre, ils se construisent une
maison au printemps 1987. lis sont maintenant plus disponibles quand les enfants
ant besoin d'un coup de main.

1[C rangee: Brigitte (Nicholas), Dominic, Leon (Alexandre), Marie-Jeanne, Gabrielle. 2c rangee:
Serge, Jean, Marie-France, Denis, Anne (Sasha), Mireille, Suzanne, Tobias, Mario (Janelle)

The Family of Denis Nicholas and Anne Taber

Denis Cyprien, son of Uon Nicholas and Marie-Jeanne Galipeau, was born
May 14, 1952. Denis grew up on his father's dairy farm and, following graduation
in 1971, worked for the National Research Council in Ottawa.

lt was while bowling at the R.A. Centre that Denis and Anne, daughter of
Russell and Janet Taber, were introduced.

Anne was born and raised in Ottawa. Soon after graduation Denis asked
Ann to marry him and they were joined Sept. 27, 1980.

Denis and Anne built their horne near Denis' parents. They have three
children: Dominic (1981), Gabrielle (1985) and Sasha (1987).

Denis commutes to Ottawa for work while Anne keeps busy with the family,
their home, the Women's Institute and otber social activities.
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Dominic, Denis, Leon, Sasha, Marie-Jeanne, Anne, Gabrielle

The Family of George Nicholson and Elizabeth Lang

George was the first of the Nicholsons to come to Canada. He married
Elizabeth (Betsy) Lang. They left England and came to Caledonia.

They had a family of four sons and five daughters:
Robert (Hannah Harriet Gates); Henry (Christina McLaughlin); Johnny

(Maggie Dewar) -- Hattie, Tena and Loroe; Maria, married in the USA; Louisa,
married; Sarah, spinster; Hannah (Chauncey Gates); George (Ann Jane Sproule)
-- George John, Elizabeth, Mary Ann, Hattie, Armour; Mary (Del Philips), USA
-- 2 boys.

George and Betsy are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

The Family of George Nicholson and Ann Jane Sproule

George, son of George Nicholson and Elizabeth (Betsy) Lang, married Ann
Jane Sproule on August 9, 1869. Ann Jane was the daughter of John Sproule and
Mary Ann Barton.

They took up residence in the Fournier area, where they raised their family
of five:

George John (Bertha Duggan) -- Doris, Nina, Erma, Lila, Geordie, Leith,
Meda; Elizabeth (James Holmes) -- Wanda, Mona, Beulah; Mary Ann (Garrett
Bradley) -- Baden, Byron, William, Lodge; Hester Maria (Hettie) (Richard Lodge
Downing); Armour, single.

George and Ann Jane are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.
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The Family of George John Nicholson and Bertha Duggan

George John, son of George Nicholson and Ann Jane Sproule, married Ber­
tha Duggan, daughter of John J. Duggan and Harriet Hill.

They had a family of seven:
Doris (fust marriage - Moses Renwick, second

marriage - Mervyn Blaney)
Nina (Garrett Ryan) -- Diane, Shelly
Erma (Lome Cameron Bradley) -- Clayton, Ruth
Lila (David Bradley)
Geordie (Jean Derby)
Leith, died an infant
Meda (Weldon McLennan).
George and Bertha farmed on Cone. 6 of

Caledonia. On George's death, their son, Geordie,
worked the farm till he sold and moved to Winchester,
where he married.

George John died in March 194<5 and Bertha, in
1965. They are buried in Fenaghvale Cemetery. Bertha and George

Doris, Nina, Erma, Lila, Geordie, Meda
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The Family of Robert Nicholson and Hannah Harriet Gates

Robert, the eldest child of George Nicholson and Betsy Lang, married Han­
nah Harriet Gates. They had a family of three daughters and one son: Laura,
Charlie, Sarah and Louisa.

Robert came to Caledonia Flats shortly after 1825 and worked for John
Chesser for a short period. He later located himself on Lot 21, Cone. 5.

Robert and Harriet later moved away.
They are buried in Hammond.

The Family of Gunter and Judith Nolte

On a pleasant September day in 1973 I was driving from Montreal to
Kingston along less-travelled highways. Coming from Vankleek Hill, I noticed a
small For Sale sign nailed to the fencepost in front of a barn-like house sitting in
an idyllic meadow overlooking the bog and the distant Laurentians. Since the
house seemed to be unfinished and no one was there, I inquired next door. The
neighbour turned out to be Lionel Lavigne, father-in-law of the owner. Within a
few weeks we had purchased the property from Guy Chamberland.

The Family of Fred O'Flaherty and Barbara Shaver

Frederick, known to
most as Fred, is the son of Roy
O'Flaherty of Digby, Nova
Scotia, and Violet Laming of
Montreal. Fred attended
Loyola College then became a
member of the Westmount
police force in 1956. Barbara,
daughter of Harry Shaver and
Edna Ryan, attended school
in Verdun and Sir George
Williams School of Business.
Fred and Barbara were mar­
ried in 1957 and moved to
Vancouver, where he worked
for the Canadian Pacific Rail­
ways Investigations.

In 1963, the couple left
B.C., returning east. They pur­
chased a mobile home and
moved in on the lot beside her
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Marie

parents' home, Lot 6, Conc. 13. Fred was then studying surveying. He spent the
next fourteen years travelling, first to Africa, Tanzania and Nigeria, then to South
America. The family spent some time in Guyana. Fred finished his overseas con­
tracts in Paraguay, South America.

When Barbara's father died in 1973, she and Fred purchased the family
home, the Franklin house at Franklin's Corners, just east of Riceville, Lot 6, Conc.
13. Barbara and Fred have four children: Danny (Lynn Menard), Cornwall;
Lynda (Philippe Groulx), Fournier -- Matthew and Jordan; Cheryl, MaxviUe -­
Pamela Austin; Tracey (Ewen MacDonald), MaxvilJe -- Brandon.

Barbara has bcen driving a school bus for the past 18 years. She has been ac­
tive in the Women's Institute, On the fair board and the Riceville Recreation Com­
mittee. She also does volunteer work at Plantagenet Public School. Fred has been
employed by David Schultz, a land surveyor in Hawkesbury, since 1974.

La Famille Lewis et Marie Parker

Lewis Parker est Ie fils de John Parker et de Mary Mainville et Marie, la fiUe
d'Angus Durocher et de Sophie Plamondon. Lewis et Marie s'epousent a la
paroisse St-Colomban, aCornwall, Ie 14 octobre 1958.

lis prennent possession de la demie nord du lot 5, concession 14, Ie 8 mars
1859 et Ie 24 fevrier 1879, de la partie nord du lot 4, concession 14.

Lewis et Marie donnent naissance a dix en- ~

[anls: rit
Mary Jane (Joseph Nicholas), Riceville -­

Mary Anne, Cyprien, Helene, Marie-Louise,
Philip, Alphonsc

Sophranie (Annie) (Joseph Methot), Ottawa
-- Arthur, Alice, Herve, Albert, Louise, Anna,
Irene

Louis-Philippe (Eliza Brault), Fournier --
Albert, Edmond, Georges, Alice, Alphonse,
Edouard, Berthe

Angele (Alphonse Seguin), St-Pascal -­
Joseph, Albina, Eva, Alexina, Cyprien, Albert,
Alice, avila, Ernest, Clara

Elisabeth (Lizie), deddee Ie 24 aofit 1932
Julienne (Julianna) (Joseph Deschamps),

Rockland -- Wilfrid, Florence, Aurore, Laurette, Irene, Simone, Rene
Edouard (Eddy) (Alice Larose), Cornwall -- Beatrice, Arthur, Irvine, Mar­

jorie, Bernard
Mary Anne, decedee Ie 11 juillet 1898, aI'age de 19 ans et 8 mois
Joseph (Marie Lessard), Hull -- Georges, Leo, Pauline, Eva, Annette, Jean­

nette, Marie-Claire
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Francis (Frank) (Delia Seguin), Ottawa -- Yvonne, Cecile, Florence, Ed­
mond, Edwidge, Ernest, Beatrice, Lucien, Romeo, Rolland et Orner, jumeaux,
decedes vers l'age de 4 ans.

Lewis est decede Ie 18 aofit 1895, a l'age de 64 ans, et Marie, Ie 31 janvier
1920, aI'age de 81 ans.

La maison palernelle. vers 1948

La Famille Louis-Philippe et Eliza Parker

Le 26 novembre 1894, Louis-Philippe Parker, cultivateur, fils majeur de feu
Lewis Parker et de Marie Durocher, epousail Eliza Brault, instilutrice de cette
paroisse, fille de Georges Brault et de Philomene Primeau de Ste-Martine, P.O.

Temoins: Antoine Seguin de celte paroisse'
Delia Legault de St-Isidore

Tel est Ie texte qu'inscrivait Ie cure Dacier
au registre de ta paroisse lors du mariage de
Louis-Philippe et d'Eliza.

Louis-Philippe et Eliza exploitent Ja ferme
paternetle. lis y seront cultivateurs toute leur vie.

lis donnent naissance asept enfants:
Albert (Flora Belanger), deddes, Hull -­

Wilfrid, Lucille, Therese, Edmond, Yvonne, Yol­
lande (leurs six premiers enfants sont decedes en
bas age)

Edmond, decede aPage de 4 mois et demi

Louis-Philippe - al'iige de 19 ans
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Georges (Clara Bourbonnais), decede, Fournier -- Aline, Uo, Raymond,
Rita, Henri, Neil, Georgette

Alice, decedee, religieuse ehez les Soeurs de la Charite d'Ottawa
Alphonse, decede aI'age de 7 jours
Edouard (Laurette Montpetit), decedes, Montreal
Berthe (Amedee Leger), deeedes, SL-Isidore -- Lucien, Robert, Madeleine,

Marcel, Raymond, Pauline, Jacques, Claude, Therese.
Louis-Philippe est dec.ede Ie 4 avril 1924, a I'age de 61 ans et 10 mois, et

Eliza, Ie 8 juillet 1953, al'age de 91 ans et 11 mois.

La Famille Georges et Clara Parker

GeorgesClara

Georges esL Ie fils de Louis-Philippe Parker et d'Eliza Brault et Clara, la flUe
d'Olivier Bourbonnais et d'Anna Bourgon. Georges et Clara s'epousent a Four­
nier Ie 19 juin 1923.

lis donnenL naissance asept enfants:
Aline (Rheal Tessier), decede, Cornwall .- Jeannine, Gilles, Michel. Aline a

travaille vingt-cinq ans aGlen-Stor-Dun Lodge, aCornwall, centre d'accueil pour
personnes agees.

Leo (Cecile
Lalonde), Cornwall -­
Diane, Joanne, Jerry,
Linda. Leo a travaille
trente-six ans chez
Courtaulds Films Ca­
nada, aCornwall.

Raymond (Luce
Denis), Ottawa
Michel, Line, Lucie.
Raymond a passe vingl-
huit ans comme '.
contremaitre chez Met­
calfe Realty, aOttawa.

Rita (Fernand Desforges), deceM, Ottawa -- Ginette, Serge, Claude. Rita a
lravaille huit ans au Centre d'accueil Champlain, aVanier.

Henri (Madeleine Gour), Fournier -- Danny, Sandra. Henri est
presentement representant des ventes chez Nutrite Inc. pour les comtes de Pres­
cott, Russell et Glengarry.

Neil, Fournier. Neil est enseignant a['Ecole secondaire de Plantagenet.
Neil obtient son certificat d'enseignant au niveau elementaire de l'Ecole

Normale-de l'Universite d'Ottawa. II obtiendra ensuite son baccalaureat es arts et
son brevet de specialiste en orientation scolaire de l'Universite d'Ottawa et son
certificat d'enseignant au niveau secondaire et son brevet de specialiste en
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fran<;ais et en French de l'Universite de Toronto. II suivra aussi des cours au
niveau de Ja maltrise en education et dans Ie domaine de I'enfance en difficulte.

Neil debute sa carriere d'enseignant aOttawa. II enseignera ensuite dans des
ecoles rurales de la region et au village de Fournier, pour passer au niveau secon­
daire: Alexandria, Williamslown et Plantagenet. II oeuvrera une vingtaine
d'annees a I'Ecole secondaire de Plantagenet, dont une quinzaine d'annees
comme responsable du secteur de l'orientation scolaire et plus tard, comme coor­
donnateur du programme de l'education aux adultes.

Georgette (Ernest Surch), Fournier -- Leonard, Ann, Garry, Louise, David.
Georgette a toujours epaule son mari dans I'entreprise famiJiale. Elle est membre
fondateur du Cercle des Fermieres de Fournier et a ete secrelaire du Cercle pen­
dant trois ans. Elle eSl aussi membre de Women's Institute, Sunshine branch,
depuis une quinzaine d'annees. Georgette fait aussi partie de I'equipe de
benevoles de I'Hopital General de Hawkesbury depuis une couple d'annees.

Apres leur mariage, Georges et Clara habitenl une ferme adjacente a la
ferme paternelle, une partie du lot 5, concession 14, achetee aIsaie Montpelit vers
1919. Apres Ie deces de Louis-Philippe cn avril de l'annee suivanle, ils prennent la
releve sur la ferme paternelle.

Georges decede Ie 30 mars 1959, aI'age de 60 ans et 8 mois. Clara demenage
alors au village de Fournier et y demeurera jusqu'en 1976. EI\e habite
presentement Villa Lapalme, aSt-Isidore.

Ire rangee: Aline, Georgette, Rita. 2" rangee: Raymond, Henri, Leo, Neil - 1989
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La Famille Henri et Madeleine Parker

Henri, fils de feu Georges Parker et de Clara Bourbonnais, est ne aFournier
et y a toujours vecu. n habite presentement la terre paternelle (ferme centenaire).
Madeleine est nee aAlfred. Elle est la fiUe de feu Wilfrid Gour et de feu Florina
Hotte. Henri et Madeleine s'epousent aCurran Ie 25 juillet 1959.

lis donnent naissance adeux enfants:
Danny (Manon Brassard), Clarenee Creek -- Emmanuelle et Sebastien
Sandra (Marc-

Andre Labelle), Hawkes­
bury.

Danny et Sandra onl
complete leurs etudes
secondaires a Plan­
tagenel.

Danny a complctc
une annee en gente
electrique a l'Universite
d'Ottawa et un pro­
gramme de trois ans en
electronique au College
Algonquin, aOttawa, OU il
a obtenu un dipl6me en
genie electronique. II est
presenlement ingenieur
en charge chez Cray Re­
search Canada Inc., aOt­
tawa. Manon est graphiste
au quotidien Le Droit, a
Ottawa.

Sandra a complete
un programme de trois
ans au College Algonquin,
aOttawa, OU elle a obtenu

Ire rangee: Madeleine (Sebaslien), Henri (Emmanuelle). 2e rangee:
un diplome en design Marc-Andre. Sandra, Manon, Danny
interieur. Elle travaille
presentement chez McNeely Engineering, aHawkesbury, comme designer profes­
sionnelle. Sandra fait en plus du dessin residenliel a son propre compte. Marc­
Andre est entrepreneur en mecanique industrielle chez Gray Hawk, a
Hawkesbury.

Henri travaille presentement dans Ie domaine de l'agriculture, comme
representant des venles chez Nutrite Inc. pour les comles de Prescott, Russell et
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Glengarry. n oeuvre dans ce domaine depuis trente ans. n pr~voit prendre sa
retraite sous peu et realiser des projets longuement planifies.

Madeleine a eompl~te ses etudes seeondaires a Plantagenet, a obtenu SOn
baccalaureat es arts, son brevet de speeialiste en bibliotheconomie et son certifieat
d'enseignante de I'Universite d'Ottawa. Elle a enseigne au niveau elementaire
pendant trente-cinq ans dans diverses eeoles de Prescott et Russell. Apres ses
dernieres vingt annees d'enseignement passees a I'E-cole St-Isidore, elle prend sa
retraite en juin 1990. Elle oeuvre toujours, cependant, dans Ie domaine de
l'l~ducation,atemps partie!.

Henri et Madeleine font partie de diverses activites et organisations sociales
et paroissiales. lis aiment ootoyer leurs enfants, parents et amis. Avec la venue d'­
Emmanuelle et de Sebastien, leur bonheur fut combIe. lis sont tres fiers de leur
belle petite famille.

Peter Pascale

Peter (1944) was born in Montreal, to third-generation Canadian parents of
Italian origin. He is one of two ehildren. His sister, a year-and-a-half younger, now
lives in Ajax and teaches physical education. He was raised and educated in
Montreal where his family still resides.

In 1971, Peter purchased from Emma James, surviving wife of Wifrid James,
a 92-acre property On the Ridge Road, Lot 19, Cone. 5, Caledonia, three miles
east of Fournier, at the loeation formerly known as Sandown. In 1973, at the en­
couragement of his neighbours, he began repairing farm machinery and did so for
three years until he left for Australia. Seven months later, in 1977, he returned to
reopen his machinery repair business. He continued working in the old machine
shed until he built a new shop across the road from the farm, on the site where
once slood the Sandown Post Office and Molloy's General Store.

Pclcr
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Huguetle, Andre, Fran~ois, Josee - 1978

La Famille Andre et Huguette (Campeau) Peloquin

Andre Peloquin et Huguette Campeau se sont maries aVille La Salle en oc­
tobre 1962. lis ont deux enfants, Josee et Franyois.

En 1974, deux ans apres la venue du Bill 22 qui leur defendait de faire in­
struire leurs enfants en anglais, la famille Peloquin quilte Ie Quebec pour venir
s'elablir aFournier.

Raymond et Therese Cou­
ture (tante d'Huguette) les
avaient fortement invites a venir
lancer un commerce, ce qu'ils ont
fait. Cette entreprise allait
s'appeller The Trading Post. Le
but etait de transiger, acheter,
echanger toutes sortes d'articles
d'oceasion. Andre el Raymond
font alors l'acquisition de la salle
de danse (construile par Leonard
Besner, hOtelier). Andre et
Huguette aehetent, par la suite,
la maison d'Henri Seguin et ouv­
rent un nouveau commerce,
Boutik Campel (combinaison des
noms Campeau et Peloquin):
laine, macrame, anicles et acces­
soires pour crochet, petit point,
etc. En 1980, ils vendent Ie com­
merce et se construisent a l'ouest
du village de Fournier.

Josee et Franyois se sont Ires bien adaptes it la vie rurale ct au systeme
scolaire ontarien. Andre et Huguette s'impliquent dans differentes activites
paroissiales et soeiales. Andre est presentement gerant chez Alexandria Building
Supply et Huguette, secretaire chez Maisonneuve, Lalonde et Souligny, courtiers
d'assurances, aSt-Isidore.

The Family of John Pepper and Kathleen (Katie) Wilson

John Pepper was the son of Alfred Pepper and Jane MeNair. He was born in
Addison, Ontario. In his early days, John was a cheesemaker.

John married Kathleen (Katie) Wilson, daughter of Albert Wilson and Eliza
Rowe. Katie was a sehoolteacher.

John and Katie had two sons:
Howard (1946-)(Carrol Wilson) -- Stephen

655



Andrew (Andy) (1949-) (first marriage - Virginia Moloney) -- Emily (second
marriage -Judy Scott) -- twin daughters Katland and Lisa Marie, born June 7,
1991.

John left cheesemaking to farm and later left the {arm, Lot 14, Cone. 12.
They moved to Riceville, to Albert and Eliza's home. John then worked for the
Department of Highways.

The Family of Joseph Peresian and Hannah Wilkes

Joseph Peresian was born in Lochiel, Glengarry County, in 184D. He was of
French descent. He came to Riceville as a young man and remained on his farm,
Cone. 13, one mile east of Riceville, until he died, February 23, 1931.

Joseph first married Sarah Franklin and later, Hannah Wilkes. Joseph and
Hannah had four daughters and one son:

Martha; Sarah; Edna (Rupert Metcalfe), Maxville -- Ronald Harvey, Erma
Jean, Gordon William, Vernon; Maud; William.

Joseph Peresian was highly respected in the community. A carpenter by
trade, he built a brick home on his farm. In addition to contributing financially, he
also helped build the Riceville Methodist Church. He was always the proud owner
of a fme matched team of black horses. Many times he had the honour of driving
the hearse to the cemetery.

Hannah was born in 1848, in Fournier. She was a schoolteacher, very inter­
ested in young people, always helping friends and neighbours when she could. She
wrote poetry as a hobby. She enjoyed and shared all the activities of raising their
family.

Joseph and Hannah are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.
• < ••

The Peresian home ·1946
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La Famille Daniel et Denise Picard

Daniel est Ie fils de Conrad Picard et
de Pauline Maisonneuve de Plantagenet.
Le 19 aout 1978, il epouse Denise St­
Denis, fille d'Alcide St-Denis et de Geor­
gette Bissonnette, autrefois de Fournier,
rnaintenant de St-Isidore.

Daniel et Denise ont deux enfants:
Vincent, ne Ie 18 oclobre 1983, et
Suzie, nee Ie 2 juin 1985.
Daniel est coproprietaire, avec ses

freres Denis et Marc, de leur nouvelle
entreprise D.M.D. Picard Entreprises Inc.

Daniel, Denise, Vincent, Suz.ie

La Famille Marc et Lise Picard

Marc est Ie fils de Conrad Picard et
de Pauline Maisonneuve de Plantagenet et
Lise, la fille de Benoit Gauthier et de
Claire Desforges de St-Isidore. Marc et
Lise s'epousent Ie 15 decernbre 1979.

lis donnent naissance adeux enfants:
Nancy, nee Ie 26 decernbre 1982, el
Mathew, ne Ie 14 novernbre 1985.
Marc et Lise se devouent maintenant

,a leur nouvelle entreprise D.M.D. Picard
Entreprises Inc., achetee, avec ses freres
Daniel et Denis, en avril 1990.

Marc, Lise, Nancy, Mathew
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Entreprise Picard

The Family of Fernand Picard and Maureen Sloan

Fernand is the son of Edmond Picard and Therese Gauthier and Maureen,
the daughter of Alfred Sloan and Marie Laure Lalonde. Fern and Maureen were
married July 16,1960.

'" ~.' ;.:
First row: Luc, Marlene, Fern (Jacynthe), Maureen, Anita, Terry. Second row: Kenneth,

Jennifer Rehak, Lynn, Richard, Suzanne, Mark
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The [lTst three years Fern and Maureen lived in Ottawa, where Fern worked
on construction sites. They then built a house in Fournier and lived there until
1967. They later bought a farm in Rose Corner, from Harold Lefebvre.

In 1981, Fern's work as a carpenter took him and the family to Gibsons
(B.C.). In April 1983, they moved back to Fournier and built a house just north of
the village, (part of Lot 1, Cone. 13).

Fern and Maureen have five cbildren:
Mark (January 18, 1962). Mark married Suzanne Quesnel. They bave two

children: Jacynthe (January 18, 1988) and Sebastien (September 8, 1990). Mark
and Suzanne live in Casselman.

Richard (February 25, 1963). Richard built a house in Hawkesbury and
works in Mirabel for Air Canada. His fianc~e, Lynn Tremblay, is from Ottawa.

Marlene (Marc1.l16, 1966). Marlene is married to Luc Hurtubise of Bourget.
Marlene teaches at Pope John Paul II Regional Catholic School in Hammond.

Terry (April 18, 1968). Terry married Anita McCauley. They Jive in Ham­
mond.

Kenneth (December 16, 1972). Kenneth allends college in Ottawa, where he
studies Law and Security.

La Famille Julien et Cecile Picard

50° anniversaire de mariage
Julien et Cecile

Groulx),

Benson),

Maisonneuve),

Julien est Ie fils de Jean Picard et de Georgianna Lalande et Cecile, la [Llle
de Samuel Tessier et de Marie-Louise
Poirier. Julien et Cecile s'epousent a
Lemieux Ie 20 aout 1929.

lis donnent naissance aonze enfants:
Anna (Jean-Paul Lemery) decedes,

Oshawa .. 9 enfants
Leopold (Raymonde Sauve), Beauhar­

nois -- 3 enfants
Conrad (Pauline

Plantagenet -- 5 enfants
Nodla (Rheaume

Plantagenet -- 8 enfants
Colombe (Harry McCartby), Ottawa -­

3 enfants
Anita (Wilfrid Harrigan), Montreal -­

2 enfants
Andrea (Robert Seguin), Plantagenet ­

- 3 enfants
Agathe (Douglas

Plantagenet -- 2 enfants

659



Marcel (Claudette Murray), Kingston -- 2 enfants
Michel (France Belanger), Beauharnois -- un enfant
Yvon (Francine Desjardins), Nouvelle-Zelande -- 3 enfants.
Leur famille compte presentement 41 petits-enfants, 38 arriere-petits-enfants

et 2 enfants de la cinquieme generation.
Apres leur mariage, Julien et Cecile s'installent sur Ie Ridge, a Riceville (en

face de chez Viateur Larocque). Julien, journalier, lravaille chez M. Wilson. En
avril 1931, ils demenagent aFournier OU Julien sera sacristain pendant pres de 13
ans. Anna est alors agee de 6 mois. Leurs six prochains enfanls naltront a Four­
mer. Ils s'achetenl ensuite une ferme aDunvegan, ferme qu'ils vendront l'annee
suivante. IIs demenagent alors aPlantagenet au Julien sera sacrislain pendant 12
ans (pour les cures Chenier et Guibord). lIs s'achetent ensuite une ferme laitiere a
Treadwell et y passeront 17 ans, jusqu'en 1967, alors qu'ils se retirent au village de
Plantagenet.

Julien est decede en 1982, aI'age de 76 anS.
Ceeile demeure a Villa Saint-Paul, a Plantagenet. Elle jouit d'une assez

bonne sante, est toujours lres active, taujours prete a donner un coup de main a
ses enfants. Elle aime recevoir et visiter ses enfants el amis, lire, jauer aux carles
et participer aux aCliviles sociales aVilla Saint-Paul.

I<C rangee: Agathe, Uopold, Cecile, Julien, Anna, Anil8. 2< r8ngee: Marcel, Conrad,
Colombe, Noelta, Andrea, Michel, Yvon - 1970
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The Family of Rolland Picard and Marguerite Lavigne

Rolland is the son of Johnny Picard and Georgianna Lalande and Mar­
guerite, the daughter of Daniel Lavigne and Cecilia Sloan. Rolland and Mar­
guerite were married on November 28, 1942, in St-Bernardin, by Father Labelle.

They have one son, Ronald, married to Leona Prevost. Ronald is a police of­
ficer. Ronald and Leona are now residing in Ottawa with their four children:
Robert, Sylvie, Andre and Marc.

Ronnie, Leona, Roberl, Sylvie, Andre, Marc, Marguerite, Rolland· 1986

Rolland worked in general trucking until 1952. He hauled milk for Carnation
Milk Co. of Alexandria for 9 years. He then worked as foreman for the United
Counties of Prescott and Russell for 22 years, until his retirement.

Rolland and Marguerite enjoy gardening. Rolland is a real handyman; he
spends most of his spare time in his shop. They also enjoy music and the company
of their family and friends. For 10 years, they have regularly followed their
grandehildren, The Picard Family Band, as they toured the area. Rolland never
misses an opportunity to join in, on the fiddle, with his grandson, Marc.
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Ronnie, Marc, Rolland

The Family of John Robert Pickering I and Fanny McNally

The Reverend John Robert Pickering went from England to Ireland, then
came to Canada with his five brothers. They landed in Kingston, possibly in the
1840's. His five brothers moved near Toronto. John Robert came to Riceville,
where he was a pioneer farmer, and also one of the very first, (if not the first),
Methodist minister.

On June 18, 1847, John Robert married Fanny McNally (April 16, 1826).
They had a family of rune:
William Henry (1848) (first marriage - Mary Ann Campbell) -- Alice and

Anneta, (second marriage - Charlotte Fleming) -- Fred, Charlotte and Maude
Margaret Ann, died four years of age, Jan. 23, 1854
Hannah Maria (1851-1891) (John McLean) -- Margaret and John William

(1891 - only lived one day)
John Robert II (1854-1886) (Margaret Ann Beattie) -- James Wesley, Wil-

burn Alexander, Mildred Annie and John Robert III
Mary Jane (1856-1875), died age 18 years
James Alexander (1859-1868), died age nine years
Harriet Frances (1861), died in California
Ann Isabell (1863-1893) (John Mclean, her late sister's husband)



Wesley Edward (Frances Jane Whelehan) -- John R., James Ethelbert
(Leona Helena Schoof), William Henry (Ada Wilmona Brown) and Margaret
Fern (Ralph Elmer Boller).

John R. Pickering] died March 30, 1894, age 75 years, and Fanny McNally
died June 21, 1905, age 79 years. They are buried in the Riceville Baptist Church
Cemetery, with their children James A., Mary Jane and Margaret Ann.

The Family of William Henry Pickering

William Henry (1848) was the son of John Robert Pickering and Fanny Mc­
Nally. He married Mary Ann Campbell.

He was a cabinetmaker in Riceville. He later movcd to Vankleek Hill. He
and Mary Ann had two daughters:

Alice (1874-1937) (William Flood) -- Wilfred; Anneta (1876) (William J.
Mennie).

Mary Ann died in 1877, probably in childbirth. William later married Char­
lotte Fleming. They had a family of three:

John Fred (1882-1901), died age 21 years; Charlotte (1884-1903), died age 19
years; Estella Maude (1887) (Edgar D. Summers) -- two children.

William Henry died April 14, 1902, at the age of 54 years and Charlotte, July
4, 1893, at the age of 42 years. They are buried in the Riceville Baptist Church
Cemetery.

The Family of John Robert Pickering II and Margaret Ann Beattie

Annie Moore, Fern Pickering Baker, Mildred

Alexander
-- Wesley

Kathleen

John Robert II was born May 11,1854, a fourth child to John Robert Sr. and
Fanny McNally. On March 3, 1878, he married Margaret Ann Beattie.

John Robert took a very
active part in the Riceville'·
Methodist Church which, by;
that time, ehanged to the'
United Church. He was in-"
strumental in getting the new'
ehurch built.

John Robert and Mar-'
garet Ann Beattie's ehildren
were:

James Wesley (Catherine ,-
Gertrude Dixon)

Wilburn
(Annie Moore)
Alexander and
Rhena May
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Mildred Annie (1884) married William Franklin on March 3, 1901. They
were farmers. They had four ehildren: Riehard Ernest (Ernie) (1909-1973) (Mary
Patterson) -- three children; Charles Robert (1912-1973) (Marion Ferguson).
Marion died in 1972, one year after they married.; Ada Annie (1913) (Westwood
Franklin). They married in 1932 and had three children. He died in 1986.;
Florenee Mildred (April 6, 1918) died April 13, 1930.

John Robert [JI (Mina Waddell) -- Margaret Mary, John Nathan and Leslie
James.

John Robert II died Dec. 15, 1886, age 32 years, and was buried in the
Rieeville Baptist Cemetery. Margaret Ann (Maggie) died May 7, 1931, age 77
years. She is buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

The Family of James Wesley Pickering and Catherine Dixon

James Wesley (1879), oldest son
of John Robert Piekering II and Mar­
garet Ann Beattie, married Catherine
Gertrude Dixon (1882) in 1918.

James Wesley was very aetive in ~;

the Riceville Church. He was a Sun­
day Sehool teacher and superinten-·
dent. On many occasions, he led
prayer meetings.

They had one daughter, Mar­
garet Fern (1922), who married Frank
Orval Baker in 1962.

James Wesley died in 1928 and
Catherine Gertrude, in 1960. They are
buried in Franklin's Corners
Cemetery.

Maggie (John Roben), Mildred,
Gertrude (James) (Fern), James Wesley

The Family of Wilburn Alexander Pickering and Annie Moore

Wilburn Alexander (1881), second son of Robert Pickering II and Margaret
Ann Beattie, married Annie Moore in 1916.

He was a farmer in Riceville. He was also very active in all kinds of church
work. He was a Sunday School teacher and superintendent.

They had two children:
Wesley Alexander (1918-1943). Wesley was a member of the air force; he

was killed overseas during WWII.
Kathleen Rhena May (1919-1985) (Lome Leafloor) -- Lome and Hillis.
Wilburn Alexander died in May, 1922, and Annie died March 17, 1983. They

are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.
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The Family of John Robert Pickering III and Mina Waddell

John Robert III

John Robert III (May 9, 1886), son of John
Robert Pickering and Margaret Ann Beattie, married
Mina Waddell on Aug. 17, 1915.

John Robert was a high school teacher. He later
became a public school inspector. Mina was a music
teacher.

They had three children:
Margaret Mary (Ray Lye) -- six children. Mar­

garet was a high school teacher.
John Nathan (1920-1985) (Rhonda Moult) -- two

children. John was an electrical engineer.
Leslie James (1923-1986) (Mary Lou Lazier) -­

three children. Leslie was a high school guidance
teacher. He also undertook many duties in the Baptist
Church.

John Robert died June 28, 1950, and Mina, in
December 1979.

The Family of Wesley Pickering and Frances Jane Whelehan

Wesley Edward (1867), the youngest and ninth child of John Robert Picker­
ing and Fanny McNally, married Frances Jane Whelehan (1868), on April 22,
1891.

They farmed in Riceville. c••

They later moved to California, .
where he was a carpenter. Three
of their four children were born ,
here.

John R. (1892) (Florence
Lucille Arthur)

James Ethelbert (Bert)
(1895) (Leona Helena Schoof).
J ames and Leona died in the
United States.

William Henry (1899) (Ada
Wilmona Brown) three
children, living in B.C.

Margaret Fern (1905)
(Ralph Elmer BaUer, an under­
taker). Margaret was a music

Richard, John and Lucille Pickering,
Fern and Ralph Boller
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teaeher and played the organ at church. They had two sons.
Wesley died in December 1952, and Frances Jane, in October 1939. They are

buried in California.

La Famille Fran~ois Piette et Nathalie Vernier

Freres de Fran<;ois: Camille et Joseph

Fils de Fran<;ois:
Georges, marie ~ Donalda Cousineau
Delphis, marie aRosanna Laflamme
Napoleon, marie aCelina Duval
Joseph

FiUes de Fran<;ois:
Marie Louise, mariee aNoe Beaulieu
Rose Ida, mariee aRaoul Martin
Les enfanlS de Fran<;ois et de Nathalie ont tous ete baptises aFournier.

La Famille Delphis Piette et Rosanna Laflamme

Fils:
Donat (Ie 29 mai 1911), marie aAlice Levac. Donat a ete baptise Ii Fournier.
Lionel (Ie 31 avril 1914)
Lucien (Ie 10 juillet 1915), marie Ii Laurette Lalonde
Albert (Ie 29 juin 1922)
Andre (Ie 9 septembre 1931), marie aGisele Leroux

FiIles:
Irene (Ie 14 janvier 1913)
Marie Anne (Ie 6 juillet 1917), mariee aIsai"e Methot
Rosalia (Ie 17 mai 1920), mariee aLionel Levac
Albertine (Ie 21 septembre 1923), mariee aLaurent Borris
Adrienne (Ie 13 novembre 1925), mariee aAntonio Lalonde

La Famille Auguste et Delima (nee Cousineau) Poirier

Auguste, ne en 1866, est Ie fils d'Emilien Poirier et d'Anestasie Ranger. II
epouse en premieres noces Adelina Gauthier et en secondes noces Delima
Cousineau de Fournier, fiUe de Fran<;ois Cousineau et de Philomene Ranger.

De I'union d'Auguste et de Delima naissent:
Philomene (Alfred Groulx), Curran
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Delima

Virginie (Edmond Franche), Wendover
Emile, decede en bas age
Noe (Florida Cadieux), Curran
Arthur (Florida Desnoyers), Cornwall
Irene (Alphonse Faubert), Brownsburg
Ernest (Georgina Lalande), Fournier
Constance (Philippe Faubert), Cornwall
Rolland (Cecile Hamel), Moose Creek
Gilberte (Leonard Burelle), Embrun
Simone (Hormidas Mane), Cornwall
Gertrude (Andre Lalande), Cumberland.
Auguste et Delima s'installent a SI-Amour pour quelques annees. lis

demenagent ensuite aFournier oil Auguste sera boucher pendant vingt et un ans
(ou Neil Parker demeure presemement). lis achetent ensuite un 50 acres a
Alderic Deschamps dans la 15e concession, voisin de la ferme de John Brownrigg,
ferme qu'ils acheteront plus lard.

Auguste est decede Ie 3 decembre 1930, a I'age de 63 ans. Ernest prend alors
la releve surla ferme.

Delima se marie en secondes noces aHonore Brunet de St-Albert Ie 10 jan­
vier 1935.

Delima est decedee Ie 1er mai 1970, a('age de 91 ans. Auguste et Delima sont
inhumes aFournier.

La Famille Ernest et Georgina Poirier

Ernest, fils d'Auguste Poirier et de Delima Cousineau, est ne aFournier Ie 7
septembre 1905. En 1932, il epouse Georgina Lalande, (ilk d'Auguste Lalande et
de Marie-Louise Nicholas de Fournier.

Apres leur mariage, Ernest ct Georgina exploilenl un 50 acres achete a
Alderic Deschamps, Ie lot 4 dans la 15e concession. Trois ans plus tard, ils
aehetent un autre 50 acres de terre a John Brownrigg. (eet automne-la, les prix
sont a Ja baisse; l'avoine se vend 40¢ Ie minot.) En 1957, leur fils Simon epouse
Annette Mainville et achete la ferme de son pere. Ernest et Georgina laissent la
maison au jeune couple et . .
demenagent un peu plus loin,
sur un 50 acres achete a
Cyprien Nicholas, Ie lot 2 de
la 14e concession, sur Ie
chemin de Fournier. Ernest
continue a travailler avec
Simon.

Le 28 aout 1975, iJ vend
ses vaches. II a 70 ans. Le temps des rains -1950

Brnest, Marguerile-Rose, Simone, Simon
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Toutefois, Ernest continue a travailler. II est tres actif sur sa propriete: it cultive
un grand jardin, r~pare les clotures, etc... II aime bien donner un coup de main
sur la ferme. En 1976, its visitent l'Ouest canadien avec Roch et Desneiges
Latreille, voyage bien merite apres toutes ces annees de travaiL

Ernest et Georgina ont qualre enfants:
Simon (Annette Mainville) -- 6 gar~ons, une fille
Simone (Jean-Marie Denis) .- 2 garc;ons, 3 flUes
Marguerite-Rose (Claude Lanthler) -- 2 gar~ons, une fille
Huguette (Roger Parent) -- 2 gar~ons, 3 fiUes.
Leur famille compte aussi 20 petits-enfants et 18 arrierc-petits-enfants.
Ernest et Georgina vont celebrer, en octobre 1992, leur 60e anniversaire de

manage.

Simone, Simon, Georgina, Ernest, Marguerite-Rose, Huguelte ·1990

La Famille Simon et Annette Poirier

Simon est Ie fils d'Ernest Poirier et de {'
Georgiana Lalande. Le 1er juin 1957, it epouse
Annette Mainville, fille d'Armand Mainville et
de Laura Villeneuve de St-Isidore.

De leur union naissent sept enfants:
Guylain, Lielle, Yves, Fran«ois, Joel, Denis et
Dominique. Six petits-enfants viennent s'ajouter
a la famille: Marc, Chantal, Valerie, Eric, Maxi­
me et Karine.

Simon et Annetle demeurent toujours sur la
ferme paternelle qu'ils ont achetee en 1957.
Cette ferme s'est, depuis, agrancl.ie de beaucoup.
lIs possedent maintenant 375 acres et en louent
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65. Aujourd'hui, cette fer me est connue sous Ie nom de Ferme A. S. Poirier & Fils
inc. Fran~ois et Nicole travaillent egalement acetle ferme laitiere qui compte 95
vaches laitieres et beaucoup d'autres animaux.

Simon et Annette aiment beaucoup la terre. lis se sont toujours devoues a
elever leurs enfants et sont tres fiers d'eux. Annette a toujours seconde son mari a
la ferme. En ses moments de loisirs,
elle fait de la peinture et de la couture.
Elle airne voir Ies gens heureux autour
d'elle. Actif de nature, Simon aime se
devouer pour la communaute. Depuis
dix-sept ans, il siege comme conseiller
et sous-prefet a la municipalite de
Plantagenet- Sud. II est aussi membre
fondateur du Club Optimiste de Four­
nier. II a ete directeur de la
Cooperative avicoJe de St-Isidore,
directeur du comite de credit de la
Caisse populaire de Fournier et a
participe a beaucoup d'autres
activites.

Trois generations de cultivateurs Poirier
Ernest, Simon, Fran~ois . 1990

Fran~ois, Guylain, Dominique, Simon, Joel, Annette, Yves, LielJe, Denis
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Simon et Annette aiment rencontrer les gens, dialoguer avec eux et leur ser­
rer la main. lis sont fiers de leur belle famille el de leur exploit agricole. lis
prendront bientol une retraite bien meritee.

La Famille Fran~ois et Nicole Poirier

..
Fran\ois el Nicole (Kanne)

Fran~ois, tils de Simon Poirier et d'Annette Mainville, nalt a Fournier Ie 30
novembrc 1963. II fait ses etudes primaires aFournier et aSt-Isidorc et ses etudes
secondaires aPlantagenet. Nicole estla tiUe de Lionel Pitre et de Madeleine Dore
de Lemieux. ElJe fail ses etudes primaires it Moose Creek, a Cornwall et a St­
Isidore et poursuit ses etudes secondaires aPlantagenet.

Le 10 aout 1984, Fran~ois et Nicole s'epousent en l'eglise de St-Isidore. lis
sont les heureux parents de Karine, nee Ie 22 novembrc 1989, et de Sebastien, ne
Ie 8 decembre 1991.

Tres jeune, Fran~ois

travaille a la fer me pater­
nelle. En 1978, il qultte
I'ecole pour se Mvouer a
temps plein a la ferme de ses
parents. En 1988, Fran~ois et
Nicole s'etablissent sur Ie lot
4 de la 14e concession,
voisins de la ferme pater­
nelle, entreprise qu'ils
desirent un jour acheter. En
1988, Nicole vient seconder
son maTi et ses beaux-parents
aux travaux agricoles.

La Famille Yves et Sandra (nee Villeneuve) Poirier

Yves est Ie fils de Simon Poirier et d'Annelle Mainville de Fournier. Le 7
mai 1983, il epouse Sandra Villeneuve, fille de Jean-Claude Villeneuve et de
Madeleine Pion de Casselman.

Yves et Sandra ont deux enfants: Valerie, nee Ie 25 avril 1988, et Eric, ne Ie
29 janvier 1990.

Yves complete ses etudes aI'Ecole secondaire de Plantagenet. Il obtient en­
suite un certificat en soudure du College Algonquin, a Hawkesbury. Sandra
complete scs etudes aI'Ecole secondaire de Casselman.

En 1990, Yves et Sandra se construisent a un mille it rouest du village de
Fournier. Yves travaille it son compte et Sandra est serveuse atemps partie!.
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Sandra (Eric). Valerie. Yves

Quatre generations de Poirier
Simon, Yves (Eric), Ernest

The Family of Victor Potvin and Lucy Scully

Victor (Vic) (May 23, 1916), son of Dolphis Potvin and Dora Tremblay,
came from South India (Limoges). He married Lucy Scully in 1945. Lucy,
daughter of John Scully and Mary McMahon, came from Calabogic.

Victor and Lucy and their family
moved to Riceville in 1971. At that time,
Vic had a garbage pick.up run, (the area
east of Ottawa), which he covered for four
years with his sons. He opened a body shop
in Riceville. Some of his sons worked with
him until he retired in 1985.

Vic and Lucy have a family of tive
boys:

Gary (Diane Laframboise), Ottawa -­
Allan

Bryan (Francine Cleroux), Riceville -­
Cory and Chad

Malcolm (Carole Rohrer), Ottawa --
Geoffrey, Christine Lucy and Vic
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Wayne, single, deceased
Marc (Doreen Dyet), Ottawa.
Vic and Lucy are retired but are kept very busy with their children,

grandchildren and one great-granddaughter, Crystal Potvin.

The Family of Bryan Potvin and Francine Cleroux

Bryan, son of Victor Potvin and Lucy Scully, was born April 12, 1951. In
1973, he married Francine Cleroux (1954), daughter of Theodore Cleroux and
Lena Leblond, in 1973.

Bryan had a garbage pick-up run with his father for a number of years. He
came to Riceville in 1971.

When the body shop opened, Bryan worked with his dad and brothers. The
garage is now operated by Bryan. Francine is a cook at the Outaouais Golf Club in
Rockland.

Bryan and Francine have two sons, Corey and Chad, both attending
Plantagenet High School.

On May 29, 1987, Bryan and Francine lost a portion of their home, as the
result of a fire which gutted the interior of the building. Following the fire, when
they were doing repairs, they found a 1892-1893 tavern licence issued by Frank
Molloy to David Scott. (Ninety dollars was the statutory duty paid on May 23,
1892.) They also have a piece of The Sentinel newspaper dated Nov. 25, 1924.
These were found in the walls of the house which had once been a hotel.

The Family of Leonard Presley and Nellie Collings

Leonard (1889-1963) was the son of George Presley and Letitia Kelly of
Conc. 10, North PlantageneL He and his wife, Nellie, lived north of the village of
Riceville, on the right hand side, where Trevor Baker resides. Leonard was a cat­
tle drover.

Leonard and Nellie had three sons:
Warren, joined the Royal Canadian Air Force and made a career of military

life.
Mu rray, died young.
Hilliard, known to many as Len, took basic training in Cornwall, Royal

Canadian Army Medical Corps. He went to Ottawa and was employed for several
years as an orderly at the Ottawa Civic Hospital.

Leonard and Nellie are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.
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The Proudfoot Family

The name Proudfoot is found in the early records of both England and Scot­
land, and between 1584 and 1650, the name appears in Ireland as well. The Proud­
foot coat of arms is an authentic, registered armorial bearing, which is a remnant
of the Age of Chivalry when coats of arms were used to designate the bearer's
position in the feudal society. or some particular honour conferred upon him.

The connection between the name Proudfoot and the leg armour in the Coat
of Arms seems obvious but whether the name originated from the arms or the
arms from the name is anybodys guess. It has been said that the name originated
from the pride with which the [JIst Proudfoot regarded his foot, encased in ar­
mour, with a polished and very shiny spur.

The Proudfoots in the following story are descendants of the Proud foots who
lived in Dumfrieshire, Scotland.

The Family of James and Janet Proudfoot

James Proudfoot (grandfather of C. F. Proudfoot) was one of four brothers
who came to Canada from the town of Moffat in Dumfrieshire, Scotland, in 1831.
Two of the brothers stopped in the Maritimes. Alexander went to Fort Coulonges
on the Quebec side, and James came to what was then known as the Caledonia
Flats. We assume he was aecompanied by his wife, Janet Robertson, as they had
one child who had died in Scotland.

The children of James and Janet were:
Jean (1827). Jean died in Scotland at an early age.
George (1829) (Catherine Burns). George died In 1900; he is buried in

Fenaghvale Cemetery.
David (1832). David worked for many years as a millwright with the Mc­

Laren Brothers of Buckingham. In later years, he married the lady with whom he
had boarded for many years. Her first name was Catherine but last name un­
known.

Agnes (1834). Agnes married James Paisley. They lived in Hamilton.
Mary (1836). Mary married Henry Bradley.
James (1838). James married Sarah Frances Bradley.
Robert (1841). Robert spent most of his working days in the mining districts

of Duray and Teeluride in Colorado.
Thomas (1844). Thomas married Mary Lendrum, whose family lived along

the Nation River. The couple lived on the west side of Fournier, where he had a
blacksmith shop. Their children were: Percy, Mamie, Gertrude and Thomas.

The story is told that James Proudfoot, on the night before he left for Scot­
land, carried the works of an eight-day clock a distance of nine miles down to the
seaport. The works are of solid brass, all chiscUed out by hand, by a man by the
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name of Millar in Moffat, Scotland. On the face of the clock are scenes from four
continents and a scene from the Lady of the Lake. This tall red clock is still kept
running by Robert Proudfoot of Kingston, a descendant of James Proudfoot.

After coming to Caledonia, James was employed by John Chesser, after
which he purchased the claim of Alfred Chesser to one hundred acres of govern­
ment land (east half of Lot 16, Cone. 5, Township of Caledonia, currently owned
by C. B. Proudfoot). (Several members of the Chesser family were victims of the
cholera epidemic of 1832.)

During his lifetime, James Proudfoot held the position of postmaster at his
home for about 15 years, and he was township treasurer from the beginning of the
municipal system until his death. During the last ten years of his life, he was blind
but this did not stop him from pursuing his favourite hobby of repairing clocks,
often driving miles by horse and buggy to repair a clock for a friend or neighbour.

James Proudfoot died in 1887, at the age of 87, and his wife, Janet, died in
1867, at the age of 62. They are buried in Fenaghvale Cemetery. Their third son,
James, remained on the homestead.

The Family of James and Sarah Frances Proudfoot

James Proudfoot (1838-1915), third son of James and Janet Proudfoot, mar­
ried Sarah Frances Bradley (1845-1920), daughter of William Bradley and In­
nocent Ellen Downing.

Their children were:
Ellen Downing (1864­

1885). Ellen married Charles
W. Franklin in 1884. They
lived at Franklin's Corners for
only six months before she
died of inflammation of the
bowels (what we now call ap­
pendicitis).

Janet (1866-1957). Janet
lived on the homestead most
of her life except for a few
years she spent out west with
her brother, George.

James (1868-19--). James
was a cheesemaker. He made James and Sarah Frances

cheese at Stardale, then at
East Templeton, Que. He married Margaret Smith and they moved to Manville,
Alberta, where he lived until his death. Their children were: Fred, James, Frances,
Dorothy and NeIJ.
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William (1870-1951). William married Mary Wilson of Riceville. They setLled
along the Nation River, on a farm bought from Robert Lendrum. Life beside the
Nation River had its drawbacks, especially in the spring of the year, when the
countryside was ravaged by the yearly flood. The following excerpts from Mary
Proudfoot's diary give us an idea of some of the problems:

"April 6, 1928, Good Friday. Today the water started to rise and it came up
very fast. Will and Charlie (Renwick) were able to walk to the barn Friday night
but by Saturday noon the water was into the barn and up on the horses and cows.
The pigs were put up on Saturday morning, but hens were left until night and
many of them were drowned, as they couldn't make it to the roosts. On Easter
Sunday the weather was wild, so windy the men couldn't go to the barn to do
chores, and the water was nine inches higher than ever before. The wind blew
away gates, the shed doors, the steps, and even the insides of the Parliament
Buildings (the fancy name sometimes used for the outside toilet). On Easter Mon­
day the wind was still blowing and they couldn't go to the barn until noon. By
April 13th, after the flood was down, Leonard Presley and Wilfred Seguin were
down to buy calves. There was quite a snowstorm on the 13th. March 23, 1938.
Water started to rise today and never came up so fast before. They put up cows,
also hens and pigs. On March 24, they put up the horse but the water came up on
him so they put him higher on the hay in the barn. The poor horse hung herself the
morning the water went out of the barn. This flood of 1938 was the highest flood
ever."

Mary Proudfoot died in 1943, at the age of 71 years, and William, in 1951, at
the age of 81 years.

David Henry (1872-1961). David Henry moved to Nelson, B.C., in 1897. He
married Ruth Hilder Thelin. They remained in Nelson for the rest of their lives.
They had a family of six: David, James, Robert, Edith, Genevieve and Carol.

Robert (1874-1898). Robert died at the age of 24 years from inflammation of
the bowels (appendicitis). Even the best doctors didn't know what to do for this
common ailment.

Philip Bradley (1876-1949). Philip Bradley taught in a rural school near
Vankleek Hill and sold insurance for the Glengarry Mutual Fire Insurance Com­
pany. He earned enough to help pay for his course in dentistry in Toronto. After
graduation, he practised his profession in the town of Russell, Ontario. He mar­
ried Edith Downing, daughter of John Philip Downing. They had three children:
James, Bradley and Dorothy. His dentist's chair and tools have been donated to
the Russell Museum by his daughter, Dorothy Smith, of Ottawa.

George Thomas (1878-1973). George Thomas farmed in Alberta for most of
his adult life. In his later years he retired, first to the village of Dorothy, then to
Hanna, Alberta. Many times he spent the winter months on the homestead, with
his sister, Floss.

Lome (1880-1977). In 1903, Lome left for the west on a harvest excursion
and for $10.00 went as far as Regina, Sask., where he attended Normal Schoo!. He
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Charles F. and Cora

taught school for a few years then left that profession to homestead full time in the
Chinook district of Alberta. In 1917, he married Hilda Mary Roberts. In 1921,
Lome was eJected to the legislature of Alberta for the constituency of Acadia, and
he remained their MLA. for 14 years. Always active in his community, he served
as secretary of the school division and secretary of the village of Chinook for many
years. The couple had five ehildren: Kathleen, James, Eileen, Robert and William.

Flora Agnes (1883-1979). Floss, as she was commonly known, was trained as
a nurse, but her career was shortened when she was ealled home to care for her
sister. She spent the rest of her life on the homestead until, for health reasons, she
moved to the Maxville Manor.

Charles Franklin (1885-1972). Charles Franklin married Cora Kelly (1888­
1975), daughter of John and Nellie Kelly, who lived east of Fournier.

Nellie Maria (1888-1962). Nellie married Earl Hunler in 1924. They farmed
all their lives near Vankleek Hill.

The first wheels in Caledonia were a pair of carl wheels which James Proud­
foot purchased from a man named Davis, and for some time he was the only man
in this locality to enjoy the possession of these luxurious, but extravagant articles.
He was said to have been very proud of them.

James and Sarah Frances are buried in FenaghvaJe Cemetery.

The Family of Charles F. and Cora Maria Proudfoot

The youngest son of James and Frances Proudfoot, Charles F., was next to
take over the homestead. He was married Lo Cora Kelly in 1914. Together with
their family, they engaged in a variety of enterpriscs to make a living. They raised
and milked dairy canle, raised bcef cattle, pigs, hens, sheep, and even kept bees.
As well as various other crops, growing cer­
tified seed potatoes was one of their main
sources of income. In 1962, Charles received
the Master Seed Growers Award from the On­
tario Potato Growers Association. Always ac­
tive in the community, he served as secretary
of the local school section for many years and
as well, was an agent for the Glengarry Mutual
Fire Insurance Company.

During his lifetime, Charles enlarged the
farm by purchasing several other parcels of
land. From concise records kept by Charles
and Cora Proudfoot, some interesting details
of costs were noted. Some examples from the
expenses for the year 1914 were: hay seed 1O~

a lb., plough point 35~, 44 Ibs. of wire for
$1.36, horse shod 25~. a pail 50(t, a pair of
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boots $2.25, butter 28¢ a lb., and 4 C<lns of salmon 901t. In 1914, a carpenter and
two helpers were paid a total of $7.60 for a day's work, and the regular workers
were paid an average wage of $1.00 a day, In the May receipts for 1914, two calves
brought $10.00, one cow $75.00 and wool from the sheep brought W¢ a pound.
One call from Dr. MacIntosh in 1916 cost $4.50, a quart of berries cost 25¢, and to
have dinner at Riceville and feed the horse cost a total of 501t.

Thc children of Charles and Cora Proudfoot were:
Robert (1914) (Margaret Richardson) -- Patricia, Martha, Robert
James (1916) (Eve Barltrop) -- Blake, John, Laura Jane
Helen (1917) (Albert McNabb), deceased -- James, Catherine, William,

Judith
John (1919) (Coral Terry) -- Barry, Carlotta
Lome (1921) (Stephany Markevich) -. Kenneth, Carol
William (1923) (Ruby Reid) -- Hugh, Dwight, Ian, Bonnie
Ruth (1925) (Stewart Montgomery) -- Faye, Elaine, Robert
Charles (1926) (Adeline Colbran) -- Philip, David
George (1928) (Anne Wilson) -- Hunter (deceased), Eric, Ruth, Pauline
David (1931) (Dorothy Pagan)
Frances (1933) (Michael Hallam) -. Douglas, Michael.
In 1951, Charles F. and Cora built a house on the north side of County Rd. 10

and retired to it, leaving his son, George, and his wife, Anne, in charge of the
farm. In 1954, the original house burned and a new double house was built, with
George and family living in one part of the house and Floss in the other part.

In 1956, George and Anne moved to Sudbury, and in January 1957, Charles,
Adeline and their two small SOns moved to the homestead to operate the farm.

On March 28, 1964, Charles F. and Cora celebrated their fiftieth wedding an­
niversary at the Anglican Hall in Vankleek Hill, with a family dinner followed by
an Open House.

Charles F. died in 1972 and Cora, in 1975. They are buried in Fenaghvale
Cemetery.

In 1975, their house was sold to Beverly and Nieole Brown.
Of the family of Charles F. and Cora, only two remain in this locality.

The Family of Charles and Adeline Proudfoot

In 1949, Charles, the sixth son of Charles F. and Cora Proudfoot, married
Adeline Colbran, daughter of Simon and Violet Colbran of Maxville.

Charles and Adeline bought a farm near Crysler, where they farmed until
1957. They then sold that farm and returned to the homestead on the Ridge Road.
The main enterprises on this centennial farm are now dairying and the growing of
corn, grain and hay.
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Like his father, Charles was interested in the Glengarry Mutual Fire In­
surance Company and served as a director for several years. When not busy with
her farm activities, Adeline enjoys curling; knitting is another favourite hobby.

Charles and Adeline have two children:
Philip (1952). Philip lived for 18 years in Sault Ste. Marie. He was employed

with Bell Canada, and in 1990, was transferred to Ottawa. He has taken up
residence near home, on the Ridge Road.

David (1956). David farms with his parents on the homestead.

David, Philip, Adeline, Charles

The Family of William and Ruby Proudfoot

In 1943, William moved to the Nation River to farm with his uncle, William
Proudfoot Sr., and in 1946 was married to Ruby Alma Reid.

Dairying was the main enterprise. The
milk was taken to the Riceville cheese factory,
later sent to the Carnation plant in
Alexandria, then to the Fournier cheese fac­
tory. (For a few years the road to the Nation
River wasn't ploughed in the winter; later the
neighbours formed an association and paid to
keep the road open all winter.)

In 1957, William bought Roy Reid's farm
near the village, and in 1961, he sold the farm
on the Nation River to Eugene Maisonneuve
and bought the Metcalfe farm near Riceville,
which was then owned by Marcel Gadouas.

In 1975, the property on Lot 21, Cone. 6,
Township of Caledonia, was purehased and, Ruby and William
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in 1979, with the new house completed, William and Ruby moved there to live,
while continuing to farm in partnership with their son, Ian. They enjoy travelling.
Ruby continues to be active in the Women's Institute; she has served at branch,
district and area levels.

William and Ruby have four children:
Hugh Gordon (1948). Hugh lives in Sharbot Lake and works in Ottawa.
Dwight Roy (1952) (Anne Stewart) -- Meaghan (1980), Rachel (1983)
Ian William (1954) (Ruth Bradley) -- Melanie (1981), Todd (1984)
Bonnie Jean (1959). Bonnie married Claude St-Denis. They have two

children: Thomas (1984) and Amanda (1986). After graduating as a legal assistant
in 1979, Bonnie was employed by the Alberta government for two years. Claude
and Bonnie then moved to Dawson City, Yukon, where Bonnie was mining re­
corder for the Federal government for three years. At that time she obtained a
transfer to Ottawa and they returned to live in Alfred.

lan, Bonnie, Hugh, Anne, Dwighl, Ruby, William

The Family of Ian and Ruth Proudfoot

In 1979, Ian married Ruth Bradley, daughter of LDrne and Erma Bradley of
Fenaghvale. After graduating from high school Ian farmed in partnership with his
father until 1990, when Ian and Ruth bought the properties at Riceville and began
operating under the name Nation Valley Farm. The farm at Lot 7, Concession 12,
was first settled by Henry Metcalfe and family. The original farmhouse, which was
just south of the present house, was demolished in 1963. The first school in
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Riceville was located near the Metcalfe
home and a store was operated at the
homestead until 1889, when it was moved
to Riceville.

lohn Metcalfe built the present house
in 1919 and the barn in 1928. In 1980, a
major renovation was done to the barn. It
was raised and a new higher foundation
and floor were built. The outside of the
building was refinished with coloured tin.

Ruth is active in sports and the
Women's Institute and Ian serves as a
director of the Prescott-Russell Associa­
tion for the Mentally Retarded.

Ian and Ruth have two children
Melanie (1981) and Todd (1984).

Ian, Melanie, Ruth (Todd)

The Family of Dwight and Anne Proudfoot

In 1977, Dwight married
Anne Stewart, daughter of
James and Beatrice Stewart
of Pendleton. They built their
house on Lot 21, Cone. 6,
Township of Caledonia.

Dwight and Anne have
two children -- Meaghan
(1980) and Rachel (1983).

Dwight and Anne
operate their own insurance
and real estate brokerage in
Vankleek Hill. Keeping to
family tradition, one of the
companies they represent is
the Glengarry Mutual Fire In­
surance Company. Dwight
has served on the Prescott- •
Russell County School Board
and the Children's Aid
Society and they both volun­
teer at the Caledonia Com­
munity Centre.

Anne, Dwight, Rachel, Meaghan
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La Famille Claude Proulx et Johanne Major

Claude est Ie fils d'EucJide Proulx et de Lily Mousseau et Johanne, la mle d'­
Henri Major et de Jeannine Giroux.

Claude et Johanne ont fait leurs etudes elementaires aAlfred et leurs etudes
secondaires aPlantagenet. Johanne a ensuite suivi un cours de deux ans en super­
vision des services alimentaires au College de technologie agricole et alimentaire
d'Alfred.

Johanne travaille a Revenu Canada depuis trois ans et Claude est camion­
neur chez Ivaco depuis cinq ans.

Claude et Johanne ont demenage a Riceville en octobre 1986. Depuis leur
arrivee dans cette maison rustjque, ils y ont effectue une serie de changements
majeurs; cependant, Ie charme du foyer persiste.

Natives of Alfred, Claude Proulx and Johanne Major moved to Riceville in
October 1986. Since moving into this handyman's dream house, they have altered
many aspects of their home; however, its charm still transcends all changes.
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La Famille Michel et Carole Racine

Michel est Ie fils de Fernand
Racine et de Rollande Charbonneau.
Le 16 mai 1986, iJ epouse Carole
Bertrand, fiUe de Rene Bertrand et de
Laurette Seguin de Wendover.

De leur union naissent:
Annik, Ie 22 fevrier 1987
France, Ie 9 octobre 1990.

(France a personnifie l'Enfant Jesus a
I'occasion de Ja messe de Noel 1990.)

Michel et Carole demeurent a
Fournier depuis leur mariage. Michel
est mecanicien et Carole, reine du
foyer. lis aiment beaucoup Ie camping
et la peche sur glace.

Michel (France) el Carolc (Annik)

La Famille Olivier et Ch~ophee (Deschamps) Racine

Olivier est Ie fils de Pierre Racine et d'Henriette Caza et Cleophee, la fille
d'Augustin Deschamps et d'Henriette Leblanc de St-Isidore. Olivier et Cleophee
s'epousent aSHsidore en 1884.

Olivier et Cleophee

Aprcs leur mariage, Olivier et Cleophee elisent domicile dans la paroisse de
Fournier, comme cultivateurs. Ils demeurent dans la 16c concession, non loin de
I'ecole, de la fromagerie et du bureau de poste Val Franc.
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Comme Ie dit la fee, ils vecurent longtemps et eurent de nombreux eniants:
Jos~ph, Yvonne, Domesthilde, Celestin, Pierre, Cyprien, Xavier, Lumina, Bertha
et Etienne (Steven).

Joseph mariera Florence Lavigne en 1912, premier mariage en l'eglise de St­
Bernardin. TIs donneront naissance a quatre enfants: Raymond, Madeleine, Rita
et Guy.

Olivier et Cleophee sont inhumes aFournier..- ~~ {

Olivier, Joseph, Bertha, Etienne (Steven), C1eophee - 1915

The Reid Family

Origins of tbe Reid Clan in Scotland

The Reid family is a sept of the Robertson Clan in Scotland. A sept is a sub­
divison of a clan in ancient Scotland, based on the concept that all the subdivisions
of a clan are descended from a common ancestor.

The name Reid first appears in the 1700's as the surname of General John
Reid (1721), son of Alexander Robertson of Straloch. For over 300 years the
forefathers of this man called themselves Barons Ruach, or Roy, or Red, because
the family had red hair. The head of the family always used the surname
Robertson, until John began to use the name Reid (Red).

John Reid was educated in law at the University of Edinburgh. In 1745,
during the Jacobite uprising, he raised enough men from his father's estates to
earn himself a commission in Louden's Highland Regiment. He eventually
secured temporary command of the Royal Highland Regiment (Black Watch).
This happened after many adventures in his military career, such as: being taken
prisoner at the Baltle of Prestonpans (1745); capturing a Jacobite treasure chest
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that was landed by the French on the northern coast of Sutherland in 1746; being
wounded; and serving his regiment as a skilled soldier.

John Reid was an accomplished musician. While a senior officer in the Black
Watch, he set the words of the Garb of Old Gaul to music. This composition is a
Regimental March of the Black Watch. He left 52,000 pounds to the University of
Edinburgh in order to establish a professorship of music. An annual Reid concert
was to be held on his birthday (Jan. 13) in the Hall of Music (according to the
terms of his will). (This history was researched by James MacLaurin, son of Lilias
Reid MacLaurin.)

The Ulster-Scott Foundation of Northern Ireland reports the earliest record
of a John Reid was found in Kilrea Parish in the Heathmoney Rolls of 1663. These
rolls list early settlers from Scotland who paid a tax on each hearth or fireplace in
the home. ]t was thought likely that this John was the first settler in the area and
the one from whom all the Reids of Manock descended. One of the first to come
to Canada on Baird shipping lines was William Reid.

The Family ofWiUiam Reid and Catherine Watt

In 1836, William Reid (1800) and his wife, Catherine Watt (1796), came to
Canada from Manock of Derry, Ireland, and settled in Franklin's Corners.

Their children were:
Archibald (1822-1870). Archibald was buried in Franklin's Corners

Cemetery; William John (1829-1907) (Isabella Muir) (1835-1906); George (1834)
Jenette (or Janet) (1835). Jenette may have married a Wylie from

PIantagenet.; Robert (1837-1855); Mary J. (1839-1888). Mary J. may have married
an Anderson from Plantagenet.; Melissa (1844-1870).

William died in 1885, and Catherine, in 1878. They are buried in Franklin's
Corners Cemetery.

The Family of William John Reid and Isabella Muir

William John Reid came to Canada in 1836 as a little boy with his parents.
He married Isabella Muir who had come here from Glasgow, Scotland. They lived
and farmed at Franklin's Corners, Lot 5, Cone. 13. William John engaged exten­
sively in the lumber business. In his spare time, he served as municipal councillor
and school trustee. They had a family of 16 children:

Robert (1855-1860)
George W. (1857-1880)
Mary (1859) (George Bradley) -- Lawrence, Tommy, Mary, Lorne, George
Robert Thomas Archibald (1861-1942) (Janet Ellen Bradley) (1866-1948) --

David William, Mary Agnes, Lucy, Thomas Temple, Margaret, Richard, Leonard,
Inez
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John M. (1864-1952) (Anna Maria Nicholson) (1866-1944) -- Russell, Guy,
Roy, Samuel, Edith, Alma, Doris, Cameron

Gennet Ellen (1866)
Edmund (Ned) (1868-1943) (first marriage - Maggie Johnston) (1866-1890) .

- George, Maggie; (second marriage - Anna Belle Sanford) (1868-1954) -. Hazel,
Daniel, Sara, Frances, Ellis, Henry, Jessie, Beulah, Edna, Elsie, John, Ethel

Julia (1871-1886)
Catherine (1872) (Dan K.

Sinclair) -- Kenneth
Elizabeth (1873-1964)

(Neil Sinclair) -- John
Lilly (1876-1886), died at

the age of nine years and five
months

Henry (1879-1958)
(Florence Kinnear) (1884­
1962) .- Eric, Kenneth, Wes­
ley, Dolman, Thomas, Isabell,
Mabel

David (twin) (1888)
George (twin) (1888)
Maggie (1890)
William (1891).
William John Reid and

his wife, Isabella Muir, are
buried in Franklin's Corners William John and Isabella

Cemetery.

The Family of Edmund J. (Ned) Reid
<,

Edmund Reid and his family first lived on County Rd. No.9, below
Franklin's Corners (where Lila Howard now lives). He later switched farms with
his brother, Henry, and moved to Lot 5, Cone. 13, Franklin's Corners. He farmed,
and for many years, he drove the mail from Riceville, Fournier andSt. Isidore to
Maxville. He often changed horses at St. Isidore in order to give his horses a rest
and make better time. When cars came into use, the summer trips were easier and
took less time. Ned had the mail route for about 40 years, providing good service.

Edmund Reid and Maggie Johnston (1866·1890) had one son and one
daughter:

George (1888) first married Catherine Robertson. Their children were:
Eileen, Ian, Doreen, Catherine, Eleanor and Stanley. George later married Anna
Miller, and had two children: Emmerson and Evan. George is buried in Maxville.

Maggie (1890-1896).
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Edmund later married Anna Belle
Sanford (1868-1954). Their family was:

Hazel (1896-1970) (Albert Morrow) ­
- Sadie, Richard, Doris, Eleanor, William,
Gordon, Bert, Evelyn, Helen, Arthur,
Lloyd

Daniel (1898-1954) (Myrtle Renwick)
(1889-1973) -- Annie, James, Henry (1917­
1960), Leslie (1920), Harvey (1923-1927),
Gladys (1928-1986)

Sara Frances (1899-1984) (first mar- _,
riage - Wesley Alexander Cutt) (1894­
1952) -- Isabel, Eldon, Dorothy, Norman,
Elfa, Keith, Betty, Edith (Tena), Nelda; :'
(second marriage - Clifford Ryan)

Ellis (1900-1988) (first marriage - Ned and Anna Delle

Anne Stephens) -- Bernice; (second mar-
riage - Clara Siem) -- Carol-Anne (1943-1975)

Henry (1901-1989) (Mary Simpson) -- Murray, Samuel, Dorothy, Eddie,
Edna

Jessie (1904-1981) (Herb Lubitz) -- Elmer, Harvey, Greta
Beulah (1906-1987) (Vernon Scott) (1900-1968) -- William, Velma, Lome,

Betty, Harvey, Doreen, Irene, Marina, Hugh
Edna (1909-1981) (Harry Snider) -- Charles, Roy, Irene, Harry, Joan, Glen,

Carol, Gail, Wayne, Warren
Elsie (1912-1985)
John (1921-1985) (first marriage - Ella Mackie) -- Kenneth (second marriage

- Ella White)
Ethel (1925) (Lawrence MacLaurin) -- Mary, Peter, Elizabeth, David, Ian.
Edmund Reid, Maggie Johnston and Anna Belle Sanford are buried in

Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

The Family of Daniel Oscar Reid and Lilly Myrtle Renwick

Daniel O. Reid, son of Edmund J. Reid and Anna Belle Sanford, married
Lilly Myrtle Renwick, daughter of Henry Renwick and Annie Kelly, in 1915.

Their ehildren were:
Annie Elizabeth (1916) (first marriage - Lewis Hill) -- Lois Ann (1936), Clif­

ford Lewis (1940), Waller James (1943) (second marriage - Fred Mills)
James Henry (1917-1960) (Doris Matilda Quinn) (1921) -- Donald James

(1945), Marion Doris (1946)
Leslie (1920), died at eight months of age
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Harvey James (1922-1927)
Gladys Helen (1928-1986) (Claude A. Snider) -- Sharon Gladys (1956).
Daniel and Myrtle Reid are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

The Family of Henry James Reid and Mary Simpson

Henry James, son of Edmund J. and Anna Belle (Sanford) Reid, married
Mary Elizabelh Currie Simpson in 1925. After living in this area, they moved to
Langley, British Columbia. Their children were:

William Murray (1926) (Ann Cornsworth) (1926) -- Sandra (1947), John
(1952)

Samuel Sanford (1928) (Betty Sawchuck) (1924) -- Lome (1957), Darlene
(1960)

Dorothy Margaret (1931) (Albert Wienecke) (1920) -- Michael John (1958),
Terry Lee (1961)

Edmund John (1942) (Valerie Johnson) (1945) -- Starr Lynn (1962), Gary
(1966)

Edna Frances (1944) (Arthur Thatcher) (1933) -- Sharon Elaine.
Henry James and Mary Reid are buried in Langley, B.C.

The Family of Henry (Harry) Reid and Florence Maud Kinnear

Henry Reid, Son of William J. and
Isabella Reid, married Florence Maud
Kinnear in 1902. They lived on Lot 5,
Cone. 13, South Plantagenet Township, at
Franklin's Corners, until he switched farms
with his brother, Edmund, and moved one
farm north along County Road 9. They
lived there until retirement, when they
moved to the village of Riceville and left
their son, Thomas, on the farm.

Their children were:
Kenneth (1903) (Ilse Glasgow 1907-)

-- Lawrence, Wayne, Lois, Malcolm,
Carol, Linda. After his marriage at
Morewood in 1928, Kenneth made cheese
in Cannamore for a few years before
moving to western Canada.

Eric (1905)
Dolman (1907-1968) (Gertrude

Langford) -- Dianne, Kenneth, Linda,
Marilyn. Dolman served overseas in the
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army, then worked in the mines in northern Ontario.
Wesley (1909)
Elwood Neil (1912-1915)
Thomas Laird (1914-1958) (Gilda Gordon) (1925) -- Shirley, Ronald,

Deanna
Isabell (1916) (Willis Wilson) (1918-1977) -- Heather, John (Jack), Sharon
Mabel (1918-1952) (William Coleman). Mabel died in California.
Clayton Elwood (1920-1980) (Florence Cook) (1924) -- Alexandra Mae, Jane

Elizabeth. Clayton served in the Dental Corps in WWII and after discharge con­
tinued in dental work in Ottawa, until his death in 1980.

Henry Reid died in 1958 and Florence, in 1962. They are buried in Franklin's
Corners Cemetery.

The Family of Thomas Laird Reid and Gilda Naomi Gordon

In 1943, Thomas L. Reid, son of Henry and Florence Reid, married Gilda
Gordon, daughter of Norman and Nellie Gordon of Pendleton. They farmed at his
home farm, just north of Franklin's Corners. Some years later they moved to the
brick house next to the cemetery, where Thomas operated a feed and grinding
business. Later Thomas was employed by the South Plantagenet Rural Telephone
Co. In 1958, the family moved to Ottawa. Later in the same year, Thomas drowned
in the Nation River.

Their children were:
Shirley Linda (1944) (first marriage - Earl Elmer Clark) -- Kimberly Ann,

Connie Lynn; (second marriage - Wilson Guilford Freeman) -- Shane Whitman,
Craig Alan

Ronald Gordon (1945) (Valerie Gail Johnston) -- Thomas John, Jennifer
Grace. In 1990, Ronnie and Valerie moved from Ottawa to the Gordon farm on
Cone. 10, South Plantagenet Township.

Deanna Marjorie (1946) (Edward Kirk Gillings).
Thomas Laird Reid is buried in Westminster Cemetery.
In 1967, Gilda married Thomas Birch and moved to Bearbrook, Ontario.

The Family of John M. (Jack) Reid and Annie Maria Nicholson

John MacClelland Reid, son of William J. and Isabella (Muir) Reid, married
Annie Maria Nicholson, daughter of Henry Nicholson and Mary Hunter, in 1888.
They lived on the Nicholson farm, Lot 14, Cone. 13, South Plantagenet. Later they
bought Lot 9, Cone. 14, from George W. Reid and moved there to farm.

Their children were:
Russell (1889-1977) (Mary Ann Clemens) (1893-1959) -- Kathalean, Joyce,

Eldon Ray, Ivan
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Guy (twin) (1891-1962) (Vera
Hilda Hobbs) (1895-1978) -- Lilias

Roy (twin) (1891-1986) (fust
marriage - Helena Hunter) (1894­
1%6) -- Sherwood, Hilton, Mansell,
Eunice, Hunter, Lorne, Ruby, Gor­
don, Jean, Joan (second marriage ­
Mary MacLeod Urquhart) (1894­
1980)

Samuel Lloyd (1893-1957), single.
Samuel Lloyd lived at home and
farmed all his life.

Edith (1896-1954) (Harry
Hunter) (1893-1983) Bernice
(Robert Wilson), Harold (Shirley
Howes), John Hugh. They farmed
near Vankleek Hill.

Violet Alma (1900-1976) (Walter
Hayes) (1891-1978). They lived near
Vankleek Hill. They are buried in John M. and Annie Maria

Cassburn Cemetery.
Doris Gertrude (1903-1963) (Morris Flynn) (1900-1974) -- Helen (Fred Bed­

dington) -- Jackie, Dean. Doris was a schoolteacher and taught many years in
Thurso, Que. She and Morris are buried in Gore Cemetery.

50th wedding anniversary
Doris, Russell, John M., Annie Maria, Roy, Alma, Sam,

Edith, Cameron, Guy - 1938
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First row: Bruce, Ann, Jimmy. Second row: Vera,
Eleanor, Lilias, Guy

Cameron Henry (1906·1962) (first marriage - Henrietla McNeely) (1904­
1959) -- Annie Laurie (second marriage - Evelyn Ashton). Cameron farmed, then
served in WWII. He was living in Toronto when he died.

John M. and Annie Maria celebrated their fiftieth wedding anniversary in
1938.

John M. and Annie Maria are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

The Family of Guy Reid and Vera Hobbs

Guy, son of John M. and Annie Maria Reid, was married to Vera Hilda
Hobbs. Vera grew up on her parents' farm on the 7th Line in Goulbourn
Township in Carleton County. She attended Ottawa Normal School and taught
elementary school in Carleton County and in Riceville.

Guy and Vera Reid's farm was located on the east half, Lot 12, Conc. 13.
They had a dairy farm and produced milk for [he loeal cheese factory. In the
spring he made maple syrup from their maple bush. Guy was treasurer of the
Riceville United Church
and the Riceville cheese
factory. They had one
daughter:

Lilias Alma. Lilias
married George Munro
MacLaurin in 1946. They
had four children: James
(Sheilah Kettles); Eleanor
(John Birch) Cailin,
Craig; Ann (Tim Dwyre) -­
Ruth, Daniel, David; and
Bruce.

Guy and Vera are
buried In Franklin's
Corners Cemetery.

The Family of Roy Reid and Helena Hunter

Roy, son of John M. and Annie Maria (Nicholson) Reid, married Helena
Hunter, daughter of Hugh and Adelia (Cross) Hunter.

Roy and Helena slarted married life on Lot 14, Concession 13, where they
farmed until 1932, then moved to Lot 8, Cone. 12, north of Riceville. (This farm
was previously owned by Jim Scott.) They produced milk for the local cheese fac-
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tory and raised pigs, hens and geese;
tirewood was cut in the winter and
maple syrup was made in the spring.

For a few years, Roy drove the
mail from the post offices in Riceville,
Fournier and St. Isidore to the train in
Maxville and returned with the incom­
ing mail. In the winter he travelled by
horses and sleigh; the mail had to go,
regardless of the weather. Extra
money was earned by bringing pas­
sengers to and from the train. Most of
the time, especially on holidays, two
seats were needed on the sleigh. Roy,
a horse lover, had a favourite horse, a
handsome one called Pete, that was
something of a show horse. He always
put on a fancy step as he passed

Roy and Helena through the villages.
Roy and Helena retired to the

MacIntosh house in Riceville. The farm was sold to their daughter and son-in-law,
Ruby and William Proudfoot. Helena died in 1966.

Roy married Mary MacLeod Urquhart. When she died in 1980, he lived
alone and maintained his own home. At the age of 93, he decided to give up driv­
ing his own car because of failing eyesight. He died in 1986, in his 95th year, after a
short illness.

Roy and Helena Reid are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery. Mary
MacLeod Urquhart is buried in Tayside Cemetery.

Roy and Helena had a family of 11 children:
Sherwood Hugh (1917) (tirst marriage - Doris Colton) (second marriage ­

Agnes Tanner Smith). Sherwood was a cheesemaker in Riceville, Skye, Dunbar
and Navan. Later he was employed by Bell Canada. He finished his career as a
stationary engineer in Ottawa. He was with the Canadian Air Force in WWII.

Hilton Roy (1919) (Norma Dale) -- Linda, Dale. Hilton spent most of his
working career with Nestle Co. in Chesterville, Ont.

Mansell John (1920) (Dorothy Kinnear), Metcalfe -- Wayne, Bruce. Mansell
was employed by Ottawa Hydro and had, as well, his own appliance business in
Metcalfe.

Eunice Royena (1922) (first marriage - Henry James Kinnear) -- Donald
James; (second marriage - William Hill), Pendleton

Hunter (1924) (Irene Fricker) -- Nairn, Robert, Clyde. Hunter operated his
own business in Ottawa and, since retirement, keeps busy with real estate.
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Lome Eldon (1926) (Cleta Wilson) -- Kenneth, Winston, Barbara. Lome
and Cleta farmed near Hawkesbury, then moved to the outskirts of Vankleek Hill.

Ruby Alba (1927) (William Proudfoot) -- Hugh, Dwight, Jan, Bonnie
Gordon Lloyd (1930) (Edith Bradley) -- Alison, Bradley. Gordon worked for

International Harvester in Kemptville and Ottawa while Edith taught school for
many years, first in Fenaghvale, then in Ottawa.

Jean Annie (twin) (1933) (Stuart Harrison) -- Dwayne, Dawna, Judy, Deb­
bie. Jean worked in Ottawa, married Stuart and then moved to Kenmore.

Joan Helena (twin) (1933) (Oral McHugh) -- Douglas, Sandra, David. Joan
was employed in Ottawa, married Oral and lived in Ottawa.

Infant daughter (1939), died at birth.

First row: Linda, Mary, Cleta, Irene, Joan, .lean, Eunice, Ruby, Dorothy, Agnes, Norma, Edith.
Sceond row: Kenneth, Roy, Lome, Hunter, Oral McHugh, Stuart Harrison, Willie Hill, Will

Proudfoot, Mansell, SllCrwood, I [ilion, Gordon

Four generations of Reids
Roy (Melanie Proudfoot), Ruby, Ian Proudfoot
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The Family of Russell Reid and Mary Ann Clemens

Russell, son of John M. and Annie Maria, married Mary Ann Clemens,
daughter of John and Hester Clemens. They spent all their married life in the
Riceville area, first farming on the 14th concession, later, north of Riceville, Lot 9,
Concession 12. When they retired, they moved to the village of Riceville.

They had four children:
Kathalean (Forrest Hill) -- Connie, Terry, Rhonda, Robert, Annie Laurie

Reid
Joyce (George Scott) -- Ronald George (Margaret Laverdure)
Eldon Ray (Ruby Scott) -- Mark (Lee Ann Ouellette) _. Brittany
Ivan (Barbara Froats) .- Randall, Jennifer, Michael, Kathryn.
Mary Ann died in 1959. Russell remained in his home, then lived with his

son, Ray, before moving to a home for the aged, in Pendleton. He died in 1977.
Russell and Mary Ann are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

The Family of Robert T.A. Reid and Janet Ellen Bradley

Robert Thomas Archibald, SOn of William John and S. Isabella (Bradley)
Reid, married Janet Ellen Bradley, daughter of Henry John Bradley and Mary
Proudfoot. They lived on Lot 10, Conc. 14, South Plantagenet. They had nine
children:

David Proudfoot (1888-1917). David made cheese in Fournier for a number
of years. He was killed in active service in France in 1917.

William Bradley (1890-1945) (Jessie
Carpenter) -. Mary, James, Ruth, David

Mary Agnes (Donald Macintosh) -­
Robert, Donald, David, Ethel, Joyce,
Stuart

Lucy Isabella (1896-1985) (first mar­
riage - George Walsh), (second marriage ­
Roy Rowe). Lucy lived many years in
Montreal, then moved to Riceville, Conc.
14.

Thomas Temple (first marriage .
Verna Bratt), (second marriage Ethel--.--)
.- Lome Robert. Thomas Temple was
killed in WWII.

Margaret May (1901-1979) (Howard
McCaUum)

Richard James (Ila Card)
Janel Ellen and Robert T A.
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Leonard Alex Muir (Lennie) (1908-1990). Leonard served in WWII with the
Cameron Highlanders.

Inez L.H. (Cyril W. Baines) -- Beverly.
Robert and Janet Ellen are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

First row: Agnes, Robert, Janet. Second row: Ethel Macintosh, Temple, [nez,
Cy Baines, Maggie, George Walsh, Lucy

The Family of George W. Reid and Mary McCallum

George W. Reid (1832-1918) was born in the United States. In 1836, his
family came to Canada with the United Empire Loyalists. In 1863, he married
Mary McCallum (1844-1935). Records show that he owned 210 acres, Lot9, Cone.
14. Sometime around 1890 or a lillie later, he sold this farm to John M. Reid and
moved his family to western Canada.

Their children were:
Minnie Kate (1864) (John Franklin) -- Nellie, Earl, Cliff, Fred; Wilhemina

Eloise (1866) (William Bell) -- Larry, Redge, Vera; Frederick William (1868­
1894); Avelina (1872), died at three months of age; Jennie (1873) (George Rowe);
Florence (1876); Effie Bella (1878) (first marriage - V. Gilpin), (second marriage ­
John White); Charles Stuart (1880-1882), died al two years and five months; Char­
lotte Edith (1882-1889), died al seven years and seven months; Jessie Georgina
(1884) (----- McGarry).

George W. and Mary were buried in western Canada.

La Famille Charles et Marguerite Remond

Charles est ne aPlouguiel, en Bretagne (France), Ie 16 mars 1933. Son pere,
Arthur Remond, et sa mere, Jeanne-Marie Nicholas, sont aussi nes en Bretagne.
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Le 27 decembre 1955, iJ epouse Marguerite Riou, fiUe de Pierre-Marie Riou et de
Marie Diouris de Bretagne.

Ils s'etablissenl sur une ferme laitiere et porcine de 100 acres et y demeurent
jusqu'en 1985.

Suite a un voyage au Quebec avec loute la famille en 1982, leurs deux ftIs
decident de s'etablir au Canada.

En avril 1985, Charles el Marguerite vendent leur ferme en France, suite a
une peste porcine, et emigrent au Canada. lis logent un mois chez leur fils qui
travaiJle ala ferme porcine de Maurice Lamoureux, aCasselman.

Charles et Marguerite achetent la ferme qu'ils habitent presentement, les
lots 8 et 9 dans la lse concession, anciennement la ferme de Gerard Galipeau.
Cette ferme est dotee d'une porcherie de fmition et d'une grange reamenageable.
lis sont salaries aux fermes Lamoureux de St-Isidore pendant presque deux ans.

Au bout d'un an, ils reamenagent I'etable et debute en production laitiere en
aout 1987. En aout 1988, un premier incendie detruit la grange ct toule la recolte
de fain. On garde courage et reconstruit aneuf, plus moderne et fonctionnel. En
mars 1989, un deuxieme incendie detruit la porcherie avec les 1 000 pores. Celte
fois-ci, on decide de ne pas rebalir; on conslruit plutot une grange a foin.
L'cntreprisc s'ameliore et l'avenir s'annonce promelleur.

En novembre 1990, Charles et Marguerite obtiennent leur citoyennete
canadienne.

Ire rangee: MiCheline~ M~rguerile (Steven) (Deanna), Charles, Janna.
2c rangee: Michel. Alain

Leur famille compte trois enfants el trois pctits-emants:
Marie-Louise (1960). Marie-Louise est dcmeuree en France aCaneen. Elle

est militaire de carriere. Elle a un fils de 8 ans.
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Michel. Michel s'est marie Ie 17 mai 1986 a Micheline Strasbourg de
Montpellier (Quebec). lis habitent Sherbrooke.

Alain. Alain s'est marie Ie 11 janvier 1986 11 Janna Yull (originaire de Win­
nipeg). lis ont 2 enfants: Steven, age de 4 ans et demi, et Diana, agee d'un an et
demi. lis demeurent sur une ferme laitiere, aSt-Isidore.

The Family of William Renwick

William (1850), son of James Renwick and Nancy Nicholson, married a Miss
Clemens. She died in childbirth. They had one son, Edgar Scott. His second mar­
riage was to Catherine Sara Scott (1866), daughter of George Scott and his first
wife, a Miss Reid. They lived and farmed south of Fournier (Guy Forest's place).
They had a family of eight:

William John (1888-1951), single; Charlotte (1891-1976) (Delbert Scott) -­
Murray and Rowat; Hannah (1892-1980) (William G. Kinnear) -- Myril, Henry
James, Kitchener, Mildred, Kathaleen, Dorothy, Mabel, Allon; David (1893),
western Canada; Moses (1898-1964) (Doris Nicholson); Charles (1902) (Gladys
Scott), California; Janet (1904-1983) (first marriage - Archie Hughes) -- Ray,
Murray, Ellis; (second marriage - Fred MacGregor) -- Grace; Robert (1905),
northern Ontario; Austin, died as an infant.

William died in 1915 and Catherine Sara, in 1950. They are buried in
Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

The Family of William and Elizabeth Rowe

William Rowe Sr. (1798) and Elizabeth (1808) came to Riceville and settled
west of the village, Lot 11, Concession 13, where they raised their family.

According to the 1851 census, they had:
John (first marriage - ----- Reid); (second marriage - Eliza Dixon) -- Cor­

delia, Hannah, Frances and Leonard
William (first marriage - Jane Dixon) -- John, Jacob, Annie, William and

Henry, known as Harry; (second marriage - Elizabeth Charlton) -- Mary Elizabeth
and George; (third marriage - Bella James) -- Myrtle, Margaret, Sarah, Charlie
and Wava

Robert (Jane Wilson) -- Edith May and Effie Elizabeth
Mary A., single. Mary was a housekeeper.
Thomas (Jane Ann Conn) -- James, George, Susannah, J. Albert, Edward

(Ned), Elizabeth, Phoebe, Miles and Frank
George
Elizabeth (John Charlton) -- Robert, Arthur, Lizzie, Lena and Alice
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Alexander (Susannah Conn) -- Luther R.J.
James (Hannah Dixon) -- Garnet, Clementine and Ida
Sarah (Miles Colson) -- Ora
Henry (first marriage - ---- Wilkinson) (second marriage - Sarah Ann

Franklin) -- Cecil
Richard (Dick) (Fanny Conn) -- Hazey, Arthur, Jasper, Nettie, Maud and

Percy Alexander.
Dates of the death of William Sr. and Elizabeth and their places of burial are

unknown.

The Family of Thomas Rowe and Jane Ann Conn

Thomas (1834), son of WiUiam and Elizabeth Rowe, married Jane Ann Conn
on August 7, 1862. They lived west of Riceville, Lot 11, Concession 13. They had a
family of nine:

J ames Alexander (1868-1888); William George (1870-1948) (Katherine
(Katie) Wilson) -- Rhena Alberta, Thomas, Velma, Annie Mary, Gerald and
Ernest; Susannah Jane (1870) (first marriage - Fred W. Reid) (second marriage ­
Robert (Bob) Scott); Thomas Albert (Ab) (1874) (Eliza May Scott) -- Theresa J.,
Lome J., Carmen Lester, Albert Keith; Robert Edmund (Ned) (1878-1944) (Jane
Wilson); Eliza (1882-1957) (Albert Wilson) -- Lyle, Norma, Murray, Georgia,
Kathleen, James, Willis, George and May; Phoebe Mary Ann (1884) (David Wil­
son); Edward Miles Caison (Milie) (1887) (Clara McNaughton) .- Grace; Francis
James (Frank) (1890-1960) (Leana) -- Joyce, Vernon, Gordon, Lloyd.

Thomas died in 1897 and is buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery. Jane
Ann's date of death is unknown.

The Family of William George Rowe and Katherine (Katie) Wilson
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George (1870), son of Thomas Rowe
and Jane Ann Conn, farmed west of
Riceville, along the Ridge, Lot 9, Cone. 13.
On October 13, 1897, George married
Katherine (Katie) Wilson (1878), daughter
of James Wilson and Maria Fitzgerald.

They raised a family of six:
Rhena Alberta, died June 1, 1919, age

20 years
Thomas (1901) -- Murray
Velma (1903-1972) (Ernest Fitzgerald)

-- George
Annie Mary (1906) (Stewart Milton

Swerdfager) -- Irene, Donnie



Gerald (1909-1963) (first marriage - Ida Maria Howes) -- Orville, Richard
(second marriage - Ella Schryer) -- Ronnie, Allen
Ernest (Ernie) (1911-1985) (Viola Wert) -- Lorraine, Douglas.
George died on September 29, 1948, and Katie, in 1941. They are buried in

Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

The Family of William Gerald Rowe

Gerald

Gerald (1909), son of George and Katie Rowe,
married Ida Howes (1909) on September 14, 1929.
They farmed Lot 11, Concession 13. Gerald and Ida
had two sons, Orville and Richard. Ida died June 18,
1935, age 26, while giving birth to Richard, who also
died.

Orville farmed his dad's farm for a number of
years. Orville is single. He now lives near Vankleek

.. Hill.
Gerald married Ella Schryer on June 25, 1937.

~\ They had two sons, Ronnie and Allen.
Gerald died in 1963, He is buried in Franklin's

'" Corners Cemetery with Ida and Richard,

Orville

The Family of Ernest Roy Rowe and Viola Wert

Ernest (October 26, 1911), son of George Rowe and Katherine (Katie) Wil­
son of Riceville, married Viola, daughter of Earl and Eliza (Clemens) Wert, on
November 20,1937.

Ernie (as he was known to most) and Viola took up residence in Riceville.
He was employed with the CPR and worked in Apple Hill, Hurdman, Vaudreuil,
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Rigaud, Smiths Falls, Winchester, Plantagenet, Eganville and Alfred stations over
a number of years.

Ernie and Viola purchased John MacIntosh's store in the village, The local
people appreciated the supplies found in the store.

Viola loved her flowers. Passersby appreciated the work she put into her gar­
den, Ernie and Viola had one daughter, Lorraine (Gary Rowe), and one son,
Douglas. AlIlhree are living in Ottawa.

Ernie died on August 15, 1985, at the age of 73 years, and Viola, on February
6, 1986, at the age of 75 years.

They are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

Viola and Ernie

The Family of William Rowe

William Rowe (1825), son of William Rowe Sr. and Elizabeth, married Jane
Dixon. Their children were:

John (Margaret Cameron) -- Euphemia Elizabeth, Forrest Elmer, William
James, Adah Gertrude and Margaret Helen; Jacob -- Grace and Myrtle; Annie
(Ira Cox) -- Mabel, Ruth, Earl and Ora; William Henry (Harry) (Margaret Conn)
-- Elsie, Euphemia, Susan, Roy and Stanley.

After Jane's death, WilJiam married Elizabeth Charlton. To this union, two
ehildren were born;
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Viny and Leslie

Mary Elizabeth (Donald Gordon MacKeracher) -- Annie, Helen, Ethel Lee
and William Duncan Gordon; George (Isabella Franklin) -- Basil and Leslie.

William later married Bella James (1846). They had a family of five:
Myrtle (John Presley) -- Lome, Hazel, Ruth and Vernon; Margaret (Thomas

Blaney) -- Serson, Harold, William and Hazel; Sarah (Hugh Benton) .- Jean and
Ruth; Charles (1882-1914); Wava, died as an infant.

William died in 1906, and Bella, in 1919. They are buried in Franklin's
Corners Cemetery.

The Family of George Rowe and Bella Franklin

George, son of William Rowe Jr. and Elizabeth, married Isabella (Bella)
Franklin (1874), daughter of Benjamin and Jane Ann Sruelds. George and Bella
farmed and raised their family in Riceville, as did many of their ancestors.

Leslie (Vinia (Viny) Rowe) -- Ila, Morna, Gary, Sharon, Rhona and SheriU
Basil (first marriage - Ella Coons) -- Marion; (second marriage - Gertrude

Hutt) -- Shirley.
George died in 1948 and Bella, in 1958. They are buried in Franklin's

Corners Cemetery.

The Family of Leslie Rowe and Vinia Rowe

Leslie (1904), son of
George Rowe and Bella
Franklin, married Vinia Rowe,
daughter of Garnet Rowe and
Violet Muir.

They had six children:
IIa (Eldon Franklin) -­

Gary and Faye
Morna (Art Hebert) -­

David
Gary (Lorraine Rowe)
Sharon (Rheal Hebert) -­

Terry and Angela
Rhona (Brian Bramhall) -­

Carole
Sherrill Ann, died an m­

fant.
Leslie farmed west of

Riceville. When his wife, Vinia
(Viny), passed away, Leslie
stayed on the farm. In later
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years, he resided at the Maxville Manor.
His son, Gary, and wife, Lorraine, daughter of Ernie Rowe and Viola Werl,

now own the family home. Lorraine teaches in Ottawa while Gary drives for a
transport company.

Viny died on January 4, 1952, age 39 years, and Leslie, on February 19, 1985,
age 80 years. They are buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

; i,' i
Gary, Rhona, lIa, Morna

The Family of James Rowe and Hannah Dixon

James Rowe (1843), son of William Sr. and Elizabeth, married Hannah
Dixon (1847).

They farmed and raised their family in Riceville.
Garnet (1886-1964) (Violet Muir) -- Clemmie and Vinia; Clementine (John

McLennan); R. Ida F. (1876-1888).
James and Hannah died in 1925. They are buried in Franklin's Corners

Cemetery.

The Family of Garnet Rowe and Violet Muir

Garnet (1886), son of James Rowe and Hannah Dixon, was born in Riceville.
Garnet married Violet Muir (1895).

Garnet and Violet farmed where John and Vivian Muir live, then moved
along the Scoteh River Road, just north of the village, along the river bank (Daniel
Desforges' place).

Their two children were:
Vinia (Leslie Rowe) -- Ila, Morna, Gary, Sharon, Rhona and Sherrill Ann
Clemmie F., died August 31,1915, age three weeks.
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Violet died in 1963, and Garnet, in 1964. They are buried in Franklin's
Corners Cemetery.

The Family of Henry Rowe and Sarah Ann Franklin

Henry (1848), son of William
and Elizabeth Rowe, first married
a Wilkinson girl and later, Sarah
Ann Franklin on July 19, 1875.

They had one son, Cecil
(1889-1962).

Sarah Ann died on April 22,
1921 and Henry died on Septem­
ber 30, 1931. All are buried in

" Franklin's Corners Cemetery.

Cecil

The Family of Thomas Albert Rowe and Eliza May Scott

Thomas Albert (Ab) (1874),
son of Thomas Rowe and Jane
Ann Conn, married Eliza May
Scott (1877), daughter of John
Scott and Eliza Wilson, on July 1,
1989. They farmed in Riceville
until 1908, when they moved to
their Maxville area farm. They had
a family of four:

Theresa J. (1899-1933) (Earl
Thompson) She died; no children

Lorne J. (1902-1949) (Marion
Halliday)

Carman Lester (1905-)
(Freida Shouldice) -- Melvin,

Mayand Albert (Ab)
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John J, and Catherine -1920

Elinor and Helen (twins), Thelma, Sheldon (Shelly)
Albert Keith (1909-) (Lois Morrison) -- Douglas and Robert.
Ab died in 1948 and Eliza May, in 1953. They are buried in Maxville.

The Ryan Family

John Ryan (1770) and Mary Burns (1780) came to Canada about 1814 from
Wexford County, Ireland. They had gone up the St. Lawrence, landed at Brock­
ville, Leeds County, settling inland near Toledo, just south of Smith Falls. This was
a time in history when land grants were being given to the United Empire
Loyalists. Not being in that category, and the fact that Plantagenet Township in
Prescott County had just recently been surveyed (1811), John Ryan was given the
patent to Lot 19, Cone. 9, and settled there about 1817.

John and Mary had come with their seven sons, all born in Ireland: Matthew,
John Ryan, George, Michael, Moses, and twins, Patrick and Dennis. John and
Mary are buried in the Plantagenet cemetery near the bank of the South Nation
River.

Matthew. Matthew (1790's-1850's), oldest of John Ryan and Mary Burns'
children, married Winnifred Findlay (1805-1875) in Curran, Ontario, in 1845. Fol­
lowing their marriage, they settled in Leeds County. When John Ryan Sr. (his
father) died in the early 1850's, according to tradition, the farm went to the eldest
son. Matthew had already died, and so his widow, Winnifred, inherited the east
half - 100 acres, Lot 19, Cone. 9. Their children were Julia and John.
Julia married James Stewart and had one son, Robert (1891-1969).
Robert (Bob, as he was known) married Beatrice Marie Shane (1896-1970); they
were parents of four children:
Evelyn Edna (1916-1952), single
Helen Ada (1918-1969), twin, single
James Gilbert (1918-1919), twin, (Mary
Beatrice MeCulloch (1917-1970))
Robert, Leonard, Michael, Murray, James ~'"

(Jimmy), Anne and Ada Marie '
Ada Marie (1925-1927)
John and his wife, Catherine McAllister, .
lived on the homestead in Pendleton, Lot ~'"
19, Cone. 9, along the 10th concession.
They had six children:
Karl (Margaret Ann (Maggie) Sloan) -­
Hubert, Lambert, Stanley, Dean, Ernest,
Mona, Rena and Edgar
Stanley (Pauline Runyan) -- Wayne, Gor­
don, Norma, Doris, Leonard, Leona,
Irwin, Murray and Garry lived out west
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Thomas (Ethel Moore) --John, Howard, Bernard, Gary and Murray of Pendleton
Helena (Lena) (Dan Harrigan) -- Kathleen of Pendleton
Ethel (Emmet Surch) _. Rena, Doreen, Ray, Evelyn, Angela and Margaret
John.

John Ryan, second son of John Sr. and Mary (Burns) Ryan, was born in 1797.
He married Margaret McFall (1810). He was a tailor by trade and lived near the
homestead, moving later to the Rockland-Cumberland area. They had four
children. Two of them are Annie (Neil Harrigan) and Margaret (William Brown).
Both these families returned to the Pendleton area to live.

George (Catherine Mary McKinley) -- John, Catherine, Moses, Mary Ann,
Margaret, Hugh and George

Michael. Michael (1806) married Eliza. He operated a hotel at Plantagenet
Mills for many years, then settled on a farm on the 9th concession, south of Cur­
ran. They had seven children of whom John, Catherine, Patrick, Mike Jr. are
known at this time.
John married Elizabeth Kennedy and they had eight children: Michael (Tona
Jones) -- Mabel, married -- no children, Maxine, Marie, Elmo; John V. (Mary
(Minnie) MacGregor) -- Annie Shane, Eileen Valcour, Ada, Muriel, Josephine
Wheeler, Lorelta Hamilton, Howard (died as a baby), Florence, Dorothy Mc­
Cormick and Vivian Muir; Elizabeth (James MeKinley) .. Ruby, Gertie, Arthur
and [wins: Albert (Abbie) and Elmer (died as a baby); Kennedy, single, stayed on
the family farm until his death; Minnie, single, remained on the farm with Ken­
nedy; Willie and Cullen (both died during a diphtheria epidemic); Bertha.
Catherine, Montreal
Patrick's descendants are in the Buckingham area: Margaret MacNamara and
Catherine McFaul, daughters of Virginia (Jennie) Ryan
Mike Jr., single.
Descendants from this family still in the Fournier - Riceville area are:
Vivian (John Muir), daughter of John V. and Minnie MacGregor; Victor Mc­
Kinley (Lorraine Poupart), son of Arthur and Sophie, grandson of Elizabeth, mar­
ried to James McKinley; Theresa (Gregory Ryan), daughter of Percy and Gertie
(McKinley) MCAllister, and granddaughter of Elizabeth and James McKinley.

Moses (1854-1870). Moses was employed as a clerk at Plantagenet Mills.
While thus employed, he was carried over the dam and drowned while attempting
to row a man across the river. He was sixteen years old.

Patrick (1811) married Nancy and settled on Lot 16, Cone. 9 (across from
Don Kinnear's). They had eight children. One son, Moses, married Rose Shane
(daughter of John Shane and Margaret Furlong) in 1877. They remained on the
homestead. Their children were: Winnie (Leslie Peever), Theresa (Tessie) (died
young) and Tommy (Viola Smith). Patrick died in 1865.

Dennis, Patrick's twin, married Bridget MeCormick in 1835. They pur­
chased 100 acres of Lot 20, Cone. 9, and lived there until he died in March 1879.
They had three sons: Charles (died young), George (1837) (Anne McAllister) --
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Margaret, Charlie, Garnet, Bridget Alice, Edna, Clara and Maude. Dennis Jr., the
third son, married Alexina Durocher and had a family of four: Matthew, John,
Phillip and Hugh. Normand Vallee lives where the farm buildings were.

The Family or Karl Ryan and Margaret Ann Sloan

Karl Ryan, born October 25, 1889, son of John and Catherine, married Mar­
garet AM (Maggie) Sloan (1893-1941), daughter of Edward Sloan, on November
25, 1919. On December 1 of that same year, they settled on a small farm four miles
east of Pendleton and two miles south of Curran, on Cone. 10, South Plantagenel.
While they worked this farm, they had six children:

Hubert, single; Lambert (Helen Campeau) .. Michael, Eileen, Lynda and
Richard; Stanley (Winnjfred McLoone) -- no children; Dean (Leona Browmigg) ­
- Darlene, Catherine, Leonard and Bernard; Ernest (Agatha Collins) -- Colleen,
Paul and Mary; Mona (Hubert McFall) -- Lynn, Wayne, Stephen and Brian.

Maggie (Ernie), Karl
Hubert, !....amberl, Stanley, Dean -1929

The family had grown and a larger home was needed. In 1933, Karl pur­
chased the McCulloch farm, one mile east of Fournier. He sold the small farm on
Cone. 10. While farming in Fournier they had two more children:

Rena (Alloyus McPhee) -- Heather, Alan and Brent
Edgar (Dorothy).
When Maggie died, Karl was left to raise his family alone; however, each of

the children helped Karl in his or her own way.
[n 1947, Karl gave up farming and retired for a well-deserved easier life. He

and his oldest son, Hubert, moved into the Campeau home, just east of Fournier,
on the south side of the road. Hubert lived with his father, looking after his
beehives and doing other work, often helping different farmers when needed.

706



Hubert and his dad renovated the house. When Karl died, Hubert moved to Ot­
tawa to work at the Experimental Farm, He has now retired and resides in Ot­
tawa.

Karl died in 1964, and Maggie, in 1941. They are buried in Sl. Bernard's
Parish Cemetery.

Ernie, Edgar, Dean, Stanley, Rena, Lambert, Mona, Huberl ·1964

The Family of Lambert Ryan and Helen Campeau

Lambert, second son of Karl Ryan and Margaret Ann Sloan, married Helen
Campeau. They first lived in the Campeau home while he farmed with his father.
They later moved near MaxviJle, then farmed at Franklin's Corners, on the
southeast corner. They had a family of four:

Michael (Patricia McManus) -- David and Glen; Eileen (Guy Painchaud) -­
Renee and Eric; Linda (Glen Herriot) -- Ryan and Andrew; Richard (Suzanne
Gregoire) -- Kenda, Karla and Karl.

Lambert and Helen moved to Ottawa, living in the southeast end of the city.
Lambert worked at the Experimental Farm, while Helen worked for the federal
government. This past year they have moved to an apartment in Nepean.

The Family of Dean Ryan and Leona Brownrigg

Dean, fourth son of Karl Ryan and Margaret Ann Sloan, married Leona
Brownrigg, second daughter of George and Kathleen Brownrigg of Pendleton.

Dean took over his father's farm, a dairy operation. They had a family of four
children:

707



Darlene (Claude Rieux) -- Angela, Lisa, Bobby and Marianne. Darlene
works for the Mary Kay Cosmetic Company. They reside in Montreal. Claude
works for a computer company in Montreal.

Catherine (Marc Lalonde) -- Jamie, Jeffcry, Jason and Jennifer. Cathy and
Marc live west of Fournier in the home they built. Marc is self-employed in
refrigeration.

Leonard (Lynne Hebert) -- Derrick, Jeremy and Lindsay.
Bernard (Celine Poirier).
In 1982, Dean and Leona semi-retired, moving to the Capcau house in the

village, where Dean's father had lived. Dean lends a very capable hand to his son,
Leonard, with his work on the farm and has been a great help in the maintenance
of 51. Bernard's Church. Leona, who had taken over the position of postmistress
when Harry McCulloch retired, has just recently retired.

The Family of Leonard Ryan and Lynne Hebert

Leonard, son of Dean Ryan and Leona Brownrigg, grew up on his father's
farm, attended school in Fournier and Plantagenel. He continued his studies at
the University of Guelph. Upon graduation, Leonard worked as a sales repre­
sentative for Nutrite Inc., Brockville Chemicals.

In 1982, Leonard married Lynne Hebert, daughter of Jean-Louis Hebert and
Rachel Potvin. He took over the farm that year and purchased it in 1986.

Leonard and Lynne have a family of three: Derrick, Jeremy and Lindsay.
Those who drive east leaving Fournier, having passed in front of Dean and

Leona's retirement home on the south side of the main street, will notice, to the
north, Leonard and Lynne's well-kept and prospering farm.

Jeremy, Leonard, Lindsay, Lynne, Derrick -1991
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The Family of George Ryan Sr. and Catherine Mary McKinley

George (1803-1840), third son of John and Mary (Burns) Ryan, married
Catherine Mary McKinley (1801-1891), daughter of John McKinley and Mary Mc­
Cormick. Mary was born at Donegore, County Antrim, Ireland. The two families
had come to Canada on the same boat. George spent his life on this homestead
and died at the early age of 37 years. (He is buried in Plantagenet, the north east
section, a tall, gray tombstone; printing quite legible marks his grave).

George and C. Mary had seven children: John, Catherine, Moses, Mary Ann,
Margaret, Hugh and George. These children were third-generation Ryans in
Canada. At the time of their father's death, the children ranged in age from John,
11 years, La George, not yet born.

Catherine Mary (McKinley) Ryan, George Sr.'s widow, moved with her
children from Pendleton to the Fournier-Riceville area about 1850. A struggle for
existence must have been the way one could describe life for C. Mary Ryan and
her children, In time, after years of working together, her four sons, John, Moses,
Hugh and George, had cleared their land, married and settled on farms (all with
river fronts). The George Ryan families were then referred to as the "River
Ryans".

Today these four farms are all in active produclion and are the basis for dairy
operations:

John Ryan - Victor McKinley, Cornelius Bauer - Lot 2, Cone, 12
Moses Ryan - Hans Bauer - Lot 9, easL half, Cone. 10
Hugh Ryan - Howard Ryan - Lot 8, east half, Cone. 11
George Ryan - Howard Ryan. Lot 8, cast half, Cone. 11.
C. Mary Ryan lived for a number of years in Fournier village, in a small

house built on the first lot east of the present hotel. This house burned in later
years. At that time Mary was blind and the grandchildren were led to believe that
"she was blind because she had cried so much". Mary lived to be 90 years old. Her
daughter, Catherine McGillivray, cared for her. Catherine Mary Ryan died in
February 1891 and was buried in the McGillivray plot in the Fournier graveyard,
surrounded by her children and her many grandchildren.

The Family of John Ryan and Maria Gates

John (1829-1897), George and C. Mary's oldesL son, married Maria Gates
(1835-1916), daughter of James Gales and Mary Willard, in 1858. Maria was born
at FenaghvaJe. The Gates family were United Empire Loyalist immigrants from
Massachusetts. The John Ryan farm was on the north bank of the Nation River,
east of the bridge, Lot 2, Cone. 12 (Arthur-Victor McKinley-Bauer farm). John
was a school trustee for many years. He was also the first reeve of the township
and a Justice of the Peace. (History of Prescott - by Thomas, page 659). Their

709



children were: Adelia, Caro­
line, Catherine (Kate), Nellie,
George A., James, Mabel,
Ada, Arthur and Edgar.

Adelia (1859-1949) (Gil­
bert Shane, son of John
Shane). They lived in
Pendleton. She lived to be 90
years of age, and has many
descendants.
Pearl (1881-1964) (Patrick
McCrank) -- Ada, Adelia,
Anna, John and Leslie Maria John

Edna (1883-1929) (Ernest
Darragh) -- Irene, Isabel, Robert and Marguerite
Gilbert (1886-1967) (Marie Kehoe) -- PhyJlis, Ardis, Leslie, Lome, Patricia and
Ada
Leslie (1888-1977) (Elizabeth Hamilton) -- Lloyd, Ulric, Lionel, Eunice and Gil­
bert
Ada (1891-1923) (Clarence McAllister) -- Mabel
Eva (1894-1946) (Lawrence Darragh) -- Helen and Muriel
Beatrice (18%-1970) (Robert Stewart) -- Evelyn and twins, James and Helen
Viola (1898-1982) (Leslie Harrigan) -- Chester, Aylwin, Hubert, Una and Wilfred
Launce (1900-1935), bachelor.

Caroline (1861-1879) drowned in the Nation River while she and Adelia
were skating. She is buried in Franklin's Corners Cemetery. (Gates tombstone).

Catherine (Kate), married William Nicholson in 1886. He was the son of
Henry (Harry) Nicholson and Mary Hunter. They had one son, Leslie John, who
married Annie Maude Rowe. They had three children: Donald, Percy and Har­
vey. Contact has been regained through Gordon Winter - Ada Ryan line.

Nellie (1864-1960)(John Kelly). They lived east of Fournier (Don Kelly's
farm). She lived to be 96 years of age. Their children were:
Gertrude (1886-1967) (Howard Neville)
Cora (1888-1975) (Charles Proudfoot) -- Robert, James, Helen, Will, Lome, John,
Ruth, Charles, George, David and Frances
George (1890-1961) (Alice James) -- Dean, Donald, Ruth and Gordon
James (1892-1969), bachelor, Montreal
Catherine (1894-1980), Montreal
Edgar (1898-1980) (Mabel Kelly) -- Kathleen and Albert, twins; John, Gerald,
Leona and Anna, twins; Raymond, Audrey, Loretta, Lois and Mary, Montreal
Helen (1900-1988) (Arthur Blaney) -- Gwen, Jean, Katie, Florence and Lloyd
Ryan (1902-1943) (Rose Snyder) -- Gertrude, Patricia, Kathleen and Justine

George A. (1865-1947) (Stella Metcalfe)
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Edna. Murray, George A, Carl, Clifford,
Stella, Elizabeth - 1916

James (1869-1936) (Margaret Surch)
Mabel (1870) (John Arnew) , Tillbury, Ont. .- Arthur, Leslie, Edgar,

Raymond, Gerald and Norman. Contact was lost after Mabel's death but has since
been renewed in the younger generations.

Ada (1872-1924)
Arthur (1872-1930) (Alma Ryan, granddaughter of Moses Ryan) -- Charles,

Mary, Gerald and Bernard. They lived in Otttawa. Arthur is buried in Fournier.
Edgar (1875-1897), drowned while skating, at age 22 years. He was buried in

Fournier, exactly one month after his father's death. John died October 24, 1897,
and Edgar, November 24, 1897.

Grandchildren of John Ryan still living at the time of this writing, September
1991, are: Beth Ryan (George A.), Mary Ryan (Arthur) and Gerald McEwen
(Ada).

The Family of George A. Ryan and Stella Metcalfe

George Albert was born in 1865 to John Ryan and Maria Gates. On Novem­
ber 21, 1890, he married Stella Metcalfe (1870), daughter of David Metcalfe and
Elizabeth MacLean.

George A. and Stella had a family of six:
Vernon (May 10, 1893 - Aug. 9, 1893)
Clifford (1894-1957)(Frances Reid Cutt)
Carl (1901-1991) (Esther Scott)
Murray (1903-1968) (first marriage - Elizabeth Scott) -- Bernard; (second

marriage - Violet Albert)
Edna (1905-1987) (Harry Shaver) -- Barbara
Elizabeth (Beth) (1911-) (Raymond Guay) -- Brian and Terry.
On June 3rd, 1891,

George A. and Stella bought
the west half of Lot 7, Conc.
13, from George D. and
Mary (McCormiek) Ryan,
Moses and Anna's son. In
1906, they purchased the
east half of the west half, and
in 1912, they purchased part
of the east half from the
Central Railway Co. of
Canada. In 1920, Stella M.
bought the west half from
Rose Anna Muir.

Elmgrove Farm (as
they called all these pieces
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Stella, Albert, Pearl
Carl, Esther

put together) was a dairy farm with purebred registered Ayshire cattle and
purebred Clydesdale horses. George A. grew grain for feed, for the cattle and as a
cash crop. They operated a trucking business, and ran a taxi service for a number
of years. They owned the first threshing machine in this area. In 1931, they sold an
easement to Hydro Electric. About 1938, when cars were becoming more plenti­
ful, two Esso gasoline pumps were installed in front of the house. George A. kept
racehorses, which he enjoyed, especially at fair time. He was the assistant in the
post office, driving the mail. He was also secretary of the South Plantagenel
Agricultural Society.

George A. served his country. On December 9, 1903, George A. was
promoted to the rank of Major, 5th Louise Dragoon Guards. Attached to the rear
of their home, over the wood shed, was the Guards' Armoury. From here, equip­
ment and army supplies were made ready for issuing during the Boer War and
then for the six-week summer training courses at Camp Petawawa, Ontario.

After George A.'s death, the farm was operated by his widow, Stella, and
their son, Clifford. In 1949, Elizabeth and Raymond Guay, her daughter and son­
in-law, operated this land till Raymond's death in 1958. In 1963, Beth (Elizabeth)
sold the farm to the Matejovit family who sold to the Kozielo family in 1976. It be­
came a mushroom-growing enterprise.

George A. died in 1947, and Stella, in 1961. They are buried in Franklin's
Corners Cemetery.

The Family of Carl Ryan and Esther Scott

Carl and Esther were born in Riceville. Carl was the son of George A. Ryan
and Stella Metcalfe, and Esther, the daughter of Albert and Pearl Scott When
they married in 1938, they took up
residence with his parents. They then
moved into their own home a short dis­
tance away, a dairy and cash crop farm.

When the new public school was
being built in Riceville, Carl dug out the
basement with his team of horses; he was
paid 35¢ per hour.

After a serious illness, Carl was un­
able to farm any longer. He and Esther
took over the South Plantagenet Telephone
Company. They operated the central
switchboard from their home.

Carl was the secretary and kept the
accounting records for the telephone com­
pany plus the cheese factory, the Franklin's
Corners Cemetery and the United Church.
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Esther, although busy as an operator, found time to contribute to the Women's In­
stitute and the United Church.

In 1956, Carl and Esther moved to Ottawa, where he obtained work as a
clerk with Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation until his retirement. Es­
ther worked in stores and became credit manager for some time. She later went to
the Government CTRC as supervisor of a clipping service until she retired.

Carl and Esther have celebrated their 50th wedding anniversary and more
quietly, their 53rd. Carl, having been confined for some time to daily care at
SLVincent's Hospital, died in August 1991. He was buried at Franklin's Corners
Cemetery. Esther, who visited him daily, will no doubt find she has a big void to
fill. Esther and Carl did not have children of their own; however, there are many
in the community who, like Esther, find they have fond memories of Carl to share
with family and friends.

The Family of James Ryan and Margaret Surch

James (1869-1936), son of John and Maria (Gates) Ryan, married Margaret
Surch (1869-1941) on June 30, 1890. They farmed his father's land, Lot 2, Cone.
12.

In 1905, they purchased the
brick building in the middle of
the village of Riceville. It housed
the post office, the Bank of
Nova Scotia and the
switchboard for the South
Plantagenet Telephone Co.
(This building today is a small
store, east of the bridge on the
south side of the main road.)

J ames assumed the respon­
sibility for the post offiee, the
switchboard and was linesman
for the telephone system. He
continued in these capacities
until his death in 1936.

James and Margaret had
seven children: Margaret anti James

John James (1891-1955)
(Lorena Bracht), Fielding, Sask. -- James, Wilfred, Lawrence, Myron and Hugh
Barney

Urban (1893-1963), single, Fielding, Sask., WWI veteran
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Harold Stephen (1896-1956) married Annie
Muldoon in 1927. She died in 1929. He lived most
of his life in Riceville. He served in both WWI and
WWII. They had no children.

Edgar Thomas (1898-1973) (Mary Grace
Beresh), Prince Albert, Sask. -- James, John,
Thomas, Kathleen, Margaret and Launce.

Claude (1900-1961) married Maude Stewart of
Pendleton in 1935. They lived in Riceville, where he
was linesman for the telephone company until 1948.
The family moved to Moose Creek, where Claude
took up a position with the Roxborough telephone
system. In 1953, he joined the Sl. Lawrence Seaway
Authority, Cornwall, where he remained till his
death. Claude and Maude had three children, born
in Riceville and who went to school there: Hubert
(Bernadette Daigle) -- Thomas; Wilfred (Jeannette
Jean), no children; and Barry, unmarried.

Helen (1902-1986) (Adelard Emmell). Upon
her father's death in 1936, Helen became the
Riceville postmistress and acted also as
switchboard operator for the local telephone com­
pany. She lived with her brother, Claude, and his Claude and Maude

1

Hubert, Maude, Wilfred, Barry
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family, until 1948. When they moved, Helen remained in the family home until
1953, at which time she married Adelard Emmell and also moved to Moose
Creek.

Ada (1904-1991) (James Harkin). Ada remained at home and assisted her
father with the post office and switchboard until she married James in 1936. They
resided in Vankleek Hill. They had one son, Dean Charles (Anna Maria Willems)
-- Robert James (1966), Sean Michael (1969), Lisa Elizabeth (1971).

James farmed until his death in 1963. Ada died in February 1991.

The Family of Moses Ryan and Anna Barrett

MosesAnna

Moses (1833-1909), second son of George and Catherine Mary Ryan, mar­
ried Anna Barrett (1836-1882), daughter of George M. Barrett and Jane Gleason,
in 1859. They settled on the east half of LDt 9, Cone. 10., along the 11th concession
(Hans Bauer's land today). Their family was: George Dean (1860), John (1862),
Garrett (1864),
Frances (1868),
Hugh (1870), Eva
(1876), Helena
(1879) and Joseph
(1882). Anna and
baby Joseph died in
1882. Moses lost
Eva and Helena,
ages 9 and 6 years,
to scarlet fever
within two days in
1885.

George Dean became the farmer, married Mary McCormick and, in the
1890's, moved to Ottawa. Among his family members were: Dean, Windsor; Violet
(Alfred Bradley); Alma (Arthur Ryan); Georgia and Lloyd. Some of his
grandchildren are: Fr. Michael Ryan, St. Peter's Seminary, LDndon; Fr. Timothy
Ryan, Searboro Missions, Toronto; and Marguerite Bradley McGillis, Alexandria.
Marguerite supplied much of the information on the Moses Ryan family.

John married Elizabeth Gregg. He has no descendants. His two daughters,
Theresa and Helena, were nuns. His sons, Phillip and Garrett (Lillian Harkin),
lived in Montreal; neither had children. John and Lizzie retired in Vankleek Hill.

Garrett, a sheep rancher in Montana, U.S.A., seems to have been an adven­
turer. The ninety-years-ago-column - Vankleek Hill Review, February 27, 1988,
read: "Mr. Garrett Ryan, who has been home on a visit to Riceville from Montana
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starts for the Klondyke on Monday with 8 fine dogs and a complete outfit (Review
Jan. 24,1898)."

Frances (John Cameron) lived in Alexandria. Her daughter, Frances
Donegan, of Otlawa, acts as a volunteer at the Maxville Manor. She began this
volunteer work during the time her husband was a patient and although she is over
80 years old, she continues to do volunteer work. She was a university professor.
She still enjoys a current events program with some of the Manor residents.

Hugh was ordained to the priesthood in 1934, at 64 years of age. His ordina­
tion took place in Salt Lake City, Utah, U.S.A.; he returned for his first mass in St.
Bernard's Parish. He was assigned to duties in San Jose, California, where he died
in 1945.

Moses' farm was sold to Ernest Ryan, son of George and Clarissa Gates.
Buildings were demolished in the eady 1960's, and today it is a cash crop farm.

The Family of Hugh Ryan and Mary MacGregor

Hugh Ryan (1838-1916), son of George and C. Mary Ryan, married Mary
MacGregor (1843-1910), daughter of Duncan MacGregor and Catherine Fraser,
in 1871. Their family eonsisted of: Ellen, Catherine,
Alfred, Jane, Ann, Lewis and Urban.

Ellen (1872-1906) married Michael Terry (1860­
1940) in 1893, They lived on the orignal Terry homes­
Lead, Lot 18, Cone. 6, Caledonia. Their children were:

Alfred, Gertrude, Edgar,
Viola, George, and twins,
Ellen and Helena. Ellen
(1906) and Helena died
after this delivery. Their
son, George, is the only
surviving member in 1991.
He lives in Montreal.

Catherine (1874-
1911) married Leonard
Muir (1880-1952) in 1904. Mary

They lived in Lemieux
(Rene Franche farm) -- Harold (1905) and Evelyn
(1907). They also cared for their adoptive nephew,
Leonard Bradley. Leonard and Catherine are
buried in Fournier.

Alfred (1875-1964) married Florence Shane
(1878-1950).

Hugh
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Jane (1877-1958) was a nurse. She
worked in Montreal. She was with her
sister, Ellen Terry, when her twin
daughters were born and was also with "
them when Ellen and one baby, Helena,
died. A strong bond developed between
Jane and her niece, Ellen Terry, who also
became a nurse. Jane received loving care ."
from Ellen through her last years of life.
Jane died in 1958 and chose to be buried in
Plantagenet with her grandfather, George
Ryan.

Ann (1883-1962) married Howard
Bangs (1884-1924) and lived on GreenJane
Road, West Hawkesbury, on the Bangs
homestead. Their children were: Mona
(1911) (Ward), Eliphalet (Lifie) (1912),
Ryan (1915), Una (1917) (Haughton),
Doris (1920)(Wylie), Barbara (1922) (Cun­
ning), Dean and Jean (1923) twins.
Howard died suddenly of a heart attack
December 26, 1924. Ann managed to con- Jane, Ellen, Ann (sianding)

tinue on the farm and keep her family
together. She died on Christmas Day, 1962. Howard
and Ann are buried in Hawkesbury. Her son, Ryan, still
lives on the homestead.

Lewis (1884-1960) (Catherine Q'Byrne)
Urban (1888-1969). Urban, the youngest of the

family, went west in 1908 and homesteaded at Macklin,
Saskatchewan. He would return during the winter
months. In 1917, he married Helena Shane, daughter of
Alexander Shane of Lemieux. They had four sons:
Leonard, Lloyd, Ernest and Raymond, three of whom
farmed around Macklin. Urban and Helena are buried
in Macklin. They have many grandchildren out west.

Lewis Mary died in 1910, and Hugh, in 1916. They are
buried in Fournier.

The Family of Lewis Ryan and Ca therine O'Byrne

Lewis (1884-1960), son of Hugh Ryan and Mary MacGregor, married
Catherine O'Byrne (1912). They farmed the homestead, Lot 8, Cone. 11, with his
father, Hugh. Lewis built the present barn in 1916 and the house (the third one) in
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Alfred and Aorence

1920. All of their children were born in Riceville: Evelyn (1913), Marion (1914),
Hugh (1916), Charles (1919), Bernice (1920). Lewis' inlaws and all the O'Byrne
families moved to Saskatchewan and homesteaded in the Wilcox-Corinne Area.
Lewis sold out to Alfred and moved to Corinne in 1921. Lewis died in 1960, his
wife in 1983. They are buried in Wilcox, Saskatchewan.

The Family of Alfred Ryan and Florence Shane

Alfred (1875-1964), son of Hugh Ryan and Mary MacGregor, married
Florence Shane (1878-1950), daughter of Walter Shane and Margaret Landrigan
of Lemieux, in 1905. Alfred lived on Lot 12, Cone. 13 (west of Murray Wilson's
farm), from 1908 to 1921. In March 1921, Alfred and Florence purchased Lot 8,
Cone. 11, from his brother, Lewis, and brought their family back to his birthplace,
the Hugh Ryan homestead. In 1936, Alfred, who was farming with his sons, pur­
chased his cousin Alfred's farm, the Simon MacGregor - Catherine Gordon farm,
Lot 9, Cone. 11.

Alfred's family con­
sisted of:

Jessie (1907) (Archie
McPhee). They farmed in
Pendleton before moving to
Ottawa in 1955. Archie died
in 1978, and is buried in
Pendleton. Jessie, age 84
years, lives alone in her
apartment. They had a family
of four:

AJloyus (1934) (Rena
Ryan), Ottawa -- Heather,
Allan and Brent

Alfred (1937) (Marina Robinson), Saskatoon, Sask. -- Kevin, Christine,
Anne, Robert and Leisa

Lester (1938) (Sue Lefaive), Ottawa -- Mamie
Sandra (1944) (Bernard Lalonde), Plantagenet -- Daniel, Joel and Rachelle
Walter (1909) (Ethel McKinley) -- Gregory, Alma and Colleen
Mary (1910-1987) (John Moore). They farmed near Vankleek Hill before

moving to Ottawa in 1962 where Mary continued in her leaching profession. John
and Mary are buried in Vankleek Hill. They had a family of five:

Elizabeth (Betty) (1933) (Ivan Kelly), Ottawa -- Karen, Shawn, Sheryl,
Donna, Heather and Krista

Walter (1934) (Barhara Beatty), Ottawa -- Kathleen, Maureen, Colleen,
Sharon, Karen and Patrick

Patricia (1936) (Leo Curtain), Ottawa -- Darlene, Tommy, Danny and Kim
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Larry (1939) (Patricia Proulx), Ottawa -- Michael, Robert, Peter and Joseph
Kathleen (1948) (Gary Meek) -- John, Shelley

Norbert (1919) (Pauline Shane) -. Lynne, Leona, Sheryl, Kevin, Rita, Helen,
Howard and Deana.

On Sunday morning, October 22, 1950, Florence suffered a final stroke and
quietly slipped away -- a beautiful lady gone on to eternal rest.

Alfred always took such pride in the fact that he was around to help in rais­
ing not only his own children, but also Walter's and Norbert's.

Alfred was tall and straight, with a great strength of body and character. He
had great love for his children and grandchildren and was his own model of hard
work, honesty and justice. He possessed the gift of making everyone around him
"measure up". Grandpa Ryan, as he was called by many, was very definite in his
ideas of what a child's behaviour should be. All of Alfred's Children, and especial­
ly Walter and Ethel, Norbert and Pauline, have reason to be proud of their
children, fully realizing how living with their grandfather has also influenced and
moulded their characters - compliments to the era of the extended family with the
grandparents' many years of experience.

Alfred, in the regular course of doing his light chores, attempted to tie up a
calf which had broken loose. [n his fall, he suffered a fractured hip. From then on,
in Alfred's mind, there was no purpose to live. He felt he could no longer be of
some use. He died two weeks later, on June 15, 1964, just weeks away from his
89th birthday. The death of this respected gentleman marked the end of an era.

Alfred and Florence are buried in St. Bernard's Parish Cemetery.

Photo taken at Alfred Ryan's - 1944
Firsl row: Urban Ryan, Alloyus, Alfred McPhee, Howard Ward, Grego'Y Ryan, Patsy Moore, Shirley
Ward, Colleen Ryan, Doris Bangs, Lester McPhee, Alma Ryan, Mary Moore, Maudie Ryan, [-Iubert,
Wilfred and Barry Ryan, Florence, Emmell, Jackie and Noreen Collins, Belly Moore, John Moore.
Lloyd and Lewis McKinley, Ryan Bangs, Walter and Larry Moore. Second row: Clayton McKinley,

Norbert and Claudie Ryan, Thomas and Maude McKinley, Florence Ryan, Jessie and Archie McPhee,
Walter Ryan, Evelyn Muir, Robert and Edna Shane, Jamie Ward, Helen Ryan, Ann Bangs, Mona

Ward, Gertrude and Edgar Terry, Alfred Ryan, William Ward, Leonard Muir
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Alma, Colleen, Gregory -1942

The Family of Walter Ryan and Ethel McKinley

Walter (1909), son of Alfred Ryan and Florence Shane, was born on the
Ridge. Walter was 12 years old when his family moved to the family farm along the
river.

In 1933, Walter married Ethel McKinley (1909-1978), daughter of Thomas
McKinley and Maude Shane. They lived with Walter's parents and farmed with his
dad and Norbert. Walter and Ethel . ­
had a family of three: l .

Gregory (1936) (Theresa Mc- '.
Allister) -- Charlene, Angela, Erin,
Heather, Carolin, Wayne and Wendy

Alma (1939) (Andre Matte) ..
Stephanie and Cynthia

Colleen (1941) (Harry De­
Grauwe) .. Anna.

Early in 1948, land transfers were
made. Walter and Ethel took over the
MacGregor farm, built a new house,
renovated the barns and settled on Lot
9, Conc 11.

In 1960, Walter Jived in OLtawa
during the week, with his sister, Jessie.
He worked on the messenger staff,

First row: Walter, Ethel, Gertie McKinley, Claude Ryan.
Second row: Alrrcd, Florence, Maude, Thomas
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Parliament Buildings. In 1962, Walter and Ethel purchased a house on Clemen­
tine Avenue and made their home there. WaIter moved to the post office within
the Parliament Buildings, while Ethel maintained their home and provided a
home away from home for their borders. When Walter retired in 1974, they sold
and moved back to Riceville. They purchased their retirement home at Franklin's
Corners. Walter was a great help to Gregory, helping with the farm work. Ethel, a
very gentle and loving person, died April 13th, 1978, following a lengthy iJiness.
Walter and Ethel, like their parents, are very much present in the lives of their
children and grandchildren.

Walter enjoys the comfort of his home, the seniors' activities and short trips.
He has found a true friend in Rhea Shane MacRae, Ethel's cousin. Rhea has be­
come a very special person to Walter's children and grandchildren.

The Family of Gregory Ryan and Theresa McAllister

Gregory was born in 1937, On the Hugh Ryan farm (his great-grandfather's
farm), farmed by his grandfather, Alfred, his father, Walter, and uncle, Norbert.
He completed his schooling at Kempville Agricultural College. In 1960, he pur­
chased the family farm from his parents, Lot 9, Conc. 11.

In 1962, Gregory married Theresa (1938), daughter of Percy McAllister and
Gertie McKinley.

Their farm was a dairy and cash crop enterprise. Gregory added to this piece
of land in 1965, when they purchased the Muldoon farm, Lot 16. Cone. 10 & 11,
and in 1975, the ARDA farm, Lot 12, Cone. 13. (This was the farm once owned by
his grandfather. Alfred, and where Walter was born). The Muir farm, Lot 11,
Cone. 14, was added in 1975. These last two farms have since been sold to Michel
Seguin and are in tree production.

Gregory and Theresa are quite active in the community, serving on a variety
of committees.

Gregory has been a leader for the Riceville 4-H Calf CLub from 1958 to
1985, a period of 27 years; director for the Prescott County Soil and Crop Im­
provement Association; director of the Prescolt Ayrshire Club; secretary­
treasurer of the South Plantagenet Ratepayers Association; director of the
Riceville Recreation Association; church warden; vice-presidenl of the finance
committee of St. Bernard's Parish, Fournier. Since 1959, he has been involved with
the Riceville Agricultural Society as a director, acted as president for ten terms,
and has been secretary-treasurer since 1987. He also served on the committee of
adjustment for the Municipality of South Plantagenet and as vice-president of the
Lower South Nation River Flood Association. Gregory has been a trustee with the
Preseott-Russell Public County Board of Educalion since 1971. He has served on
numerous committees within this board: management, negotiating, education,
finance, continuing education, site and construction, policies, to name a few. He
has served as first and second vice-president, five years as chairperson of the
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elementary public schools, and has acted as chairman of the English Language
Education Council of the Board.

After graduating from Plantagenet High School Theresa was employed by
the federal government in Ottawa, Civil Service Commission, for three years. She
then attended the nursing program at the Ottawa General Hospital and the
University of Ottawa and obtained her registration as a nurse in 1961. She worked
at the Ottawa General Hospital as an operating room nurse till her marriage to
Gregory. In 1984, when their ehildren were all in school, she returned to the Ot­
tawa General Hospital, working as a nurse on the neurology ward. She is currently
employed in the patient representative's office as patient representative.

Theresa currently sits on the Board of Directors of the Riceville Agricultural
Society, the South Plantagenet St. Isidore Public Library and the Children's Aid
Association of Prescott-Russell. She is a member of the Sunshine Women's In­
stitute, Fournier. She is the president of St. Bernard's 125th anniversary commit­
tee and of the parish's pastoral committee. She is also a member of the liturgy
committee and the souvenir book commiuee.

Gregory and his family received the Award of Merit from the Prescott Coun­
ty Soil and Crop Improvement Association at a banquet held in their honour on
April 13, 1992.

Seated: Gregory, Charlene, Wayne, Wendy, 1l1cresa. Standing: Erin,
Heather, Carolin, Angela
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Gregory and Theresa are proud of their family. AJI have been very active and
have always helped on the family farm. They have all participated in 4-H clubs and
different activities and showed how they can accept responsibility and trust when
called upon.

Gregory and Theresa have a family of seven:
Charlene (1963). FoUowing the completion of her schooling at the University

of Guelph, Charlene worked for the City of Toronto in administration of day care.
Charlene is currently registered at the University of Ottawa Teachers' College and
is looking forward to a new career in the teaching profession.

Angela (1964). A registered nurse, Angela spent a year in the north, then
returned to the Ottawa Civic Hospital. Since completing her critical care course at
Algonquin College, Angela has been working in the intensive care unit at the Civic
Hospital.

Erin (1965) completed her course in business administration and began
working at Tony Graham's, selling and leasing cars. Erin and Sean Savage are
proud parents of Dina and Kyle, twins born Dec. 20, 1989, and Ryan Gregory,
born July 13, 1991.

Heather (1967) completed her degree a[ the University of Guelph in Applied
Science-Consumer Affairs. Heather is employed with Algonquin College ad­
ministration and does some computer teaching.

Christening or Ryan Gregory Savage at 51. Dernardin Church· 1991
Gregory, Theresa. Fr. Serge Faucher (Senna), Erin (Ryan).

Sean (Kyle), Anita and Fern Savage

723



Carotin (1967) graduated as an R.N. from SL Lawrence College, Cornwall,
and is currently working as a nurse in the Neurology Department, Ottawa General
Hospital. Carotin is continuing her studies at Algonquin in a critical care course.

Wayne (1972) is following in his father's footsteps. He is auending college in
Kempville and plans to farm with his dad, on graduation.

Wendy (1974) is completing Grade 13 at Plantagenet. She plans to attend
university in the fall of 1992 and some day teach science at the secondary level.

The Family of Norbert Ryan and Pauline Shane

40th wedding anniven;ary
Norbert and Pauline

of:
Lynne (1949) married Trevor Delvaux

in Pietermaritzburg, South Africa, in 1976.
They have two daughters, Denise and
Andrea. They live in Mississauga. Lynne
works for the Peel County Board of
Education as grants officer. She has added
a Registered Industrial Accountant Certifi­
cate to her teaching degree and in 1991 has
qualified under the Ministry of Education.

Leona (1950) and her husband, Tom
Bond (Ottawa Police), live in Nepean.
Leona, a registered nurse, works at the

Norbert (1919), son of Alfred Ryan and Florence Shane, was one-and-a-half
years of age when his father moved from their home on the Ridge to the homes­
tead on the river bank.

Norbert's high school education at Vankleek Hill Collegiate was cut short
when his father bought the Simon MacGregor farm in 1936. It was at this time that
Norbert joined his father and brother, Walter, in their farming operation and the
three continued farming for 12 years.

Early in 1948, land transfers were made; Walter and his wife, Ethel, took
over the MacGregor farm while Norbert continued with his parents. On August 2,
1948, Norbert married Pauline Shane (1924), a schoolLeacher from Pendleton and
daughter of Willie John Shane and Eliza McCusker.

This was the beginning of another generation and the fifth family of Ryan
children to be born and to live on this farm: Hugh (7), Lewis (5), Alfred (4), Wal­
ter (3), Norbert (8). Pauline has always had a busy schedule with home, children,
community and church activities. She returned to teaching in 1968 at Our Lady of
Divine Love School, Pendleton, until her
retirement in 1982. As a parHime student,
she received her B.A degree from the
University of Ottawa in 1977.

Norbert and Pauline's family consists
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Civic Hospital's Heart Insticute. Their children are Thomas and Stephanie Bond.
Sheryl (1952) married Grant Pacey from Temagami, Ontario. They Jive in

Stittsville. Sheryl has obtained a master's degree in Education. She teaches in
Kanata. Grant works for Bell Northern Research. They have three sons: Shane,
Brendon and Evan.

Kevin (1953) was hired by Alberta Highways upon graduation from Algon­
quin College as a cartographer in 1973 and began working in Edmonton. He mar­
ried Paulette Keroack. They have a daughter, Natalie. Kevin works for the City of
Edmonton in the engineering department.

Rita (1954) married Darrell Brownrigg (Ottawa Police), son of George and
Kathleen Brownrigg of Pendleton. They live in the Edwards-Greely area of South
Gloucester. Rita works in the Kidney Dialysis Unit - Ottawa General Hospital.
She is a clinical teacher and has been editor of the quarterly - Journal of the
Canadian Association of Nephrology Nurses and Technicians.

Helen (1958), a graduate of Algonquin College, works for an engineering
firm. She lives in OUawa.

Howard (1962) operates the family farm.
Deana (1966), the youngest of the family, graduated from McMaster U niver­

sity in Hamilton. On December 22, 1990, she married Wayne Foster, in Cassel­
man, a few days after his graduation from R.C.M.P. headquarters in Regina. They
spent their first Christmas Day travelling the north shore of Lake Superior in a

Howard, Helen, Leona, Sheryl, Pauline, Norberl, Deana, Rila, Lynne, Kevin
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wintcr storm, en route to his first posting at R.C.M.P. Fisher Branch, Manitoba,
150 miles north of Winnipeg.

Norbert and Pauline have retired to a Senior Citizens apartment in Cassel­
man in 1985 and are enjoying the best of two worlds.

A major illness in 1986 haoS left Norbert with limited heart-functioning, but &n
otherwise heallhy body allows him to set his own pace. Norbert spends many
shorter days doing light wOik on the farm.

A strong father-son bonri still exifts as it did through Howard's growing
years. Grandpa and Grandma Ryan, Norbert and Pauline, are also an important
part of yJung Christophel's life. Norbert and Pauline are active volunteer workers
in their church, dS well <IS the Senior Citizens Club activities at Pendleton and
Fournier. These, along with the scniors' aClivities in their apartment building
(86% Frcnch-speaking) and in neighbouring towns have given them a very full ;ife
and a host of new friends to enjoy. As they bmh will say: "What more could
anyone ask or wish for?"

The Family of Howard Ryan

Howard (1962), a born farmer,tuok over the fami­
ly farm in 1985. When opportunity presented itself, he
a<.lded first the Franklin farm (which his father, Nor­
bert, had rented for a number of years), and then the
(rarreH-Lawrence Ryan farm, the east half of Lot 8,
Conc.1I.

A son, Christopher, was born Dccember 8, 1986,
following a June 1985 marriage. Christopher, a typical
liltle farm boy, enjoys life around the farm.

Ayrshire caltle
was the breed first

Howard chosen by Hugh
Ryan in the 1800's

and has continued down through the genera­
tions, Today on RyandaJe Farm, a registered
century farm, Howard's greatest farming inter­
est, like his father's and grandfather's before
him, is the Ryandale Ayrshire herd of cattle
that swim the river to come in for milking
during lhe summer months, as they did in the
time of Hugh, Alfred and Norbert's milking
days,

Christopher -1991
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Lawrence, Una, Pat, Will, Hazel, Garrell,
Georgia, Charlie, Saral\

The Family of George Ryan and Clarissa Gates

George (1841-1902), the youngest of George Ryan Sr. and Catherine Mary
McKinley's family, married Clarissa Gales (1847-1936), daughter of Charles Gates
and Hannah Nicholson, in 1870. (Clarissa came to Canada as a baby from Mass.,
U.S.A.) George and Clarissa settled on the east half of Lot 8, Cone. 11, next to his
brother, Hugh. Their family consisted of:

Cecilia (1871-1917) (Thomas John Terry)
Ernest (1872-1959) (Dora Downing) seltled on the Moses Ryan farm. They

had one daughter, Dorothy (Derling Simpson), ChesterviIJe -- Eleanor and Ruth
Hanna (1875-1960) (Henry Terry)
Maria (1879-1945)
Elsie (1881-1970)
Clara (1883-1964) (Robert Bradley) -- Mary (Whitney Gates) -- Hillis, Hilda,

Dell, AIlan, Jean and Rhonda.
Nora (1888-1982) (William Cameron), Montreal -- Donald, Ernie, Keith,

Nora and Clare
Charlie (1888-1974) (Sarah Downing).

The Family of Charles Ryan and Sarah Downing

Charles (Charlie) married Sarah Downing (1887-1971), daughter of John
Garrett Downing, in 1909. They first setlled on his father's farm at the river, then
moved to Cone. 6, along the Ridge Road, east of Fournier. Their children were:

Una (1910-1987) (Michael Elliot), Montreal-- Lorna and Lois
Georgia (1911) (Borden Clemens) -- Ann, Lodge, Mavis, lone and Elsa
Phyllis (1915-1962)

(Atchie Barton) -- Doris,
Carl, Walter and Catherine

Patricia (1916 )(first
marriage-Irvine Barton) -­
Austin; (second marriage ­
Ernest Bradley) -- Richard,
Joanne, Jeffrey and Philip

Garrett (1918) (Nina
Nicholson) -- Diane and
Shelley

Hazel (1922) (Elwood
Johnston) -- Dwight, Der­
win, Lynn, Leah, Leslie,
Ruth and Kenneth, Kevin,
Kimberley (triplets)

727



Garrell and Nina - 1988

Lawrence (1925)(Nelda Windsor) -- Terrence, Donna and Danny
Will (1929-1990) (first marriage - Elizabeth Varette) .- Anne, Coleen, Chris­

tine, Sandra, Catherine; (second marriage - Barbara Mosher) -- Joanne and
Patrick.

The Family of Lawrence Ryan and Nelda Windsor

Lawrence (1925), second youngest of Charlie Ryan and Sarah Downing,
married Nelda Windsor.

Lawrence and Nelda continued to farm the home place on the Ridge. They
had a family of three: Terrence, Donna and Danny. Terrence and Danny now
operate the home farm with their father, Lawrence.

The Family of Garrett Ryan and Nina Nicholson

Garrett (1918), son of Charlie Ryan and Sarah Downing, married Nina
Nicholson, daughter of George John Nicholson and Bertha Duggan.

Garrett served in the armed forces during WWII. His father had purchased
the farm where he and Nina live while Garrett was overseas.

Nina and Garrett have two daughters, Diane (Guy Shane) -- Corina and Lee.
Shelly (first marriage - James

Cunning) -- Ryan, Hamish; (second
marriage - Dave Hinton) -- Mac­
Kenzie, Mason and Nina.

Garrett and Nina are now
retired on the farm.

Garrett and his brother,
Lawrence, worked the river farm
until 1985 when it was sold to
Howard, great-grandson of Hugh.
Knowing the Ryan history is under­
standing Charlie's wishes that if the
river farm was ever for sale, first
chance should be given to the des­
cendants of Hugh.

The Hugh and George Ryan
families have been dedicated
farmers through the years. With the
exception of Charlie's son, Will
(Ontario Hydro), and Norbert's
son, Kevin (Engineering Dept., City
of Edmonton), the male Ryans have
been born farmers. This interest in

728



farming is evident still in the two youngest, Lawrence's son, Danny, and Gregory's
son, Wayne, a graduate and student of Kemptville College of Agricultural Tech­
nology.

Information on the Ryan family was received from: Norbert and Pauline
Ryan; Hubert (Karl); Hubert (Claude); Beth Guay, Barbara O'Flaherty, Esther
Ryan (George A.) and Theresa Ryan.

La Famille Ernest et Victoria (nee Lariviere) St-Amour

Entreprise J. E. St-Amour inc.
Fournier (Ontario)

1882 -1992
U ne entreprise florissante depuis 110 ans

C'est sous I'initiative d'Hormidas St-Amour que I'on do it aujourd'hui, apres
110 ans, I'entreprise si bien connue sous la raison sociale de J. E. St-Amour
Entreprise inc. de Fournier (Ontario). En effet, celui-ci erigea Ie premier magasin
en 1882 a St-Amour, non loin de Fournier. St-Amour ctait une petite locaJite
situce ala croisee d'une montee de la 7c concession de Caledonia.

Magasin et maison d'Hornlidas aSt-Amour
Ernest (deboul devant Ie magasin), Henri, Philippe - vers 1920

Le village portait Ie nom de St-Amour tout simplement parce qu'a I'epoque,
Ie ministere des Postes, voyant qu'iJ y avait suftisamment de correspondance
venant de l'endroit, decida d'y criger un bureau de poste. II clail important de
trouver un nom acette petite localite avec la venue du premier bureau de poste.

Le nom de St-Amour s'avera un choix tout a fait logique en raison du fail
qu'Hormidas St-Amour, sachant lire et ecrire, s'etait toujours occupe de la cor-
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Magasin 51-Amour -- Fournier -1930

respondance de ses concitoyens; c'est done alui qu'incomba la responsabilite de
s'occuper du bureau de poste.

En plus de ses nombreuses occupations, Hormidas etait celui qui s'occupait
d'acheter, al'epoque, les biens necessaires ala comrnunaute tels que pelJes, outils,
etc.; il achetait ces produits au prix de detail Ii Montreal. Un jour, un des habitants
de la communaute lui fit la suggestion d'ouvrir un magasin pouvant contenir la
marchandise necessaire aux besoins des gens du village. Cette suggestion ne
tomba point dans I'oreille d'un sourd puisque, en tres peu de temps, Hormidas
construisit un entrepot et erigea Ie premier magasin en 1883. C'est de la ou
dtbutera I'entreprise familiale qui continuera a progresser apres quatre
generations.

Apres avoir mene abien les destines de son entreprise, Hormidas St-Amour
decede Ie 8 juillet 1912, al'age de 60 ans.

Ernest, fils d'Hormidas, assure la releve de l'entreprise familiale qui con­
tinuera a progresser. En 1927, celui-ci decide de vendre Ie magasin a St-Amour
pour venir s'etablir et lancer Ie commerce aFournier. Des 1945, son fils Henri, qui
venait de prendre son conge de I'armee, vient s'associer ason pere et tous les deux
gerent l'entreprise jusqu'au deces d'Ernest en 1952, a I'age de 63 ans. Henri
dirigera I'entreprise jusqu'en 1975, alors qu'il vendra Ie commerce ason fils Jean,
aujourd'hui I'ame dirigeante.

Ernest est Ie fils d'Hormidas St-Amour et de Catherine Leclerc. Le 27 avril
1914, il epouse Victoria Lariviere, fille d'Honore Lariviere et de Malvina Gauthier
de Plantagenet. lis donnent naissance asept enfants:

Henri (Aline Desjardins), Fournier -- 9 enfants
Philippe (Gemma Troltier), decede Ie 10 decembre 1986, Hull -- 2 enfants
Cecile (Leonard McCulloch), Fournier -- 12 enfants
Jean-Noel, ne Ie 25 decembre 1918 et decede Ie 4 novembre 1919
Paul (Florence Gau­

thier), decede Ie 2 mars 1989,
Ottawa -- 2 enfants

Rita (Rolland Ron-
deau), Marieville (Quebec) -­
4 enfants

Jean-Louis (Agathe La­
rocque), Californie -- 3 en­
fants.

Ernest est deceM Ie 13 .
Uvrier 1952, Ii l'age de 63 ans,
et Victoria, Ie 28 decembre
1958, Ii I'age de 70 ans.
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Raymond

Henri, Cecile, Donalda (soeurd'Honnidas), Jean-Louis,
Vicloria, Leopold (Paul), Emesl -1930

La Famille Henri el Aline (nee Desjardins) Sl-Amour

Joseph Henri Albert, fils d'Ernesl St-Amour et de Victoria Lariviere, est ne
Ie 25 juin 1915 a St-Amour et a etc baptise a Fournier. Le 4 mai 1942, il epouse
Aline Desjardins, fille de Wilfrid Desjardins et de Lise Poirier de Plantagenet.
Aline, enseignante, est descendante de la famille Chatelain de Curran.

Henri et Aline donncnt naissance a neuf enfants, dont un mort a la nais­
sance:

Denyse -- Pierre-Yves et Julye. Denise est agent
immobilier.

Jean (Michele Leblanc) --Karl, Annie et Vickie.
Jean est homme d'affaires.

Raymond, dedde accidentellement en 1985
Andre (Jeannine Boutin) -- Isabelle et Alexandre.

Andre est inspecteur de batiments.
Guy. Guy est eleclricien.
Claude. Claude est frigoriste.
Franc;ois. Franc;ois est technicien chez Zerox.
Michel (Kim Hadley) -- Damien et Dylan. Michel

est technicien et chercheur en foreslerie.
Henri fait ses etudes elementaires it St-Amour et a Fournier et ses etudes

secondaires a Vankleek Hill el a ]'Universite d'Ottawa. En 1942, il obtient Ie
grade de sous-lieutenant de l'Academie Militaire, a Brockville, Ie grade de
lieutenant a Borden el, en 1943, Ie grade de capitaine ii Debert (Nouvelle­
Ecosse). En novembre 1945, il prend son conge de I'armee.
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De 1945 a1975, Henri gere !'entreprise familiale J. E. St-Amour inc. aFour­
nier. II sera conseiller scolaire au C.E.P.R. de 1975 a1982.

Henri et Aline sont toujours tres actifs. lis font partie de maintes organisa­
tions sociales et paroissiales. lis sont membres fondateurs du Club de l'Age d'Or
de Fournier. Henri est Chevalier de Colomb - 4e degr6. Aline fait partie de la
chorale paroissiale. Le jardinage est un de leurs passe-temps favoris.

Ire rangee: Aline, Henri. 2e rnngee: Fran~ois, Jean,
Claude, Denyse. Andre, Michel, Guy

La Famille Jean et Michele (nee Leblanc) St-Amour

Jean est Ie fils d'Henri St­
Amour et d'Aline Desjardins. II
fait ses etudes elementaires a
Fournier et complete son secon­
daire aPlantagenet en 1966.

Jean passera neuf mois chez
Union Carbide, a Arnprior, pour
revenir travailler a l'cnlreprise
familiale en fevrier 1967, com­
merce qu'il achetera en 1975.

Vickie, Jean, Karl, Michele, Annie
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Le 9 aofit 1969, Jean epouse Michele Leblanc, fille de Clement Leblanc et de
Gisele Chartrand d'Alfred. Ils donneront naissance a trois enfants: Karl, Annie et
Viekie, jumelles.

Michele epaule Jean dans I'entreprise J. E. St-Amour inc.

Magasin St-Amour - 1992

La Famille Andre et Jeannine (nee Boutin) St-Amour

Andre est Ie fils d'Henri St­
Amour et d'Aline Desjardins et
Jeannine, la filJe de Rene Boutin
et de Rina Moreau. Andre et
Jeannine s'epousent a Sainte­
Hyacinthe Ie 29 avril 1978. lis
donnent naissance a deux en­
fants: Isabelle el Alexandre.

Andre fait ses etudes
elementaires a Fournier et
secondaires a PlantageneL OU il
gradue en 1969. En 1971, it ob­
lient un dipl6me en carLographie
du College Algonquin.

Jeannine esl secretaire au
bureau d'agriculture, a
Planlagenet. Andre est
presentement inspecteur de
batiments pour la ville de
Cornwall. C'est aussi un amateur
de chasse.

Je<tnnine (Alexandre) eL Andre (Isabelle)
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Leopold (Paul) et Florence ­
vers 1970

La Famille Leopold (Paul) et Florence (nee Gauthier) St-Amour

,1 Leopold, fus d'Ernest St-Amour et de Victoria
\ 1Lariviere, est ne it Fournier Ie 26 mars 1920. Le 25
.' janvier 1953, il epouse Florence Gauthier, fille d'·
.,~~ Albert Gauthier et d'Annie Bissonnette de

" Plantagenet
Paul et Florence donnent naissance a deux en-

. fants: Diane (Ie 12 novembre 1953), Ottawa, et
; Pierre (Ie 6 mai 1956), Vars. Diane est la mere de

trois /illes. Pierre est ingenieur stationnaire.
En 1950, Paul fait son entrai'nement de base

dans les forces armees, a Aylmer. En 1951, il eSl
stationne a Rockcliffe et en 1953, a Goose Bay. 11
prend son conge des forces armees en 1955 et se
dirige en comptabilite.

Paul est dccede Ie 2 mars 1989 et inhume a
Vars.

Florence demeure aOttawa.

La Famille Gaspard et Helena (nee Lefebvre) St-Amour

Gaspard, fils d'Ovila St-Amour et d'Oclavie Lalonde, est ne it St-Amour Ie
18 novembre 1906. Vers l'age de
metier de coiffeur pour hommes.
conseillent de retourner a
la campagne. II revient it
Fournier exercer son
metier de coiffeur. II
habite chez Ernest eL Vic­
toria St-Amour.

Le 15 juin 1931,
Gaspard epouse Helena
Lefebvre, fille d'Honorius
Lefebvre et de Loretta
Sloan. Cinq enfants
nai'tront de cette union:
Herve, Ie 14 avril 1933,
de-cede accidentellement
Ie 26 novembre 1950

Nita (Ie 10 janvier
1935), celibataire
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17 ans, il s'etablil it Montreal et apprend Ie
A. cause d'une sante fragile, lcs medecins lui

NiIB, Helena, Louise, Gaspard (Jeannine),
Herve, Annelte - 1945



Annette (Ie 19 fevrier 1936) -- 3 enfants
Louise (Ie 7 mars 1938) -- 2 enfants
Jeannine (Ie 8 decembre 1941) -- 3 enfants.
En 1932, Gaspard et Helena achetent une maison en face de l'eglise et ouv­

rent Ie restaurant Chez Gaspard, entreprise qu'ils gereront pendant trente ans.
Gaspard est decede Ie 8 juin 1978 et Helena, Ie 26 janvier 1983.
C'est avec fierte que je garde un precieux souvenir de mes parents, gens

combatifs, travailleurs et genereux.
Nita

Reslauranl Chez Gaspard - 1945

La Famille Onesime et Malvina (nee Malboeuf) St-Denis

Joseph St-Denis et Celina Martin
etaient natifs de Casselman. Lorsqu'ils
sont arrives sur Ie lot 22 de la ge con­
cession, jJ n'y avait meme pas de vraie
route; c'etait tout boise. lis ant dO
defricher un lapin de terre afm de se
construire une maison.

Onesime est Ie fils de Joseph St­
Denis et de Celina Martin de Fournier.
Le 15 septembrc 1902, il epouse Mal­
vina Malboeuf, fille de Maurille Mal­
boeuf el de Marie Bissonnette de
Fournier.

Onesime el Malvina
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De leur union naitront lreize enfants:
Rosa (Olivier Bray), d~cedes. Moose Creek -. 7 enfants
Aurore (Leonard Besner), deceM, Apple Hill -- 8 enfants
Lea (Henri Couture), decedes, Fournier -- 5 enfants
Laurence (Napoleon Allaire), d~cedes. Moose Creek -- 4 enfants
Laurette (Ernest Leroux), decedee, St-Bernardin -- 4 enfants, dont un

decede
Leonie (Telesphore Bourbonnais), decede, (Philias Bourbonnais, en secon-

des noces), decede, Fournier, St-Isidore
Alice (Rolland Gour), Casselman -- 3 enfanls
Valeda, decedee en bas age
Valeda (Albert Campeau), decede.s, Valleyfield -- 2 enfanls
Jeanne (Ernilien Proulx), decede, Rockland -- 6 enfants
Lionel (Antoinette Wathier), Hawkesbury -- un enfant
Annette (Orner Guindon), Cornwall-- 6 enfants
Alcide (Georgette BissonncLte), decede, St-Isidore -- 6 enfanls.
Des leur mariage, Onesime et Malvina prennenl la releve sur la ferme pater­

nelle, ferme qu'ils cultiveront jusqu'a leur retraite. En 1949, ils demenagent au vil­
lage de Fournier.

Onesime est decede Ie 4 janvier 1956, a l'age de 74 ans, et Malvina, Ie 27
decembre 1972, a l'age de 92 ans. lis sont inhumes a Fournier.

_ ·i.1"
l re rangee: Onesime, Malvina. 2° rangee: Jeanne, Alice, Valeda, Lionel,

Annette, Leonie. JO rangee: Laurelte, Rosa, Aurore, Lea, Laurencc - vcrs 1931
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La Famille Lionel et Antoinette (nee Wathier) St~Denis

Lionel est Ie fils d'Onesime St-Denis et de Malvina Malboeuf de Fournier et
Antoinette, la fiUe d'Edouard Wathier et de Catherine Smith de St-Bernardin.
Lionel et Antoinette s'epousent a St-Bernardin Ie 19 novembre 1949.

Apres quelques annees sans
enfants, Lionel et Antoinette
prennent Rene et Raymond
Joanisse sous leur tutelle jusqu'a
l'age adulte. Quelques annees
plus tard, irs adoptent une fille,
Sylvie, agee de quelques jours.
Leur famille eomprend done:

Rene, eelibataire, Hawkes­
bury

Raymond (Yolande Gagne),
Rigaud -- Aniek, Nadia, Isabelle

Sylvie, celibataire, Hawkes­
bury.

Apres leur mariage, Lionel
Lionel et Antoinelle ct Antoinette eultivent la ferme

paternelle. En 1970, ils vendent la
ferme a AJcide St-Denis et, en 1971, demenagent au village de Fournier. Depuis Ie
1er mars 1983, ils demeurent a Hawkesbury.

Anick, Nadia, Isabelle, Yolande, Raymond, Anloinelle, Lionel, Sylvie -1987
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La Famille Alcide et Georgette (nee Bissonnette) St-Denis

Alcide est ne en 1922, dans la 8e concession. II eslle fils d'Onesime St-Denis
e[ de Malvina Malboeuf de Fournier. Le 3 juillet 1947, il epouse Georgette Bis­
sonnette, fiUe de Josephat Bissonnette et de Marie-Ange Lalonde de Fournier.

Leur famille compte six en­
fants:

Jean-Claude (Diane Cyr) -­
Steve, decede, Eric, Sophie

Lucille (Reynald Seguin) -­
Stephane, Isabelle

Diane (Michel Bourgon) -­
Nancy, Cathy, Melanie

Ginette (Michel Wathier)
-- Patrick, Danny

Denise (Daniel Picard) -­
Vincent, Susie

Yvon (Johanne Sauve)
Christian.

Alcide et Georgette
s'achetent une ferme dans la ge

concession, aux limites de la
paroisse de Fournier.

A1cide est decede Ie 8 mai
1979, a I'iige de 56 ans. Il est Georgene et Alcide -1977

inhume aSt-Isidore.

La Famille Jean-Claude et Diane St-Denis
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Jean-Claude, Diane, Sophie, Eric

Jean-Claude est Ie fils
d'Alcide St-Denis et de
Georgette Bissonnette de
Fournier. Le 2 septembre
1974, il epouse Diane Cyr,
fille d'Omer Cyr et de Jac­
queline Berniquez de Four­
mer.

De leur union naissent
trois enfants:

Steve, Ie 17 fevrier 1976,
dec6d6 en 1980

Eric, Ie 12 juin 1977
Sophie, Ie 24 avril 1982.



Depuis 1975, Jean-Claude et Diane exploitent la ferme paternelle, Ie lot 24
de la ge concession de Caledonia, aux limites de la paroisse de Fournier.

Fermc St·Denis

La Famille Jules et Cecile (nee Marleau) St-Jean

Jules est Ie fils de Xavier 5t-Jean el de Celima Boileau. Le 11 octobre 1886,
il epouse Cecile Marleau, fl.lle d'Alexandre Marleau el de Joseph Bellefeuille d'­
Alfred.

Jules et Cecile ont cinq enfants,
tous nes aFournier:

Arthur (Caroline Sloan)
Azelie (Henri Denis)
Raoul (Rose-Alba Benson)
Ovide (Rose Menard - en

premieres noces); (Aurore Rose - en
secondes noces)

Marie-Anne (Orner Boileau).
Apres leur mariage, Ie couple

St-J ean demeure ~ Fournier ou Jules
exerce Ie metier de forgeron. En
1913, la famille St-Jean demenage a
Lemieux.

Jules est deceM en 1940 et
Cecile, en 1948.

] ules et CeciJe - ven; 1935
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70' anniveC1laire de mariage
Anna el Ovila

Emma el Fernand

La Famine Ovila et Anna St-Pierre

Isai'e St-Pierre de Clarence
epouse en premieres noces Amanda
Racette. Os ont deux enfants: Amanda
et Ovila. !saie epouse en secondes
noces Martine Brisebois. IIs donnent
naissance a sept enfants: Isa'ie,
Cordelia, Auguste, Adele, Orner,
Rose-Alma et Celina.

En 1906, Ovila epouse Anna
Boudreau de St-Pascal.

Ovila et Anna ont cinq enfants:
Yvonne (Leo Dupont)
Uda (Wilfrid Beaulieu)
Fernand (Emma Bourgon)
Rheal, decede a4 ans
Aline (Berthol Paquette).
Vers 1917, Ovila et Anna

achetent la ferme des Bissonnette
dans la He concession de Fournier, aujourd'hui propriete des Bauer. lis
demeureront aFournier jusqu'en 1936, alors que leur fils Fcrnand et son epouse,
Emma Bourgon, prendront la releve sur la ferme.

Ovila est decede Ie 13 decemhre 1977, aI'age de 94 ans, et Anna, Ie 23 fevrier
1978, aI'age de 92 ans.

La Famille Fernand et Emma St-Pierre

Fernand est Ie fils d'Ovila 5t-Pierre et d'Anna Boudreau. Le 9 aout 1936, il
epouse Emma Bourgon, fille de zenon Bourgon et d'Albertine Faubert de St­
Isidore.

Fernand et Emma donnenL nais­
sance a trois enfants:

Raynald; Ie 15 juin 1939 (Jeannine
Cote). Raynald est hotelier.

Jacques, Ie 26 juin 1945 (Liette
Ranger). Jacques est coiffeur pour hom­
meso

Denis, Ie 27 juin 1955. Denis est
Itotelier.

Des leur mariage, Fernand et
Emma s'installent sur la ferme paternelle
dans la He concession. En 1945, ils
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achetent un magasin general II. Rockland. En 1955, iJs vendent Ie magasin et Fer­
nand va travailler aux Recherches Nationales.

Fernand est decede Ie 8 novembre 1970, al'age de 57 ans.
Emma demeure aOttawa et s'occupe de benevolat.

La Famille Jean-Baptiste et Eva (nee Villeneuve) St-Onge

Jean-Baptiste St-Onge est ne aSt-Hermas (Quebec) en 1878. Le 17 octobre
1904, iJ epouse Eva Villeneuve de Plantagenet.

Leur famille compte huit eofants:
Theodore (Flore Malboeuf), ctecedes
Raoul (Antonine Lalonde), Alfred
Annee (Aime Charlebois), Glens Falls

(N.Y.)
Laurette (Alfred Lavigne), decedes, Glens

Falls (NY)
Felicite (Jean Tourangeau), decede,

Orleans
Angele (Hally Weller), Glens Falls (N.Y.)
Rachelle (Gerard Binette), Aylmer
Rita, s.s.c.j., Ottawa.
En 1925, Jean-Baptiste et Eva viennent

s'etablir sur une ferme Ie long de la riviere Na­
tion, aux limites de la paroisse de Fournier.

Eva decede en 1935.
Jean-Baptiste se retire au village de Four­

nier vers 1945. II decede en 1951.
Eva el Jean-Baptisle -1904

Maison palemelle -1930
Eva, Rachelle, Rita, Angele, Annee
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La Famille Raoul et Antonine (nee Lalonde) St-Onge

Le 12 juin 1939, Raoul, fils de lean-Baptiste St-Onge el d'Eva Villeneuve,
epousc Antoninc Lalonde, fille de Victor Lalonde et d'Eva Clemenl d'Alfred.

De celte union naissent sept enfants:
Louise (Marcel Bourdon), Maxville -- 6 fIlles, un gar~on

Pierre (Lyse Racine), Alfred -- 2 filles, 4 gar~ons

Gislaine (Conrad Longtin), St-Isidore -- une fille, 2 gar~ons

Jean-Marcel (Gail Woods), lie Perrot -- 2 ftJles
Richard, Alfred -- une fille, un gar~on

Carmelle, Rigaud -- une fIUe
Serge (Nicole Morin), Iberville -- une flUe, 2 gar~ons.

Leur famille compte en plus 24 petits-enfants et 9 arriere-petits-enfants.
Raoul et Antonine prennent la releve sur la terre paternelle qu'ils cultiveronl

jusqu'a leur retraite en 1973. lis demeurent presenlemenl it Alfred.

SOC anniversaire de mariage
1'" rangee: Raoul, Anlonine. 2c rangee: Serge, Richard, Louise, Gislaine,

Carmelle, Jean·Marcel, Pierre

La Famille Pierre et Lize (nee Racine) St-Onge

Pierre est ne a Fournier Ie 10 septembre 1941. II est Ie fils de Raoul St-Onge
et d'Antonine Lalonde.

Pierre laisse l'ecole assez jeune pour travailler a la ferme avec son pere. Lc
15 aout 1964, iJ epouse Lize Racine, fille de Rolland Racine et d'Elvina Menard
de Crysler. lis s'elablissent sur une ferme achetee ason pere un an plus tot, Ie long
de la riviere Nation, ehemin d'Alfred, Ie lot 1 de la 11e coneession d'Alfred.

Leur famille compte six enfants:
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Danielle (Rheal Bigras) -- Tania, Yanik, Kevin; Mario (Sylvie Lavoie); Syl­
vain; Stephane; Sylvie; Justin.

Lize a toujours epaule son mari dans l'entreprise de la ferme. lis y ont
apporte majntes ameliorations, pour la transformer en une ferme laitiere des plus
enviable.

En 1990, Pierre et Lize se construisent une maison, chemin 15 d'Alfred, et
vendent Ja ferme aleur fils Mario en 1991.

Pierre cultive du foin ct des cereales et aide Mario aI'occasion.

Rhea] (Tania), Danielle (Yanik), Sylvain, Mario, Sylvie,
Pierre, Lize, Sylvie, J uSlin. Slephaoe

La Famille Mario et Sylvie (nee Lavoie) St-Onge

Mario est Ie ftls de Pierre St-Onge
et de Lyse Racine et Sylvie, 1a fille de
Roger Lavoie et de Lorraine Lemieux
de Bourget. Mario el Sylvie s'epousent
aBourget Ie 4 aoGt 1990.

Mario et Sylvie font leurs etudes
secondaires a Plantagenct. Mario con­
tinue ensuite a travailler a la ferme avec
Pierre, Sylvie suit un cours de f1euriste
au College Algonquin et travail1e en­
suite chez Fines Flowers, aOttawa, Le
1er janvier 1991, ils deviennent
proprietaires de la ferme paterneUe.

Mario el Sylvie
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Fcrme Holstcin -- chez Mario el Sylvic St-Onge

La Famille Theodore et Flore (nee Malboeuf) St-Onge

Theodore (Jacqueline), Herve,
Roger, Rare - ]939mer.

Theodore, fils de Jean-Baptiste St-Onge et d'Eva Villeneuve, est ne Ie 16
avril 1910 a Noelville, dans Ie Nord de l'Ontario. II vienl s'etablir 11 Fournier avec
son pere, comme cuJlivateur, dans les annees 1925. Le 5 juillet 1932, Ie cure
Belanger Mnissait Ie mariage de Theodore et de Flore Malboeuf, fille du cul­
tivaLeur Alfred Malboeuf et de Celina Duhamel de Fournier.

Theodore et son epouse s'elablissent sur une ferme 11 Fournier. Ils donnent
naissance atrois enfants:

Herve (Andree Guil-
lemette), Montreal -- Daniel,
Michel, Claude, Sylvain

Roger (Georgette D'-'
Aoust), Plantagenet -- Gilles,
Gerald, Guy, Lise, Carole

Jacqueline (Jean-Pierre
Lariviere), Plantagenet -- Yves,
Jobanne, Guylaine, BenoIt.

Leur famille compte en plus
2 arriere-petits-enfants.

Theodore a vecu quarante­
deux ans dans la paroisse de
Fournier. II est decede Ie 5
fevrier 1968, a I'age de 57 ans.
Son epouse Flore I'a precede
dans la tombe en 1940, a rage de
28 ans. lis sont inhumes a Four-
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La Famille Laurent et Alice (Duval) Sarault

Laurent, ne Ie '20 decembre 1896 aWatertown (Etats-Unis), est Ie fils de
Charles SarauIt et de Philomene Bray. Alice, nee Ie 12 octobre 1906, est la fille de
Jean-Baptiste Duval et de Malvina Lalonde de St-Bernardin. Laurent et Alice
s'('lpousent Ie 31 decembre 1928.

Ils donnent naissance asix enfanls:
Leo, Ie 12 novembre 1930 (Noella

Hebert)
Jeannine, Ie 20 fevrier 1933

(Maurice Leroux), decede
Fleurette, Ie 19 juin 1935 (Lionel

Gagnon)
Marina, Ie 9 fevrier 1937 (RomuaJd

Sauve)
Rejeanne, Ie 20 mai 1938 (Roy

Scott)
Reo, Ie 23 fevrier 194D (Rita For­

gues).
Laurent, fermier, est aussi menuisier

et charpentier. II biHil des granges et des
maisons. Alice eleve et vend des poulets Laurent et Alice

qu'elle apprete elle-meme pour Ie
marche.

Laurent est decede Ie 4 aoOt 1968 et Alice, Ie 23 juin 1987. IIs sont inhumes it
Fournier.

liD, Jeannine, Fleuretle, Marina, Rejeanne, Reo
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